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FIVE-YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY EFMHHEHE

2017
S o
HK$'000

BT

14,535,135

2018
—TN\E
HK$'000
BETT

14,513,521

2019
—T-hE
HK$'000
BETT

14,885,044

2020
—E-RE

HK$'000
BT

14,939,550

2021
—E_-&§
HK$'000
BB

16,183,872

2,696,260 2,116,453 2,414,824 2,274,167 2,949,461
11,838,875 12,397,068 12,470,220 12,665,383 13,234,411
BIHKS31.27  BIHKS32.750  BHKS32.947t  #B¥HKS33.450 #HKHKS34.967T
744,888 1,014,267 429,984 162,560 427,302
BEHKS1.977c  BEHKS2.687T  BIEHKS1.14x  BEHKS0.437  BEHKS1.137%
AMHKS0.605t  BHHKS0.70r  BHEHKS0.607r  BHEHKS0.25w  B#EHKS0.287
30% 26% 53% 58% 25%
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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT XE®REE

Dear Shareholders,

| am pleased to present to you a review of the Group’s
business performance together with some observations from
the overall economic environment of 2021 and expectations
of the year ahead.

2021 REVIEW

In 2021, the world economy recovered with a growth rate of
5.5% but this was unevenly distributed between the
developed and the developing countries. According to the
World Bank, this surge is the strongest in recent years as
economies reopened due to the availability of vaccines and
timely policy support. Accompanying this impressive growth,
however, were chain supply bottlenecks and labour market
shortages with inflation in energy and non energy sectors as
well as their salaries and wages.

In the financial field, stock markets globally have continued
their rise since 2019, propelled upwards by the economic
recovery from the pandemic. FTSE All-World Index and the
MSCI 50 — Country World Index were up 17% and 20%,
respectively. US Dow Jones ended up 19% higher, SNP 27%
and Nasdaq 21%. Both European and Japanese stocks
enjoyed a good year, the Stoxx Europe 600 gained 22% while
the Topix index rose 10%. It appears that the Emerging
Market was the only disappointment of the year: the MSCI
Emerging Market Index dropped by some 5%.

With the threat of the soaring of inflation worldwide and
the prospect of monetary tightening, bond markets had a
difficult 2021. Meanwhile, the same reasoning coupled with
an improving US economy have set the US dollar for its best
year since 2015, except against the Reminbi. The Yen
performed the worst, amongst major currencies, against the
greenback with a drop around 10% in 2021.

RERIRER :

TANRRAE BTEHRAEF_T——
FZHERRE > URAANHEREER
BZBRS  HREERZAL

—E-—[EE
TEC—FHRLKHEUSS%NEER
B BEZENZEPFEARZEIHER
190 IRttt RIRITIE > LB FERRRT
ZREME ERSENEENTEME
FEMREBEREZIE  SKESUEMRN
e O BHBEERRERMENZHE
IRSEM S B TG R « AERFIEAETR
ZRFIAIBIR R TE KB LA 182 -

EEREE  KERRBEPER  HH
EHRRTEZE—NFEURFELR-
ER2EKIRZIEEAMMSCI S0t R 15
R LFR17% K% 20% - E=FiEBETS
B EFR19% > FEEWISH LFR27% >
NETIZE SIS 8 LR 21% o BUMAN B 45 A&
MIIRFRYF > it EUMN 6001581 LR
22% > REFIEH EFR10% > FETHIBE
BESFEH—LT ANKEZNMF | MSCIHTHE
MIBIEEI T T495% o
EEKERAARBNEEZMEIRT
TR FESFTBRETREN—F o
BIEER » EEKEBERES > ETBEZT
—HEMURRARE > BERARBEX
pRoh e EEEGED > AR ETLKRIRA
RE BT —FTFHEN10% -
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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT XE®REE

In 2021, the US economy has advanced 5.7%, a rate
unsurpassed in recent years. But this was achieved after the
US government injected some US$6 trillion to the economy
in addition to the loose monetary policy pursued by the Fed.
The results of such actions were mixed; by the third quarter
onwards, unemployment rate has shown a marked decline,
sustaining the momentum of both personal consumption
and investment in business. At the same time, there were
mounting supply shortages, rising energy prices, with
inflation not only in wages but across a wide spectrum of
goods.

Both the Euro Zone and the UK reported a strong rebound in
their economic activities in 2021 with a healthy improvement
in the labour market. Factors of the economic improvement
are familiar by now: vaccination, timely fiscal and monetary
policies support. The main driver was private consumption.
As the year draws to a close, they exhibited similar headwinds
as that of the US mentioned above. While the emergence of
Omicron in the fourth quarter has dampened the growth of
the two regions, the Euro Zone and the UK reported GDP
growth of 5% and 7% respectively.

On the other side of the globe, Japan has a much lackluster
performance compared to the other G7 nations, having a
very modest growth of 1.8%. Pundits ascribed this to a slow
vaccination rate necessitating a prolonged confinement
policy which harmed consumer spending. The confinement
policy ended finally in September and it almost coincided
with the new fiscal stimulus measures, aiming mainly on
private consumption introduced by the new prime minister.
The economy started to pick up therefrom. The high
imported commodity costs contributed to a five months
trade deficit from August to the year end, an important
factor for a weak Yen.

Australia is another significant Pacific economy in which our
group has invested. The strong path of recovery that it was
enjoying in the first half of 2021 was broken by the outbreak
of the Delta variant in the third quarter when the economy
contracted sharply. Growth resumed after the lockdown was
lifted in the fourth quarter. Australia ended the year with an
annual GDP growth of 5%, a low unemployment rate of
4.2% and the prospect of rising inflation in 2022.

T —FEREKEERST% > AITE
RFARME > W ZENREMEBITER
ERBRMEBRBFRURKEEALNG
BEETAN - BLEBEEREESY
BE=FE®B > REXZPETHE AA
HENBEREYRFERSE - Bt
EE > HEEHHERE  ERERL
R AMEIE LR SERRMBLIRE

EEAR -

BESHHIHGHERNS ) —F-—F
Bt @A E B 8T k58 » REARS
FREEHERE - BENMBMEBKRES
FRENHEDEE#S S BIER
AR RIE X B B HA$E L © Omicron Y
HRITEMEMESOSELE » Bt
ENMEENERNEEREERNDDRE
5% #7% °

ELHthG7 EIZAALL 5 Ikm —is A
RERRBEBRS  EENIER1.8%
EEALRRREEREEREIER KRR
WK > EHESZ W - MRHBERR
NB#RE R EEELHRENAHE
RIFIENE > BB ILFABEFA - EOE
mAASRERRN\RFERNAER
B Y¥ERE > REATES -

BHETERRENS —EEERTF
B - —TE_—F ¥ FHMEHR
MR > F=FE A Delta EBEL M=
BlW4E - EEFHNFERERIBEARINE
R - —FRMNERNEEBEE

5% > o#FKA QY% » EH_E-—
BRBEEH -



In 2021,China came top in GDP growth amongst all the
significant economies with 8.1%. In the first six months of
the year, the economy was driven by a combination of strong
exports and robust investment. The “Zero Covid” policy has
enabled the manufacturing to have uninterrupted
production, thereby enhancing the reliability of the Chinese
exports. Export sector alone had an annual growth of 30%,
with the Yuan appreciating against the US dollar at the year
end of 2021. In the first two quarters, the growth of domestic
consumption was gradually improving towards the pre Covid
level. The recovery of the labour market improved consumer
confidence.

The economic activities cooled markedly in the second half of
the year; partly caused by occasional Covid outbreaks in
certain parts of China, electricity shortage and a few
occurrences of natural disasters. Another important reason
was the determination of the Chinese Government to initiate
fundamental reforms to ensure and to enhance the long
term growth and stability in certain important social and
economic sectors such as education, internet online business
and, most important of all, the property sector.

The sustainability of the Chinese property market, which
together with its related industries account for almost 30%
of GDP, has long been a concern of the Chinese Government
whose policy is summarized by the phrase “houses are for
living, not speculation”. It was the property boom that
started from the middle of 2020 to the end of the first
quarter of 2021 that led to the strict implementation of the
“three red lines” policy, a joint collaboration of PBOC and
the Ministry of Housing. The fall of a large property
developer has created a domino effect on the other large
private owned enterprise developers. The market sentiment
turned from “wait and see” to being bearish. The contrast
between the two halves of the year can be seen in the
residential floor area sold in the 50 key cities: the first six
months has a period by period increase of 40% and the
second six a drop of 20%, the smallest volume of transaction
size since 2015.

“EC—FHEBEAEEMRERR
8.1% > fIFIFAE X 2K ERAS - SF
BAER  HEOMKETHCEE
R BRATBREEREXERMEE
E - HOERA BEHLHOFHER
30% - —E_—FREARERETHE -
EMEE > BRAHERYOAZERZF
KFE - BN HIGERRES T HEERN

Sl o

THELEEEHPREMER > FHEHME
1B 3 Hh e B K E 1B~ BAIEERA B AR
T BEERREPEBUT AR M
st B M AE SR PIR REATR E 18 R M AL
B—RIIRAMITENE > fINEEE
BEMREBURREENEMETE

FEEMENSREMBREZGBEAE
EHRER30% » B ET SN A REN
—BEXHPEBARARE > HBEREE
ATEFRAREN > F2AKRIEY -
B -EFERI B —F—FEX
BB ith A 2V 0 (RIEREA REBITHIME
BEIESBIT =RAIEF BR » EXE
MEZRENEEREMARRE M
FEEMELET ZREBEME > miFE
EHTEHE SAFY - #50EERmH
NEEHERRITELMELrFENS
kb A6 BB RELIE R 40% » E6EAE
EETFE20% » B —AE LR SR /N
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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT XE®REE

The Pearl River Delta, where the Foshan area is located, was
still one of the top performers in the property sector, ending
the year with an annual increase of some 3.5%, a figure
dragged down by the price drop in the last 6 months. The
residential property market in the Yangtze River Delta also
stood up well against the market downfall, with an 8%
increase in sales area and modest growth in prices of both
the first and second hand properties. In Shanghai, market
agents believed that Grade A office rental had stabilized by
the fourth quarter. In 2021, demand exceeded the combined
total of 2019 and 2020, driven by domestic financial services,
professional firms, TMT and retail services. Vacancy rate
dropped by 4% to 18%.

In the first two quarters of 2021, both Chinese fiscal and
monetary policies were prudent and target oriented,
avoiding excessive liquidity. From July onwards, and
especially in the last quarter both the government and the
People’s Bank reacted to the change in the economic
conditions with promptness. PBOC provided short term
liquidity injections; cut reserves requirements and lending
rate. Many cities adopted mixes stimulus measures, including
subsidies, tax reduction and widening the eligibility of home
buyers, to support the market. The government has also
stepped up effort to support creditworthy developers.

Hong Kong has an annual GDP growth of 6.4% in 2021, the
four quarterly growth rates are 8%, 7.6%, 5.4% and 4.8%
respectively. According to the Hong Kong Government, the
growth was led predominantly by private consumption which
has an increase of 5.7% in real terms compared to the year
before. Another factor is export which enjoyed a double
digit growth following the revival of the world economy. The
labour market was buoyant, the unemployment rate was
below 2% by the end of the year. However, the Hang Seng
Index failed to reflect this reality. It dropped 14% from that
of 2020, one of the worst performers among major stock
market indices.

BULUFIENK=AMENEEMEITE
RERFWHEZ — > BEBEERRE
BT FINERMNA3.5% R=AF
EmBTFEHLEH  HEERIEREY%
— ZFEEK/IMELE - EBFE
MEAERRARRAEFIEHEESIEM
FTEERKRER FEANESART B
RENTMTHNZERBNESH T =
T—EMNERBET _ET-NER-E
“EERAER  BETERTRA4% BE
18% o

“EC-FEWmE PEMBRNERER
Rz - BREm BRBERME - A
thA%K LERRE—F > BHANAR
IRITHEERZNBERERARE > R
ARIRITEAGHRE  BETFRER
ERMEMFE > ZEMTH RS ER
AIEN 0 BEMA - BRNREREE
B BREMANEXRFEERFNE
f&mE o

"R FERBREEMEER
6.4% > N8 = E & & 2 5l 8%
7.6% ~5.4%H4.8%  IREBEFBHTE
o BREFBREANHETE  BEF
MHEIEEEERS7% - 5 —EEZREHER
KEERHOBZHRSMAUBIER -
HENHIHERE » FERREREN2% °
AMEERHARERERR > BT
—EFETEKT14% > AXTEREHIZE
HPRBEEENREZ— -



The Hong Kong residential market performed best of all the
real estate sectors. Value of mass residential properties rose
by 4.4% and the luxurious sector by 7.2%. At the end of
2021, both rent and occupancy of the office market appeared
to have bottomed out; the worst moment was in the second
quarter, being the seventh consecutive quarter showing a
negative absorption rate. The overall rental value was down
by 5.2%, with Wan Chai and Causeway Bay performing the
worst with a drop off almost 10% and Central came top with
a 2% reduction. For the retail sector, rental value for high
street shops was 7% worse off and 2% down for the luxury
shopping centres.

BUSINESS RESULTS

For the year ended 31 December 2021, the Group recorded a
profit of HK$420.6 million, it represents an increase of 142%
when comparing with the year 2020.

The Board of Directors has proposed to recommend at the
forthcoming Annual General Meeting to be held on 19 May
2022, the payment of a final cash dividend of HK$0.28 per
share. Together with the interim cash dividend of HK$0.18
per share paid on 10 September 2021, the total cash dividend
amounted to HK$0.46 per share for the year 2021.

A detailed business review and analysis are to be found in
the “Management Discussion and Analysis” section of this

Annual Report. In summary:

e  For the year ended 31 December 2021, the total rent
received by the Group amounted to HK$305.8 million,
reduced by HK$14.6 million, a drop of 4.6% comparing
with the year 2020. For our major properties, the
aggregate occupancy rate is 82.8%.

e As to property development in Foshan, The Grand
Riviera, a total of 99%, 100% , 100% and 94% of
residential units of phase 1, 2, 3 and 4 respectively had
been sold by the end of 2021. As of 31 December 2021,
the total sale proceeds of the whole development
project amounted to some HK$6 billion. A significant
income will be generated as and when all the remaining
residential units, car parks and shops are sold off in the
future.

BRETHHEEMRA BMEREH KRR
B EEETYMEBELA44% R
%#@%FEJ:?’-H 2% T —FK >
FETSEHESMAERIGHBERER
?: P BIEREBI HEEBRTEFE
HIFEARER - BEHRE TES5.2% > &
FRIABERRRE » FEKE10% > §
REMTER2% - HRTEE > BHEE/E
HHNHEESEETRE7% > EEREYHO
A EETME2% °
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ZEEREBERE » BEIKERHR
R ESKA028TT EENKN_E
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EAFERIEEE SRR —EHA
A 5 =B E TR KR 27 o FE LT
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RERO—-—TEENRTETT > KB
46% > TERBYEZEBHEX
82.8% °
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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT XE®REE

The residential property project “Elegance Garden” in
Sanshui District of Foshan with a total buildable area of
142,908.8 sg.m. has all its planning and design scheme
approved by the Foshan Municipal Government.
Construction started in October 2020 and is scheduled
to be completed in October 2022.

One-Eight-One Hotel and Serviced Residences has
become one of the top premier quarantine hotels in
Hong Kong, thanks to the diligence and hard work of
the senior management and staff therein. It receives
good reviews of its service, food and the panoramic
harbour view. For the year of 2021, the hotel income
has shown marked improvement, turning its operation
from loss to profit.

In December 2021, the Group has completed the
investment in Kimpton Kitalay Samui, a five-star hotel in
Koh Samui, Thailand through share acquisition. The
hotel is managed by the InterContinental Hotels Group
(IHG) with the brand Kimpton. It has 21 villas with
private pools and 117 luxurious rooms and suites, a total
buildable area over 22,098 sq.m.

As at 31 December 2021, the Group has a total of four
overseas investments: three warehouses in Japan and
one office building in Australia, all of which are long
term investments co-invested with Value Partners group
(stock code 806.HK). All these investments have
generated satisfactory returns.

BLU=k&EMEFTHBEFTEHR
B > 4832515 142,908.8 75K
ERERIRGAREBBH LTI
FiEf - BRIER-FZFTF+
RRER > st — T "F+RABT -

BASREEENEINHESR
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Kimpton mM& EIE o JB/EH 21 8k
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OUTLOOK OF 2022
The 2022 outlook grows dimmer as time goes on.

In autumn of last year, the IMF forecasted the global growth
to be 4.9%. This slower growth appears to have common
underlying factors among western economies, viz US and
Europe, chiefly inflation especially energy prices, uncertainty
surrounding both government spending and monetary
policies, rising wealth gap in societies and growing
international tensions.

By January this year, IMF revised the global growth down
half a percent to 4.4% and the World Bank estimated it to be
even lower to just 4.1%. The reasons IMF cited then were
that US and China, were both facing stronger headwinds
than expected. In the case of US, opposition to President
Biden’s Build Back Better Act, the earlier withdrawal of
monetary accommodation together with continued supply
shortage led to a cut of 1.2% of the original estimate to
3.7%. In China, a worse than expected contraction in the
property sector and occasional Covid related disruptions have
reduced the forecast down some 8% to 5.1%.

Starting February, the US Labour Department reported that
the consumer prices jumped 7.5% in the 12 months through
January 2022, the steepest increase since 1982. This news put
additional pressure on the Fed for the magnitude of the
future interest rate rise. It also makes the US authority more
hesitant to introduce stimulus measures in an election year as
opinion polls have shown that inflation was the main
concern for voters.

The war in Ukraine together with the accompanying
economic sanctions and nuclear threat make 2022 looking
even more uncertain. The general consensus reached by
economists so far is that oil and gas will be higher for longer,
food prices may go up, Ukraine being a major food supplier.
Beyond these relatively specific effects, it remains unclear
where major economies will be heading. Central banks and
governments may find making decisions on tightening
monetary and fiscal policies more difficult in such a time.
There is a saying that the hit on Wall Street and investment
funds and the G7 economies, following a collapse of the
Russian financial market, may not be too severe as
investment in Russia has been much reduced since 2014. We
have to wait and see whether such a statement will turn out
to be true. However, with the major countries starting to
rearm, the economic prospect may not warrant undue
pessimism.
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Experts estimate that growth in China this year will range
between 5%—-6%. The target of the Chinese government is
5.5%. The final figure will be determined by the performance
of exports, domestic consumption pick-up and the state of
the property market. The demand of the export sector will
depend on the performance of a fluctuating world economy.
As 2022 rolls on, the sentiment of the property market has
shown signs of recovery. At the end of February, there was
news reporting that analysts were more upbeat on housing
and supply than before. This reflects the effectiveness of
actions taken by the government and monetary authorities
in the past few months. Economists believe that the PRC
government will continue to support the economy, the real
estate sector in particular, but in a manner of avoiding large
scale stimulus. The strong state owned enterprise sector
would be able to stabilize any disruptions caused by collapses
of large private property developers. In addition, in the past
years, the Chinese Government has been actively
encouraging the development of cyber related technologies
from cloud computing to synthetic biology, widening its
economic horizon. Such work will bear fruit on domestic
consumption. We are on the side of the optimist regarding
the prospect of the 2022 Chinese economy.

At the time of writing, Hong Kong is suffering from an
unprecedented Omicron Virus attack with an ever increasing
and record breaking new cases per day. The city’s activities
come to a standstill. Fortunately, similar to the experience of
other countries with Omicron attacks, people with adequate
vaccinations and reasonable health do not seem to be too
seriously affected. It is reasonable to assume, with the
financial aids the government are providing, that once the
situation returns to normal, the pent-up consumption
released will drive the economy back on track again.

In conclusion, 2022 is likely to be a challenging year but as
the saying goes, “behind every dark cloud, there is a silver
lining”.
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BUSINESS PREVIEW

Facing an uncertain 2022, our Group, through diligent and
professional management, is blessed with a healthy cash flow
and a strong balance sheet with a net cash position. As such,
we can time the sales of our Elegance Garden residential
units in Sanshui and the remaining units of The Grand Riviera
in Foshan to coincide with the full recovery of the local
residential market, thereby maximizing the group’s profit.

The international and economic situation is likely to hinder
European and Chinese tourists to SouthEast Asia. Kimpton
Kitalay Samui, our Thai resort hotel may need to wait until
the third quarter for its operation to reach full capacity. It is
in difficult times like this that having our hotel under the
management of InterContinental Group, will give us the
assurance of a swift recovery in the future.

We anticipate that after Hong Kong has recovered from
Omicron, The Rockpool, formerly Chong Yip Shopping
Centre, will be leased and opened fully in the third quarter
of this year. Reputable retailers have been signing up leases
and some are now in operation.

The One-Eight-One Hotel and Serviced Residences will
endeavour to do its best to retain its premier quarantine
hotel status. With the goodwill and reputation it has
generated, we are confident that once all travel restrictions
are lifted, it will remain a top staying location for both
business and holiday travellers.

Our Group has the financial strength to continue to seek
investments both local and abroad. Best efforts will be made
to ensure that projects chosen will give not only worthwhile
returns but also satisfying our high prudential requirements.

Last but not least, | would like to express my heartfelt thanks
to stakeholders and shareholders for their continued trust
and support, to all my fellow directors for their wise
stewardship, and to our senior management and our staff
for their commitment and dedication.

On behalf of the Board
Liu Lit Chi
Chairman

Hong Kong, 10 March 2022
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT EFg®REE

The Board of Directors of Liu Chong Hing Investment Limited
(the “Board”) has pleasure in presenting to the shareholders
its annual report together with the audited financial
statements for the year ended 31 December 2021.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES AND BUSINESS REVIEW

The principal activities of the Company and its subsidiaries
(the “Group”) are property investment, property
development and investment holding. The principal activities
of the principal subsidiaries and joint ventures are shown in
notes 41 and 18 to the consolidated financial statements
respectively.

Further discussion and analysis of the Group’s activities as
required by Schedule 5 to the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance (“Companies Ordinance”), including a fair review
of the business and a description of the principal risks and
uncertainties facing the Group, particulars of important
events affecting the Group that have occurred since the end
of the financial year 2021, and an indication of likely future
development in the Group’s business, can be found in the
“Five-Year Financial Summary”, “Chairman’s Statement”,
“Summary of Financial Highlights”, “Management Discussion
and Analysis” and “Corporate Governance Report” sections
of the Annual Report. The above sections form part of this
report.

RESULTS AND STATE OF AFFAIRS

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 December
2021 and the state of the Company’s and the Group's affairs
at that date are set out on pages 168 to 300 of this annual
report.

DIVIDENDS

An interim cash dividend of HK$0.18 per share was paid to
shareholders on 10 September 2021. The Board recommends
a final cash dividend of HK$0.28 per share, making a total
cash dividend of HK$0.46 per share for the year.
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RESERVES

Movements in reserves of the Group during the year are set
out in consolidated statement of changes in equity and the
movements in reserves of the Company during the year are
set out in note 39 to the consolidated financial statements.

The Company’s reserves available for distribution to
shareholders as at 31 December 2021 comprised the
accumulated profits of HK$7,547,584,000 (2020: HK$7,439,660,000).

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES
Movements in investment properties during the year are set
out in note 14 to the consolidated financial statements.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT/RIGHT-OF-USE
ASSETS

Movements in property, plant and equipment/Right-of-use
assets during the year are set out in notes 15 and 16 to the
consolidated financial statements.

PROPERTIES UNDER DEVELOPMENT FOR SALE/
PROPERTIES HELD FOR SALE

Movements in properties under development for sale/
properties held for sale during the year are set out in note 17
to the consolidated financial statements.

SHARE CAPITAL
Details of the share capital of the Company are set out in
note 29 to the consolidated financial statements.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

The Company’s share option scheme (the “Scheme”), was
adopted pursuant to a resolution passed on 9 May 2012,
which has replaced the previous share option scheme, for the
primary purpose of providing incentives to directors and
eligible employees, and will expire on 8 May 2022. Under the
Scheme, the Company may grant options to eligible
employees, including directors of the Company and its
subsidiaries, to subscribe for shares in the Company.
Additionally, the Company may, from time to time, grant
share options to outside eligible third parties at the discretion
of the Board.
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The total number of shares in respect of which options may
be granted under the Scheme shall not exceed 10% of the
shares of the Company in issue at any point in time, without
prior approval from the Company’s shareholders. The
number of shares in respect of which options may be granted
to any individual shall not exceed 1% of the shares of the
Company in issue at any point in time, without prior approval
from the Company'’s shareholders.

Options may be exercised at any time from the date of grant
of the share option to the 5th anniversary of the date of
grant. The exercise price is determined by the directors of the
Company, and will not be less than the higher of (i) the
nominal value of the Company’s share on the date of grant,
(ii) the average closing price of the shares for the five
business days immediately preceding the date of grant, or (iii)
the closing price of the shares on the date of grant.

No options have been granted under the above mentioned
scheme since the Scheme was adopted.

SUBSIDIARIES
Particulars relating to the subsidiaries are set out in note 41
to the consolidated financial statements.

GROUP BORROWINGS

Details of bank loans and other borrowings repayable are set
out in note 26 to the consolidated financial statements. The
Group has no capitalized interest during the year (2020:
HK$nil).

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The directors of the Company during the year and up to the
date of this report are shown on page 117 of this annual
report.

The term of office of each director, who has been longest in
office, shall retire by rotation and offer themselves for re-
election in accordance with the Company’s Articles of
Association.
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In accordance with Article 105 and 106 of the Articles of
Association, Mr. Liu Lit Chi, Mr. Au Kam Yuen, Arthur and Dr.
Ma Hung Ming, John shall retire at the conclusion of the
Annual General Meeting (“AGM"”) of the Company. The
Company intends to comply with code provision A.4.2 of the
Corporate Governance Code as set out in Appendix 14 of the
Listing Rules, which provides, among other things, that every
director, including those appointed for a specific term,
should be subject to retirement at least once every three
years. Mr. Liu Lit Chi, Mr. Au Kam Yuen, Arthur and Dr. Ma
Hung Ming, John being eligible, will offer themselves for re-
election at the forthcoming AGM.

The biographical details of directors and senior management
are set out on pages 122 to 132.

The Company has received from each Independent Non-
executive Director an annual confirmation of his
independence pursuant to rule 3.13 of the Rules Governing
the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited (“Listing Rules”) and the Company considered all
Independent Non-executive Directors are independent.

COMPLIANCE OF THE MODEL CODE FOR SECURITIES
TRANSACTIONS BY DIRECTORS OF LISTED ISSUERS

All directors have confirmed that they have complied with
the required standards set out in the Model Code for
Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers as set out
in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules throughout the review
period.
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN SHARE CAPITAL OF THE
COMPANY AND ITS ASSOCIATED CORPORATIONS

As at 31 December 2021, the interests of the directors and
the Chief Executive Officer in the shares, underlying shares
and debentures of the Company and its associated
corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the Securities
and Futures Ordinance (“SFO")) which have been notified to
the Company and The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
(“Stock Exchange”) pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV
of the SFO, or have been recorded in the register maintained
by the Company pursuant to section 352 of the SFO, or have
been notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange
pursuant to the Model Code for Securities Transactions by
Directors of Listed Issuers were as follows:

INTERESTS IN THE SHARES AND UNDERLYING SHARES
OF THE COMPANY AND IT'S ASSOCIATED
CORPORATIONS

THE COMPANY

Liu Chong Hing Investment Limited

EFEETARREEBIEREBAZER
TREm

A ZE—F+ZHA=+—H EEK
THAERNR A AT REBEEE (EER
B REAERGISEXVER) 2% ~ 18k
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FRAMEERRB R 2SR
T

E2E B H AR E B A9 KR8
B 153 o 1O 5

T AH
ERIREERRAR

NUMBER OF ORDINARY SHARES HELD #5 ZiBRIRHEE

Family interests
(interests of spouse
or child under 18)
R

Long/short Personal interests

Corporate interests
(interests of controlled

Total interests as
approximate % of
the relevant issued

corporation) share capital

Name of director position  (held as beneficial owner) (BifBak 18 5% AREE Total interests EREsLERT
£ FRIKE B (BiEEH) UFFuziER) (BERAR ZHER) B REBNERE

Mr. Liu Lit Chi Long 24,000 — 208,743,000 208,767,000 55.14%

55| %0 = (notes 1 and 2)

BARERE e (&1 &)

Mr. Liu Kam Fai, Long 2,756,867 = = 2,756,867 0.73%

Winston 5=

notes: MisE

1. 132,326,710 shares in the Company are beneficially held by Liu’s Holdings Limited,
of which Mr. Liu Lit Chi is amongst its shareholders. The above numbers of shares
are duplicated under the corporate interests for each of these directors.

2. Alba Holdings Limited, of which Mr. Liu Lit Chi and his associates are shareholders,
beneficially holds 76,416,290 shares in the Company, and thus is included in the
corporate interests of Mr. Liu Lit Chi.
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INTERESTS OF SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS AND
OTHER PERSONS

As at 31 December 2021, so far as is known to the Company,
the following persons (other than the directors or the Chief
Executive Officer of the Company) had interests or short
positions in the Shares and underlying shares of the Company
which would fall to be disclosed to the Company under the
provisions of Division 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO, or were
directly or indirectly interested in 5% or more of the nominal
value of any class of share capital carrying rights to vote in all

FERRREMALAER

A ZE—F+ZRA=+—H > mExa
SIPTEN > FYIRRR (R AT ERHITHAE
HBRIM) RA QB Z AR K ABRARR D R #E
BEREBERESRIAERGIEXVEIE2RE
3PEBZIREBAARATME Z I K
B NEEIEEERIEEFMBRT
RAEEREREMEEATREAE L
REZ R R AEE 5% A L2 #

circumstances at general meetings of any other member of % :
the Group:

No. of % of the
Name of substantial shareholder Long/short position  Capacity ordinary share held issued share capital
TERRER BEIXE 513 P SRR HHE EERITREEN L
Liu's Holdings Limited Long Beneficial owner 132,326,710 34.95%
BEREERRAT 5=} BEafFAA ({‘M‘;g))
Alba Holdings Limited Long Beneficial owner 76,416,290 20.18%
EEEEARAA #8 HiEFEA ot
notes: Btz -
1. Liu's Holdings Limited, a private company incorporated in Hong Kong, is owned by, 1. BREDERADDNEBAMRILZIART  #E

amongst others, Mr. Liu Lit Chi. Such corporate interests are also disclosed in the
sub-section under “Directors’ interests in Share Capital of the Company and its
Associated Corporations”.

2. Alba Holdings Limited, a private company incorporated in Hong Kong, is owned by
Mr. Liu Lit Chi and his associates. Such corporate interests are also disclosed in the
sub-section under “Directors’ interests in Share Capital of the Company and its
Associated Corporations”.

Save as disclosed above, the Company had not been notified

by any person (other than the directors or Chief Executives

Officer of the Company) who had interests or short positions

in the shares and underlying shares of the Company of 5% or

more as at 31 December 2021 which were required to be
disclosed to the Company under Part XV of the SFO or which
were recorded in the register required to be kept by the

Company under section 336 of the SFO.
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS

Save as disclosed in note 40 to the consolidated financial
statements, “Related Party Disclosures”, no contracts of
significance in relation to the Group'’s business, to which the
Company or any of its subsidiaries was a party and in which a
director of the Company had, whether directly or indirectly,
have material interest, subsisted at the end of the year or at
any time during the year.

At no time during the year was the Company or any of its
subsidiaries was partied to any arrangements to enable the
directors of the Company to acquire benefits by means of the
acquisition of shares, or debentures of, the Company or any
other body corporate.

None of the directors proposed for re-election at the
forthcoming annual general meeting has a service contract
with the Company which is not terminable within one year
without payment of compensation (other than statutory
compensation).

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

During the year, the Group’s purchases attributable to the
Group’s five largest suppliers and the Group’s turnover
attributable to the Group’s five largest customers were both
less than 30%. None of the directors, their associates or any
shareholder (which to the knowledge of the Board owns
more than 5% of the Company'’s issued share capital) has any
interest in the Group's five largest suppliers or customers.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF SHARES

During the year ended 31 December 2021, the Company and
its subsidiaries have not purchased, sold or redeemed any of
the shares in the Company.
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SHAREHOLDINGS INFORMATION
TOP 10 LARGEST SHAREHOLDERS
According to the register of members of the Company as at
31 December 2021, the top 10 largest shareholders are as

follows:

HhiREHE
HRERSM 10 RN

REXQFRRECHOEL > KT

——&+-RA=+—8%#k
AR :

1= ==

RERSHI10

Number of
shares held %
Name of shareholder BRE FERMHE BAtt
1. HKSCC Nominees Limited ERTREH (REA) BRAF 158,272,868 41.81
2. Chong Hing (Nominees) Limited B (({12) BIRAT 138,463,288 36.57
3. Alba Holdings Limited BEEEERAA 35,000,222 9.25
4. MUFG Nominees (HK) Limited MUFG Nominees (HK) Limited 10,000,000 2.64
5. Wragg Limited Wragg Limited 5,000,000 1.32
6. Cheng Kee Man Cheng Kee Man 3,160,000 0.83
7. Cheng Kee Hong Cheng Kee Hong 3,100,000 0.82
8. Leung Lai Yee Leung Lai Yee 1,948,000 0.51
9. Leung Kwok Choi Leung Kwok Choi 1,324,000 0.35
10. Leung Lai Fong Leung Lai Fong 1,300,000 0.34
Total At 357,568,378 94.44

LOCATION OF SHAREHOLDERS
According to the register of members of the Company as at
31 December 2021, the location of shareholders are as

B2 3R 53 fhn

REXQFRRBCHOEL > KT
——F+ZA=+—BKREIMWTF :

follows:

Number of

shares held %
Location of shareholders RER BFERMYE BRL
Hong Kong B 378,521,140 99.9835
China and South East Asia FEIR R 36,060 0.0095
Europe B 800 0.0002
US and Canada ZERMEX 16,860 0.0045
Australia M 8,580 0.0023
Total Bt 378,583,440 100.0000
SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT REZATRKKRE

The Company has maintained a sufficient public float
throughout the year ended 31 December 2021.
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT EFg®REE

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The Companies Ordinance requires the directors to prepare
the financial statements for each financial year which give a
true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Company and
of the Group as at the end of the financial year and of their
respective profit or loss for the year then ended. In preparing
the financial statements, the directors are required to select
suitable accounting policies and apply them on a consistent
basis, making judgements and estimates that are prudent,
fair and reasonable; state the reasons for any significant
departure from accounting standards; prepare the financial
statements on the going concern basis, unless it is not
appropriate to presume that the Company and the Group
will continue in business for the foreseeable future.

The directors are responsible for keeping proper accounting
records, for safeguarding the assets of the Company and of
the Group and taking reasonable steps for the prevention
and detection of fraud and other irregularities.

EXECUTIVE MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE

The Executive Management Committee was established on
30 October 2014. The current members of the committee
comprised of Mr. Liu Lit Chi, Mr. Liu Kam Fai, Winston and
Mr. Lee Wai Hung. Based on the duly approved terms of
reference by the Board, the committee is authorized to
discuss, formulate policies and make decisions on all matters
relating to the daily management and operations of the
Company and its subsidiaries. It also helps to discuss
significant daily operational issues, review business
performance and take prompt corrective actions as
appropriate. The Board believes that the function of
committee could help to relieve the Board of detailed review
of information and to increase the operational efficiency
among different departments.

Detailed terms of reference could be seen at the Company'’s
website.
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AUDIT COMMITTEE

Audit Committee report is shown on pages 34 to 35. The
principal duties of the Audit Committee are reviewing the
internal controls and the financial reporting requirements of
the Group. The Audit Committee meeting will normally hold
twice in each financial year immediately before the Board
meeting for approving the interim and final results. The
committee is satisfied with the Company’s internal control
procedures and the financial reporting disclosures.

NOMINATION COMMITTEE

Nomination Committee report is shown on pages 36 to 37.
The report showed the main duty and the work performed
by the committee during the year of 2021.

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

Remuneration Committee report is shown on page 38. The
report showed the main duty and work performed by the
committee during the year of 2021.

COMPLIANCE WITH THE CORPORATE GOVERNANCE
CODE

The Company has substantially complied throughout the year
ended 31 December 2021 with those paragraphs of the
Corporate Governance Code as set out in Appendix 14 of the
Listing Rules, with which it is required to report compliance.

Guidelines and procedures for corporate governance of the
Company are set out on pages 62 to 86.
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT EFg®REE

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

The Company has arranged directors and officers’ liability
insurance for directors’ and officers’ liabilities in respect of
legal actions against its directors and senior management
arising out of corporate activities. The permitted indemnity
provision is in force for the benefit of the directors as
required by section 470 of the Companies Ordinance when
this report prepared by the directors is approved in
accordance with section 391(1)(a) of the Companies
Ordinance.

DIRECTORS OF SUBSIDIARIES

The names of all directors who have served on the Board of
Directors of the subsidiaries of the Company during the year
and up to the date of this report are as follows:

Mr. Mok Siu Kwong, Stanley
Mr. Guan Chubin

Ms. Eva Liu

Mr. Liu Ying Shing, Claudius
Mr. Liu Kwun Bo, Darryl

Mr. Liu Kwun Hung, Tiger

AUDITOR

The consolidated financial statements for the year have been
audited by Messrs. Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu who have
expressed their willingness to continue in office. Accordingly,
a resolution will be submitted to the forthcoming annual
general meeting to reappoint Messrs. Deloitte Touche
Tohmatsu as auditor of the Company.

On behalf of the Board
Liu Lit Chi

Chairman

Hong Kong, 10 March 2022
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LIU CHONG HING INVESTMENT LIMITED SIMPLIFIED ORGANISATION CHART
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AUDIT COMMITTEE REPORT B8RZZEE@R&EE

The Audit Committee ("AC") is made up of four members, all
of them are Independent Non-executive Directors of the
Company.

The AC oversees the financial reporting system and internal
control procedures. In this process, management is principally
responsible for the preparation of the Group’s financial
statements including the selection of suitable accounting
policies. External auditors are responsible for auditing and
attesting to the Group’s financial statements and will report
to the management of the Company from time to time on
any weakness in controls which come to their attention. The
AC oversees the respective work of management and
external auditors to ensure the management has discharged
its duty to have an effective internal control procedures.

The AC had performed the works as follows:

1. To review the financial statements of the Company for
the year ended 31 December 2021;

2. To review the interim results of the Company for the six
months ended 30 June 2021;

3. To review and monitor the external auditors’
independence;

4. To review the system of internal control of the
Company;

5. To review the audit plan and the engagement from
external auditors;

6. To make recommendation on the re-appointment of
external auditors; and

7. To review the sufficiency of manpower resources of
account and finance team of the Group in order to carry
out the duties.

It was reported that no major internal control weakness was
found and all the recommendations previously suggested by
auditors were agreed and implemented by the management
in 2021.

BZZECTHNURZEHEM » 2AK
REVBILIEPITES

ERZEEEEAERMBHRERERA
BEEREF - REAMER > EEEX
EREEEMHHRRZGR > SERE
BEZEHER  INERHBMEEEZX
REBERZMBRERARRRIAF
EEEERFENSHAMEERE -
BERZEEEEEERERINEZHBEMZ
I BMREEEERITERERILA
MEIAEBEEIE R A

EEZEEERITUTIE .
1. BEASAREE_T_—%+_H
=+—HIEFEZHHEREK ;

2. BWEXABRBE_ZT_—%F7,\H
=+HIENEB Zh RS

3. B KRERIMNSRHENZEILE

4. WBHERBZABBEIEHIE ;

5. IRETEETEHEI KBS RINSIZEET ;

6. FBEZEINSZEAMMIRHERE ;
b4

7. BRETSEREHRUBERZAF
BREMME > UERDBITHE -

RARZAREEZELBREFEEMERR
EZE’IELEEVﬂﬁ%MZﬁE
&= —

ENESEEBRMAIEE_SZ
EW%H°



Based on these reviews and discussions, together with the
report of the external auditor, the AC recommended to the
Board’s approval of the consolidated financial statements for
the year ended 31 December 2021 with the Auditor’s Report
thereon.

The Committee recommended to the Board that the
shareholders be asked to re-appoint Messrs. Deloitte Touche
Tohmatsu as the Company’s external auditor for 2022.

Members of the Audit Committee
Mr. Cheng Yuk Wo (Chairman)
Mr. Au Kam Yuen, Arthur

Dr. Cheng Mo Chi, Moses

Mr. Tong Tsun Sum, Eric

Hong Kong, 8 March 2022
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NOMINATION COMMITTEE REPORT IERZEEREE

The Nomination Committee (“NC”) consists of six members.
The main duties of the Committee are (i) to review the
structure, size and composition of the Board and to make
recommendations on any proposed changes to the Board in
order to complement the Company’s corporate strategy; (ii)
to identify suitably qualified individuals to become directors
of the Company and to select or make recommendations to
the Board on the selection of individuals nominated for
directorships; (iii) to assess the independence of Independent
Non-executive Directors of the Company; and (iv) to make
recommendations to the Board on the appointment or
reappointment of the directors and succession plan for
directors, in particular the Chairman and Chief Executive
Officer of the Company.

The NC discharges its responsibilities by reference to the
Terms of Reference which set out their roles, responsibilities
and duties. The Terms of Reference were duly authorised by
the Board.

In year 2021, the NC had reviewed and discussed the
following issues at its meeting:

1. To review the composition, size and structure of the
Board of the Company.

2. To review the attendance records of directors of the
Company.

3. To review the brief details of each director (including
years of service).

4. To review the scope of responsibilities of directors of the
Company.

5. To review the directors’ appointment control schedule

— Rotation of Directors.

6. To review and confirm the independence of all the
Independent Non-executive Directors.

7. To review and amend as required from time to time the
Board'’s diversity policies.
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The NC is accountable to the Board and minutes of the
meeting are circulated to the Board for information. The NC
meets when required but at least once per year.

Members of the Nomination Committee
Mr. Liu Lit Chi (Chairman)

Mr. Au Kam Yuen, Arthur

Mr. Cheng Yuk Wo

Mr. Kho Eng Tjoan, Christopher

Dr. Ma Hung Ming, John

Mr. Tong Tsun Sum, Eric

Hong Kong, 8 March 2022
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REMUNERATION COMMITTEE REPORT #MZE GRS E

The Remuneration Committee (“RC"”) consists of four
members, a majority of whom are Independent Non-
executive Directors of the Company.

The main duties of the Committee are to formulate the
Company’s remuneration policy as well as to determine and/
or make recommendations to the Board with regard to the
structure of remuneration packages for all directors and
senior management. WWhen necessary and appropriate, the
Chairman and Managing Director are consulted on such
issues.

The RC discharges its responsibilities by referring to the
Terms of Reference which set out their roles, responsibilities
and duties. The Terms of Reference was duly authorised by
the Board.

The RC, having consulted with the Chairman of the Board,
had reviewed and discussed the following issues at its
meeting:

1. To review the Company’s policy, structure and the
remunerations packages for all directors and senior
management;

2. To determine and/or make recommendation to the
Board regarding the Directors’ fees and other
allowances for the year 2022; and

3. To review and approve the annual performance bonus
and its policy.

The RC is accountable to the Board and minutes of the
meeting are circulated to the Board for information.

The RC meets when required but at least once per year.

Members of the Remuneration Committee
Dr. Cheng Mo Chi, Moses (Chairman)

Mr. Cheng Yuk Wo

Mr. Kho Eng Tjoan, Christopher

Dr. Ma Hung Ming, John

Hong Kong, 10 March 2022
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SUMMARY OF FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS ¥ E

2021 2020
ZEC—f ZECEF
HK$’'000 HK$000
AT BT
Revenue
Wezs 835,165 771,622 8
Profit for the year attributable to owners of the Company
PERFRBRRZAEEEF 427,302 162,560 163
Basic earnings per share
SREARF BIEHKS1.137T HBHEHKS0.437 163
Net assets value per share
SREEIE #BEHK$34.967T B HEHK$33.457T 5
Dividend per share
sRKS
Interim
A HBIEHKS0.187T ABIEHKS0.157T 20
Final
*H #IEHKS0.287T B HEHKS0.257 12
Total
=EiS AIEHKS0.467T A HEHKS0.407 15
Dividend payout ratio
RS L 41% 93% (52)
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS BIEE z 50w k2
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS BEE z 5t k2

For the year ended 31 December 2021, the audited
consolidated profits of the Company and its subsidiaries
amounted to approximately of HK$420.6 million, comparing
to that of 2020 amounted to approximately of HK$173.5
million, representing an increase of HK$247.1 million (rise
142%).

Revenue mainly referred to the revenues generated from
property investment, property development, property
management, treasury investment, trading & manufacturing
and hotel operation.

Other income referred to various miscellaneous income other
than the main revenue.

Other gains and losses mainly comprised of gain (loss) on
changes in fair value of investment properties and net
exchange gains (losses).

PROPERTY INVESTMENT

OVERALL RENTAL REVENUE

For the year ended 31 December 2021, the Group recorded
gross rental revenue of approximately HK$305.8 million,
decreased by approximately HK$14.6 million from
approximately of HK$320.4 million in the year of 2020,
representing a decrease of 4.6%.

OVERALL OCCUPANCIES
The Group’s overall occupancy of major investment
properties maintained at 82.8% as at 31 December 2021.

BE_Z_—HF+"HA=1+—HLEFE>
KERIRSLLEE T A A 420,600,000
T RIZZIEEMEEMNOBE
173,500,000 7T > 3& 0 7 ¥ 247,100,000
7T EF142% °

W T EIEREMERE - MELER
MEEE  MBRE - BHERREUK
B I A P EE A B ©

Hithig A 248 £ EWm UMY BB IR
WA e

HthZRGEETEAEREMEAT
BESHNE (FE) RERBUE (B
18) o

MERE
EREEWE
BE_T_—F+°A=+—HLEFE>

AEERBZEHS RN B
305,800,000t B - E - T F B 1K
320,400,000 7T i L 49 & % 14,600,000
JT° FEX4.6% °

BRELEAE

A ZE—F+ZHA=+—H’ &x&H
FTEREMEZERBEAXEESR
82.8% o



BUSINESS REVIEW AND CORPORATE GOVERNANCE ¥#EIfER QA8 Ei&

P ramecxsRAn | —_T-—EEER

A

Chong Hing Square Bl E &5



IS
IS

1207 140d34 TYNNNY | QILIAIM INIWLISIANI ONIH ONOHD NIl

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS BEE z 5t k2

HK PROPERTIES

Chong Hing Square

Chong Hing Square, located at 601 Nathan Road Mongkok, is
a 20-storey ginza-type retail/commercial development offers
over 182,000 square feet of retail and commercial space. For
the year ended 31 December 2021, Chong Hing Square
generated a gross rental revenue of approximately HK$83.7
million, decreased by HK$12.6 million from approximately of
HK$96.3 million in 2020. Decrease of rental revenue was due
to rental concessions to existing tenants and rental loss upon
new and renewal of tenancies. The occupancy was 91% as at
31 December 2021.

Chong Hing Bank Centre

Chong Hing Bank Centre, located at 24 Des Voeux Road
Central, is a 26-storey Grade A office building. For the year
ended 31 December 2021, Chong Hing Bank Centre
generated rental revenue of approximately HK$95.8 million.
The Company, having retained several floors for the group’s
use, had entered into another 5-year fixed lease with Chong
Hing Bank Limited at a monthly rental of HK$7.98 million
from HK$5.66 million, representing an increase of 41%. The
management regarded the tenancy would bring stable and
good rental return to the Group.

The Rockpool

The Rockpool (formerly known as Chong Yip Centre) is
located at 402-404 Des Voeux Road West. In 2019, the
management decided to revamp the mall for gaining higher
rental return. The modern and chic concepts bringing trendy
retails and F&B outlets would be the main theme of this new
shopping mall. After renovation, the management expected
this would be one of the young and popular malls in the
western district.
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The renovation works was completed and the Occupation
Permit was obtained in 2021. The shopping mall and carparks
are available for lease. Leasing team is actively seeking
prospective tenants, up to the date of board meeting,
management had secured and signed tenancies with major
tenants including HKTVmall, Optical 88, Maxim’s Caterers
and TamlJai Yunnam Mixian, representing 30% of occupancy.
The other potential tenants will be retail, telecom, personal
care and beauty, life-style, supermarket, grocery, wine cellar
and convenience store.

The management convinced that the surging of Omicron
variant could definitely dampen the catering and retail
business, which added uncertainty to our overall leasing
result.

Fairview Court

Fairview Court is located at 94 Repulse Bay Road. The Group
owns 5 units, each of areas over 4,100 square feet, luxury
apartment on a low-rise building. For the year ended 31
December 2021, Fairview Court recorded rental revenue of
approximately HK$7.0 million, it records net rental revenue
of HK$3.8 million after rental elimination. This property
recorded 100% occupancy as at 31 December 2021.

PRC PROPERTIES

Chong Hing Finance Center, Shanghai

The Group’s mainland flagship property located at 288
Nanjing Road West in Huang Pu District of Shanghai is a
36-storey Grade A commercial building which commands a
strategic location and enviable view over The People’s Square
just across the street. With a total floor area of over 516,000
square feet of office and commercial spaces and 198 carparks,
this property was approximately 78% let in terms of office
space and 100% let in terms of retail space as at year end.
For the year ended 31 December 2021, this office building,
after taking exchange translation, generated a rental
revenue of approximately HK$109.5 million, representing a
decrease of 5.1%.

Despite the oversupply of office building in Puxi district, the
management felt satisfied to maintain a reasonable high
occupancy of the office building.
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PROPERTY DEVELOPMENT

PRC

The Grand Riviera, Foshan

This comprehensive development situated at 1 Guilong Road,
Luocun in the Nanhai District of Foshan, is conveniently
located within half an hour’s drive from the Foshan financial
district and within 5 minutes’ drive from the new Foshan
West Station.

Development Status

This Foshan residential project is a comprehensive
development and is developed by phases. The whole project,
including Phase 1 to Phase 4, was completed and handover
for occupation in September 2018.

Financial and Sale Results

For the year ended 31 December 2021, the Group recorded
sale revenue of approximately HK$239 million of which 63
residential units and 363 carpark spaces were sold and
recognized under consolidated statement of profit or loss.

As at 31 December 2021, a total of 5,211 residential units out
of total 5,264 units (representing 99%) and a total of 2,045
carpark units out of total 4,670 units (representing 44%)
were successfully sold out fetching accumulated sale proceeds
of approximately HK$6 billion. The management forecasted
that further sale proceeds of approximately HK$1 billion
would be received if all unsold properties including
residential units, carpark spaces and retail shops were sold
under current market conditions.

Elegance Garden, Sanshui

In 2019, the Group, through its indirectly wholly-owned
subsidiary, Top New Investment Limited, acquired a piece of
land at Sanshui District of Foshan by open land auction for a
cash consideration of RMB775.5 million. The site area of the
land is approximately 33,670 square meters with plot ratio of
3.2 times, making the accommodation value of RMB7,198 per
square meter. The management regarded the consideration
for the purchased land is fair and reasonable having taken
into account the minimum bid conditions set by Foshan
Public Resources Center, current market value, as well as the
location and development potential of the vicinity area.
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Location and vicinity

The development is located at the heart of Bei Jiang Xin Qu.
It is surrounded by the well-developed facilities, such as
Beijiang Primary School, Xindongli Center, Beijiang Feng
Huang Park, Sanshui Renmin Hospital and Sanshui Bus Stop.
It takes 15 minutes’ drive to the Guangzhou and Foshan High
Speed Railway Station and 20 minutes’ drive to Sanshui High
Speed Railway South Station only. The development is just 2.1
miles away from the Sanshui Metro Route 4, it is closely
connected to the Guangzhou and Foshan cities.

Project design

This residential development named Elegance Garden,
consists of 9 blocks 31-storey residential apartments with
three typical sizes of 88, 98 and 108 square meters
respectively. Given the plot ratio of 3.2 and green area ratio
of 30%, it provides a total of 1,084 residential units with
developable areas of over 105,000 square meters. If including
the retail and commercial area of approximately 1,315 square
meters on the ground floor and 918 carpark spaces mainly
built at basement level, the total developable area is over
143,000 square meters.

Construction progress

Work of Excavation and Lateral Support (ELS) was completed
in April 2021. Barring any unforeseen circumstances, the
whole project would be scheduled to complete and hand
over for occupation in Q4 2023. As at the date of board
meeting, major contracts including basement, lift, M&E,
landscape, lift lobby design, and architect designs were
awarded to different contractors and institutes. The topping-
out work of main blocks (Block 1-Block 9) has been
completed. The construction progress was on schedule.

Marketing

Marketing team had prepared market proposal and related
soft marketing activities had been launched. Due to the
crackdown and slow recovery of China’s property market, the
management had adjusted the constructions progress and
pre-sale schedule.
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HOTEL OPERATIONS

PRC

Budget Hotel

Since 2008, the Group started to operate budget hotel
business in Shanghai, Beijing and Guangzhou (“GZ"). All of
these budget hotels are managed by and under the brand
name of Hanting. Due to the restructuring of the business
strategy, the Group had sold the budget hotels at Shanghai
and Beijing in 2016, only the hotel in Guangzhou remains in
operation.

For the year ended 31 December 2021, the budget hotel
revenue increased from approximately of HK$8.0 million in
2020 to approximately HK$9.2 million in 2021. As China
strengthens its control over the spread of COVID-19, business
activities resumed quickly. As a result, the occupancy of GZ's
hotel was recovered to 85% in the first half of 2021.
However, Guangzhou has seen cases of the Delta and
Omicron COVID variant in the second half of 2021, and
several cities in GZ & Foshan sometimes were locked down
accordingly, the hotel business was once again seriously
affected.

HONG KONG

ONE-EIGHT-ONE Hotel & Serviced Residences

The previous office building (formerly known as Western
Harbour Centre), located at 181-183 Connaught Road West,
was converted into a 183-room hotel and serviced residences.
The hotel was in full operation after obtaining the hotel
license on 2 December 2019. Apart from providing 183 guest
rooms (room size ranging from 330 sq.ft. to 1,152 sq.ft.),
other facilities include Sky Residences, two restaurants, Quay
Club (executive lounge), gym room, multi-functions room
and a wide range of services and amenities.

For the year ended 31 December 2021, the hotel and F&B
business recorded a gross revenue of HK$104.5 million,
greatly increased by approximately of HK$66.8 million, from
approximately of HK$37.7 million in 2020, generating
earnings before interest, tax, depreciation and amortization
("EBITDA") of HK$33.9 million. However, if adding
depreciation of HK$59.9 million, the hotel and F&B business
recorded a net loss of HK$24.9 million, which was
significantly decreased in comparing to the net loss of
HK$80.3 million for the year of 2020.
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The hotel became one of the designated quarantine hotels
to accommodate the quarantine guests arriving in Hong
Kong since December 2020. Due to the quality service and
good dining experience, the hotel became one of the
popular hotel brands and its operating revenue has been
improving significantly in 2021. With the aid of improving
occupancy and average daily rate ADR, the hotel business
recorded positive operating revenue and EBITDA throughout
the year. The management has confident in the hotel
business in the year of 2022.

THAILAND

Kimpton Kitalay Samui

Share acquisition

The Group invested in a hotel property at Koh Samui,
Thailand, through an acquisition of entire issued share
capital in Choengmon Real Estate Company Limited, a
company incorporated in Thailand.

Luxury Beachfront Resort

The hotel is located at the north-eastern part of Samui Island
and is situated along the Choengmon Beach. The land is a
freehold land title with land areas of 29,588 sq.m. The hotel
consists of 21 pool villas and 117 premium rooms and suites
with total gross floor area of over 22,098 sq.m. Other
amenities include the main reception building, lobby bar,
lobby lounge, an all-day dining restaurant, a beachfront
specialty restaurant, swimming pool, spa, fitness centre and
yoga studio, kids club and multi-purpose space to
accommodate weddings or executive meetings.

Purchase Consideration

On 1 June 2021, the Group entered into the Share Purchase
Agreement with the Sellers at the purchase price of THB2,480
million, approximately HK$620 million, (inclusive of the
shareholder loans and the bank loan). On 13 December 2021,
the completion of the Acquisition had been taken place.
Share transfer price in the amount of THB713.7 million,
approximately HK$166.6 million, was paid to the Sellers on
the completion date.
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Investment Deliberation

The management considers that the acquisition is a good
investment opportunity for the Group to continue its
strategies to diversify investments and to enhance its
exposure and experience in international hospitality, with a
view of optimism towards tourism in Thailand post-
pandemic, which is beneficial for the continuous and stable
growth of the Group’s property development and investment
business.

SHARE OF RESULTS OF JOINT VENTURES

Since the year of 2017, the Group teamed up with the same
joint venture partner, to acquire three warehouses in Japan
and one manufacturing plant in Australia. For the year ended
31 December 2021, all these warehouses and manufacturing
plant continued to maintain a stable rental revenue with
100% occupancy.

The manufacturing plant located at Adelaide was acquired at
AUD11.5 million in 2018, after holding the investment for 2.5
years, the plant was disposed to a third party at a cash
consideration of AUD18.8 million, representing an increase
of 63%. The sales contract was signed in December 2020 and
the transaction was completed in early 2021.

In February 2021, the Group participated in an office
investment in Brisbane, Australia by subscribing 15% of a
property trust which acquired a 21-storey fully refurbished
grade A office building located at 310 Ann Street, Brisbane.
The trust was managed by the property and investment
manager of AsheMorgan.

The office building, with 198,000 sq. ft. lettable area, was
fully let to two major tenants, the Queensland Government
and the Allianz group with an annual rental growth of
3.5%-3.75% during the 7.5 years unexpired lease.

The purchase price of the property is AUD210 million. Given
the stable rental return and the debt leverage investment
structure, the management considered the investment would
provide an attractive investment return to the Group.
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The management regarded all the joint venture investments
would bring the Group a stable rental return together with a
long term price appreciation. The share of results of joint
ventures of approximately HK$27.4 million, under equity
accounting, represented the share of net asset value of the
investment which mainly included the annual rental revenue
and valuation gain on investment properties.

CAPITAL STRUCTURE

The Group’s shareholders’ funds increased from
approximately HK$12,577.7 million as at 31 December 2020
to approximately HK$13,146.7 million as at 31 December
2021, representing a net increase of approximately HK$569.0
million. The increase in shareholders’ funds was attributed to
(a) profit attributable to the owners of the Group of
approximately HK$427.3 million; and (b) net increase of
investment revaluation and exchange reserves totaling
approximately HK$304.5 million; and (c) 2020 final dividend
and 2021 interim dividend paid approximately HK$162.8
million.

FINANCE AND TREASURY OPERATIONS

NET CASH BALANCE

As at 31 December 2021, the Group’s net cash balance (being
cash and deposits less borrowings) amounted to
approximately HK$148.8 million, decreased by approximately
HK$365.1 million from approximately HK$513.9 million in
2020, representing a decrease of 71%. The decrease of net
cash balance was used for the construction payment of
Sanshui residential project and the renovation cost of The
Rockpool; new investment on Australia property trust and
acquire a new hotel property in Thailand Samui.

In the years ahead, the Group’s major capital expenditures
will be incurred for the Sanshui residential project. The
management will ensure all these capital expenditures within
the budget and do not undermine the company’s working
capital.

At 31 December 2021, the Group had a gross gearing ratio,
(gross borrowing divided by equity attribute to owners of
the Company) of 14.1% (31 December 2020: 11.7%), and a
net gearing ratio (net debt divided by equity attribute to
owners of the Company) of 0% (31 December 2020: 0%).
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The management expected that the Group’s cash balances
could be increased steadily further by the sale of the
remaining residential and carparks units of “The Grand
Riviera”, Foshan residential project, the stable rental revenue
generated from different rental properties and the room
revenue from One-Eight-One Hotel & Serviced Residences.

BANKING FACILITIES

Most of the banking facilities as at 31 December 2021 were
committed banking facilities. In managing the debt portfolio,
the Group has endeavored to maintain diversified sources of
funding. Currently, the major source of financing is still
coming from the banking sector, in which the Group has
bilateral banking facilities with various banks, most of which
have established long relationship with the Group. The
management will consider to widen the funding source from
capital market if both the market conditions and terms are
favorable to the Company.

The management will closely monitor the company’s funding
position, internal funding and cheaper external funding will
be used for coming development projects.

LIQUIDITY RISK AND CASH BALANCES

It is the Group’s financial policy to maintain positive cash
balance and high liquidity. To maintain sufficient liquidity
will not only help the Group to fulfill all short term payment
obligations but also to improve the Group’s working capital.

Liquidity mainly comes from recurring rental income of
various investment properties, cash sale proceeds from
various completed and uncompleted development projects
and committed banking facilities. Liquidity risk of the Group
is low and it has been further reduced by early refinancing
and improvement of cash flow.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS BEE z 5t k2

LOAN MATURITY ANALYSIS

Liquidity risk could also be reduced by extending the loan
tenors. The Group’s debt maturity portfolio is spread out
over a medium-long term, with 13% of debts becoming due
after 5 years, 54% of debts becoming due within 2-5 years,
3% of debts becoming due within 1-2 years and 30% of
debts becoming due within 1 year respectively. It was the
fact that the Group’s liquidity and cash flow position in PRC
was improved substantially following the successful sale of
“The Grand Riviera”, Foshan and the stable rental revenue
generated from Shanghai Chong Hing Finance Center.

RISK MANAGEMENT

In managing interest rate and foreign exchange exposures,
the Group may use certain derivative instruments such as
interest rate swaps, cross currency swaps, forward rate
agreements and foreign exchange contracts. It is the Group's
policy to allow using derivatives as hedging purposes only.
With respect to the counterparty risk of the derivatives, the
Group transacts only with financial institutions with strong
investment-grade ratings.

INTEREST RATE EXPOSURE

The volatility and uncertainty of the movement of interest
rate may result in a potential negative impact to the Group’s
financial position. Given that, the management will actively
involve and review the movement of interest rate so as to
minimize the financial impact.

FOREIGN EXCHANGE EXPOSURE

It is the Group’s policy to minimize mismatch in currency and
not to speculate in currency movement. As at 31 December
2021, other foreign exchange exposures related to some
major investments in Shanghai, Foshan, Thailand and Joint
Ventures projects which altogether amounted to the
equivalent of about HK$7,080.5 million or 43.8% of the
Group's total assets.

During the year, the group has acquired a hotel property in
Thailand, which is financed by Thai bank borrowing. The
foreign exchange rate risk exposure has been lowered by
matching the Thai asset with Thai liability.

The management is closely monitoring these foreign
exchange exposures by implementing different appropriate

measures on a timely and effective manner.
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EMPLOYEE AND EMOLUMENT POLICY

As at 31 December 2021, the Group employed a workforce of
441 (31 December 2020: 472). Staff cost for the year include
salaries, bonuses and allowances, were approximately
HK$130.0 million. (31 December 2020: HK$133.2 million).

The Group’s remuneration policy, having been advised and
determined by the Remuneration Committee, will ensure
that the pay levels of its employee are reasonable and
competitive in the market and their total rewards including
basic salary and bonus system are linked with their
performance. The members and work done of Remuneration
Committee are shown on page 38.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

During the financial year ended 31 December 2021, the
Company has substantially complied with the Provisions of
the Corporate Governance Code (the “Corporate Governance
Code"” or the “Code”) as set out in Appendix 14 of Listing
Rules.

GUIDELINES AND PROCEDURES FOR CORPORATE
GOVERNANCE OF THE COMPANY

(A) CORPORATE GOVERNANCE CHART

The Board is committed to maintaining a high standard of
corporate governance for the purpose of enhancing long-
term value for shareholders. The corporate governance chart
adopted by the Company could be referred to Liu Chong
Hing Investment Limited Simplified Organisation Chart on
page 33.

(B) DIRECTORS

() THE BOARD: RESPONSIBILITY FOR LEADERSHIP
AND CONTROL OF THE COMPANY

e The Board is accountable to the shareholders for
leadership and supervision of the senior management
for the purpose of creating long-term shareholder value
and producing a sustainable growth and successful
business.

e  The principal tasks of the Board are to set objectives,
formulate strategies and to monitor the operating and
financial performance.

e  The Board is responsible for evaluating and determining
the nature and extent of the risks it is willing to take in
achieving the Company’s strategic objectives, and
ensuring that the Company establishes and maintains
appropriate and effective risk management and internal
control systems.

e The Board also oversees management in the design,
implementation and monitoring of the risk
management and internal control systems, and
management should provide a confirmation to the
Board on the effectiveness of these systems.

e Duties of the Board include approving interim and
annual reports, announcements and press releases of
interim and final results, setting the dividend policy, and
approving the issue, allotment, disposal or grant of
options in respect of unissued new shares of the
Company.
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()

(1)

CHAIRMAN AND MANAGING DIRECTOR: CLEAR
DIVISION OF RESPONSIBILITIES

The Company has clear and distinct division of
responsibilities between the Chairman and Managing
Director.

Mr. Liu Lit Chi, the Chairman of the Board, provides
leadership and is responsible for the effective
functioning of the Board. The Managing Director is
responsible for the Company’s business, daily
management and operations generally.

Managing Director assumes overall responsibility for the
Group’s operation and performance by delegating
duties to different Executive Directors and senior
management to achieve targeted objectives. The Board
gives clear directions to management of their powers
and circumstances in which the management should
submit a report.

Throughout the year, the role of Chairman and the
Managing Director of the Company has not been
segregated as required by the code provision A.2.1 of
the Code. The Board considers this arrangement is in the
best interest of the Company that by nature of the
Group’s business which requires considerable market
expertise and Mr. Liu Lit Chi, with his profound
experiences in the property and banking industry, shall
continue in his dual capacity as the Chairman and
Managing Director.

BOARD COMPOSITION: BALANCE AND
INDEPENDENCE

The Board currently comprises three Executive Directors,
one Non-executive Director and five Independent Non-
executive Directors. For the year ended 31 December
2021, the Board met the requirements of the Listing
Rules relating to the appointment of at least one-third
of the Board should be Independent Non-executive
Directors.

The appointment of Independent Non-executive
Directors strictly adheres to the guidelines for assessing
independence set out in Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules.
The Company has received written confirmation of
independence from each of the Independent Non-
executive Directors.
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(Iv)

The Board considers that the five Independent Non-
executive Directors are free from any businesses or other
relationships which might interfere with the exercise of
their independent judgment and each Independent
Non-executive Director brings his own relevant expertise
to the Board.

The presence of all Independent Non-executive Directors
could ensure that the Board functions effectively and
independently.

The Independent Non-executive Directors are also the
committee members of the Audit Committee,
Remuneration Committee and Nomination Committee.
In short, these committees have Independent Non-
executive Directors.

In addition, the Company has set up the Corporate
Governance Committee on 7 March 2012 comprising
two Executive Directors and two Independent Non-
executive Directors to perform the corporate
governance duties.

The biographies of the directors appear on pages 122 to
129. These demonstrate diversity of experience and
calibre of the Board in making management decisions.

APPOINTMENTS, RE-ELECTION AND REMOVAL

The Nomination Committee is mainly responsible for
making recommendations to the Board on the
appointment or re-appointment of directors and
succession planning for directors.

Those directors who have been longest in office as at
each annual general meeting shall retire from office
and be subjected to re-election.

For newly appointed directors, they are required to
submit themselves to shareholders for re-election to the
Board at the first annual general meeting following
their appointment.

All directors have entered into a letter of appointment
with the Company and were appointed for a specific
term, subject to re-election and retirement by rotation
at least once every three years in accordance with the
Company’s Articles of Association.

()
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V)

Code provision A.4.2 stipulates that every director shall
be subject to retirement by rotation at least once every
three years. Under the Article 105, 106 and 113 of the
Company’s Articles of Association, all directors including
the Managing Director are subject to retirement by
rotation.

Details of the term of appointment of all Non-executive
Directors and Independent Non-executive Directors are
as follows:

(i) to perform such functions and exercise such powers
as are appropriate to the position as an
Independent Non-executive Directors or Non-
executive Directors of the Company;

(i) to comply with all laws, rules and regulations
applicable to be a director of the Company,
including but not limit to the Listing Rules; and

(iii) to notify the Board immediately upon the

occurrence of, or the directors becoming aware of,

any matter which may affect their independence.

The terms of reference of Audit Committee,
Remuneration Committee, Nomination Committee,
Corporate Governance Committee and Executive
Management Committee are available to review on the
Company’s website.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS: GENERAL DUTIES
AND SHARE DEALINGS

The directors fully appreciate their roles and duties as
directors with supportive commitment of creating a
healthy corporate governance culture.

On appointment, new directors will be given an
introduction to the Group’s major business activities,
induction into their responsibilities and duties, and
other regulatory requirements.

Throughout the year, all directors complied with the
required standard set out in the Model Code in
Appendix 10 of the Listing Rules regarding Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers.
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(VI) CONTINUOUS PROFESSIONAL DEVELOPMENT

Code provision A.6.5 proposes that all directors should
participate in continuous professional development to
develop and refresh their knowledge and skills.

All directors are well aware of the requirement of
attending continuous professional training for the year
ending 31 December 2022.

(Vi) COMPANY SECRETARY

Mr. Lee Wai Hung, the Company Secretary also an
Executive Director of the Company, is a full time
employee of the Group and has day-to-day knowledge
of the Company’s affairs. The Company Secretary
reports to the Chairman and is responsible for advising
the Board through the Chairman of the Board or
Executive Management Committee on governance
matters and also facilitates induction and professional
development of the directors. All directors have access
to the advices and services of the Company Secretary to
ensure that the Board procedures, all applicable law,
rules and regulations are followed. During the year, the
Company Secretary has duly complied with the relevant
professional training requirement under Rule 3.29 of
the Listing Rules. The biography of Mr. Lee is set out in
the section “Biographical Details of Directors and Senior
Management” in the annual report.
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(C) BOARD PROCESS

(1

MEETINGS: MATTERS RESERVED FOR FULL BOARD
DECISION AND GENERAL PROCEEDINGS

In order to achieve a high standard of corporate
governance and in compliance with the requirement as
mentioned under Appendix 14 — Corporate Governance
Code, the Board has performed to hold full Board
meeting at least quarterly during the year 2021.

The Executive Management Committee was established
on 30 October 2014. The current members of the
committee comprised of Mr. Liu Lit Chi, Mr. Liu Kam Fai,
Winston and Mr. Lee Wai Hung. Based on the duly
approved terms of reference by the Board, the
committee is authorised:

(1) to discuss, formulate policies and make decisions
on all matters relating to the daily management
and operations of the Company and its subsidiaries;

(2) to discuss significant daily operational issues;

(3) to review key business performance and take
prompt corrective actions as appropriate;

(4) to discuss and formulate financial policy, including
review and present of final and interim results of
the Company to the Board, as well as make
recommendation of interim and/or final dividends
or other distributions to the Board;

(5) to discuss business opportunities arising from
changing conditions so as to formulate policies to
sustain the growth of the Company; and

(6) The Executive Management Committee is currently
receiving monthly management report which
shows the Group’s financial and operating results
with detailed analysis of different business
activities.

The main function of the committee could help to
relieve the Board of detailed review of information and
to increase the operational efficiency among different
departments. For the avoidance of doubt, all matters
that require public announcement pursuant to the
Listing Rules or rules of any other relevant regulatory
body must be approved by the Board.
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Matters reserved for full Board decision include material
bank facilities arrangements, material acquisitions and
disposals of assets, material transactions with connected
parties, significant investments including large capital
projects, delegation of authority, treasury and risk
management policies and any matters involving a
conflict of interest for a substantial shareholder or
director.

All directors have access to the Company Secretary who
is responsible for ensuring that the Board procedures
are complied with and advises the Board on corporate
governance and compliance matters.

The Company Secretary is responsible for taking minutes
of the Board and the Board committee meetings, which
are normally circulated to directors for comment within
a reasonable time after each meeting and the final
signed version is sent to all directors for their records
and open for directors’ inspection.

All directors are allowed to take independent
professional advice at Company’s expense.

The Company has purchased the Directors and Officers
Liability insurance.
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Details of 2021 Board meetings attendance record are B FEEEEERHERR
set out below: FIWTF
Number of Attendance
meeting attended rate
HEEERY HEE
Executive Directors HITESR
Liu Lit Chi BERE
(Chairman, Managing Director and (T%  EFBISIERTHIEH)
Chief Executive Officer) 4/4 100%
Liu Kam Fai, Winston BE&E
(Deputy Managing Director) (B & FAE4TTE) 4/4 100%
Lee Wai Hung R 4/4 100%
Non-executive Director FRITES
Kho Eng Tjoan, Christopher SrES 4/4 100%
Independent Non-executive Directors BiIERTESR
Cheng Mo Chi, Moses R 4/4 100%
Au Kam Yuen, Arthur EiR 4/4 100%
Ma Hung Ming, John BB 4/4 100%
Cheng Yuk Wo BRERAN 4/4 100%

Tong Tsun Sum, Eric BEZH 4/4 100%




(I1) SUPPLY OF INFORMATION: QUALITY AND

TIMELINESS

The Company attaches great importance to continually
improve on the quality and timeliness of the
dissemination of information to the directors.

The Chairman is responsible for ensuring adequate
supply of information to the directors.

The agenda and accompanying board papers will be
sent in full to all directors in a timely manner (we aim to
give relevant documents at least five clear days replacing
current practice of at least three clear days in advance
of meeting). Where appropriate, communications are
sent electronically.

All directors are currently provided with quarterly
management reports which shows the Group’s financial
and operating results with detailed analysis of those
major rental properties, property under development
and other investments.

A full Board meeting, held by each quarter, was
regularly taken for the purpose of reviewing and
updating the Company’s business and operating results
with reference to the quarterly management report.

Managing Director is currently holding internal
management meetings twice a week with all Executive
Directors and different department heads to update
directors on their lines of business and to review

performance for delegated assignment.

Executive Management Committee meetings were held
twice a week to discuss the daily operation and to
review the Company matters by reference to monthly

management reports.
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(Il1) RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL
SYSTEMS

After the year ended of 2015, the Executive Management
Committee had engaged Messrs. Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu
(“Deloitte”) to provide consultancy services in relation to
enterprise risk management and internal controls. The Board
understands that it is the Board's responsibility to evaluate
the risks of the Company and to implement the Company’s
strategic objective through an established, appropriate and
effective risk management and internal control systems.

Senior management had discussed with Deloitte regarding to
the Company’s existing system and internal controls and an
appropriate policy and detailed work plan had been
formulated after having identified the main area of risks.

e During the year of 2021, the management had
completed enterprise risk management and the internal
control assessment and various follow up actions had
been done based on the findings and recommendations
by Deloitte. The management highly regards the
internal controls and considered that such review based
on the identified audit areas, will be performed
annually so as to manage the risk and control the

effectiveness of the system.

(D) REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS
Procedures for Remuneration Committee to set directors and
senior management’s remuneration policy:

o The Company has set up Remuneration Committee on 3
March 2005. Its terms of reference are to review and
determine the remuneration packages for all directors
and senior management.

e  The Remuneration Committee currently comprises four
members, including three of the Independent Non-
executive Directors, namely Dr. Cheng Mo Chi, Moses
(Chairman), Dr. Ma Hung Ming, John and Mr. Cheng
Yuk Wo and a Non-executive Director, Mr. Kho Eng
Tjoan, Christopher.

° The committee meets at least once per annum.
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The main duties of the committee include the

followings:

(i)

to make recommendations to the Board on or
determine the Company’s policy and structure for
all directors and senior management remuneration
and on the establishment of a formal and
transparent procedure for developing
remuneration policy;

ZEEZTERSEETIIRE!

() MEABFRBEFKRSHREE
ABZ# B BR R AR AR L
RIEXMEZEREZZFH
JIEEFHMER > MES SR
HEE ;

(i) to determine, with delegated responsibility, the (i) BEECENNITEENER
remuneration packages of individual Executive BEAENHFNEE > SFE
Directors and senior management, including MEF -~ BRAKEERNMNEEE
benefits in kind, pension rights and compensation & UK E KA LR
payment and any compensation payable for loss or 7,/ 1T on i FE 2 (3 B B (E
termination of their office or appointment; % ;

(iii) to make recommendations to the Board on or (i) MEEERITESZHMNEE
determine the remuneration of Non-executive EEELERE,

Directors;
(iv) to review and approve the management'’s (iv) REESgREZEEBRE

remuneration proposals with reference to the
Board'’s corporate goals and objectives.

Details of 2021 Remuneration Committee meeting

attendance record are set out below:
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Number of Attendance
meeting attended rate
HEEERY HEE

Members of Remuneration Committee HMESERE
Cheng Mo Chi, Moses (Chairman) BE8 (3E) m 100%
Kho Eng Tjoan, Christopher Gl 1mn 100%
Ma Hung Ming, John BB 1n 100%
Cheng Yuk Wo ERERA 11 100%
Tin Siu Kuen (Secretary) B/ME (#2) 1M 100%

e  The committee is authorised by the Board to oversee o

ZEQEEFIREERREEN
TEEhEREBEASZHM o

and determine the remuneration of Executive Directors

and senior management.

~N
-

e No director is involved in deciding his own e EEZEERERTEBEIHE © (5
ESHEMASHERANSEIEN > £
R EEREIERBEERZES

TERURHER -

remuneration. On matters other than those concerning
him, the Chairman or Managing Director may be invited

EyHEXTHEA

to committee meetings to give advices.
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(E)
U}

()

Committee members are allowed under certain
procedures to take independent professional advice at
Company’s expense for making and determining the
remuneration package proposal.

The committee will present a report to the Board after
each meeting, which addresses its work and findings.

The committee will make recommendation to the Board
regarding the remuneration, comprising directors’ fees
for all Directors, for shareholders approval at the annual
general meeting.

Details on the mandate and summary of the work by
the Remuneration Committee during the year are set
out in the Remuneration Committee Report on page 38.

The terms of reference of Remuneration Committee are
available on the Company’s website and the Stock
Exchange’s website.

ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT

FINANCIAL REPORTING: BALANCED, CLEAR AND
COMPREHENSIVE ASSESSMENT OF THE
COMPANY'’S PERFORMANCE, POSITION OF
PROSPECTS

The Board believes that it presents a comprehensive,
balanced and understandable assessment of the
Group’s position and prospects in all shareholder

communications.

The Board fully understands its responsibilities regarding
the preparation of financial statements.

AUDIT COMMITTEE AND AUDITORS: TERMS OF
REFERENCE AND RELATIONSHIP WITH
MANAGEMENT AND EXTERNAL AUDITORS

The Audit Committee currently comprises four members,
all of them are Independent Non-executive Directors,
namely Mr. Cheng Yuk Wo (Chairman), Dr. Cheng Mo
Chi, Moses, Mr. Au Kam Yuen, Arthur and Mr. Tong
Tsun Sum, Eric.

All members have experience in reviewing and analysing
audited financial statements of public companies or
major organisations.
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The committee meets not less than twice per annum.

The Chairman, the Managing Director and the Executive

Director who is in charge of finance matters may be

invited to the meetings. The committee also meets not

less than twice per annum with the Company’s auditor.

The main duties of the committee include the

followings:

(i)

(i)

(iii)

(iv)

(v)

(vi)

to be primarily responsible for making
recommendations to the Board on the
appointment, reappointment and removal of the
external auditor, and to approve the remuneration
and terms of engagement of the external auditor,
and any questions of its resignation or dismissal;

to review and monitor the external auditor’s
independence and objectivity and the effectiveness
of the audit process in accordance with applicable
standards;

to develop and implement policy on engaging an
external auditor to supply non-audit services;

to monitor integrity of the Company’s financial
statements and annual report and accounts,
interim report and, if prepared for publication,
quarterly reports, and to review significant
financial reporting judgements contained in them;

to review the Company’s financial controls, and
unless expressly addressed by a separate board risk
committee, or by the board itself, to review the
Company'’s risk management and internal control

systems;

to discuss the risk management and internal
control systems with management to ensure that
management has performed its duties to have
effective systems. This discussion should include the
adequacy of resources, staff qualifications and
experiences, training programmes and budget of
the Company'’s accounting and financial reporting
function;
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(vii) to consider major investigation findings on risk
management and internal control matters as
delegated by the board or on its own initiative and
management’s response to these findings;

(viii) to review the Group’s financial and accounting
policies and practices;

(ix) to review the external auditor’'s management
letter, any material queries raised by the auditor to
management about the accounting records,
financial accounts or systems of control and
management’s response; and

(x) to ensure that the Board will provide a timely
response to the issues raised in the external
auditor’'s management letter.

Details of 2021 Audit Committee meetings attendance
record are set out below:

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT X EB8HREE

(vi) TRIREEFENERIK A
FRREERABEZESTERN
EEHERERKEERHHAE
SR CEETIRE

(viii) BT N EE 2 M B R G5 EER
RER

(ix) BEIINEZHEMREERRE Z K
- HBETFHACER ~ 4TS
ARE SR E R EEER
MEMEAREREEEEL
Z[EIFE ; &

(x) FEFRESGKRERLIERINEZ
HEMETEEREB ZEZB ISR
BRI IREEE ©

TR FEBREETERUE

SCERETIANT

Number of Attendance
meeting attended rate
HEEERY HEE

Members of Audit Committee BRZEEZEE
Cheng Yuk Wo (Chairman) B (/) 212 100%
Cheng Mo Chi, Moses mEs 112 50%
Au Kam Yuen, Arthur B#RR 212 100%
Tong Tsun Sum, Eric EEAL 112 50%
Lee Wai Hung (Secretary) =@iE (F2) 212 100%

Under its terms of reference, the committee is required,
amongst other things, to oversee the relationship with
external auditors, to review the Company’s interim and
annual financial statements, and to evaluate the Group’s
system of internal controls.

There is an agreed procedure for Audit Committee
members to take independent professional advice at
Company’s expense.

The committee presents a report or makes advice to the
Board after each meeting for addressing their work
done and findings.

Details on the mandate and work performed by the
Audit Committee during the year are set out in the
Audit Committee Report on pages 34 to 35.

The terms of reference of Audit Committee are available
on the Company'’s website and the Stock Exchange's
website.
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(Il1) AUDITOR’'S REMUNERATION
For the year ended 31 December 2021, the auditor had
received from the Company and its subsidiaries

approximately HK$2.47 million for audit and audit related
services (2020: HK$3.82 million) as well as HK$1.1 million for
non-audit services (2020: HK$0.67 million).

(IV) INTERNAL CONTROL: SOUND AND EFFECTIVE

(F)

SYSTEM TO SAFEGUARD SHAREHOLDER INTERESTS
AND COMPANY ASSETS

Risk management is a crucial part of the Group’s
strategic management to monitor the Company'’s overall
financial position and to protect its assets.

The Group is committed to implementing effective risk
management policies and internal control procedures to
identify and manage the risks that the Group may be
exposed to.

These policies and procedures are reviewed regularly by
Executive Management Committee together with the
assistance of external auditors during the course of
audit and separate assignment to ensure their
effectiveness and compliance with Code on Corporate
Governance Practices.

The Managing Director and Executive Directors will
discuss with external auditor in the Audit Committee
meeting at least twice a year on key issues in relation to
internal controls, audit findings and risk management.

As concluded in 2021 Audit Committee meeting, no
irregularities and major weakness in control were found
by the auditor.

NOMINATION COMMITTEE

The Company has set up the Nomination Committee on
7 March 2012, which is mainly responsible for making
recommendations to the Board on the appointment or
re-appointment of directors and succession planning for
directors.

The Nomination Committee is chaired by the Chairman
of the Board. The committee shall comprise members
not less than three and a majority of the committee is
Independent Non-executive Directors.
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e  The Nomination Committee is currently chaired by Mr.
Liu Lit Chi, the Chairman of the Board.

e  Other members are Mr. Au Kam Yuen, Arthur, Dr. Ma
Hung Ming, John, Mr. Cheng Yuk Wo and Mr. Tong
Tsun Sum, Eric (Independent Non-executive Directors)
and Mr. Kho Eng Tjoan, Christopher (a Non-executive
Director).

° The committee meets at least once per annum.

° The main duties of the committee include the
followings:

(i) to review the structure, size and composition
(including the skills, knowledge and experience
required) of the Board at least annually and make
recommendations on any proposed changes to the
Board to complement the Company’s corporate
strategy;

(i) to identify individuals suitably qualified to become
directors of the Company and select or make
recommendations to the Board on the selection of
individuals nominated for directorships;

(iii) to assess the independence of Independent Non-
executive Directors of the Company; and

(iv) to make recommendations to the Board on the
appointment or re-appointment of the directors
and succession plan for directors, in particular the
Chairman and Chief Executive Officer of the
Company.

e Details of 2021 Nomination Committee meeting
attendance record are set out belows:
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(i) MEARESEERAEEELR
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FRMUER
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(iv) MEFNZEAERZERE
ERNEERABREFERITH
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HE o

TR FERVZEETERUE
SCERETIGNT ¢

Number of Attendance
meeting attended rate
HEgHERY HE%

Members of Nomination Committee RREEEES
Liu Lit Chi (Chairman) B (/) 11 100%
Kho Eng Tjoan, Christopher G 11 100%
Cheng Yuk Wo BRETA 1 100%
Au Kam Yuen, Arthur BRI n 100%
Ma Hung Ming, John BBt mn 100%
Tong Tsun Sum, Eric BEH mn 100%
Lee Wai Hung (Secretary) EIE WE) mn 100%




(G)

Committee members are allowed to take independent
professional advice at Company’s expense.

Details of the mandate and summary of the work by the
Nomination Committee during the year are set out in
the Nomination Committee Report on pages 36 to 37.

The terms of reference of the Nomination Committee
are available on the Company’s website and the Stock
Exchange’s website.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE COMMITTEE

The Company has set up the Corporate Governance
Committee on 7 March 2012, which is mainly responsible
for performing the corporate governance duties of the
Board.

The Corporate Governance Committee is chaired by Mr.
Liu Kam Fai, Winston.

Its other current members are Mr. Lee Wai Hung,
Executive Director of the Company and two
Independent Non-executive Directors namely, Mr. Au
Kam Yuen, Arthur and Dr. Ma Hung Ming, John.

The committee meets at least once per annum.

The Corporate Governance Committee determines the
policy for the corporate governance of the Company.
The duties performed by the Corporate Governance
Committee include the followings:

(i) to develop and review the Company’s policies and
practices on corporate governance and make
recommendations to the Board;

(ii) to review and monitor the training and continuous
professional development of the directors of the
Company and the senior management;

(iii) to review and monitor the Company’s policies and

practices on compliance with legal and regulatory

requirements;

(iv) to develop, review and monitor the code of
conduct applicable to the directors and the

employees of the Company;
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(v) to review the Company’s compliance with the
Corporate Governance Code and disclosure in the
Corporate Governance Report as required under
the Listing Rules; and

CEERRSSE

(v) BATRABDNEEETEERER
TRIRASIRE EHRAZE
EREXRERARSFLHKE
)4

(vi) to hold regular meetings with all department (vi) AEFEFRBEPIEETHRTT
heads from time to time requesting them to review Tk BERFEERTHIBMA
their corporate governance within the department ZEEEG > LIREERNM
and require them to submit proposal or remedy AT ERRASEE °
action to redress the matters.

e Details of 2021 Corporate Governance Committee o ZTE-—FELEXELLSETI R

meeting attendance record are set out below: HESCHZEIIINT -
Number of Attendance
meetin attended rate
HEgERY HER
Members of Corporate Governance Committee ¥ E4ZE 8%

Liu Kam Fai, Winston (Chairman) BEe1E (/) 1mn 100%
Au Kam Yuen, Arthur B#RR 171 100%
Ma Hung Ming, John Bkt 17 100%
Lee Wai Hung TEg 1n 100%

e  Committee members are allowed to take independent
professional advice at Company’s expense.

e  The terms of reference of the Corporate Governance
Committee are available on the Company’s website.

(H) DELEGATION BY BOARD

(I) RELATIONSHIP WITH MANAGEMENT

e The Board and management (include different
departmental heads) fully appreciate their respective
roles with supportive commitments of creating a healthy
corporate governance culture.

e The Board is responsible for overseeing the processes
that management (include different departmental
heads) has in place to identify business opportunities
and risks.

e The Board has delegated management functions to
Executive Management Committee and different
department heads for the Company’s operations and
daily business affairs.

(H)
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(i) BOARD COMMITTEES: SPECIFIC TERMS OF

)
0}

REFERENCE AND REPORT TO FULL BOARD

The Board currently has five Board committees, namely
the Audit Committee, Remuneration Committee,
Nomination Committee, Corporate Governance
Committee and Executive Management Committee,
each of the Committees have specific written terms of

reference.

The Audit Committee is chaired by Mr. Cheng Yuk Wo
and all members are Independent Non-executive
Directors.

The Remuneration Committee is chaired by Dr. Cheng
Mo Chi, Moses and has a majority of Independent Non-
executive Directors.

The Nomination Committee is chaired by Mr. Liu Lit Chi,
the Chairman of the Board and has a majority of
Independent Non-executive Directors.

The Corporate Governance Committee is chaired by Mr.
Liu Kam Fai, Winston and comprises of one Executive
Director and two Independent Non-executive Directors
of the Company.

The Executive Management Committee comprises of
three Executive Directors of the Company.

Each Board committees present(s) their respective
reports to the Board after each meeting, for addressing
their work done and findings.

SHAREHOLDER COMMUNICATION POLICY
PREAMBLE

This policy sets out the Company’s standards and practices in

relation to communicating with its shareholders and

prospective investors.

The Company is committed to maintaining a policy of
open and timely disclosure of relevant information on
its activities to shareholders, subject to applicable legal
requirements.
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()

The Company believes that providing regular
communications to its shareholders and the market is
important to ensure they have the available information
reasonably required to make informed assessments of
the Company’s strategy, operations and financial
performance.

Communication channels
Communication is made through:

— the Company’s annual and interim reports, which
have been enhanced to present a comprehensive,
balanced and understandable assessment of the
Group position and prospects.

— notices of and explanatory memoranda for annual
and other general meetings, which have been
enhanced to provide shareholders with additional
information in an understandable manner.

— press releases on major developments of the
Company and its subsidiaries.

— disclosures to the Stock Exchange and relevant
regulatory bodies.

— Company’s website at http://www.lchi.com.hk
which shareholders can access information of the
Group. The website provides, inter alia, corporate
announcements, business development and
operations, press releases, financial reports, and
corporate information of the Group.

SHAREHOLDERS' MEETING

The Board regards the annual general meeting as the
principal opportunity to meet with shareholders and
welcome any constructive opinions.
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Details of director’s attendance record of the annual
general meeting of the Company held for year ended
31 December 2021 are set out below:

BE_ZE_—F+_A=+—HIL
FEZARATRRAGEFTHET
BREHIWTF ¢

Number of Attendance
meeting attended rate
HEEERY HEE
Executive Directors HITESR
Liu Lit Chi (Chairman) BIE () n 100%
Liu Kam Fai, Winston BsiE
(Deputy Managing Director) (BIEF4EAETE) mn 100%
Lee Wai Hung £V mn 100%
Non-executive Director FRTESR
Kho Eng Tjoan, Christopher SR 11N 100%
Independent Non-executive Directors BiUERTESR
Cheng Mo Chi, Moses BRE 11 100%
Au Kam Yuen, Arthur EiRE 11 100%
Ma Hung Ming, John BB 11 100%
Cheng Yuk Wo BRERAD Al 100%
Tong Tsun Sum, Eric BEH mn 100%

(1)

The Company arranges for the annual report and
financial statements and related papers to be posted for
shareholders so as to allow at least 21 days for
consideration prior to the annual general meeting. And
all other general meetings to be sent at least 14 days.

The Board encourages and supports shareholder
participation in general meetings. Shareholders are
encouraged to appoint proxies to attend and vote at
meetings for and on their behalf if they are unable to
attend such meetings.

Mechanisms for enabling shareholder participation will
be reviewed on a regular basis by the Board to
encourage the highest level of participation.

Chairman of the Board, appropriate members of the
Board committees and the external auditor of the
Company will attend the annual general meetings to
answer questions from the shareholders.

SHAREHOLDERS’ ENQUIRIES

Inquiries from shareholders, investors, media or the
public are responded by the Executive Directors, Director
of Finance, Company Secretary or the appropriate
members of senior management.

The Company will respond in a timely manner to
shareholders’ queries and concerns.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

(Iv) THE ADMINISTRATION OF ANNUAL GENERAL
MEETING

e  All ordinary shares of the Company have equal voting
rights. Annual general meeting proceedings are
continually reviewed in the light of Code on Corporate
Governance Practices.

e  Separate resolutions are proposed at the meeting on
each substantially separate issue, including the election
of individual directors.

e  Preparation of a comprehensive annual general meeting
circular containing:

o re-election of directors;

e general mandate to buy-back shares;

e general mandate to issue shares;

e amendments to the Articles of Association, if any;
e voting at annual general meeting; and

e  comprehensive information on each resolution to
be proposed.

The Company’s Articles contain the rights of shareholders to
demand and the procedures for a poll voting on resolution
at shareholders’ meetings. Details of such rights to demand a
poll and the poll procedures are included in all circulars in
relation to shareholders’ meetings and will be explained
during the proceedings of shareholders’ meetings. In case
poll voting is conducted, the poll results will be posted on
the websites of the Stock Exchange and the Company on the
business day following the shareholders’ meeting.

To promote effective communication, the Company
maintains a website at http://www.lchi.com.hk where the
Company’s announcements, business development and
operations, financial information, corporate governance
practices and other information are posted.

Information on top 10 largest shareholders and location of
shareholders are set out in Directors’ Report on page 29.
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(V) PROCEDURES FOR SHAREHOLDERS TO CONVENE A

GENERAL MEETING (“GM")

Shareholders holding not less than 5% of the total
voting rights of all shareholders having a right to vote
may request to call a GM of the Company.

The written request: (a) must state the general nature
of the GM; (b) may include the text of a resolution that
may properly be moved and is intended to be moved at
the GM; (c) must be signed by the shareholders making
such request, and (d) may consist of several documents
in like form each signed by one or more of those
shareholders. A request by joint holders of shares must
be signed by all such holders.

The request should be deposited at the registered office
of the Company for the attention of the Company
Secretary.

The request will be verified by the Company’s share
registrar and upon its confirmation that the request is
valid, the Company Secretary will convene a GM on
behalf of the Board by serving sufficient notice in
accordance with the statutory requirements or
applicable rules or regulations to all the registered
shareholders.

If the request is verified to be not in order, shareholders
concerned will be informed and no GM will be convened.

If the directors do not within 21 days from the date of
the deposit of the request proceed to convene a GM,
the shareholders concerned or any of them representing
more than one-half of the total voting rights of all of
them may themselves convene a GM, but any GM so
convened shall not be held after the expiration of three
months from the date of the deposit of the request.

In the case of a GM at which a resolution is to be
proposed as a special resolution, the directors shall be
deemed not to have duly convened the GM if they do
not give such notice as is required by section 578 of the
Companies Ordinance (Chapter 622 of the Laws of Hong
Kong).
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(VI) PROCEDURES FOR SHAREHOLDERS TO PUT

FORWARD PROPOSALS AT GENERAL MEETINGS
Pursuant to section 615 of the Companies Ordinance
(Cap 622, Laws of Hong Kong), the Company must give
notice of a resolution if it has received requests from the
following number of shareholders:

(i) Shareholders holding at least 2.5% of the total
voting rights of all shareholders having the right to
vote on the resolution at the annual general
meeting to which the request relates; or

(i) not less than 50 shareholders who have the right to
vote on the resolution at the annual general
meeting to which the request relates.

The written request: (a) must be signed by all the
shareholders concerned; (b) must be sent to the
Company in hard copy form at the registered office of
the Company; (c) must identify the resolution of which
notice is to be given; (d) must be authenticated by the
person or persons making it; and (e) must be received by
the Company not later than 6 weeks before the annual
general meeting to which the requests relate; or if later,
the time at which notice is given of that meeting.

The request will be verified with the Company’s share
registrar and upon its confirmation that the request is
valid, the Company will give notice of the resolution or
circulate the statement provided that:

(a) if the request relates to an annual general meeting,

(i) the proposed statement must be received in
time to enable the Company to send a copy of
the statement when the notice of annual
general meeting is despatched;

(ii) and, the shareholders concerned have to
deposit a sum reasonably sufficient to meet
the Company’s expenses in regard thereto not
later than 7 days before the annual general
meeting.
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(b) if the request relates to a GM (other than an
annual general meeting), the shareholders
concerned have to deposit a sum reasonably
sufficient to meet the Company’s expenses in
regard thereto not later than 7 days before the
GM.

e |f the request is verified to be not in order or the
shareholders concerned have failed in the above
manner to deposit sufficient money to meet the
Company’s expenses for the said purposes, the
shareholders concerned will be advised of the result and
no action will be taken by the Company in that regard.

e  Pursuant to section 616 of the Companies Ordinance,
the Company that is required under section 615 of the
Companies Ordinance to give notice of a resolution
must send a copy of it at the Company’s own expenses
to each shareholder of the Company entitled to receive
notice of the annual general meeting in the same
manner as the notice of the meeting; and at the same
time as, or as soon as reasonably practicable after, it
gives notice of the meeting.

The above procedures are subject to applicable legislation
and regulations, in particular, the Companies Ordinance (Cap
622, Laws of Hong Kong). For further details on the
shareholder qualifications, and the procedures and timeline,
shareholders are kindly requested to refer to Sections 566 to
567, 571, 578, 580 to 582, 610 and 615 of the Companies
Ordinance (Cap 622, Laws of Hong Kong).
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

(Vi) PROCEDURES FOR SHAREHOLDERS TO PROPOSE A
PERSON FOR ELECTION AS A DIRECTOR

Subject to applicable laws, rules and regulations, including
Companies Ordinance (Laws of Hong Kong), the Listing Rules
and the articles of association of the Company as amended
from time to time, if any shareholder(s) of the Company
intends to propose a person other than a director of the
Company for election as a director of the Company at any
GM, the following procedures shall apply:

* anotice signed by a shareholder (other than the person
to be proposed) duly qualified to attend and vote at the
meeting for which such notice is given of his intention
to propose such person for election and also a notice
signed by the person to be proposed of his willingness
to be elected shall have been lodged with the Board at
the registered office of the Company;

e the minimum length of the period during which such
notice(s) are given shall be at least 7 days and that the
period for lodgement of such notice(s) shall commence
no earlier than the day after the despatch of the notice
of the GM appointed for such election and end no later
than 7 days prior to the date of such GM; and

e in order for the Company to inform shareholders of the
Company of that proposal, such notice(s) for the
nomination of a director must state the full name of the
person nominated for election as a director and include
the person’s biographical details as required by the
Listing Rules.

(J) CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS

There were changes to the Company’s Articles of Association
in the annual general meeting held on 29 April 2015 and 15
May 2018, the shareholders of the Company had approved
the amendments to the Articles of Association of the
Company. The changes were carried out in compliance with
the latest Hong Kong Companies Ordinance (Cap. 622) which
came into effect on 3 March 2014. The revised Articles of
Association is available in the Company’s website.
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

B HEREARSE

ABOUT LIU CHONG HING INVESTMENT LIMITED

Liu Chong Hing Investment Limited (the “Company”) and its
subsidiaries (collectively the “Group”) are principally engaged
in property investment, property development, investment
holding and hotel operation. The Group acknowledges the
significance of effective environmental, social and
governance (“ESG") initiatives at an operational level. The
Group recognises our corporate social responsibility (“CSR")
to the stakeholders; we are committed to the principles of
good corporate governance and strive to integrate them into
our daily operations. In 2021 the Group succeeded in
developing its business while promoting initiatives that
balance the cost of the integration against returns and
continuing to contribute to the building of a harmonious

society.

During the year ended 31 December 2021, our areas of
operation covered Hong Kong and the People’s Republic of
China (“PRC"), with premises comprising offices, commercial,
residential and industrial buildings.

REPORTING SCOPE AND STANDARDS

This report is prepared in accordance with the Environmental,
Social and Governance Reporting Guide (“ESG Guide”) as set
out in Appendix 27 of the Rules Governing the Listing of
Securities on the Stock Exchange. In the preparation of this
ESG report, we adhered to the four core principles of the ESG
Guide, namely the “Materiality”, “Quantitative”, “Balance”
and “Consistency” principles that are described below. In
addition, we have adhered to the ESG Guide in terms of the
presentation and measurement of data for this ESG report.

Materiality: Materiality assessments are conducted and
reviewed annually to ensure that any material ESG issues are
identified. Topics that are relevant and material to our
business operations and stakeholders remained.

Quantitative: The quantitative key performance indicators
(“KPIs") disclosed are measurable and applicable to valid
comparisons under appropriate conditions.
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

B HEREARSE

Balance: The information for the year is presented in an
unbiased manner to avoid the possibility of inappropriately
influencing any judgement or decision by the report reader.

Consistency: This KPIs data and calculation methods are kept
consistent for the disclosure of data to ensure valid
comparability.

The reporting period of this ESG report is from 1 January
2021 to 31 December 2021 (the “Reporting Period”). Apart
from the principal activities of the Group, the activities
reported below also include property management.

MATERIALITY ASSESSMENT

The executive committee conducted a materiality assessment
during the Reporting Period to identify and review the
material ESG issues related to the Group’s operations. The
material ESG issues were identified by prioritising the
potential material ESG issues arising from the reporting
guidelines and interviews with internal and external
stakeholders. The material ESG issues identified are reviewed
regularly with the aim of formulating corresponding ESG
strategies for improvement.

The below issues are considered as material. According to the
results of the materiality assessment, the items below
demonstrated the ESG topics with high materiality to the
Group, including:

WASTE MANAGEMENT
HEALTH AND SAFETY

USE OF RESOURCES
EMISSIONS

DEVELOPMENT AND TRAINING
SUPPLY CHAIN MANAGEMENT
ANTI-CORRUPTION
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BOARD STATEMENT

With the aspiration to reduce impact on the environment,
the Group does its best to operate and expand its business in
a sustainable manner. The Board of Directors (the “Board"”)
holds overall responsibility for the effectiveness of the
sustainability of the Group, including setting ESG directions
and evaluating ESG-related risks and performance. Power
and authority were delegated to the Group’s executive
committee (comprising executive directors) and department
heads to handle all ESG-related matters by formulating ESG
strategies, executing the ESG plan and achieving the ESG-
related goals set by the executive committee.

The executive committee will also regularly review the
effectiveness of implementation of relevant solutions to ESG-
related issues. Environmental targets are approved by the
Board and are required to be updated in line with the latest
regulatory requirements before issuance of the ESG report.

PROTECTING THE ENVIRONMENT

In light of the impact of global warming and environmental
pollution, the Group continues to seek opportunities to
protect the environment. We have integrated environmental
considerations into our business operations, including but
not limited to improving our environmental track record by
minimising pollution, utilising energy efficiently and reducing
waste in our daily operations, as well as by aligning with best
practices around “sustainable buildings”. The Group raises
staff awareness on environmental issues both at work and in
daily life through continuous training and communications;
employees’ support is required in order to improve the
Group’s performance. “Reduce, Reuse, Recycle” remains our
key concept in protecting the environment.
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ENERGY-SAVING CHARTER

In support of government initiatives on addressing climate
change, the Group signed the Electrical and Mechanical
Services Department’s Energy-Saving Charter 2021 for Chong
Hing Bank Centre, Fairview Court and Grandview Court. This
charter promotes energy efficiency and energy-saving,
among the most crucial means for Hong Kong to
continuously reduce its carbon emissions. The Electrical and
Mechanical Services Department has set four targets under
the charter: (i) maintaining an average indoor temperature
between 24 and 26°C during the summer of 2021; (ii)
switching off appliances and systems when not in use; (iii)
procuring energy-efficient appliances and systems (e.g.
appliances with Grade 1 energy labels/Voluntary Energy
Efficiency Labelling Schemes); and (iv) encouraging staff and
tenants to adopt energy-saving practices.

LEADERSHIP IN ENERGY AND ENVIRONMENTAL
DESIGN (“LEED")

The Group is committed to maintaining environmental
sustainability by focusing on running and maintaining green
buildings. Our Chong Hing Finance Center in Shanghai,
having been awarded LEED gold certification, is proof of our
commitment to designing and maintaining our buildings in a
resource-efficient manner and providing a healthy
environment to the users of these buildings. Environmentally
friendly features of the Chong Hing Finance Center include
reducing heat islands in the surrounding areas and reducing
light pollution.

BRRESYE
AERBFERRGEEHEE > K&
BRI ERITHRO - ERRAKRERER
EWRBIEEN rﬁ'ﬁﬁ%%’]z:?:—J @
ZNBERB R REAIER > B8
%?—*:.?EIJZE"\EFEFHE’\JHi%szﬁ@JZ— o
WEIEZEEENEPI TEEER
BOE—F_—FEFRTHIERNRE
MEEREK24ZE26EZH 0 () BAET
ERNERRAS (i) RBAERNE
MER KRS WA —RERRR 8
FEMERE R m IR B 5T BRI E2R) K (iv) &
Bh & T K8 R BEEXREREH

R RRIRIAEE (TLEED))

FEBEINGORRNEEREE
MHEFIRIBN O RFEN A CE - B
R LEBMEIEER T O EEEELEED &5
B8 BERBATRMARNSNUERYES
NRst R EEET  TAEBFTERER
HEENIRE - AIESRPONIRRFRS
DR AR ENRE N ERS
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EMISSIONS

Greenhouse Gas (“GHG") emissions have been reported to
have a major effect on climate change and global warming.
In support of environmental protection initiatives around the
world, and to minimise GHG emissions and non-hazardous
waste, we have adopted initiatives in a number of areas,
including deploying energy-efficient systems and
implementing waste recycling and pollution prevention.

During the Reporting Period, we participated in the
Environmental Protection Department’s Indoor Air Quality
Scheme and were awarded the “Indoor Air Quality
Certification — Good Class” for Chong Hing Bank Centre.

Under the regulations for electric-vehicle charging facilities
in the PRC, the Group has installed several electric-vehicle
chargers, covering no less than 15% of the total parking
spaces available at the Chong Hing Finance Center in
Shanghai. This helps to reduce energy wastage and air
pollution, as well as to promote the use of electric vehicles.

Such charging facilities have also been installed at One-Eight-
One Hotel & Serviced Residences in Hong Kong, both for
hotel guest use as well as for the hotel's own fleet of Tesla
limousines.

To ensure operational practices within our properties are in
line with the most environmentally friendly practices, as well
as applicable environmental protection laws and regulations,
the operations of Chong Hing Bank Centre, Chong Hing
Square and Fairview Court followed the framework and
adopted the forms of ISO 14001:2015.

HE R

KEEEAEARTE - HERERZME
RfRIEN > RERVBERBEHFRK
BEEY > RACEZEERAETERE
st SENEHERE  BREYE
Wk %BA T o

EREHE > HASRRRREZENE
REREHRFE > MAIRRITHOERE
B TERTERERBELS (RFRN °

RIFPEEEETRERMARMBEE
FEEER LBRIESRPOLESE
BHSEREBH > BEALIR15%HE
BFE( > SRRV ERRE
AR MEBEESERERA o

=

F 978 7£ & 7B B9 One-Eight-One & 5 &
IREXEELEIFETERN > MBS
ERROEEN Tesla BB EXEH o

ABGRAVEANESEEERGRE
REEBEUKRERNRIZERELZERRA
Bl BIEIBITHRO BIEESRERE
WEFEYEREZIEZR I HKMAISO
14001 : 2015 FURRAEHZE o
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B HEREARSE

GHG emissions during the Reporting Period:

SRR E RASHIN

Sources Types of GHG Unit 2021 2020

®R BEFREY B —E-—& k- o 3

Emissions data from gaseous fuel consumption and Nitrogen oxides (NO,)  tonnes 0.01617 0.02084

use of vehicles a&tyno) U]

RASURRLHFE R S E R R Sulphur oxides (50,)  tonnes 0.00008 0.00104
Fre{E¥(so0,) M

Direct emissions or removals from sources (Scope 1)

EERERESHRAS (E)

GHG emissions from mobile combustion sources Carbon dioxide (CO,)  tonnes 103.34 125.19

ENRENEPT SR E RAERHER Z&{bhk(Co,) W
Methane (CH,) tonnes 0.23 0.28
FRJ5E(CH,) it
Nitrous oxide (N,0) tonnes 14.99 18.17
SYEEAN0) it

Indirect GHG emissions (Scope 2)

MEEERIER ()

Electricity purchased from power companies Carbon dioxide (CO,)  tonnes 3,658.61 3,578.51

ABNAEIEER Z&1ERR(CO,) W

Gas purchased from Towngas Carbon dioxide (CO,)  tonnes 50.22 64.46

HEBERERATBRENER Z&{bhk(Co,) W

Other indirect GHG emissions (Scope 3)

HitRERE RN (3E3)

Electricity used for processing fresh water and sewage by Carbon dioxide (CO,)  tonnes 13.22 16.11

government departments Z&1ERR(CO,) U]

BT BRI Rk K5 K AR RV E 1

Business air travel by employees Carbon dioxide (CO,)  tonnes — 1.24

[EERERISLIMAR Z&1bhik(Co,) WA

During the Reporting Period, One-Eight-One Hotel & Serviced F—#gisEEEBHEAINR_-_E-EF

Residences was shortlisted by the Government of the Hong
Kong Special Administrative Region (the “Hong Kong
government”) as a designated quarantine hotel, following
the first cycle Designated Quarantine Hotels Scheme enacted
in December 2020 to provide accommodation for arrivals in
Hong Kong from places outside China. Under the quarantine
hotel arrangement, the Group complied with the

requirement for health advice on prevention of the spread of
COVID-19 for the hotel industry issued from Centre for

Health Protection.

+ZREM FREHE FBRHT
& B A (& # BT 1) 4% One-Eight-
OneBE RIRFBFILIEEMARIE
BIE > ARELSME&ERBRIA TR H
£ - AEERBEEBEZH > BT
BEMEROMBEEERSE L ARENE
B EN RS IEEERNRE

E =



The improvement of emissions from gaseous fuel
consumption and use of vehicles comes from the closure of
several common areas in One-Eight-One Hotel & Serviced
Residences to avoid COVID-19 infection. The increase in
electricity consumption resulted from hotel operations, as
guests spent longer amounts of time in their rooms while
under quarantine. The Group has also encouraged staff to
make use of video conferencing facilities to decrease carbon
emissions arising from unnecessary business trips. The Group
did not record any non-compliance with relevant laws and
regulations with a significant impact relating to greenhouse
gas emissions during the year.

The Group has set a target of reducing emissions from
gaseous fuel consumption and use of vehicles by 2% in its
Hong Kong properties by 2025, with 2021 set as the baseline
for several measures such as reducing carbon footprint from
flying by utilising video or audio conferencing for
international meetings, installing more energy-saving
lighting systems, performing regular vehicle and machine
maintenance to reduce gas emissions.

WASTE MANAGEMENT

Our business operations did not generate any hazardous
waste, including chemical and other hazardous waste during
the Reporting Period. However, with the Group’s property
serving as a quarantine hotel, the Group was required to
dispose of 0.3 tonnes of waste arising from the cleaning of
confirmed-case guest rooms, which required the same
treatment as hazardous waste (clinical), during the Reporting
Period. The hazardous waste was collected and handled by
outsourced contractors recognised by the Department of
Health. Compared to the previous year, only a minimal
amount of recyclable material was recycled (2020: recycled
plastic — 0.1029 tonnes; recycled paper — 0.0255 tonnes;
recycled aluminium cans — 0.0158 tonnes). Our hotel
operations generated the majority of the recyclable material
that was not recycled during the Reporting Period according
to the COVID-19 safety measures implemented by the Hong
Kong government.

One-Eight-One & & & AR L E E A
HZEAHTEUBRR AT TRS
F SR H A BB E AR E LW
BWERMAL  c HRRERHABEEER
HEESERRE > SHEESENRESIE
Mme ZEBENTERBETHFERARETRR
B LUV IERERBFIEEN St
REE - FA > REBENRBRERE
RBSHE T A 1E f] 16 A8 4B BE A B Ke 3R 651
HIZEIE o

FEBRGTEBR U —FREE >
E-E_AFZARERMERNRER
FUHFEMEWERMEENHFRERD
2% > AR UL EREN Z IRFE b » B A0 AR
BREEENSMER G > W
RATER IR B > W ZRE ZHHER
BAZ AL A E R MEE BRI AN 28 > LURLD
RBSHE ©

BEMER

EHREHE BPNEBRKERELER
AIEEEY > S tEREMBEEEY -
AT RSB ARAERETY
XCHREABBRARIE  SEEKERE
BERZAEREEREREENO0.3MEEY
RIEAXHREE (BFR EYMHER - BE
EE¥) &£ BRI RSMI A E TR
EREEE - B —FMLL > KR E]
Bl (ZEZEF  AIEIWER —
0.1029M§ ; BJ[E] U AK5k —O0.0255 M ; A
El YR EE —0.0158MF) HEFEE AR o
HREEBRNETHMERENRELE
Bh EHRESHE > BEEFEENK
&8 53 AT el A R R BEEIUX ©
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Nonetheless, we recognise the importance of waste

reduction. Waste-management measures have been

introduced to minimise both the amount of waste generated

and its impact on the environment. The Group aims to reduce

non-hazardous waste by continuously changing the plastic

and aluminium packaging for both quarantine guests and

employees and reducing the use of paper.

The measures the Group has taken in striving for balance

between reduction of waste and maintaining excellent hotel

guest services are highlighted below:

Reduce the amount of plastic used by changing to larger
size bottles for items such as bathroom amenities, hand
sanitiser etc. for quarantine guests

Reduce the printing of paper to deliver messages in
guest rooms and between departments by the way of
using QR codes, instant messaging tools and using
lamination on printed paper to enable its reuse

Reduce paper consumption by installation of automatic
hand dryers instead of providing paper towels in
bathrooms

Reuse condemned towels for internal cleaning purpose

Regular review on ordering and production of
quarantine meals to reduce food wastage

Attempt to repair equipment before disposal to avoid
wasting resources

BEWL > BMATHZBOENNEE
o RILtERNEYEREK > REM
DEENEMEUKRFEHIRIENZE o
FEBREAREETRETIERERE
MiaRY)mE RN D ARER > BB
RV IFEEEY) o

SEBIREER > RAOTERL EY A
BFHEEEAEREZEERTFE > A
BEUNTF :

— RREEFBEETENAZEAMS &
FREFM|ARELE > MR8
BH2

— {FRAZMEMEEENATR I
R @R EEEFER B A
BEERARZBAFENEMEES
ENAYAR 3R

— TERFZE B &R T UERHE
M > MR R SREFEE

— EREEMFERIFTERR

— TR IRRERTESI N RS
oo LURARE RY)

— URERBRIESAMEE > URRE
BiR

Recycled materials during the Reporting Period: REHARGEY B EME

Materials recycled Unit 2021 2020
BEMY Efi 2 -t -3
Used cooking oil tonnes 0.704 250.08

ERBNRH W




USE OF RESOURCES

"HREHR

We continue to endeavour to reduce waste, conserve water 4 E @B AiHEMAIH > ERXIEY
and save energy in our properties through sustainability  ZEEITHEE - BIKBEIHE ©

innovations.

ENERGY-SAVING

Bf BE

Global warming and climate change are the main 2Z2KEB{tERFESCEHFE K MEERN
environmental problems facing the world. The Group has FEIZIERE - ZEBCHIE—ZRTIE
established a series of measures to promote awareness of FrIIESEEEH > BEANRMEERE
energy-saving that are applicable to all business operations, {E > J5 H 2 One-Eight-One ifi & K BR 75
particularly at One-Eight-One Hotel & Serviced Residences. AEE ©

The Group’s measures to improve the energy efficiency of its fFEIREHIR » AEE AIRSHEENLE
operations during the Reporting Period are highlighted EXZSFR{EHEEIEHIUT -

below:

Head Office
43

me A

Investment properties

REYFE

Setting and maintaining the average room temperature to be between
24 and 26°C

R FIERRERERERERE24E26E 2 H

Switching off office equipment (e.g. printers, computers and monitors)
when not in use

RN ERNMARE (MITENH « BiEKRER)

Switching off some lifts after office hours
EMARERIFAE D FEER

Using electrical appliances with a Grade 1 energy label according to the
Hong Kong government’s Mandatory Energy Efficiency Labelling Scheme
EFARE NEH RN EREE) B—RiERRENE

Using Forest Stewardship Council certified paper for printing
ERARMEEZE FRNARETSIED

Posting energy-saving notices to promote environmental awareness
SRALEARE ST » IRSIRIRE M

Using light-emitting diode (“LED") lighting for exterior billboards
EEINESEERZE N _IRE( TLED) )HREA

Switching off lighting in unoccupied areas

RARAEE A (£ A sE B RV AREA

Having dedicated staff to conduct regular inspections and monitor
energy consumption

HREAEEERERAERHE

Upgrading building management systems

RABFEERR

Upgrading the chiller in the Chong Hing Bank Centre
RABIEIBITHONR SRR

Using photocatalytic disinfection coating on several facilities in common
areas

EARERNZEREER L ECHEEE
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Hotel operation e  Using double Low-E coating on external windows, to minimise the

BIEEF transmission of ultraviolet and infrared light
RSV LR B RS - |ER D RIMERAIIMERVEST
e  Switching off some lifts at midnight
EFREERAND FHEER
e  Reducing how often beds are changed and rooms prepared where
possible, without affecting customers’ experience in using our hotel
services
AT EREZRBEERBRIAIR © » BoIsER D BHRRE R EHRIER
e Purchasing waterproof mattress and pillow covers to reduce unnecessary
steam steps
BEMKARBANME » LUV AR ERNZIMEZ DR
e Installing frequency inverters in pump systems to optimise the
mechanical operation

e  Using LED lighting for hotel corridors and all guest rooms

TEBIEER KA R E{ERLEDIREA

Electricity consumed and intensity during the Reporting $REHIEMNEEERZE :

Period:
Unit 2021 2020
Bl 3 ZEC%f
Electricity consumption kWh 4,627,024.44 4,547,059.24
HEE ThRE
kWh/employee 16,704.06 14,435.11
TRE/1EE

During the Reporting Period, for the Elegance Garden
property development project located in Sanshui Qu, Foshan,
the design incorporated external wall insulation and heat
insulation, which helped to reduce energy consumption in
the buildings. In addition, our property management
business has obtained ISO 14001 certification in recognition
of our compliance with environmental management. The
Group will continue to monitor and improve performance in
terms of the level of resource consumption and further
initiatives will be implemented if necessary.

The Group has set a target of reducing energy consumption
by 3% in its Hong Kong properties by 2025, with 2021 set as
the baseline, by turning off lights when staff go off duty or
when people leave, studying the effects of installing
frequency inverters in office and hotel pump and chiller
systems and assuring the cooling effect of air conditioning
equipment by proper maintenance.

FEREHAM > BULU=KFEEEY XS
BI85 B 1% s R A IME RIRPR AL -
BB PR R REIRHFE o L4 >
KMETRIEEEIESITESSE &
TYEEEEFEBE@IBEISO 140015958 ©
NEBREBHEEANSERHEFEKT
BIRRY > WTER N ERFIREUE—D 1B o

SEEFEEE U BE_—FEAR%E
B REZRIBEBYENERHE
FER 3% » FHAGIEES T T Uk BER
BERARAERAE > MRREM A ENAE KR
RS ARBPLEEIERRN » L FE
BEEEEMRRTARENRSMER -



PAPER USAGE

In our daily operations, employees are reminded to reduce
paper consumption as a matter of good practice. During the
Reporting Period, the Group implemented further waste
reduction and recycling initiatives.

In order to reduce paper usage for our car park management
system at Chong Hing Finance Center in Shanghai, an
automatic licence plate recognition system (ALPR) was used
during the Reporting Period to control car parking. The
system included standard resolution IP cameras designed
specifically for licence plate recognition. To prevent
misidentification, we installed a special lighting system near
the barrier. As a result, no more physical car park tickets are
required. We also accept electronic payment — for example,
WeChat Pay — making all parking processing and
transactions paperless at this property.

USE OF BIODEGRADABLE TABLEWARE

We also introduced eco-friendly products into our operations
to minimise pollution. For food and beverage operations at
One-Eight-One Hotel & Serviced Residences, we provide
recyclable paper straws and some biodegradable tableware,
such as corn-based disposables for takeaway orders.
Furthermore, we use bamboo tissue instead of tissue paper
made from wood pulp. Bamboo grows up to 30% faster than
other trees so its use helps reduce environmental harm. We
are committed to building a strong foundation for living a
sustainable life.

WATER MANAGEMENT

Chong Hing Bank Centre complies with the suggested
standards of the Water Supplies Department’s Quality Water
Supply Scheme for Buildings. To promote water conservation,
signs and notices are posted near sinks, and sensors are
installed at taps to control water consumption. Dual flush
system devices are equipped at water closets for all guest

&1t 3R 1€ F

EHEEFT > KARERERRRI
BERLDBME EREHHE > AEEE
1TiE— DRV Y R e & Bl BYHETE ©

AROLEBRESRMPOMEEZEERR
MERAA > BFINKREHBERBERE
B R 4 (ALPR) SREZFIEE R HE > &
BE AR ER MR REREEIP
a0 BB IEERSY - T IR TE AT B
ERERHNRPARG  ALEERER
BEFHEHR It RMABRREFX
T (MMEXN)  BZMENFRBEFE
RRIER R 5 E R EARAE o

FERTEMERER
EMTRIRRESRSIAEES » UFET
BEIRL /L 7542 o £ One-Eight-One /A [E K&
RBXFENEREED > HMIEHET
EIRHARNERE RE TR EYERER
BlanE I ETEFER U E KA FERAYED
Z2xXHAmo i BMERMEALER
T AAMHNERREREMB AR
30% » ERMABENR/ VHIRIZIES ©
BB aHEE EEREEREN
EE** °

KEEE

BIESRITHROEBEKEENKEEEH
KRBAFEINRERIEE - AT (RESHN
7K » BAMERF RAMITRAZES RIE
™o MIEKAETEE L HE AR 0 T
FAKkE - FIEERNMKEFILEE
HIVEE o
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Water consumed and intensity during the Reporting Period: REHEMNAKERSZE ! ®
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Unit 2021 w0 ¥

-{in —E--& —ECEE °

Water consumption m? 21,758.72 27,416.73 L};
ke UAK N
m?/employee 78.55 87.04
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The Group will continue to monitor and improve
performance in terms of water consumption levels and
further initiatives will be implemented if necessary. There is a
target to reduce water consumption by 2% by 2025, with
2021 set as the baseline, by studying the effects of installing
a water aerator to reduce water flow. The initial study will
be made in staff areas such as water taps in the staff canteen,
hotel kitchen and laundry area.

EARTH HOUR

On 27 March 2021, Liu Chong Hing Property Management &
Agency Limited pledged to support Earth Hour by turning
off all non-essential lights for an hour at 8:30 p.m. They also
pledged to help safeguard the future of the Earth by
treasuring the world’s natural resources, choosing sustainable
products, reducing waste and promoting and using
renewable energy wherever possible.

For the year ended 31 December 2021, the Group has not
received any notice of non-compliance in relation to any
pollution ordinances or regulations.

CLIMATE CHANGE

In recent years, climate change and global warming have
been the major issues of environmental concern. Extreme
weather conditions such as high temperatures, flooding,
typhoons and other rainstorms have created potential threats
to the Group’s operation. An increase in temperature may
result in an increase in the energy consumption of the
Group's offices and other premises. In an effort to control
energy consumption and carbon emissions, the Group will
continuously adopt various environmental protection
measures mentioned in this report. In addition, in response
to the possible effects of extreme weather-related disasters,
the Group has established a standard policy, “Code of
Practice for Work Arrangements under Typhoons and
Rainstorms”, to provides guidelines on the arrangements for
work and resumption of work in such circumstances.

The Group will review the existing measures for extreme
weather conditions and monitor the potential impact of
climate change on our business from time to time and
strengthen our efforts to ensure the safety of our employees.

RERBRFEEER R NEKERHFEK
TR > LERVERREE—THE
Mo BERUZS-_—FAEE £
B AFZARKERHEFERLD 2% > 75
R R R E SR KR
R TEEEETERE  BEREM
K E B TRE S ERIKEERETH)
TR

ik — N BF

“E-—F=A-++tH ERIEYE
EERREARA B AH S EMER—/)
B T EN\R=1+2BMEFAVEN
FRERIE RAR — B/ \BF » WAL BOIAER
EBERER  BEREER R
MUREBENER T BERER > #ILiE
EIRAIAR IR o

BE_ZE-_—SF+"HBA=+—HLFE ">
7 £ [ 3 2k WK B E faT 59 Be AE 4] 55 22 1% 451
SRV B IR @A o

RIREME

> RIRE{EMEIRBEE RS KRR
ANEBRRIE[E - 5iR KK~ A
RBREFBHRAMRDT > BAEERE
EBREBEERE - RALANGTERS
EEMAEMEMIZPIRISETRHFEIE N ©
AERIBEFOHFE R > AEERR
B SREX A ¥R S P IR e U B IR IR fRIE I o
HESh > 2% FE ¥ 4% i K S K2 B BE TR 2R AV
T8 AEEFEREBR(BRE KRR
EETZITRELHTRI) > BULHBBRT
BV TEFNE TR HHE M5

KEBEAFIEE A BRERRAARTE
RITHK > EARFERREEEHERS
HBTERE > WINBEREERE -



RECRUITMENT AND EMPLOYMENT

The Group recognises that employees are valuable assets and
that we owe a lot of our success to our employees. For this
reason, we have an all-encompassing approach to
recruitment, employment, promotion and retention, coupled
with reasonable remuneration and benefits for our
employees. In relation to employment and labour practices,
we strictly comply with the laws and regulations of Hong
Kong and the PRC. We advocate a community spirit that
thrives on mutual respect and equal opportunities, and we
comply strictly with relevant laws and regulations.

The Group ensures that a fair and equal recruitment process
is in place. Candidates are considered regardless of their
gender, age, race, family status, religion or disability status.
The Group provides equal opportunities to all employees for
promotion and career development.

For the security of candidates during the recruitment process,
we confirm that all candidate information will only be used
for recruitment purposes and can only be accessed by
authorised staff. Information on unsuccessful candidates will
normally be deleted 24 months after their application.

A comprehensive framework incorporating detailed human
resource management policies is included in our Operation
Manual and Staff Handbook. The Operation Manual and
Staff Handbook provides information and guidelines to our
staff in Hong Kong and the PRC on working conditions,
benefits and remuneration, training and development, as
well as health and safety. Employees are also encouraged to
discuss their job progression and career development goals
with the senior management who oversee their daily
activities. Furthermore, a performance appraisal is conducted
annually.

RIS R & &
FEBFRNEEREEEE > TERM
BURINEZER - At > HAIFE
UGB BN S EREE - B
BEARGEREENGEHE - EEEK
SIEHAE > RABREETERRS
B R AR KRB - FfIREZILLIEE
SERTERERENBEREE BB
BTHERER IR o

FEERNERREBEREFNATRTS -
KEBERREMSR ~ Fie ~ Bk~ KE
A s RBEMIERBR > 9FUE
B mxEBEAMBEREREEA KBE
BRITERE -

AT ERBBIEPRERREE > HFIE
SRATAEKBEENRERNEBERR
wERREREAESER - REBAX
BENENEESEHRFRAEE24E8
BMIPR

BRAERIERSRE  BEFANAD
BEREEBR > LHFINBREFMRE
ITFM- BIEFMREIFMEEMAE
BEERPREAMNES TRM T FHRG
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The workforce of the Group can be broken down as follows: REBNETHMHUWT -
By gender By age group
3] g4
Male 59% 30 years old or younger 1%
it 30U T
Female 41% 31-50 years old 52%
i 31E505%
51-60 years old 28%
51605
Over 61 years old 9%
61AREA L
By geographical region By employment category
HE {RIHER
Hong Kong 77% Senior level 15%
0 EEE
Others 23% Middle level 32%
Hith FREEAS
Entry level 53%
HEET
The turnover rate of the Group is as follows: REFEBEBFNOT :
By gender By age group
3] 3 G
Male 34% 30 years old or younger 42%
i1 306%EUT
Female 35% 31-50 years old 67%
i 31E505%
51-60 years old 19%
51E605%
Over 61 years old 73%
615R AL




EMPLOYEE WELFARE

The Group strictly follows labour laws and regulations and
provides a comprehensive package to employees, covering
sick leave, casual leave (i.e. leave of absence at short notice
for personal matters or family emergencies), marriage,
compassionate, annual and injury leave, and statutory
holidays. This system aims to take care of all employees,
expand the variety of corporate culture activities and raise
the sense of belonging among employees. A “Vaccination
Day” one-day leave was granted to employees in order to
encourage them to get vaccinated against COVID-19 for
stronger protection against serious illness, hospitalisation and
death. Staff are eligible to apply medical check allowance to
ensure their suitability prior to taking the COVID-19
vaccination.

Employees who are required to report for duty under tropical
cyclone warning signal no. 8 or above or a black rainstorm
warning signal are eligible to apply for overtime payment
and allowances, such as meal and transportation allowances.
Furthermore, the Group is pleased to grant due consideration
to the circumstances of individual employees and respond
flexibly if they have practical difficulties in resuming work on
time due to adverse weather conditions or road and traffic
conditions. A clear work arrangement is forwarded to each
employee via instant messaging, and relevant guidelines are
stated in the staff handbook.

Regarding employees living in high-risk areas in terms of
exposure to COVID-19, the Group offers accommodation for
hotel staff on a case-by-case basis. Fully paid sick leave was
granted to employees who had to quarantine and were not
able to report for duty. Hardship allowances were provided
to staff whose work exposed to high-risk hotel areas.

The coverage of the Group’s medical benefits includes not
only its employees but also the employees’ spouse or
children. In addition, the Company provides training
allowances for all work-related courses.
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HEALTH AND SAFETY

The Group places heavy emphasis on ensuring the health and
safety of all employees. For example, all property
management staff are required to wear safety boots, which
provide significant protection. We ensure well-stocked first
aid kits are placed on all floors in our office buildings. To
ensure awareness of occupational health and safety issues,
the Group arranges safety training for all employees. The
Group has also continued to optimise its work practices and
daily management, through measures such as anti-slip
engineering around the swimming pool and tree-care
monitoring in Fairview Court, to foster staff health and
safety. The aim is to create a safe, healthy and comfortable

working environment.

The Group emphasises safety when using equipment in
workplaces, communicating safety tips through training,
briefings and notices. EQuipment operating guidelines and
procedural training sessions are provided regularly to
continuously promote and enhance employees’ safety
awareness and good practices. We always aim for a target of
zero accidents and fatalities.

In addition, our property management business has obtained
ISO 45001 certification in recognition of our compliance with
occupational health and safety standards.

The COVID-19 pandemic broke out in 2020. As we were
highly concerned about the health risk the pandemic posed
not only to our staff but also to stakeholders in the Group's
operations, such as customers and vendors, the Group swiftly
responded by circulating clear reporting flow charts for our
entire staff to follow when facing different health risk

scenarios.
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The Group implemented the following measures accordingly

to fight against the pandemic in our offices and investment

properties:

Requiring staff to adhere to the Group’s office hygiene
requirements in response to COVID-19, including
wearing face masks and washing their hands more
frequently

Temperature checks are required before entering our
head office and investment properties

Providing face masks and other disinfectant products at
our head office and site offices for staff use

Assigning staff members to different shifts when
returning to work in the office to lower the risk of
spreading COVID-19

Upgrading the sneeze guard partitions in office areas

Installed more air purifiers in office areas

At the Group’s hotel, where our frontline staff members and

customers are exposed to a relatively higher infection risk:

Installation of infrared body temperature detection
system and biozone air purifier in different areas of the
hotel

Germagic disinfection coating applied to indoor public
areas of the hotel

Provision of hand sanitiser and face masks to hotel
guests and staff members

Provision of personal protective equipment to all staff
members on duty on guest floors

Engaged a recognised contractor to provide deep
cleaning and disinfection for confirmed-case guest
rooms

Provision of refresher training to staff every two weeks
to remind and update the procedures and safety
measures during work
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Educational materials on personal protection and
hygiene were also swiftly circulated to staff. For
example, educational materials on “Healthy
lifestyle under social distancing” were circulated
to help staff look after their health and
wellbeing. Training on selecting and using

disinfectant products and personal protective
equipment was also organised and reviewed
regularly. During the Reporting Period, One-
Eight-One Hotel & Serviced Residences has
obtained Anti-Epidemic Hygiene Measures Certification
issued by the Hong Kong Quality Assurance Agency.

The above measures not only looked after the health of our
staff but also the health of the Group’s stakeholders. The
Group will continue to optimise its work practices for the
sake of staff health and safety with the aim of creating a
safe, healthy and comfortable working environment. In the
Reporting Period, we had 85.5 lost days due to work injury
and have not had any work-related fatalities in the past
three years. Corresponding work safety training has been
delivered to staff to remind employees of good safety
practices.

For the year ended 31 December 2021, the Group has not
received any notice of non-compliance in relation to health
and safety laws and regulations. We strictly comply with
applicable laws and regulations such as the Occupational
Safety and Health Ordinance (Cap. 509), Employees’
Compensation Ordinance (Cap. 282) and Factories and
Industrial Undertakings Ordinance (Cap. 59) laws of Hong
Kong.
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DEVELOPMENT AND TRAINING

Human capital has always been the key to the Group’s
success. To enhance employees’ personal and career
development, a series of training programmes were
organised during the Reporting Period to ensure that staff
received adequate training in responding to their needs in
different positions and roles.

The training covered, among others, the below topics:
— Green procurement

— Lift modernisation

— Fire drills

— Renewable energy (solar PV systems)

— Working under adverse weather

— Occupational health and safety workshop

— Kitchen hygiene and food-handling

— Operation guidelines for designated hotel

Training is essential for us to continuously provide
professional services in responding to the needs of our
stakeholders. We are delighted to report that One-Eight-One
Hotel & Serviced Residences was awarded the Tripadvisor
2021 Travellers’ Choice award, recognising the hotel’s place
in the top 10% of listings on Tripadvisor. Chong Hing Bank
Centre has been awarded the Outstanding Security Services
— Industrial/Commercial Property Award from the Best
Security Services Awards 2020-2021 organised by the Hong
Kong Police Force.

The workforce trained during the Reporting Period:
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By gender By employment category
1451 e
Male 47% Senior level 32%
B BEE
Female 42% Middle level 55%
gy FREEAE
Entry level 42%
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2

The average training hours completed per employee during
the Reporting Period:

By gender By employment category
1451 {ERER
Male 3.26 Senior level 2.38
Bt EEE
Female 3.29 Middle level 3.34
geq i FREEAS
Entry level 3.39
EEET

New employees, especially those who meet and provide
services to our guests on the front line, were required to
attend an orientation training course on their first day of
work to familiarise themselves with the Group’s objectives,
culture and employee rules and regulations. In addition,
internal cross-training programmes were also provided for
staff. The training scope for the Reporting Period included
environmental management, customer service and technical
skills.

In November 2021, our property management department
organised a training session — Practical Training on Customer
Services — for our staff to enhance customer service
awareness and skills.

In March 2021, selected departments from One-Eight-One
Hotel & Serviced Residences, being a quarantine hotel,
performed a confirmed-case drill organised by the
Department of Health to enhance the response for handling
COVID-19 cases.

HES (LHEEEEAGRBETIZEU
RERFEZEHAS) RAREBLESM
ABIEIERIE » URABEAEBRNBER
XAEKR BT RA KRB o tE5h > FfITR
mESREAN SR EIFNRE - IWEH
BHEINEESEREEE - RRRH
R BT AE

“EBEC-F+—8B - YEXEEMFMA/E
THRMAR IR RBEFHEI BE
FE  UIREEF R ARG

—EB-FZR8 - FAREHEIE > One-
Eight-One i& /& & AR #5 20 (E £ B KB 5 &P
FIZ2INBEEE LS ERDER
B > LUnaaRE R E AR EES






-
[=]
©

1207 140d34 TYNNNY | QILIAIM INIWLISIANI ONIH ONOHD NI

ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

RIE-HERELGHRSSE

LABOUR STANDARDS

To prevent any risk of using child or forced labour,
appropriate candidate screening and age-checks controls are
implemented in our recruitment process to ensure that we
do not hire child labour in Hong Kong and the PRC. Working
hours are clearly stated in our employment contracts with
staff and we ensure that they are in compliance with the
applicable labour standards and regulations in Hong Kong
and the PRC.

During the Reporting Period, the Group had not hired any
child or forced labour, nor had it received any notice of non-
compliance in relation to any labour laws and regulations.

SUPPLY CHAIN MANAGEMENT

The Group aims to deliver top-quality services to the
customer, while expecting first-rate quality from our selected
suppliers. We require our suppliers and contractors to comply
with local laws and regulations, labour practices and health
and safety standards. We do not engage any company that
has, to the best of our knowledge, any past record of
questionable ESG practices. Suppliers’ quality will be regularly
evaluated by inspecting their quality certificates and, where
possible, by conducting supplier audits.

The Group takes into account the impact of our suppliers’
products on the environment and, where possible, favours
those who follow environmentally sound practices, such as
offering products with greater durability and greater energy
efficiency. Before procuring any materials or products, our
procurement staff examine the necessity of the product or
service to avoid any unnecessary consumption. During the
selection process, we take into account factors such as
product quality and safety. At the same time, emissions and
pollutants produced, including noise and waste materials at
all stages, are also among our criteria for supplier selection.
For example, our guest room tissue supplier is committed to
protecting the environment, and all flat fish used by the
hotel kitchen are farmed. For the sake of sustainability, we
consider alternatives when purchasing replacement products,
favouring those with greater durability and greater energy
efficiency. Priority is given to local suppliers in the hope of
promoting local economic development and reducing our
carbon footprint by limiting products that require long
shipping time. During the Reporting Period, over 95% of the
Group'’s suppliers were located in Hong Kong.
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PRODUCT RESPONSIBILITY

A document management system with multiple access
permissions was installed to improve and enhance data
protection and security to prevent information leakage. By
having different security levels, access to information is
restricted to only authorised users.

The Group emphasises the security of customers’ personal
data and supports a general policy of openness about how
we collect, use and disclose such information. To ensure data
privacy, all employees are required to fully comply with the
Personal Data (Privacy) Ordinance at all times when handling
customers’ personal data. In addition, we strongly
recommend that customers take time to carefully read our
Privacy Policy and Personal Information Collection Statement
when submitting their personal data and information.

As a hotel operator, the Group recognises the importance of
protecting our guests’ data. According to our Privacy Policy,
we ensure that only authorised employees are given
permission to access guests’ personal information. All
relevant documents containing sensitive commercial data are
used within the hotel property only.

To promote social integration and equal opportunities, the
Group is dedicated to providing barrier-free access and
facilities for people in need. At One-Eight-One Hotel &
Serviced Residences, we provide accessible rooms that are
designed for guests with disabilities or special needs.

For the year ended 31 December 2021, the Group has not
received any notice of non-compliance in relation to data
privacy laws and regulations in Hong Kong.
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ANTI-CORRUPTION

The Group has a zero-tolerance policy on bribery, corruption
and money-laundering activities and has set out clear
guidelines for directors and employees to adhere to. For
instance, to prevent corruption, a tendering procedure has
been adopted for all projects; all tender documents are kept
confidential and access is restricted to the relevant parties.
All directors and employees are required to strictly follow the
relevant laws and regulations. The Group sends internal
notices from time to time to ensure the directors and staff
are fully aware of any updates and are in compliance with
related laws and regulations.

For the year ended 31 December 2021, the Group has not
received any notice of non-compliance of the Group or an
employee with regard to corruption-related laws and
regulations.

GIVING BACK TO THE COMMUNITY

We are committed to support the community by
incorporating social participation and contribution in our
strategic development. We believe that this will nurture a
sound corporate culture and good practices within the
Group.

In the late 2021, we have paired up with the Aberdeen Kai-
fong Welfare Association Limited to provide disadvantaged
groups in the community with health and hygiene
protection. Although we were thrilled to organise such
charitable activities during the Reporting Period, we were
also well aware of the COVID-19-related health risks that our
staff and the relevant community may exposed to during
these activities. Therefore, to lower the risk, we temporarily
stopped organising charitable activities during the Reporting
Period. We look forward to resuming such activities in the
future once the effects of the pandemic have subsided to a
safe level.
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANACE
CONTENT INDEX

This report is prepared in accordance with the
“Environmental, Social and Governance Reporting Guide”
under Appendix 27 to the Rule Governing the Listing of
Securities on the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited. The
following table provides an overview on the general
disclosures and key performance indicators (“KPI") of various
aspects under each subject area, which are either cross-
referenced to the relevant chapters of the Review or
supplementing the Review with additional information.

IR - tEMERAERS
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EHBEAREEm—MRIKERRARER
BR THIIMERMERS2RZEH
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Description Reference Remarks
Hit 2% st
A. ENVIRONMENTAL
i)
Aspect A1: EMISSIONS
BEAT : B
General Disclosure Information on: Protecting the
(@)  the policies; and Environment
(b)  compliance with relevant laws and regulations that
have a significant impact on the issuer
relating to air and greenhouse gas emissions, discharges
into water and land, and generation of hazardous and
non-hazardous waste.
—fRiKE ERBERRAZEREAN  MARIMNES BEREEE FRERR
EYMMELSN
(A BER,R
b) BTFHETABEATZENEREIRRAGHNEL
KPI A1.1 The types of emissions and respective emissions data. Emissions
AR A R R o 713,/
KPI A1.2 Direct (Scope 1) and energy indirect (Scope 2) greenhouse  Emissions
gas emissions (in tonnes) and, where appropriate,
intensity (e.g. per unit of production volume, per facility).
RENIERA12 B (8E1) kicRR% (BE2) RERBHNE UEHE)  #H

& (B BE (IUSESEA « SIERMHE) o

KPI A1.3 Total hazardous waste produced (in tonnes) and, where
appropriate, intensity (e.g. per unit of production volume,
per facility).

RENIERAM 3 FELEERENEE (UNHE) k (MER) BE MUEE
BB BERMEH) ©

KPI A1.4 Total non-hazardous waste produced (in tonnes) and,
where appropriate, intensity (e.g. per unit of production
volume, per facility).

RENIERA4 FELCRERENEE (UWHE) Kk MER) BE MUEE
BB BERMH) ©

KPI A1.5 Description of emissions target(s) set and steps taken to
achieve them.

FRRAERIRIRALS AT LB B R R AEEEL B RATRER P8R o

KPI' A1.6 Description of how hazardous and non-hazardous wastes
are handled, and a description of reduction target(s) set
and steps taken to achieve them.
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Waste management
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Waste management
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Emissions
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Waste management
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Reference
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Remarks
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A. ENVIRONMENTAL (Continued)

B (8

Aspect A2: USE OF RESOURCES

BEA : EBRIER

General Disclosure

Policies on the efficient use of resources, including energy,
water and other raw materials.

Use of resources

—fRIKE BUERER (BERR  KREMERME) AEBER o BRER
KPI A2.1 Direct and/or indirect energy consumption by type (e.g. Use of resources —
electricity, gas or oil) in total (kWh in ‘000s) and intensity  energy saving
(e.g. per unit of production volume, per facility).
FRENIER A2 RERASMERR/SMEEEME - RAMBEEW  ERER ik
TETREFE) REE (MUSESE « BERMHE) °
KPI A2.2 Water consumption in total and intensity (e.g. per unitof  Use of resources —
production volume, per facility). water management
FRENIERA22 BEKERTE MNUSESE  BERMHE) BRER— KRER
KPI A2.3 Description of energy use efficiency target(s) set and steps  Use of resources —
taken to achieve them. energy saving
FRENIERAL3 WA UM RERNEERRAZIELERARNNS BRER — i
o
KPI A2.4 Description of whether there is any issue in sourcing Use of resources — We encounter no issue
water that is fit for purpose, water efficiency target(s) set ~ water management in sourcing water that is
and steps taken to achieve them. fit for our purpose.
RENIERA24 WEKRBRAKELTAREEAME  URFETINEKNEE BRER—KREE BAEENERKESE
RRAEIELERAMFRRNTEH o IR o
KPI A2.5 Total packaging material used for finished products (in N/A We do not generate
tonnes) and, if applicable, with reference to per unit significant packaging
produced. material waste in our
operations.
FRERIERALS N R aERNEE UEHE) Rk ER) 8LEE  TER BANEBLESREE
fifhE o WMEIBYEER o
Aspect A3: THE ENVIRONMENT AND NATURAL RESOURCES
EEA3  RERAAER
General Disclosure Policies on minimising the issuer's significant impacts on Protecting the
the environment and natural resources. Environment
—MRIKE REETABRERRAGREREAT BHHEE ° REIRIE
KPI A3.1 Description of the significant impacts of activities on the Protecting the
environment and natural resources and the actions taken ~ Environment
to manage them.
PRRERIRR A3 HREBEHHRERANREENEAZ ERERNEEEMH FERER

HENT -

Aspect A4 CLIMA TE CHANGE

General Dlsclosure

—MRiRE
KPI Ad.1
RRRARMIERALT

Policies on identification and mitigation of significant
climate-related issues which have impacted, and those
which may impact, the issuer.

A REHEER TR EHETAELF BNEARGERSE
ERIBER o

Description of the significant climate-related issues which
have impacted, and those which may impact, the issuer,
and the actions taken to manage them.

B BERAIEEHBTAELY ENEARBHEREE > &
FEH1TE

Climate change

FREM

Climate change

FREM




Description Reference Remarks
fiik 2 fhask
B. SOCIAL

HE

EMPLOYMENT AND LABOUR PRACTICES

ERRHIER

Aspect B1: EMPLOYMENT

JBEBI . fEfE

General Disclosure

—RiRE

KPI B1.1

R AR IERB11
KPI B1.2

RS iAIE1RB1.2

Information on:

(@)  the policies; and

(b)  compliance with relevant laws and regulations that
have a significant impact on the issuer

relating to compensation and dismissal, recruitment and

promotion, working hours, rest periods, equal

opportunity, diversity, anti-discrimination, and other

benefits and welfare.

BREM AR  BRERSH « TIRRE - R TEHE

7t RESRUKREMFEREF :

(A BR R

) BFHETABEARENEMEIERRBINER -

Total workforce by gender, employment type (for

example, full- or part- time), age group and geographical

region.

iR~ BEEE (2R - FRAFREEE S HE

SECH

Employee turnover rate by gender, age group and

geographical region.

Bith  FRERNRMBE DHEERKLLE -

Recruitment and
employment

EERER

Recruitment and
employment

EERER

Recruitment and
employment

EERER

Aspect B2: HEALTH AND SAFETY

[EEB? | BEEZS

General Disclosure

—RIRE
KPI B2.1
RS IE1EB2.1
KPI B2.2
RS AEIE1E 2.2
KPI B2.3
R MIE1EB2.3

Information on:

(@)  the policies; and

(b)  compliance with relevant laws and regulations that
have a significant impact on the issuer

relating to providing a safe working environment and

protecting employees from occupational hazards.

Rt THRRERFEESBREHAEREMN

(A BR R

) BFHETABEARENHEMERRRBINEL -

Number and rate of work-related fatalities occurred in

each of the past three years including the reporting year.

BEZF (BREERER) BERITHNASRILE

Lost days due to work injury.

EIEELTIERE -

Description of occupational health and safety measures

adopted, and how they are implemented and monitored.

HRFTRAR B R AL 21 0 URBRNTRERRE

Health and Safety

fepane

Health and Safety

fRERE%e
Health and Safety
fRERE%e
Health and Safety

fepane
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

RIE-HERELGHRSSE

Description
fiid

Reference

z

B. SOCIAL (Continued)
e (@
EMPLOYMENT AND LABOUR PRACTICES (Continued)
ERREIER (@)

Aspect B3: DEVELOPMENT AND TRAINING

[EEB3 : #ERIE

General Disclosure

Policies on improving employees’ knowledge and skills for
discharging duties at work. Description of training
activities.

Development and
training

—fRIKE AR EEBITTIFB BN AR AENEER - liEaE  ZRRIE
o

KPI B3.1 The percentage of employees trained by gender and Development and
employee category (e.g. senior management, middle training
management).

RENIER 3.1 BN RERER MSRERE  PREERE) ANNTE ZERRE
A7

KPI B3.2 The average training hours completed per employee by Development and
gender and employee category. training

RENIE1R83.2 BURNRESERDD  BRESTHRIINTIIRY o BELEE]

Aspect B4: LABOUR STANDARDS

BB & THE

General Disclosure Information on: Labour Standards
(@)  the policies; and
(b)  compliance with relevant laws and regulations that

have a significant impact on the issuer

relating to preventing child and forced labour.

—fRiKE AR BT HEGHTH % T#8|
(A BRR
) BFHETABEARENEMEERRBINER -

KPI B4.1 Description of measures to review employment practices Labour Standards
to avoid child and forced labour.

ARG NIEIR B Hit i R RGN R E T RAHST - % T#8|

KPI B4.2 Description of steps taken to eliminate such practices Labour Standards
when discovered.

ARG NIE1R84.2 WA EERERFERE AR RBRARRAS R - % T8



Description Reference Remarks
ik S fist
B. SOCIAL (Continued)
#HE (4@
OPERATING PRACTICES
ZiERG
Aspect B5: SUPPLY CHAIN MANAGEMENT
[BEBS : (HEEETE
General Disclosure Policies on managing environmental and social risks of Supply chain
the supply chain. management
—fRIKE BERMREENIRIE R G RIRECR o HrEREE
KPI B5.1 Number of suppliers by geographical region. Supply chain
management
ARENIER 851 e PHMHEHHE fHiEsREE
KPI B5.2 Description of practices relating to engaging suppliers, Supply chain
number of suppliers where the practices are being management
implemented, and how they are implemented and
monitored.
RENIE1R85.2 WEMERHEENES > nERTEMBMMNMERY  (HEEEE
B URBEREFNMTRERRE
KPI B5.3 Description of practices used to identify environmental Supply chain
and social risks along the supply chain, and how they are  management
implemented and monitored.
RENIER853 Wil AR MRS ERMNRE A S RRNES > Uk HEEERE
HERTRERERE
KPI B5.4 Description of practices used to promote environmentally  Supply chain
preferable products and services when selecting suppliers, management
and how they are implemented and monitored.
FRENIERE54 W TREMEERREESBRRERRBRHENES > URkE  HEEERE

A TRERRE

Aspect B6: PRODUCT RESPONSIBILITY

JEEB6 | EREL

General Disclosure

—RIRE
KPI B6.1
RR SRR A1 B.1
KPI B6.2
SR 51ZB6.2
KPI B6.3
B IEIER6.3

Information on:

(@)  the policies; and

(b)  compliance with relevant laws and regulations that
have a significant impact on the issuer

relating to health and safety, advertising, labelling and

privacy matters relating to products and services provided

and methods of redress.

Bl ELANRBIRRERZ2 « &S  RERLESFE

DR AR AR

@ B R

) BFHETABEARENEMEIERABINEL -

Percentage of total products sold or shipped subject to

recalls for safety and health reasons.

EENEERERAHTRZ 2 AERERMARNKNB AL -

Number of products and service related complaints
received and how they are dealt with.

BRERRERRRBNRABEURESSE

Description of practices relating to observing and
protecting intellectual property rights.
Ht R E R R A RAVER

Product responsibility

N/A
gyl

N/A

TER

N/A

There were no recalls
concerning the provision
REBTHRALBRIE
s /RE o

There were no material
complaints received during the
reporting period.
REBTHRLBRIE
PR

Intellectual property rights are
immaterial the Group
BIMNEBHRREN S
ERIREATE
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Description Reference Remarks
Hidt 2% st
B. SOCIAL (Continued)
#HE ()
OPERATING PRACTICES (Continued)
EERG (R)
Aspect B6: PRODUCT RESPONSIBILITY (Continued)
EEBS : EREE (%)
KPI B6.4 Description of quality assurance process and recall N/A Recall procedures are not
procedures. relevant to our operations.
RENIE1RB0.4 A E BT RRRERLKIER o TEH BREEF AR MERIL
RENERTE -
KPI B6.5 Description of consumer data protection and privacy Product Responsibility
policies, and how they are implemented and monitored.
RSB RIE1R B6.5 B EEERRERMRBHE  URERMNTRER L EREE

Aspect B7: ANTI-CORRUPTION

BEB7 | RET

General Disclosure

Information on:

(@)  the policies; and

(b)  compliance with relevant laws and regulations that
have a significant impact on the issuer

relating to bribery, extortion, fraud and money

Anti-corruption

laundering.

—fRIKE BRPLLER « R REFRTREN k&3
(A BR R
) BFHETABEARENEMERRRBINER -

KPI B7.1 Number of concluded legal cases regarding corrupt Anti-corruption
practices brought against the issuer or its employees
during the reporting period and the outcomes of the
cases.

RENIERBT.1 RERBAHZTASHESRILBEENESHARMEN RES
YERAER °

KPI B7.2 Description of preventive measures and whistle-blowing Anti-corruption
procedures, and how they are implemented and
monitored.

FRSRERIEIRB7.2 WP R B RER  URERMBITRER A% k&3

KPI B7.3 Description of anti-corruption training provided to Anti-corruption
directors and staff.

RS AENIRIRBT 3 HimESERE TRMUNR &S R&5

COMMUNITY

#HE

Aspect B8: COMMUNITY INVESTMENT

[BERS : HERE

General Disclosure Policies on community engagement to understand the Giving back to the
needs of the communities where the issuer operates and community
to ensure its activities take into consideration the
communities’ interests.

—fRiKE BRLHESERTREEMTHERENRFEXHEHE DEHE
ZRHEHEMBE °

KPI B8.1 Focus areas of contribution (e.g. education, environmental  Giving back to the
concerns, labour needs, health, culture, sport). community

RENIE1R88.1 EIEMERE NEE BREFE - SIEXR BRIt EHEHE
=)

KPI B8.2 Resources contributed (e.g. money or time) to the focus Giving back to the
area. community

RENIE1R88.2 EEIRRMBHAER WEEARR) o EIEEHE




CORPORATE INFORMATION ABE&#K

As at 10 March 2022 R=E-—&=F+H

BOARD OF DIRECTORS
EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS
Mr. Liu Lit Chi

(Chairman, Managing Director and Chief Executive Officer)
Mr. Liu Kam Fai, Winston

(Deputy Managing Director)
Mr. Lee Wai Hung

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR

Mr. Kho Eng Tjoan, Christopher, BEs, M. Arch, HKIA, RIBA, ARAIA, MRAIC,
Assoc. AIA, Registered Architect, A.P. (Architect), MHKIoD

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS
Dr. Cheng Mo Chi, Moses, GaMm, GBS, OBE, LLB (HK), J.P.

Mr. Au Kam Yuen, Arthur

Dr. Ma Hung Ming, John, rhp, 8ss, J.,.

Mr. Cheng Yuk WO, Msc(Econ), BA(Hons), CPA (Canada),
CA, FCA, FCPA, CPA (Practising)

Mr. Tong Tsun Sum, Eric, cA(Aust), CPA (Practising), CFE

COMPANY SECRETARY
Mr. Lee Wai Hung

EFg
WiTESR
BElERE
(F/E - EFELERITHAEE)
BEiERE
(BIE FAEASEE)
FRESLE
ERITES
FFER R ST BES, M. Arch, HKIA, RIBA, ARAIA, MRAIC,
Assoc. AlA, Registered Architect, A.P. (Architect), MHKIoD
B EMITES
BRRE 18t Gam, GBS, OBE, LLB (HK), J.P.
BERESTE
ETEE81E L prp, 8BS, J.P.
ERERAN S 4 Msc(Econ), BA(Hons), CPA (Canada),
CA, FCA, FCPA, CPA (Practising)
BRI caust), CPA (Practising), CFE
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CORPORATE INFORMATION A& &K

As at 10 March 2022 R=E-—#=A+H
AUDIT COMMITTEE

Mr. Cheng Yuk Wo (Chairman)
Dr. Cheng Mo Chi, Moses

Mr. Au Kam Yuen, Arthur

Mr. Tong Tsun Sum, Eric

Mr. Lee Wai Hung (Secretary)

NOMINATION COMMITTEE
Mr. Liu Lit Chi (Chairman)

Mr. Kho Eng Tjoan, Christopher
Mr. Cheng Yuk Wo

Mr. Au Kam Yuen, Arthur

Dr. Ma Hung Ming, John

Mr. Tong Tsun Sum, Eric

Mr. Lee Wai Hung (Secretary)

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE
Dr. Cheng Mo Chi, Moses (Chairman)

Mr. Kho Eng Tjoan, Christopher
Dr. Ma Hung Ming, John
Mr. Cheng Yuk Wo

Ms. Tin Siu Kuen (Secretary)

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE COMMITTEE
Mr. Liu Kam Fai, Winston (Chairman)

Mr. Au Kam Yuen, Arthur
Dr. Ma Hung Ming, John
Mr. Lee Wai Hung

EXECUTIVE MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE
Mr. Liu Lit Chi (Chairman)

Mr. Liu Kam Fai, Winston

Mr. Lee Wai Hung

BEREAE
BERM ST (Z/F)
BREB/L

& fRRSTE
BEERKE
FRIESE (HE)
REREAE®
BRNESRE (F)
BERA S E
&iRRTE
BRHEL
EEREE
FRIBRE (HE)
FHESE
BWREEL (Z/E)
BHREEtL
ERERAN ok
RMER T (F)
T¥XELREEY
BEEERE (2F)
BRI L
FREERE
WTEEZRE
BRNE L (£/F)
FREERE



As at 10 March 2022 R=E-—&=F+H

SENIOR MANAGEMENT
DEPARTMENT HEADS

Mr. Luk Chi Chung

Ms. Eva Liu

Mr. Jan Kwok Wai, Kim

Ms. Tin Siu Kuen
Mr. Wu Ka Wan

Ms. Lau Wan Ching

Mr. Liu Kwun Bo, Darryl

Mr. Liu Chak Hung, Adrian

Mr. Liu Kwun Hung, Tiger

Mr. Soo Koon Chau

Mr. Tong Man Kit

Ms. Cheung Wing Yee,
Catherine

Head of Finance Management
and Information Technology

Head of Property Development

Head of Projects and Facilities
Management

Head of Human Resources
Head of Property Management

Head of Leasing and Asset
Management

Director, The Rockpool Project
(Team Lead) & Hospitality
Management (F&B
Team Lead)

Director, Leasing Management
& Hospitality Management
(Operation)

Director, Mainland China &
Overseas Projects

Hotel Manager (One-Eight-One
Hotel & Serviced Residences)

Financial Controller
(One-Eight-One Hotel &
Serviced Residences)

Director of Sales & Marketing
(One-Eight-One Hotel &
Serviced Residences)

RAREEAS

WAIEE
PEEIRLE

BEELL

ERRLE

BEMR L

EEgEE

BR N ST E

X R E

AR LT

M EE R EARHRER
£

MEERBEE

HERREEEEE

ANERBEE
MEBETEE

HEHENEEEENEE

e — AEmIER
(XB) RBIEER
(BREBEE)

e — HBEER
BIEEE (EE)

4B — hEIRM A
SYMNER

BG4S (One-Eight-One
BIERARFEETE)

BA#54285 (One-Eight-One
BIERARFEEE)

HE R EE
(One-Eight-One
BIERRFBEE)
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CORPORATE INFORMATION A& &K

As at 10 March 2022 R=E-—&=F+H

MANAGERS gL
BE#HEL Tt ik EER R

Ms. Cavior Liu Senior Operation Manager

ERIERE SRREIEE

Mr. Tam King Hung, Peter  Senior Project Manager

Ms. Wong Yuk Man Senior Accounting Manager EFEHZE BSRYHAKIE

Ms. Cheng Suet Kiu Manager of Finance BEBUL HMBEERENRELEL
Management and EG L
Information Technology

Mr. Tsang Wai Ka, Ricky Maintenance Manager 2EmiLE HEBARIE

Mr. Leung Kin Pong Project Manager REMTE  REAKHE

Ms. Cheung Ka Yan, Carol ~ Human Resources Manager RERZLE  ASNERDPKIE
(One-Eight-One Hotel & (ONE-EIGHT-ONE
Serviced Residences) BIE KRRFEEE)

SOLICITORS 2 6m

Deacons BV REDT

Gallant BRI RN B FEFR

P.C. Woo & Co. EEEXELIES S0

AUDITOR =D

-
N
o
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Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu
Registered Public Interest Entity Auditors

BANKERS
Bangkok Bank Public Company Limited

Chong Hing Bank Limited

Credit Suisse AG Hong Kong Branch
Dah Sing Bank, Limited

DBS Bank (Hong Kong) Limited
Hang Seng Bank Limited

MUFG Bank, Limited

Nanyang Commercial Bank, Limited

OCBC Wing Hang Bank Limited

Standard Chartered Bank (Hong Kong) Limited

The Hongkong and Shanghai Banking Corporation Limited

United Overseas Bank Limited

125h « BA=MRS G5tEMIT
SR F 2 B RE1Z 2T

iR1T

BRIRIT

RIERTTARAR

Wt EERITROBRABDEEDTT
RHIRITARAF

ERIRTT (FB) BRAF
1BERITERAT

MR EH=F URIRITEBDT
FFEERITAERAR
EB/BXZRITERAT
BITIRTT (B8) ARARE

BB LBESRITARAF
ARERTARAT



As at 10 March 2022 RZEZZ£=F+H
REGISTERED OFFICE

23rd Floor Chong Hing Bank Centre

24 Des Voeux Road Central

Hong Kong

Tel: (852) 2983 7777 Fax: (852) 2983 7723

Email: info@Ichi.com.hk

GUANGZHOU OFFICE
18A Office Tower A

339 Huan Shi Dong Road

Yue Xiu District

Guangzhou, PRC

Tel: (8620) 8375 8993 Fax: (8620) 8375 8071

Email: guangzhou@Ichi.com.cn

SHANGHAI OFFICE
Room 3105, Chong Hing Finance Center

288 Nanjing Road West
Shanghai, PRC
Tel: (8621) 6359 1000 Fax: (8621) 6327 6299

Email: shanghai@Ichi.com.cn

FOSHAN NANHAI OFFICE
First Phase, The Grand Riviera

1 Guilong Road

Luocun Social Management Office, Shishan Town
Nanhai District, Foshan

Guangdong Province, PRC

Tel: (86757) 6386 0888 Fax: (86757) 6386 2218

Email: foshan@Ichi.com.cn

FOSHAN SANSHUI OFFICE
Room 1638-1639, Block 3, Sanshui Square

9 Zhangbian Road, Xi Nan Street
Sanshui District, Foshan
Guandong Province, PRC

Tel: (86757) 8778 6929

Email: foshan@Ichi.com.cn

SEMSE R

BB

BEHE T — IR
BIERITRL =+ =18

E:E 1 (852) 29837777 fEH : (852) 2983 7723

EEER . info@Ichi.com.hk

BENMRE
FREE N
HE&
IRHRE==N5%
AHIE18AE

E:E : (8620) 83758993 fHH : (8620) 8375 8071

B : guangzhou@Ichi.com.cn

LBMESEE
HhE s

R PEEE Z/\J\5%
BIEERAC3105F

EiE 1 (8621) 6359 1000 fFE : (8621) 6327 6299
BEEL : shanghai@lchi.com.cn

R EENEE

PEERE

HLHEEE
BLREN T S EIRE R EMEL
BER—E

RPN IEE—HA

B3% 1 (86757) 6386 0888 {HE : (86757) 6386 2218

B EP : foshan@Ichi.com.cn

BL=KEMSEEE

PEERE
HLT=KE
AR fTiERIE R 95k

=7KE#% 3 1638-1639
3% . (86757) 8778 6929

EEHL © foshan@Ichi.com.cn
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

EFREREEAEGN

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

MR. LIU LIT CHI

aged 82, is the Chairman of the Board of the Company since
9 August 2017. Mr. Liu has been serving as the Managing
Director and Chief Executive Officer of the Company since 26
February 2014. Mr. Liu has been an Executive Director of the
Company since its incorporation in 1970. Mr. Liu also serves
as the Chairman of Executive Management Committee and
Nomination Committee as well as a director of a number of
subsidiaries of the Company. Mr. Liu, who was educated in
Hong Kong and the United Kingdom, is also a director of a
number of other companies in Hong Kong and elsewhere.
Save as disclosed above, Mr. Liu did not hold any directorship
in any other public listed companies in the previous three
years. Mr. Liu is the uncle of Mr. Liu Kam Fai, Winston.

MR. LIU KAM FAI, WINSTON

BA., MSc.

aged 55, was appointed an Executive Director of the
Company since 1997. He was re-designated as the Deputy
Managing Director of the Company in August 2008. Mr. Liu
holds a Master degree in Economics from the University of
London, specialising in Finance and Macro Economic Policy.
Mr. Liu oversees the Company'’s strategic development,
project implementation and business operations. Mr. Liu also
served as the Chairman of the Corporate Governance
Committee, a member of the Executive Management
Committee as well as director of a number of subsidiaries of
the Company. Save as disclosed above, Mr. Liu did not hold
any directorship in any other public listed companies in the
last three years. Mr. Liu is a nephew of Mr. Liu Lit Chi.

BiTESR

BEAERE

N+ BEZE—tFENBNBIEH
EXRAFNEETGEFE - AR BRER
“E-NMEZRZHSAHEHEALXA
SEFEKERITRERE  B—NLtT
FRREIRILEERATRERNITES °
BRETEHERARTDRNITEEZETR
REZEGIFEURETHEBATZE
E BREEEEREEEZHE R
AZEEBRREMMERT ZESE o IR
FIEEEN > RBE=FR > BE4E
WARBEEAEM EHARABREME
AEZHS BELERESREEEZMN
A o

EiExE

BA., MSc.

E+Em B—AAtFEEZEAS
ATBITESR RZTEN\F/\AEE
EZEATATREFREE - BRE
FERAKRBEBRRLTSEM > TEHM
BREGKERR BREREEERRN
Bl REREE - HEWIT Uk BEKE
B BRERBRTHELATNEEE
AEEEZER WITEEZETZRE
URETHBABSZES - B LAIKE
EH > RBE=FR > BEXELRAE
EREM LT ARATBEEAESH
7o thBEINEREZER ©



EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS (CONTINUED)
MR. LEE WAI HUNG
LLB, FCCA, FCPA (Practising), ATIHK, MBA, PgD in CRE

aged 59, is an Executive Director and Company Secretary of
the Company. Mr. Lee is also serving as a member of
Corporate Governance Committee and Executive
Management Committee as well as a director of a number of
subsidiaries of the Company. Mr. Lee holds a Bachelor of Law
degree, a Master of Business Administration degree and
Postgraduate Diploma in Construction and Real Estate. He is
also a fellow of Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants (Practising) and a fellow member of the
Association of Chartered Certified Accountants. Before
joining the Company, Mr. Lee had worked in an international
accounting firm for over six years. Mr. Lee has over thirty
years of experience in corporate finance and accounting. Mr.
Lee joined the Company in 1992 and was appointed as
director in 1994. Mr. Lee is primarily responsible for the
Company's finance and secretarial matters. Save as disclosed
above, Mr. Lee did not hold any directorship in any other
public listed companies in the last three years.

BITEE (&)

FRERELE

LLB, FCCA, FCPA (Practising), ATIHK, MBA, PgD
in CRE

AN AEABRTESTRADW
B FRETACEEREZETRNT
EEZEEZEUKRNERATETH
BRABIZESR - FREWEREEBM
THERRTEUKEEREHESR
BXE - TAERGMATRERF
AAREHMAGEREE - FThER
MARRBREEREKRES S ABIE
BENE - FEREHABB=TFME
REsEE > R—ANZFMARAF
TR—NWNWOFEZEAEE - FThE
FTERBRREAREUBRMEST -
PREMMBEESI RBE=ZFR > Tk
FIREEEMEMETARATEAE
EIERRE o
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

EFREREEAEGN

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR

MR. KHO ENG TJOAN, CHRISTOPHER

BES, M. Arch, HKIA, RIBA, ARAIA, MRAIC, Assoc. AIA, Registered Architect,
A.P. (Architect), MHKIoD

aged 59, served as Non-executive Director of the Company
since May 2011 and he is now serving as a member of
Remuneration Committee and Nomination Committee of the
Company. Mr. Kho holds a Bachelor of Environmental Studies
degree on Urban and Regional Planning and a Master of
Architecture degree. He is an Authorized Person under the
Buildings Ordinance, a Registered Architect under the
Architects Registration Ordinance, a member of the Hong
Kong Institute of Architects, a corporate member of Royal
Institute of British Architects, an associate member of Royal
Australian Institute of Architects, a member of Royal
Architectural Institute of Canada and an associate member of
American Institute of Architects. Mr. Kho was an Executive
Committee of the University of Waterloo Alumni Association
and a Committee Member of the University of Manitoba
Alumni Association from 1989 to 1990. During the year from
1997 to 2003, he was a Director and Council Member of the
Wah Yan (Hong Kong) Past Students Association Limited. Mr.
Kho is also a Committee Member of the Professional
Committee of the Hong Kong Federation of Fujian
Associations since 2009. Furthermore, Mr. Kho is appointed
as an Executive Committee Member of Hong Kong Fukien
Chamber of Commerce and Director of Hong Kong Fukien
Chamber of Commerce Education Fund Limited in 2017. Save
as disclosed above, Mr. Kho did not hold any directorship in
any other public listed companies in the last three years.

FERITESR

FHEREE

BES, M. Arch, HKIA, RIBA, ARAIA, MRAIC, Assoc.
AIA, Registered Architect, A.P. (Architect), MHKIoD
At+hm BZE——FHAEHES
ARBFEHIITESTRMNRET AT AT
HWNEEERIRREZEEEERE - 5FRE
BEERTREAARSIEMUKRERAEL
B - thZEZEMEG T ZRITAL (B
SLEM) T i SEEMEE ARG T 2 s M2 51
il ERREMBEEE > BHERE
EMPEEE > RNEREEMEES
B MEREXRERMEEFETENER
BEMBEES - FEREBNR—NAN\R
FE-ANZTFEH[BHEMNZERBEE
RERKRERITEZERMERERHLE
RERREZE TR—AWNEtEEZ
R - FHEEHEEBECELEE
EREE -HFEREB_ZETNEFEEE
EEBREHEMEEEALTZEES
Bo tbsh FERER_E—LFEEE
AR RENEREGESAEAEER
EHEEEERATDVES - R LtIKE
B RIBE=FA > FRELREE
EREMETARABTEEERNESRH
o



INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

DR. CHENG MO CHI, MOSES

GBM, GBS, OBE, LLB (HK), J.P.

aged 72, was appointed as an Independent Non-executive
Director of the Company in August 1999 and he is now
serving as the Chairman of the Remuneration Committee
and a member of the Audit Committee of the Company. Dr.
Cheng is a practising solicitor and the Consultant of Messrs.
P.C. Woo & Co. after serving as its Senior Partner from 1994
to 2015. Dr. Cheng was a member of the Legislative Council
of Hong Kong and also the Chairman of the Insurance
Authority. He is the Founder Chairman of the Hong Kong
Institute of Directors of which he is now the Honorary
President and Chairman Emeritus. He was also the President
of International Alliance of Practising Lawyers. In addition to
his directorship in the Company, Dr. Cheng currently holds
directorships in China Mobile Limited, China Resources Beer
(Holdings) Company Limited, The Hong Kong and China Gas
Company Limited, K. Wah International Holdings Limited,
Guangdong Investment Limited, Tian An China Investments
Company Limited and Towngas Smart Energy Company
Limited (formerly known as Towngas China Company
Limited), all being public listed companies in Hong Kong. Dr.
Cheng'’s other directorship in public listed companies in the
last three years includes Kader Holdings Company Limited.
Save as disclosed above, Dr. Cheng did not hold any
directorship, whether in Hong Kong or overseas, in any other
public listed companies in the last three years.
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

EFREREEAEGN

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS
(CONTINUED)

MR. AU KAM YUEN, ARTHUR

aged 82, was appointed an Independent Non-executive
Director of the Company on 3 December 2012 and he also
serves as a member of the Audit Committee, Nomination
Committee and Corporate Governance Committee of the
Company. Mr. Au studied Law in Sydney and London
respectively. He was admitted as a solicitor in England in
1975 and in Hong Kong in 1976. He is a sole proprietor of
Arthur Au & Co., a firm of solicitors established since 1979.
Mr. Au is a Notary Public and was a member of the Notary
Public Disciplinary Tribunal Panel. He is also a School
Management Committee Member of the Clementi Secondary
School. He now serves as legal adviser to the Association of
Hong Kong Nursing Staff (previously named as the
Association of Government Nursing Staff) and The New
Territories North District Manufacturers Association of Hong
Kong Limited. Mr. Au is an active Rotarian, he was a District
Governor of Rotary International District 3450 (Hong Kong/
Macao/Mongolia) in 1990-1991. Save as disclosed above, Mr.
Au did not hold any directorship in any other public listed
company in the last three years.
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INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS
(CONTINUED)

DR. MA HUNG MING, JOHN

PhD, BBS, J.P.

aged 55, was appointed an Independent Non-executive
Director of the Company on 3 December 2012 and he is
serving as a member of the Remuneration Committee,
Nomination Committee and Corporate Governance
Committee of the Company. Dr. Ma is currently the Vice
Chairman of Carrianna Group Holdings Company Limited, a
public company listed on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited. He has extensive experience in the catering industry,
as well as property management and development. He was
awarded the Bronze Bauhinia Star (BBS) from The
Government of the Hong Kong Special Administrative Region
in 2003 and a Honorary Doctorate of Philosophy by Morrison
University in 2004. As for the community service, Dr. Ma was
the Chairman of Tung Wah Group of Hospitals for the year
2002. He is a member of Tung Wah Group of Hospitals
Advisory Board, the Standing Committee of Shenzhen
Committee of Chinese People’s Political Consultative
Conference and the Chief President of Hong Kong Chamber
of Commerce, Qianhai. He also serves as the Vice Chairman
of Federation of Hong Kong Guangdong Community
Organisations, Vice President of Hong Kong Chiu Chow
Chamber of Commerce and the Executive Director of China
Overseas Friendship Association. On 1 July 2015, Dr. Ma was
appointed to Justices of the Peace by The Government of the
Hong Kong Special Administrative Region. Save as disclosed
above, Dr. Ma did not hold any directorship in any other
public listed companies in the last three years.
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

EFREREEAEGN

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS
(CONTINUED)

MR. CHENG YUK WO

Misc (Econ), BA (Hons), CPA (Canada), CA, FCA, FCPA, CPA (Practising)

aged 61, was appointed as Independent Non-executive
Director of the Company on 7 March 2014 and he is now
serving as the Chairman of the Audit Committee and a
member of the Remuneration Committee and Nomination
Committee of the Company. Mr. Cheng obtained a Master of
Science (Economics) degree in Accounting and Finance from
London School of Economics, England and a Bachelor of Arts
(Honours) degree in Accounting from University of Kent,
England. He is a Fellow of the Institute of Chartered
Accountants in England and Wales, the Hong Kong Institute
of Certified Public Accountants, the Chartered Professional
Accountants of Canada and the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of Ontario, Canada. Mr. Cheng has over 20
years' of expertise in accounting, finance and corporate
advisory services. Mr. Cheng is currently an Independent Non-
Executive Director of Chia Tai Enterprises International
Limited, CSI Properties Limited, CPMC Holdings Limited, Top
Spring International Holdings Limited, Miricor Enterprises
Holdings Limited, Somerley Capital Holdings Limited,
Kidsland International Holdings Limited and China Renewal
Energy Investment Limited (appointed on 1 January 2022), all
of the abovementioned companies are listed on the Stock
Exchange. Mr. Cheng was also an Independent Non-executive
Director of Chong Hing Bank Limited, HKC (Holdings) Limited
and C.P. Pokphand Co. Limited, companies formerly listed on
the Stock Exchange which were privatised on 30 September
2021, 9 June 2021 and 18 January 2022 respectively. Save as
disclosed above, Mr. Cheng has not held any directorship in
any other public companies the securities of which are listed
on any securities market in Hong Kong or overseas in the last
three years.
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INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS
(CONTINUED)

MR. TONG TSUN SUM, ERIC

CA (Aust), CPA (Practising), CFE

aged 51, was appointed as an Independent Non-executive
Director and a member of the audit and the nomination
committee of the Company in March 2018. He obtained a
Bachelor of Economics from University of Sydney, Australia, a
Master of Commerce in Professional Accounting from
Macquarie University, Australia. He is a member of CPA
Australia, Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants and Institute of Chartered Accountants Australia
and New Zealand. He is also a member of The Institute of
Chartered Secretaries and Administrators, the Governance
Institute of Australia and the Association of Certified Fraud
Examiners. Save as disclosed above, Mr. Tong did not hold
any directorship in any other public listed company in the last
three years.
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

EFREREEAEGN

SENIOR MANAGEMENT

MR. LUK CHI CHUNG

FCCA, CPA (Practising), MAEB

aged 54, Head of Finance Management and Information
Technology. Mr. Luk is a professional accountant, holding
Master of Arts Degree in Electronic Business and has over
thirty years of experience in finance and accounting. Mr. Luk
joined the Company in 1995 and is in charge of Finance
Management and Information Technology Department.

MS. EVA LIV
MA (Cantab), DipArch (Kingston), MA (City), ARB (UK), RIBA

aged 58, Head of Property Development. Ms. Liu is a
Chartered Architect (UK), holding Master of Arts Degrees, in
Architecture from the University of Cambridge, and Property
Valuation And Law from the City University of London. She
was in architectural practice in England before joining the
Company in 1999. She is the sister of Mr. Liu Kam Fai,
Winston.

MR. JAN KWOK WAI, KiM

BEng (Civil), CEng, MICE

aged 53, Head of Projects and Facilities Management. Mr. Jan
joined the Company in 2008. Mr. Jan is a professional
engineer with over twenty years of construction and project
management experience representing Clients, Consultants
and Contractors on both private sector and government
funded projects in China, Hong Kong and Macau.

MS. TIN SIU KUEN

aged 55, Head of Human Resources. Ms. Tin holds a Master
Degree in Human Resources Management of Macquarie
University, Australia and has over twenty years of experience
in human resources management in the banking sector. Ms.
Tin joined the Company in 2018.

MR. WU KA WAN

aged 53, Head of Property Management. Mr. Wu holds a
Master Degree in Housing Management of The University of
Hong Kong and has almost thirty years of experience in
property management. Mr. Wu has joined the Company in
2020.
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SENIOR MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)

MS. LAU WAN CHING

PgD in FM & RE, MRICS

aged 56, Head of Leasing and Asset Management. Ms. Lau is
a professional surveyor, holding Postgraduate Diploma in
Facilities Management and in Real Estate. She is also a
professional member of Royal Institution of Chartered
Surveyors. Ms. Lau joined the Company in 2021 and has thirty
years of experience in asset management, leasing/marketing
and portfolio management of real estate in Mainland China,
Hong Kong and regional markets. She has handled numerous
of large scale mixed-use property development projects for
HK listed property developers and international property
funds in Shanghai, Beijing, Shenzhen and Hong Kong. In
addition, Ms. Lau has extensive experience in portfolio and
property management of investment properties.

MR. LIU KWUN BO, DARRYL

aged 29, Director, The Rockpool Project (Team Lead) and
Hospitality Management (F&B Team Lead). Mr. Liu holds a
BBA in Business Management from Hult International
Business School, London . Mr. Liu joined the Company in
2016. He is a grandson of Mr. Liu Lit Chi.

MR. LIU CHAK HUNG, ADRIAN

aged 27, Director, Leasing Management and Hospitality
Management (Operation). Mr. Liu, who was educated in
Canada and the United Kingdom, joined the Company in
2016. He is a grandson of Mr. Liu Lit Chi.

MR. LIU KWUN HUNG, TIGER

aged 24, Director, Mainland China and Overseas Projects. Mr.
Liu holds a Bachelor of Science degree with First Class
Honours in Mathematics with Business Management from
Queen Mary University of London. Mr. Liu joined the
Company in 2019. He is a grandson of Mr. Liu Lit Chi.
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

EFREREEAEGN

SENIOR MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)

MR. SOO KOON CHAU

aged 47, Hotel Manager of One-Eight-One Hotel & Serviced
Residences. Mr. Soo joined the company in 2020. Mr. Soo
attained his professional management diploma from Royal
Melbourne Institute of Technology, Australia.

Before joining the Company, Mr. Soo had nearly 30 years of
hospitality and opening team experiences in different luxury
hotels groups including Starwood (now Marriott
International), Swire, Mandarin Oriental, The Ritz Carlton,
Conrad, InterContinental, Lanson Place and K11 ARTUS.

In cities of Cheltemham (UK), Shanghai, Beijing, Chengdu,
Singapore, Kuala Lumpur and Hong Kong. Mr. Soo holds in
him a passion in creating unforgettable service experience to
guests.

MR. TONG MAN KIT

FCCA, CPA, ACMA, MSc

aged 52, Financial Controller of One-Eight-One Hotel &
Serviced Residences.

Mr. Tong is a professional accountant, holding a Master of
Science Degree in Accountancy and has over twenty-seven
years of experience in finance and accounting.

Mr. Tong joined the Company in 2020 and is in charge of
Accounts, Procurement and Information Technology
Departments of One-Eight-One Hotel & Serviced Residences.

MS. CHEUNG WING YEE, CATHERINE

aged 46, Director of Sales & Marketing. Ms. Cheung holds a
Bachelor of Arts Degree in Business Administration from
Birmingham City University and has over twenty years of
experience in sales and marketing performance management
at some of the leading luxury hotels in Hong Kong, including
playing a key role in the opening of The Landmark Mandarin
Oriental, Island Shangri-la and Intercontinental. Ms. Cheung
joined the Company in 2020.
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NOTICE OF ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING RERAFAXGES

In light of the current COVID-19 epidemic situation, the
Annual General Meeting to be held on 19 May 2022
(Thursday) will be conducted with the use of electronic
means through a live webcast, and no physical attendance
is accepted.

ER B EREEREEZER &

m_g::¢£ﬁ+na(gmm)ﬁ
TZREBEASHEUBFHNESR
W LEEBET BETESHREHE -

NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN that the annual general meeting of
Liu Chong Hing Investment Limited (the “Company”) for the
year 2022 (“2022 AGM") will be held at 27th Floor, Chong
Hing Bank Centre, 24 Des Voeux Road Central, Hong Kong
on Thursday, 19 May 2022 at 11:00 a.m..

In accordance with Articles 69 of the Company’s Articles of
Association, persons entitled to attend and vote at the 2022
AGM are allowed to attend and vote by way of electronic
means only (“Online AGM") (see Note 1). No other
Shareholder, proxy or corporate representative should attend
the 2022 AGM in person, other than those in the quorum
and the limited number of other attendees to ensure the
proper conduct of the meeting, any other person who
attempts to do so will be excluded and will not be permitted
entry to the venue of the 2022 AGM.

The 2022 AGM will be convened for the following purposes:

1. To receive and adopt the audited consolidated financial
statements together with reports of the directors and of
the auditor of the Company for the year ended 31
December 2021.

2. To approve the payment of the final cash dividend of
HK$0.28 per share for the year ended 31 December 2021
(2021 Final Dividend”).

3. To re-elect (a) Mr. Liu Lit Chi, (b) Mr. Au Kam Yuen,
Arthur and (c) Dr. Ma Hung Ming, John as directors of
the Company.

4. To fix the directors’ remuneration for the year ending
31 December 2022.

5. To re-appoint Messrs. Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu as the
auditor of the Company and to authorise the Board of
Directors to fix their remuneration.
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NOTICE OF ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING REAFAGES

As special business to consider and, if thought fit, pass with

or without modifications the following ordinary resolutions:

ORDINARY RESOLUTIONS
6. “THAT:

(@)

(b)

subject to paragraph (b) below, the exercise by the
directors of the Company during the Relevant
Period (as defined in paragraph (c) of this
resolution) of all the powers of the Company to
buy-back shares of the Company on The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (“Stock
Exchange”) or on any other stock exchange on
which the shares of the Company may be listed and
which is recognised by the Securities and Futures
Commission of Hong Kong and the Stock Exchange
for this purpose, subject to and in accordance with
all applicable laws and the requirements of the
Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the
Stock Exchange or of any other stock exchange (as
applicable) as amended from time to time, be and
is hereby generally and unconditionally approved;

the aggregate number of shares of the Company
which the Company is authorised to buy back
pursuant to the approval in paragraph (a) above
shall not exceed 10% of the aggregate number of
issued shares of the Company as at the date of
passing of this resolution, and the said approval
shall be limited accordingly; and
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7.

(0

for the purpose of this resolution,

“Relevant Period” means the period from the
passing of this resolution until whichever is the
earliest of:

(i) the conclusion of the next annual general
meeting of the Company;

(ii) the expiration of the period within which the
next annual general meeting of the Company
is required by the articles of association of the
Company or the Companies Ordinance
(Chapter 622 of the Laws of Hong Kong) to be
held; or

(iii) the date on which the authority set out in this
resolution is revoked, renewed or varied by an
ordinary resolution of the shareholders of the
Company in general meeting.”

“THAT:

(a)

subject to paragraph (c) below, the exercise by the
directors of the Company during the Relevant
Period (as defined in paragraph (d) of this
resolution) of all the powers of the Company to
allot, issue and deal with additional shares of the
Company and to make or grant offers, agreements
and options (including bonds, warrants,
debentures, notes and any securities which carry
rights to subscribe for or are convertible into shares
of the Company) which would or might require the
exercise of such power(s) during or after the end of
the Relevant Period, be and is hereby generally and
unconditionally approved;
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NOTICE OF ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING REAFAGES

(b) the approval in paragraph (a) above shall authorise

(@

the directors of the Company during the Relevant
Period to make or grant offers, agreements and
options (including bonds, warrants, debentures,
notes and any securities which carry rights to
subscribe for or are convertible into shares of the
Company) which would or might require the
exercise of such power after the end of the
Relevant Period;

the aggregate number of shares allotted, issued
and dealt with or agreed conditionally or
unconditionally to be allotted, issued and dealt
with (whether pursuant to an option or otherwise)
by the directors of the Company pursuant to the
approval in paragraph (a) above, otherwise than
pursuant to (i) a Rights Issue (as defined in
paragraph (d) of this resolution); (ii) the exercise of
any rights of subscription or conversion under any
warrants, bonds, debentures, notes and any
securities of the Company which carry rights to
subscribe for or are convertible into shares of the
Company; (iii) an issue of shares of the Company
upon the exercise of the subscription rights
attaching to any options granted under any share
option scheme adopted by the Company; (iv) an
issue of shares as scrip dividends or similar
arrangement providing for the allotment of shares
in lieu of the whole or part of a dividend on shares
of the Company in accordance with the articles of
association of the Company from time to time; or
(v) specific authority granted by the shareholders
of the Company in general meeting, shall not
exceed 20% of the aggregate number of issued
shares of the Company as at the date of passing of
this resolution, and the said approval shall be
limited accordingly; and
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(d) for the purpose of this resolution,

“Relevant Period” means the period from the
passing of this resolution until whichever is the
earliest of:

(i) the conclusion of the next annual general
meeting of the Company; or

(ii) the expiration of the period within which the
next annual general meeting of the Company
is required by the articles of association of the
Company or the Companies Ordinance
(Chapter 622 of the Laws of Hong Kong) to be
held; or

(iii) the date on which the authority set out in this
resolution is revoked, renewed or varied by an
ordinary resolution of the shareholders of the
Company in general meeting; and

“Rights Issue” means an offer of shares open for a
period fixed by the directors of the Company to
the holders of shares or any class of shares of the
Company whose names appear on the register of
members of the Company on a fixed record date in
proportion to their then holdings of such shares as
at that date (subject to such exclusions or other
arrangements as the directors of the Company may
deem necessary or expedient in relation to
fractional entitlements or having regard to any
restrictions or obligations under the laws of, or the
requirements of any recognised regulatory body or
any stock exchange in, any territory applicable to
the Company).”
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“THAT conditional upon Ordinary Resolutions Nos. 6 8. B EEAAKGEEFREFEoR7E
and 7 set out in the notice convening this meeting being T@ERZREEBRBE > BEAKXAT
passed, the general mandate granted to the directors of EFERTEAKRGBESFERES
the Company to exercise the powers of the Company to JIEE B AEEN(TERATES
allot, issue and deal with additional shares pursuant to MWUELEE s BTN EERND 2—RE
Ordinary Resolution No. 7 set out in the notice T > T‘HJ:%?J[]*E"*“‘W¢’&ﬂTEB€
convening this meeting be and is hereby extended by TAGBEEMAFEELIBRAER
the addition thereto of an amount representing the ?“%Z?“%Tlﬁlﬁﬁﬁi NE] Z R BX
aggregate number of shares of the Company bought B &z EZBEERA#HE RS
back by the Company under the authority granted BEEAASRARERZBBHIEE
pursuant to Ordinary Resolution No. 6 set out in the BITRRDAEENZ10% © |
notice convening this meeting, provided that such
extended amount of shares so bought back shall not
exceed 10% of the aggregate number of issued shares
of the Company as at the date of passing of this
resolution.”
To transact any other business. 9. RIEHMZEIE-

By Order of the Board HREREH

Liu Chong Hing Investment Limited BEr|E T EFRAT

Liu Lit Chi BEIE

Chairman TE

Hong Kong, 6 April 2022 &8 _E”-_FMWAHNH



Notes:

The dedicated online platform http://meetings.computershare.com/LchiAGM2022 (the
“Platform”) will be opened for Registered Shareholders and Non-registered
Shareholders to log in 45 minutes prior to the commencement of the Online AGM.
The Platform can be accessed from any location with internet connection by a smart
phone, tablet device or computer. Shareholders should allow ample time to check
into the Platform to complete the related procedures and remain logged in until the
commencement of and during the Online AGM. Our “Online Meeting User Guide”
will be available on the Company's website www.lchi.com.hk around one week
before the Online AGM to guide Shareholders through the login process.

A member of the Company entitled to attend and vote at the Online AGM is entitled
to appoint another person as his or her proxy to attend and vote in his or her stead.
A member who is the holder of two or more shares may appoint more than one
proxy to attend on the same occasion. A proxy need not be a member of the
Company.

To be valid, a form of proxy, together with any power of attorney or other authority (if
any) under which it is signed, or a notarially certified copy thereof, must be lodged
with the Company’s Share Registrar, Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services
Limited at 17M Floor, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East, Wanchai, Hong
Kong or sent via email to Ichi.eproxy@computershare.com.hk, in each case, not less
than 48 hours before the time appointed for holding the Online AGM or (any
adjournment thereof). The form of proxy is published on the websites of The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited at www.hkexnews.hk and the Company at
www.Ichi.com.hk. The completion and return of the proxy form shall not preclude
Shareholders from attending and voting online at the Online AGM (or any
adjournment thereof) if they so wish.

Record dates of entitlements of the members:

(a) For the purpose of determining shareholders who are entitled to attend and
vote at the Online AGM to be held on Thursday, 19 May 2022, whose name
should be recorded in the Company's shareholders book on Thursday, 19 May
2022. The Register of Members of the Company will be closed from Monday,
16 May 2022 to Thursday, 19 May 2022, both days inclusive. In order to
qualify for attending and voting at the Online AGM (or any adjournment
thereof), all share certificates with completed transfer forms either overleaf or
separately must be lodged with the Company’s Share Registrar,
Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services Limited at Shops 17121716,
17th Floor, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen's Road East, Wanchai, Hong Kong
for registration not later than 4:30 p.m. on Friday, 13 May 2022.

(b)  For the purpose of determining shareholders who are qualified for the 2021
Final Dividend, whose name should be recorded in the Company’s
shareholders book on Friday, 27 May 2022. The Register of Members of the
Company will be closed from Wednesday, 25 May 2022 to Friday, 27 May
2022, both days inclusive. In order to qualify for the final dividend, all share
certificates with completed transfer forms either overleaf or separately must
be lodged for registration with the Company's Registrar, Computershare
Hong Kong Investor Services Limited at Shops 1712-1716, 17th Floor,
Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen's Road East, Wanchai, Hong Kong not later than
4:30 p.m. on Tuesday, 24 May 2022.
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NOTICE OF ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING REAFAGES

5. The Chairperson of the meeting will demand a poll on each of the resolutions
submitted for determination at the Online AGM. On a poll, every Shareholder who is
present, or as represented by the proxy or corporate representative, shall have one
vote for every share held by him or her. The results of the poll will be published on
the websites of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited at www.hkexnews.hk and
the Company at www.lchi.com.hk following the Online AGM.

6. The Chinese translation of this notice is for reference only, and in case of any
inconsistency, the English version shall prevail.

7. A circular containing further information on the proposals regarding the (i) re-
election of the directors of the Company and (ii) general mandates for the buy back
and issue of shares of the Company will be sent to shareholders today along with the
Company's 2021 Annual Report.

As at the date hereof, the Board of Directors of the Company comprises Executive Directors:
Mr. Liu Lit Chi (Chairman, Managing Director and Chief Executive Officer), Mr. Liu Kam Fai,
Winston (Deputy Managing Director) and Mr. Lee Wai Hung; Non-executive Director: Mr.
Kho Eng Tjoan, Christopher; and Independent Non-executive Directors: Dr. Cheng Mo Chi,
Moses, Mr. Au Kam Yuen, Arthur, Dr. Ma Hung Ming, John, Mr. Cheng Yuk Wo and Mr.
Tong Tsun Sum, Eric.
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MARKET PRICE MOVEMENT AND MARKET CAPITALIZATION CHART
mEEZRHEEBEX

Closing Price per Share SR (E )
Last Trading Closing Price per Share | Market Capitalization March 2020 to December 2021 3
Date of Each Month EBREHE HE SE-RESAR=F=-F1A =
SABEXSA (HKS #%) (HKS in million i 2
AREET) 10 >
31/1/2020 10.02 3,793 ;
>
28/2/2020 9.26 3,506 m
8 0
31/3/2020 7.79 2,949 g
29/4/2020 7.83 2,964 %
29/5/2020 6.72 2,544 6 =
=
30/6/2020 7.06 2,673 2
>
31/7/2020 6.57 2,487 . =
&
31/8/2020 6.61 2,502 2
x
30/9/2020 6.29 2,381
2
30/10/2020 6.22 2,355 BB H R E Bl E
30/11/2020 6.79 2,571 SRR R R BE
31/12/2020 7.04 2,665 °
29/1/2021 7.09 2,684
26/2/2021 7.59 2,873 Market Capitalization H{&
M aoete
317312021 737 2,790 e
30/4/2021 8.00 3,029 4,000
31/5/2021 8.36 3,165
30/6/2021 8.34 3,157
30/7/2021 7.96 3,014 S
31/8/2021 8.03 3,040
30/9/2021 7.68 2,908
2,000
29/10/2021 8.10 3,067
30/11/2021 7.71 2,919
31/12/2021 7.75 2,934
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LIU CHONG HING GROUP SIMPLIFIED CORPORATE STRUCTURE CHART
PR EEEBEREE

For the year ended 31 December 2021 #Z-Z-—&+"F=+—HILFE

OTHER INVESTORS

ALBA HOLDINGS LIMITED

LIU’S HOLDINGS LIMITED

»
N
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EREBERAR HtiR & &

Property Investment

Chong Hing Bank Centre

IR

100%

The Rockpool
RiE

100%

Fairview Court

BERE

100%

Chong Hing Square

BIREES

100%

20.18%

34.95% 44.87%

*LIU CHONG HING INVESTMENT LIMITED
*ERIREERRAR

Overseas
Investment
BIMEE

Hotel Business

BIEEH

Property Development
MERRE

Property Management
MEER

Trading & Manufacturing
BRRRE

ONE-EIGHT-ONE
Hotel & Serviced
Residences
ONE-EIGHT-ONE
BERRBEEE
(Hong Kong &%)

100%

Maanshan Gaoke
Magnetic Material
Company Limited
BgLSREERE
ARAT

51.54%

Liu Chong Hing
Property Management
& Agency Limited
BRIENEEERKE
ARAT

100%

The Grand Riviera
Foshan Nanhai
p ik 9 P (A

(BBLLE )

Japan Higashi
EINEIYE]
Logistics Centre
BARDRMARP

Guangzhou Wealth Good
Property Management
Company Limited

Elegance Garden
Foshan Sanshui
HERE
(BBLL=7%)

Japan Kakegawa
Logistics Centre

=2k Ik it Ty

Express-Guangzhou
Yue Xiu Pan Fu
EERERMNEEREE
(China HE)

100%

B TR
NEERERAE

100%

Japan Hadano
Logistics Centre
BERFMRPL

Kimpton Kitalay
Samui

(Thailand %)

50% 100%

Australia Brisbane
Office Building
RN E B A KR

15%

Chong Hing Finance Center

Shanghai
LEisRIEERAPL

100%

* Listed on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited

FHRREEEMORAMBRAR LS



SCHEDULE OF MAJOR PROPERTIES HELD BY THE GROUP &R X EY %X

For the year ended 31 December 2021 #E_E-—&+_A=+—HI&EE

Interest in
the property Approximate Total gross
attributable site area floor area
Description to the Group (sq. ft.) (sq. ft.) Existing use
HEBREEZ BT BRFEIEER
ik UES § (F5R) (FE5R) RERR

Investment properties
REWF
Hong Kong:

1. Chong Hing Bank Centre 100% 7,100 110,000 (0]
24 Des Voeux Road Central
BIESRITHL
fEsgER245;
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2. The Rockpool 100% 32,400 42,000 c/p
402-404 Des Voeux Road West
BiEh
BEIEFE402-404 5%

3. Fairview Court 100% 30,000 26,000 R/P
94 Repulse Bay Road
E=E

RKEEUR

4. The Westwood 10% - 221,900 /P
8 Belcher's Street
i
BRR/EHBR

399,900

Kowloon and New Territories:

TEERAR :

5. Chong Hing Square 100% 12,300 182,000 C
601 Nathan Road, Mongkok
BIEES
HE £ 601 57%

6. Bonsun Industrial Building 100% 18,000 8,200 I/P
364-366 Sha Tsui Road, Tsuen Wan
BRTEAE
) IHE364-36657%

7. Chatham Place 10% - 61,000 /P &
388 Chatham Road North, Hung Hom 2
FiES
ALH % RUIE 3538857

[CRA I N Jl

251,200

BHEELT &= |
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SCHEDULE OF MAJOR PROPERTIES HELD BY THE GROUP &R X EY %X

For the year ended 31 December 2021 #E_E-—&+_A=+—HIL&EE

Description

it

Interest in

the property
attributable
to the Group
FEEELZ
ES §

Approximate

site area

(sq. ft.)

B BER
(F5R)

Total gross

floor area

(sq. ft.)

WREEEER
(FE5R)

Existing use

RS

Investment properties

REYZE
Peaple’s Republic of China:

FENRHAE

8. Chong Hing Finance Center
No. 288 Nanjing Road West
Huang Pu District
Shanghai
BB
L&

HHE
R FaRR2885%

9. The Grand Riviera
West of Luocun
Luocun Social Management Office
Shishan Town
Nanhai District
Foshan
EHEENTER
BBl
EE
MUBREN SRR
HAERME

100%

90%

55,000

103,000
413,000
180,000

182,000
73,000

S N

951,000

Hotel land and building
BIELHRIEF
Hong Kong:

10.ONE-EIGHT-ONE Hotel &
Serviced Residences
181-183 Connaught Road West
ONE-EIGHT-ONEEE R BRFS T 1+ B
FaiB7181-1835%

Thailand:
2T

11.Kimpton Kitalay Samui
10/79 Moo 5, Bophut, Koh Samui,
Surat Thani 84320, Thailand
10/79 Moo 5, Bophut, B55,
Surat Thani 84320, %]

100%

100%

10,800

318,000

184,000

230,000




For the year ended 31 December 2021 #E_E-—&+_A=+—HI&EE
Interest in
the property Approximate Total gross
attributable site area floor area
Description to the Group (sq. ft.) (sq. ft.) Existing use
FEEELZ BT BRFEEER
B GUES (F5R) (FE5R) Ltz
Investment properties (Joint Ventures)
REYE (BELE)
Japan:
J=FN
12.Higashi Matsuyama Logistics Centre 50% 102,800 193,600 W
296-1, 294-1, 301-2, 301-1, 300-1,
299-1, 302-1, 295-1,
0Oaza Shingo, Higashi Matsuyama-shi,
Saitama Prefecture
RIGLADARA
BRI Oaza Shingo,
296-1, 294-1, 3012, 301-1, 300-1, 299-1, 302-1,
295-1
13.Kakegawa Logistics Centre 50% 509,000 457,000 W
102, Shobugaike, Kakewawa-shi, Shizuoka
Prefecture
BRI
BE%AN |/ Shobugaike 1025%
14.Hadano Logistics Centre 50% 53,700 104,000 W
548-1, Aza Haihata, Soya, Hadano-Shi, Kanagawa
Prefecture
RERAD
%) |84 = B Soya, Aza Haihata, 548-1
754,600
Australia
2
15.310 Ann Street, Brisbane QLD 4000, Australia 15% 24,000 196,400 0
310 Ann Street, 73 2 ETBE QLD 4000, JZLH 1,200 C
197,600
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SCHEDULE OF MAJOR PROPERTIES HELD BY THE GROUP &R X EY %X

For the year ended 31 December 2021 #E_E-—&+_A=+—HIL&EE

Interest in
the property Approximate Total gross
attributable site area floor area
Description to the Group (sq. ft.) (sq. ft.) Existing use Status
FEBRELZ AR BREEEER
it L/ES (EAR) (FAR) REAE  IiREE
Properties under development
BREIY#E
Hong Kong:
16.  Various Lots in D.D. 29 100% 262,000 n/a n/a  Planning
Ting Kok Road, Tai Po AiEm TER  EHER
R THAR
295RHNER
People’s Republic of China:
thiE \ BRI
17.  Elegance Garden 90% 362,300 1,170,000 R Construction in progress
Plot No.2, Nan Ce, Jianshe Dadao 14,000 C HET#ETH
Xinan Jiedao, Sanshui Qu 321,000 P
Foshan
HERE
HLH=KE
FmfB R A EE AR
1,505,000

C=Commercial % H=Hotel &S

I=Industrial T¥ P=Car Park EfI R=Residential ¥ 0=O0ffice BF1%

S=Clubhouse and recreational facilities €Ff &AL R H

W=Warehouse &8



SHAREHOLDERS’ INFORMATION R=®RE Kl

FINANCIAL CALENDAR As at 10 March 2022

MBARK - __£=A+H

RESULTS ANNOUNCEMENT
4 PN
Interim Results
for six-month ended 30 June 2021
BEZE-—H,A=1HIL
NEBZHEAEE

Annual Results
for year ended 31 December 2021
BE_E_—F+"B=+—HL
FEZ2FEE

Announced on 5 August 2021

ERZZE_—F/N\BAAAMH

Announced on 10 March 2022

ER-E__F=B+HAMK

SHAREHOLDERS' MEETING
BRRXE

Annual General Meeting

RRBEXRSG

Latest time to lodge transfer forms

BB R X RBHAR

Closure of Register of Members

(for purpose of ascertaining entitlements

to attend and vote at the 2022 Annual
General Meeting)
LERERNBRELFE
(HEBREE=-ZS"Z
BRRAFAGRIEE)

To be held on 19 May 2022

R _E__FHB+IBET

4:30 pm on 13 May 2022
_E__HFRR+=ATFOE=15

From 16 May 2022 to 19 May 2022
(both days inclusive)

—EC_FRA+SNAEE-__F#HA+ANH

(BEMXEEER)

CASH DIVIDENDS
BHERS

Interim cash dividend

FHRERE

Paid on

X{THHR

Proposed final cash dividend
BORCRHAIRER S

Payable on

X{TBHA

Ex-dividend date of final dividend
KEAR SR EH

Latest time to lodge transfer forms

EXBR XA REHAR

Closure of Register of Members
(for purpose of ascertaining
entitlements to receive
the final dividend)

HERERNBRELFE
(FeEBEWBRIARS)

HK$0.18 per share
FRAE0.187T

10 September 2021
—_E_—FhA+H
HK$0.28 per Share
SiAE0.287T

6 June 2022
—Z2THF;ARH

23 May 2022
—_E_"FRA"+=H
4:30 pm on 24 May 2022
—EC_HFRR+MHTFEE=1S

From 25 May 2022 to 27 May 2022
(both days inclusive)

B AR +ARHEE__FHA"+tH

(BEMXEHEER)
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SHAREHOLDERS’ INFORMATION R=®RE Kl

Share Registrars and transfer office Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services Limited

Shops 1712-1716, 17th Floor, Hopewell Centre,

-
£y
©

1207 140d34 TYNNNY | QILIAIM INIWLISIANI ONIH ONOHD NIl

RN ESCRERRE

Share listing

ARSE i hE

Stock Code

i1 X5

Board lot

BEE(

No. of issued ordinary share
BRTEBERRHEE
Company'’s e-mail address
REE I

Investors and Shareholders contact

REE MRS

183 Queen’s Road East Wanchai,

Hong Kong

BEBPRESTLARAT
BEREFERKER—/N\=5
RO+ tEIE—t—C—EFE—t—7 5

The Company'’s shares are listed on

The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
KABIRENREBHERZARAE
BHEEE

00194

00194

2,000 shares
2,000 fi%

378,583,440 shares
378,583,4408%

info@Ichi.com.hk
info@Ichi.com.hk

Attention: Mr. Lee Wai Hung/Ms. Hilda Chan
23rd Floor, Chong Hing Bank Centre

24 Des Voeux Road Central, Hong Kong

Tel: (852) 2983 7779

Fax: (852) 2983 7723

Website: http://www.lchi.com.hk

B FRERLE TREZ/VE
BRERHER T sRE ERITR O+ =8
EeE 1 (852) 2983 7779

f§E : (852) 2983 7723

488 : http://www.Ichi.com.hk
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HOTEL & SERVICED RESIDENCES

SPECIAL EDITION Hiifij}




ABOUT ONE-EIGHT-ONE
Y ONE-EIGHT-ONE jl§)E

Situated in the historic yet fashionable Western District of Hong Kong Island, One-Eight-One Hotel & Serviced Residences
boasts spectacular panoramic views of Victoria Harbour, opened in December 2019. Just steps away from the MTR HKU
Station, airport bus and tram stops, the hotel offers 182 spacious and contemporary guest rooms and suites, 24-hour

Health Club, laundry room and culinary provisions, truly an ideal choice for discerning business and leisure travellers.

One-Eight-One B B IR 5 A AEERL 2019 4 12 HIEAXBAZE - 2R &R Gl - —(H Rl ERT L - Fohm
ARSI - SR HES A n el N ISE 5 o WIS PURISEBERE - MEATESRT i RS20 - BREERES B 1l
FIFE BV D & - WIETR ML 182 &5 ~ 24 /NS 5 ~ DEAK P B BEAKGRNE » R HLAE 15 s WK (I R S 1T
ke IR FLA i e -

Room Types %57 fifi Room Size %524
Urban Room 5% B 330-360 sq. ft IR
Harbour Room 5% 7 370-410 sq. ft SE5IR

Upper Harbour Room il =%
Luxe Harbour Room S¥HEV 555 B
Harbour Suite Y 5HE 7

Sky Residences JHE &R KiHlfE

380 sq. ft SEHIR
380 sq. ft SE AR
750 sq. ft SE- /IR
1,001-1,152 sq. ft SR

HOTEL
AWARDS

45 2EIH

#10
of 803

HOTELS IN
HONG KONG

2021

AR ERIRRR - s E %S .
Travelers

EERIKAT & ZERBEIE - AR

In less than two years, the hotel was

awarded the Travelers’ Choice List and

achieved Top 10 hotel in Tripadvisor —
the world’s largest travel online channel
which browse hundreds of millions
of traveler reviews and opinions.
This important online listing allows
users to share their satisfaction with
One-Eight-One brand and develops
an effective word of mouth digital

marketing platform.

Tripadvisor ( f4F- 8 B (R RTT & 3F
Ay B 2 L A BR B K iR g RR HTE
1B ) FEWE Y E 10 AL
Z— ° %5 H 5] BERF B i =
ES) One-Eight-One R R e
A R R 1 23T — 5 e 11
BEIEHVE SN TR -

Choice

\ /
§\\\\ /

N,

/4
-_— -

Tripadvisor




o o
Western Wholesale
Food Market

AERRmit#E TS

< <
=0

Hong ong

- I~ Tram Depot

BB E R

LTI

One-Eight-One
“A\  Hotel & Serviced Residences

BIE AR HEE

=
72
(9}
[=4
®
D,

The
Rockpool
alEs

U@en,
5 /Qoa
d W,
est

(X

HKU Station
EBKRBE

O\
B



FROM HOTEL OPENING TO
BECOMING THE DESIGNATED
QUARANTINE HOTEL

TR 1 B 55 20 ke X i S AR B

The market positioning of One-Eight-One Hotel has been targeting on corporate,
overseas leisure travellers and long staying expatriates. However, hotel business
and tourism were heavily impacted by the outbreak of COVID-19 in 2020 that
led to travel ban, flights suspension and lockdowns in some countries. Therefore,
the strategy was adjusted to tap the staycation and domestic market for
Hongkongers, as a consequence of emerging opportunities and challenging external
factors. The hotel earned much recognition and popularity in both online media
and referrals through offering trend-driven room packages for local couples, families

and guests staying for celebration.

After experienced the unstable and severely low hotel rooms business demand
caused by the pandemic waves in the entire year, One-Eight-One was appointed
as one of the 40 designated quarantine hotels since December 2020. Throughout
the period, the hotel endeavored to cooperate with Hong Kong Government
officials and Department of Health’s compliance members to ensure the hygiene,
ventilation, staff training, safety and many other best practices were satisfactorily
executed. At the same time, the hotel extended care for the well-being of
quarantine guests, such as upgrading room set up, renting fitness equipment,
preparing festive goodies, along with planning thoughtful kids’ amenities to
address each individual’s needs. The hotel’s mission is to create moments of
delight for the guests during their stay despite the purpose is for quarantine,

in addition to delivering outstanding customer service.

One-Eight-One 1% i FY 13 85 7€ (7 — B DARG 55 ~ ¥ S A Bl i 2 A 0 1
fE A R H R © 2020 507587 BY e ARG 53008 5% - 51 38 2% BRI IR 5 B it A~
I R 1 i 32 FIR 1) » AR TREH B 2 11 I R R 508 36 %5 A 1 52 1) ik =
5 o I B o B S0 S DR SR PR BRI A - 9 s ol D ) R SR S B
AT - By 7 v AR H A [ R R A B s Ml Y (e e e - W)
B Ry ARG | 161 ~ FEERAF AR T bRk G LS
Jei B SRR HEE LS TR R -

8 JEE T 2020 47 [N F 15 3 B 19 385 K 3 5 R SR 1S AR N B G
One-Eight-One H 2020 4 12 H B pl £ B it 40 FI5 EIZ W & —
FEICIUIRA - 39595 25 0 Bl v R B B A A Y & RIS kB B A 1
DURECRIANE f AL ~ B~ SRR ~ &8s ~ DURH il A S 15 2 2 21
RURS SR « [AIRF » 055 5 B O PR Bl AR B DR ~ A0 H#5 B R A L
FELFE (e B 3 bF ~ 7 1 i ooty B AR B 25 Bl B s i 20 T S A 2 AR 2
bR 7 PEfE N2 ERBEIRE SN - WSS Ry AR SRS
T SERIREZ] - JBKSE 5 — MR E e g -




OFFICIAL WEBSITE
DIRECT TRAFFIC

A 116%

INSTAGRAM
FOLLOWER

A 104%

FACEBOOK
FOLLOWER

A 42%

©

HOTEL
DIGITAL
PRESENCE

P4 B8R g

From the marketing perspective, One-Eight-One pursues to grow digital presence

and boost brand awareness.

At the beginning of 2021, the hotel revamped its official website due to changes
in marketing strategy and the need for modifications in functionalities and visual
appearance. This enabled a significant stronger performance in Google visibility
and the hotel’s website traffic that gave One-Eight-One an ultra edge over the

competitors.

With the objectives of strengthening One-Eight-One brand and increasing
customer awareness through the Internet, the hotel focused on social media
network by making engaging story posts and short videos to educate consumers
about the brand and highlighting the hotel’s unique features and values that
inspired resonance. The hotel’s Instagram followers doubled within a year
meaning the hotel managed to open the door to connecting with a wider

audience and also provided the foundation for increased business growth.
eSS FARE » One-Eight-One B THEINIFR_ERESE K AR=T b A4 -

2021 4] > Fo G i B e he il B2 RS A5 B — 20 BORAVEISY - MR
AR HURTR T 58 B BRI » Rt SRR B T BT TR AL - iR Y
Google [IEERMEIEFLEIIERIE AN L » £ One-Eight-One FHELH A
I RS ELBE T T -

Ko V3438 One-Eight-One AN - 7 SEE 8 A TS = 2 A BHhEi
RORIIE » TN RS S fremt s LB AR - SE B N ABSAEE G 1 K
A » 5 A8 E R P RE T SR R ORI T s A ISR BRI -
TIE Instagram SEHEABOR— L ER] —fEHS K - S BWRE I Rt
B TZ N NSRRI - R S RBiE T HERE -



PEOPLE - PLACES
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HOTEL
BRAND
AWARENESS

PR A 24 BE

The hotel partnered with American Express targeting their Centurion and
Platinum cardmembers, aimed at broadening the reach and allowed the hotel
to communicate with consumers on a global scale. The partnership encouraged
brand loyalty, at present exceeding 120 guests stayed for more than once in the

last 12 months.

On the other hand, the hotel made the most of Influencer Marketing in
collaboration with around ten celebrities’ quarantine stay. The hotel gained
a market advantage by leveraging the celebrities endorsement in social media
contexts. It generated numerous views on Instagram and YouTube, keeping the
hotel brand top of mind with current and potential audiences as well as enhancing

brand recognition.

Moreover, One-Eight-One was nominated by TATLER and TIME OUT
magazine as one of the best quarantine hotels in Hong Kong with articles
covering the hotel’s unique selling point. The hotel secured positive press
exposure in JETSETTER which is a popular digital luxury travel publication, too.
All those free media coverage had great influence in shaping public perceptions on
the brand reputation and helped the hotel’s business as credible and its activities as
notable. Nowadays, One-Eight-One has become the preferred hotel for top tier

executives from major banks, legal firms, fashion brands and insurance companies.

LITTERS

MUST-HAVE JEWELS,
OLD AND NEW

ARCHITECTURAL
INNOVATIONS

Inspired Buildings
From Around
the World

(I

9'789628'09801%




Fo R TIGEOER - Wk L PGEE A 1F - I HRRE & RE S5t
PR - (RS RS E B PR o R TERS PERR (R Bt & A Sl
REFRIE - HATESE 120 ZFACREE 12 E AR E—RAENE -

i AR A AL SRS E RSB - W R B {2
PHNGHE > RoftM5e SRR B (A8 Ik 5 - 1E Instagram AT YouTube L4532
FHE AT BB R - 7 RS PR R BTE RS - REDURTT 1 SRR
AL -

I£4h » One-Eight-One ¥ #% TATLER k¢ TIME OUT Y% 44k 7 s i
RIS 2 — » SCREHEE TSR E R - Rtk oh - IR s
Ji 30 FI¥) JETSETTER FY e 35 SCEE 58 Lo 15 i o6 2 g L 40 3 o ot A
FEAE T RRRSZ BT AR R S R AT S - 2 T SE S AR R
HGEE BN EEH © 1% > One-Eight-One B 12 Hpl s 75 R 8RTT
THRBMFT ~ B e R PREGE N ) S s A BN B & 2 — -

i I(l‘“L ‘l' The Scene Power & Purpose Style  Dining Homes  Culture  GenT
One-eight-one Hotel and Serviced B @Rmcaee G
Residences
) one e s  Sacad Rosences

oA H

38 likes

]

The luxury Sai Wan-based hotel and serviced apartment is offering a number of quarantine
packages for returning Hongkongers. Guests can choose from either a lighe-filled
harbourside room—perfect for warching the sunset—or a city view room for their stay, or

one of five suites.

&

One-Eight-One Hotel & Serviced Residences

Hotels Shek Tong Tsui

Committed to making quarantine stays a little more vibrant, One-Eight-One's spacious rooms
come with calming views of the western district. The quarantine package offers meal plans
featuring Asian, Western, vegetarian, and a kids' menu to its guests and also accepts food
deliveries. Complimentary rental of fitness bikes, yoga mats, HDMI cables, and Blu-ray DVD
players are on offer, while rental of PlayStation 5 and Nintendo Switch consoles come with a
small supplement cost.

Rates start at 51,965 per night. Book your stay here.



NEW HOTEL N
FACILITIES B B
COMPLETED

74 7 e i 42 I

Sky Residences

The whole floor of 30" was renovated and converted into three 2-bedroom
family suites called Sky Residences. Each of the Sky Residences (1,001 — 1,152
sq. ft) has incredible harbor views, fully equipped with Miele kitchen appliances
and washer, holds an 85-inch smart TV for gaming or enjoying a cinematic
experience, features marble bathrooms and so on.The Suites were launched in Q3

2021 and promoted to high-end quarantine travellers.

PN
oM ORAER MM\ ENREER - AR KEfE - FHEKEE

(1,001 = 1,152 P HHR) E3A <L AENEIHRESESE - Bl Miele Rl
153 55 FH 5L e D AKX ~ 85 INMEYRE TR 2K S E % 70 ~ BIRK HE AR (5 e 4
MR KRB E T - B 2021 F5 =FEHE - HF SRS -




Quay Club
The meeting room ‘Space III’ (1,000 sq. ft) on 5% floor was redesigned
and refurbished by Indigo Living. The concept of Quay Club was to build a
lounge area for hotel guests who would like an exclusive venue for private
check in/check out, breakfast, evening cocktails and views of Victoria Harbour.
The name ‘Quay Club’ was inspired by the windows overlooking the renowned
Instagram Sai Wan Pier. The Club will start operation once the quarantine hotel

business is over.

Both Sky Residences and Quay Club were come up to raise One-Eight-One’s
competencies in the marketplace and to support marketing implications of

customer behaviour.

EE

(il 5 BERYEERE " Space I, (1,000 SEIR) » #&H Indigo Living BT
AT LARK o WV I B SR R I A — W A RAAA
BB~ BB IR R S A SE RN G TR S - T ES ) S
LTI EE R R 2R AP B Y NRE IR 7 #5 Instagram F1H8% 20EE [ PE BR A UA -
TRHE S A FEARZ PG SRR R 1% - RV BraAE S -

KA B Vg vE & A B - 2k T 42 One-Eight-One ££ 1 %5 L 38t
F7 0 WAYHSEHERA S AT R LA 8T -



POST
QUARANTINE HOTEL
DEVELOPMENT

P91 R 2K 358

When designated quarantine hotel program comes to an end, it is anticipated
the market demand and supply, competition and business environment will
no longer be the same. The hotel primarily will restructure the pricing of all
room types to cater different market segments in order to stay competitive,
complementing marketing campaigns to promoting the new facilities and
reinforcing One-Eight-One’s presence which are planned to roll out in
different phases strategically. The ultimate goal of implementing the sales
and marketing efforts in the pipeline is to acquire new prospects, strengthen
relationships with current customers and clients, grow market share,

improve retention and increase brand awareness.

EAEE R F TR - AT TR R ~ 5T R v R R B
DAER AN © 05 £ R R AT A e R - AGH &R
DABRFFBET ) - HE RS S S B ROt - AN s B o M HE H
HEREST#] > #ELUNIGEE @ One-Eight-One FATHES_EINIRIESE 3K Al B it
IS BT B i H AR ST A - S % A R P
ISR - BINTSEEER - SRR R R AL -
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NEW HOTEL FACILITY AND
RESTAURANT TO BE READY
BY Q4 2022

P4 ST s i R e BT it
2022 £ 55 VY 22 B AR fig hik el

Entertainment Room
With a focus on providing more recreational facilities for in-house guests, the
smaller meeting room ‘Space IV’ and two storage rooms on 5" floor will be

reconfigured into an entertainment area for families and young children clientele.

The Praya (Formerly The Common Room)

At The Praya, we are dedicated to that ideal of serving fresh, sustainable seafood
where the city meets the ocean. Inspired by Europe’s seaside towns, we will source
only the finest produce possible, with our craftsmanship striving for simplicity.
Our food will speaks for itself, emphasizing individual qualities and treating
every ingredient with pure respect. Paired with organic wines, we are shaping

gastronomic narratives from sea, soil and seed to table.

g
FofEfEE AGE B SR - CRTE AN OB RTB N E R E Tk
F 1V fefi s T - R Z RIS 5 P AL -

The Praya (AT )

The Praya /7 7EY i BLYFE A S A3 /7 B (e e i vl RRAE ME TR I S
(87 o SZEOMNVRE SR T AR AVECEE - M S SRR E R - 2L
Faa SRR LI Rg =3 - MRS RES#ES - mHE SN E
PA— o MR B Y O B A R — R BT - FEBCE B A& » RMIEE S
TEVRE ~ TIENIRE FEE ERYIERRCE -
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT & 17 #% 81 Bl ¥R &

Deloitte

TO THE MEMBERS OF LIU CHONG HING
INVESTMENT LIMITED

(incorporated in Hong Kong with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of
Liu Chong Hing Investment Limited (the “Company”) and its
subsidiaries (collectively referred to as “the Group”) set out
on pages 168 to 300, which comprise the consolidated
statement of financial position as at 31 December 2021, and
the consolidated statement of profit or loss, consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income, consolidated statement of changes in equity and
consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then
ended, and notes to the consolidated financial statements,
including a summary of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a
true and fair view of the consolidated financial position of
the Group as at 31 December 2021, and of its consolidated
financial performance and its consolidated cash flows for
the year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs"”) issued by the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
(“HKICPA") and have been properly prepared in compliance
with the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong
Standards on Auditing (“HKSAs") issued by the HKICPA. Our
responsibilities under those standards are further described
in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the
Consolidated Financial Statements section of our report. We
are independent of the Group in accordance with the
HKICPA’s Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (the
"Code"”), and we have fulfilled our other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We believe
that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional
judgement, were of most significance in our audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current period.
These matters were addressed in the context of our audit of
the consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in
forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a
separate opinion on these matters.

VALUATION OF INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

We identified the valuation of investment properties as a
key audit matter as they represented 59% of the Group's
total assets, combined with the judgements associated
with determining the fair value. As disclosed in note 14 to
the consolidated financial statements, the investment
properties are located in Hong Kong and the People’s
Republic of China (the “PRC"). The carrying amounts of
investment properties amounted to HK$9,525,573,000 as
at 31 December 2021 and a gain on changes in fair value
of HK$379,142,000 was recorded in the profit for the year.

As set out in note 4 to the consolidated financial
statements, the Group’s investment properties are stated
at fair value based on the valuations performed by an
independent qualified professional valuer (“Valuer”).
Details of the valuation techniques and key inputs used in
the valuations are disclosed in note 14 to the consolidated
financial statements. The valuations have been arrived at
using direct comparison method and income capitalisation
method, which are dependent on certain key inputs and
assumptions in respect of prevailing market conditions
such as unit sale rate, reversion yield and monthly market
rent.

HOW OUR AUDIT ADDRESSED THE KEY AUDIT MATTER

Our procedures in relation to the valuation of investment
properties included:

e  Evaluating the competence, capabilities and objectivity
of the Valuer;

e  Obtaining an understanding of the valuation process
and significant assumptions to assess if the adopted
approach is appropriate for the respective properties;

o Evaluating the appropriateness of the valuation
methods used based on our knowledge of the property
markets in Hong Kong and the PRC; and

e Assessing the reasonableness of the key inputs,
including unit sale rate, reversion yield and monthly
market rent by comparing these estimates to entity-
specific information and market data based on our
knowledge of the property markets.
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OTHER INFORMATION

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other
information. The other information comprises the
information included in the annual report, but does not
include the consolidated financial statements and our
auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does
not cover the other information and we do not express any
form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial
statements, our responsibility is to read the other
information and, in doing so, consider whether the other
information is materially inconsistent with the consolidated
financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the
audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If,
based on the work we have performed, we conclude that
there is a material misstatement of this other information,
we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to
report in this regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS AND THOSE CHARGED
WITH GOVERNANCE FOR THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the
preparation of the consolidated financial statements that
give a true and fair view in accordance with HKFRSs issued
by the HKICPA and the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance,
and for such internal control as the directors determine is
necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated
financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the
directors are responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to
continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable,
matters related to going concern and using the going
concern basis of accounting unless the directors either
intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or
have no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for
overseeing the Group’s financial reporting process.
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the consolidated financial statements as a whole
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud
or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our
opinion solely to you, as a body, in accordance with section
405 of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for no
other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or
accept liability to any other person for the contents of this
report. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance,
but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in
accordance with HKSAs will always detect a material
misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from
fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or
in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to
influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis
of these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise
professional judgement and maintain professional
skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

e |dentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of
the consolidated financial statements, whether due to
fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures
responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that
is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for
one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion,
forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or
the override of internal control.
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant
to the audit in order to design audit procedures that
are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the
purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness
of the Group’s internal control.

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies
used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates
and related disclosures made by the directors.

Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use
of the going concern basis of accounting and, based on
the audit evidence obtained, whether a material
uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that
may cast significant doubt on the Group’s ability to
continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a
material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw
attention in our auditor’s report to the related
disclosures in the consolidated financial statements or,
if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our
opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit
evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s
report. However, future events or conditions may cause
the Group to cease to continue as a going concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and
content of the consolidated financial statements,
including the disclosures, and whether the
consolidated financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that
achieves fair presentation.

Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding
the financial information of the entities or business
activities within the Group to express an opinion on
the consolidated financial statements. We are
responsible for the direction, supervision and
performance of the group audit. We remain solely
responsible for our audit opinion.
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
We communicate with those charged with governance
regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and
timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including
any significant deficiencies in internal control that we
identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a
statement that we have complied with relevant ethical
requirements regarding independence, and to communicate
with them all relationships and other matters that may
reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and
where applicable, actions taken to eliminate threats or
safeguards applied.

From the matters communicated with those charged with
governance, we determine those matters that were of most
significance in the audit of the consolidated financial
statements of the current period and are therefore the key
audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s
report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure
about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances,
we determine that a matter should not be communicated in
our report because the adverse consequences of doing so
would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public
interest benefits of such communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in the
independent auditor’s report is Tan Wei Ming.

Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu
Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong, 10 March 2022
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS #&&

For the year ended 31 December 2021 H#E=Z-—F+-B=1+—HILFE

:
2=

2021 2020
k- -3 “ECRE
NOTES HK$'000 HK$'000
i BETR AT

Revenue g 5
Contracts with customers RREH 477,902 364,569
Rental income fSKA 305,782 320,423
Interest and dividend income FIERKREKA 51,481 86,630
835,165 771,622
Direct costs BERA (362,268) (324,680)
472,897 446,942
Other income Hit A 26,094 28,577
Administrative and operating expenses THREERY (235,496) (217,352)
Other gains and losses Hftlm K iEsE 7 401,355 (12,598)
Finance costs R EInN 8 (23,521) (43,171)
Share of results of joint ventures FritaEfhELs 27,374 44,218
Profit before tax 3Tl 668,703 246,616
Income tax expense FriEMRLH (248,057) (73,106)
Profit for the year REEHF 10 420,646 173,510

Profit (loss) for the year attributable to: TEEGH (B518) o

Owners of the Company KATRER 427,302 162,560
Non-controlling interests IR (6,656) 10,950
420,646 173,510
Basic earnings per share SREFEF 13 HK$ &% 1.13 HKS &£ 0.43




CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER
COMPREHENSIVE INCOME 4#refEmkEMEENWT R

For the year ended 31 December 2021 H#E-Z-—F+-B=1+—HI-FE =
2
0
2021 2020 >
Z8C-% 3 -
HKS$'000 HK$'000 m
AETR BETR b
x
Profit for the year REERF 420,646 173,510 ;
Other comprehensive income (expense) Hfth2milEs (X i) ﬁ
Item that will not be reclassified to profit or loss: rEEHFEE Rk ER . b
Fair value gains (losses) on investments in equity BATBEAAEMZENEZ
instruments at fair value through other ERTAATEEKS (§8)
comprehensive income (“FVTOCI") 192,706 (97,481)
Items that may be reclassified B ot BN e An ik 2B .
subsequently to profit or loss:
Exchange differences arising on translation of BEBINERELEZERER
foreign operations 118,362 330,380
Share of other comprehensive income of FitaEtEEM2E G
joint ventures 105 2,804
Other comprehensive income for the year KEERM2ENE ($R%)
(net of tax) 311,173 235,703
Total comprehensive income for the year rEERENGAE 731,819 409,213
Total comprehensive income (expense) attributable to: 2EKz (i) BEAEL
Owners of the Company FATIRE 731,828 384,282
Non-controlling interests [ty gy 9) 24,931
731,819 409,213
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION #R& B # 4K &

As at 31 December 2021 RZE_—F+-A=+—H

2021 2020
ZEC-f ZZI%E
NOTES HK$'000 HK$'000
sk BETR AT
Non-current assets FRBEE
Investment properties REYE 14 9,525,573 9,000,490
Property, plant and equipment WE  BERRE 15 1,918,134 1,395,632
Right-of-use assets EREEE 16 5,629 5,879
Interests in joint ventures SE RS 18 429,555 334,918
Investments in securities HHRE 19 304,639 468,547
Fixed bank deposits with more than three FAZER#%IZ
months to maturity when raised EMRITER 22 - 48,598
Deferred tax assets BIERIESE 28 18,414 20,608
12,201,944 11,274,672
Current assets REEE
Properties under development for sale FHERREDYE 17 1,313,819 1,014,408
Properties held for sale FHEYE 17 471,334 584,077
Inventories pied 20 35,561 25,753
Trade and other receivables B3 REMERERR 21 135,526 80,924
Investments in securities EERE 19 17,620 20,598
Fixed bank deposits with more than three BEAZEREIHZ
months to maturity when raised EHRITER 22 132,449 62,350
Bank balances and cash RiTEFREE 22 1,875,619 1,876,768
3,981,928 3,664,878
Current liabilities nEaE
Trade and other payables B REMMERRR 23 458,154 399,334
Lease liabilities HEafE 24 3,253 2,710
Contract liabilities RiNERE 25 9,693 771
Derivative financial instruments SRIFTETE 27 - 1,808
Borrowings — due within one year iz — R—ER I 26 563,845 480,469
Taxation payable FEfIiRzR 186,570 33,370
1,221,515 918,462
Net current assets MHBESE 2,760,413 2,746,416
Total assets less current liabilities BEERRHEAE 14,962,357 14,021,088
Non-current liabilities FrBaE
Other payables EttEfIiRR 23 107,146 98,116
Lease liabilities HEaf 24 2,663 3,487
Borrowings — due after one year iz — R—E %35 26 1,295,377 993,376
Deferred tax liabilities EXRIEEE 28 322,760 260,726
1,727,946 1,355,705
13,234,411 12,665,383
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2021 2020 >

Z8C-% 3 -

NOTES HK$'000 HK$'000 m

s AETR BETR b

x

Equity e ;

Share capital Rz 29 381,535 381,535 ¥

Reserves i 12,765,169 12,196,132 ﬁ

Equity attributable to: R R |

Owners of the Company y NGl 13,146,704 12,577,667
Non-controlling interests JFERR R ER 87,707 87,716
Total equity fRfEeE 13,234,411 12,665,383

The consolidated financial statements on pages 168 to 300 % 168 E 300 B 2 4S5 BHREREH
were approved and authorised for issue by the Board of —E-_—G&=-HB+HEZESoiERIS
Directors on 10 March 2022 and are signed on its behalf by:  #2%/7 » WHTIATHKREE ;

MR. LIU LIT CHI MR. CHENG YUK WO
BAEkE EpERANTE
CHAIRMAN, MANAGING DIRECTOR CHAIRMAN OF
AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER AUDIT COMMITTEE
FE - EFBEERITHAEH BREECTE
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY &rea#m &gk

For the year ended 31 December 2021 H#E=Z-—F+-B=1+—HILFE

At 1 January 2021

A _E_—5—F—H

Profit (loss) for the year
Fair value gain on investments in equity instruments at FVTOCI
Exchange differences arising on translation of foreign operations

Share of other comprehensive income of joint ventures

Other comprehensive income for the year

FEEET (55)

BRATEEF AR MEZARG 2 B TEATEE T
BRI EBELEZERER
FridaEtEHMEE T

*EEHMEZERT

Total comprehensive income (expense) for the year

Investment revaluation reserve reclassified to accumulated profits upon disposal of equity
instruments at FVTOC

Transferred from accumulated profits to statutory surplus reserve

Dividends recognised as distribution (note 12)

TEEREWE (X)) B
HERR TAREM P EER RN 2 RES MR

HRRENEE LR
ERZADRZRE (H5E12)

At 31 December 2021

(=S —4+-A=+-F




=
=
>
2
Attributable to owners of the Company E
FATRRMER =
Property Investment Statutory Non- 3
Share Special revaluation revaluation Exchange surplus Accumulated controlling 3
capital reserve reserve reserve reserve reserve profits Total interests Total x
MRES REE( EERER R ﬁ
23 HT it i ERfR i 3£l a5t R a5t i
HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
EBTR BETT EBTT BEBTR BBTT EBTR BETR EBTR BEBTR EBTR
(note a) (note b) (note ¢)
((iED) (WtEED) (MsEo)
381,535 13,915 2,956,817 (125,983) 388,688 85,674 8,877,021 12,577,667 87,716 12,665,383
- - - - - - 427,302 427,302 (6,656) 420,646
- - - 192,706 - - - 192,706 - 192,706
- - - - 111,715 - - 111,715 6,647 118,362
- - - - 105 - - 105 - 105
- - - 192,706 111,820 - - 304,526 6,647 311,173
- - - 192,706 111,820 - 427,302 731,828 9) 731,819
- - - (43,664) - - 43,664 - - -
- - - - - 2,865 (2,865) - - -
- - - - - - (162,791) (162,791) - (162,791)
381,535 13,915 2,956,817 23,059 500,508 88,539 9,182,331 13,146,704 87,707 13,234,411
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY &rea#m &gk

For the year ended 31 December 2021 H#E=Z-—F+-B=1+—HILFE

At 1 January 2020

R_E_EF—F—H

Profit for the year
Fair value loss on investments in equity instruments at FVTOCI
Exchange differences arising on translation of foreign operations

Share of other comprehensive income of joint ventures

Other comprehensive (expense) income for the year

EEET

BRATEEF AR MEERD 2 B TREATEESR
HREBINEBELEZERER
FridaEtEHMEE T

FEEHMEE (KH) Wi

Total comprehensive (expense) income for the year

Transferred from accumulated profits to statutory surplus reserve
Dividends recognised as distribution (note 12)

Dividends to non-controlling interests

TEERME (XH) KEBE

HRRENEE LR
BEZADRZRE (Hz12)
*fIFIRERRREZZRE

At 31 December 2020

A—B_EF+_B=+—H




Attributable to owners of the Company

KARRREL

Property Investment Statutory Non-

Share Special revaluation revaluation Exchange surplus Accumulated controlling
capital reserve reserve reserve reserve reserve profits Total interests Total

MEES REEf B iR
[z RGE i 1 ER A i KGR st P st
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BETT BETT BT BETT BT BETT BETT BETT BETT BETT

(note a) (note b) (note ¢)
(MizEa) (MED) (MtEq)
381,535 13915 2,956,817 (28,502) 69,485 61,018 8,939,767 12,394,035 76,185 12,470,220
- - - - - - 162,560 162,560 10,950 173,510
- - - (97,481) - - - (97,481) - (97,481)
- - - - 316,399 - - 316,399 13,981 330,380
- - - - 2,804 - - 2,804 - 2,804
- - - (97,481) 319,203 - - 221,722 13,981 235,703
- - - (97,481) 319,203 - 162,560 384,282 24,931 409,213
- - - - - 24,656 (24,656) - - -
- - - - - - (200,650) (200,650) - (200,650)
- - - - - - - - (13,400) (13,400)
381,535 13,915 2,956,817 (125,983) 388,688 85,674 8,877,021 12,571,667 87,716 12,665,383
notes:

(@)  Special reserve represents the difference between the consideration paid and the carrying values of the underlying assets and liabilities attributable
to the additional interest in a subsidiary acquired during the years ended 31 December 2004 and 31 December 2012.

(b)  Property revaluation reserve represents the reserve arising from valuation of properties under property, plant and equipment upon transfer to
investment properties in previous years.

(c)  The statutory surplus reserve (“SSR") is an appropriation from accumulated profits by subsidiaries of the Company in the People’s Republic of China
(“PRC"). In accordance with the Company Law of the PRC, the PRC subsidiaries of the Company are required to allocate 10% of their profit after tax
to the SSR until such reserve reaches 50% of the registered capital of that subsidiary. The SSR may be converted to increase capital subject to certain
restrictions set out in the Company Law of the PRC.

Wik :

@  BREEEFEEREECZENET A=+ RLFEREECE-“ETAST-ALFER-HHBARMZ ARBREEZRBARDEIMEG 2 HHEEREER
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS &irelRERE R

For the year ended 31 December 2021 H#E=Z-—F+-B=1+—HILFE

2021 2020
ZEC-f ZZI%E
HK$'000 HK$'000
BETR BT
Operating Activities mEEs
Profit before tax PaiREnER 668,703 246,616
Adjustments for: B
(Gain) loss on changes in fair value of REVMEATEESS (ka) BB
investment properties (379,142) 136,196
Gain on transfer of property inventories to MEZEEREREE NG
investment properties - (81,350)
Loss (gain) on changes in fair value of financial BATEEIAERZEHEE
assets at fair value through profit or loss ATEEEZEEE (KR
("FVTPL") 2,978 (2,507)
(Gain) loss on changes in fair value of derivative SRTETRATEELS (W) BE
financial instruments (1,720) 5,972
Dividend income from investments REREBA (6,186) (34,760)
Interest income FIEWBA (45,295) (51,870)
Share of results of joint ventures Frib e s (27,374) (44,218)
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment ¥ BERRETE 71,965 70,845
Depreciation of right-of-use assets FEEEERE 3,446 5,013
Finance costs WA 23,521 43,171
Loss on disposal of property, plant and equipment  HEY¥ « BERZEFE 3,654 1,840
Operating cash flows before movements in KitEBES Y KEHETE
working capital 314,550 294,948
(Increase) decrease in trade and other receivables B2 R EMEERSZ (L) H (50,477) 8,270
Decrease in contract costs BHREZED - 4,061
Decrease in properties held for sale FHENEZRD 115,793 150,644
Increase in properties under development for sale FHERRDYE LM (272,634) (61,318)
(Increase) decrease in inventories &2 (18m) & (9,111) 1,187
Increase (decrease) in trade and other payables B2 R EMEMRRZEMRL) 48,737 (69,881)
Increase (decrease) in contract liabilities BNEEZEMED) 8,899 (49,219)
Decrease in derivative financial instruments TSR TERD (88) (12,005)
Cash generated from operations REXBMERE 155,669 266,687
Income tax paid EfIFER (37,543) (68,240)
Dividend received on investments BRRERE 6,186 34,760
Interest received BIkFHE 45,295 51,870
Net cash from operating activities TR e 2GR 169,607 285,077




m
2
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z
[a]
2021 2020 >
Z8C-% 3 -
NOTES HK$'000 HK$'000 m
Wit BT BT 3
=
Investing Activities 1BgEE) ;
Addition of equity instruments at FVTOCI BATEESAEZEREZ #
BRTAZEN (691) (23,706) ﬁ
Proceed from disposal of equity instruments at HERATEEFAEMZENEZ
FVTOC R LAMSHE 357,468 -
Addition of financial assets at FVTPL BN ESt A BEZEHEE 2L - (15,608)
Proceed from disposal of financial assets at ~ HERATEEFABEZEHEE
FVTPL - 15,614
Purchase of property, plant and equipment BEYE BERRE (17,724) (9,722)
Capital investment in joint ventures SR BREE (90,660) -
Advance to a joint venture EaErYE (30,734) -
Repayments from joint ventures RELEED 35,971 19,947
Dividend received from joint ventures REELEBBZRE 18,265 -
Net cash outflows on acquisition of WEHBAR Z RE R R
a subsidiary 35 (111,558) -
Addition of investment properties HEYE 7N (57,494) (73,670)
Placement of fixed bank deposits with more ~ ZA={AB#%3IHZ
than three months to maturity when raised ~ EEE{T7ER (70,316) (110,092)
Release of fixed bank deposits with more HE=ER %52
than three months to maturity when raised ~ EEE{TER 50,814 13,284
Net cash from (used in) investing RETEE (R 2R& 38
activities 83,341 (183,953)
Financing Activities MEES
New borrowings raised HEVS (B 699,000 401,376
Repayments of borrowings BEED (664,256) (443,782)
Repayment to former shareholder of BEMBARRRRZIE
a subsidiary (115,816) -
Repayments of lease liabilities BERESE (3,662) (5,223)
Dividends paid EfRE (162,791) (214,050)
Interest paid on borrowings EREHHE (20,997) (41,150)
Net cash used in financing activities BB EEFMAZRE RS (268,522) (302,829)
Net decrease in cash and cash equivalents RERFEZEER R FE (15,574) (201,705)
Cash and cash equivalents at 1 January —B—-BZRERREZ(EER 1,876,768 2,039,861
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes MR HhFEE 2 E 14,425 38,612
Cash and cash equivalents at 31 December +ZA=+—HZR& kAL EEHER 1,875,619 1,876,768
Represented by: B
Bank balances and cash RTERREE 1,875,619 1,876,768
177
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 December 2021 H#E=Z-—F+-B=1+—HILFE

1. GENERAL INFORMATION

Liu Chong Hing Investment Limited (the “Company”) is a
public limited liability company incorporated in Hong Kong
and its shares are listed on The Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited (“Stock Exchange”). The address of the
registered office and principal place of business of the
Company is disclosed in the Corporate Information section
to the annual report.

The principal activities of the Company are property
investment and investment holding. The principal activities
of the principal subsidiaries and joint ventures are shown in
notes 41 and 18, respectively.

The consolidated financial statements are presented in
Hong Kong dollars (“HK$"), which is also the functional
currency of the Company.
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2. APPLICATION OF AMENDMENTS TO HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs")
AMENDMENTS TO HKFRSs THAT ARE MANDATORILY
EFFECTIVE FOR THE CURRENT YEAR
In the current year, the Group has applied the following
amendments to HKFRSs issued by the Hong Kong Institute
of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA") for the first
time, which are mandatorily effective for the annual periods
beginning on or after 1 January 2021 for the preparation of
the consolidated financial statements:

Amendment to HKFRS 16 Covid-19-Related Rent

Concessions

Amendments to HKFRS 9,
HKAS 39, HKFRS 7,
HKFRS 4 and HKFRS 16

Interest Rate Benchmark
Reform — Phase 2

In addition, the Group applied the agenda decision of the
IFRS Interpretations Committee of the International
Accounting Standards Board issued in June 2021 which
clarified the costs an entity should include as “estimated
costs necessary to make the sale” when determining the net
realisable value of inventories.

Except as described below, the application of the
amendments to HKFRSs in the current year has had no
material impact on the Group’s financial positions and
performance for the current and prior years and/or on the
disclosures set out in these consolidated financial
statements.

2. EREEITEEMBREEN

FEIERMBHESENRBERET
Ex
FERNRTFEEMEREAERGS M
BREAERRAEBMBRESEARE
PAEASSIER ZIRBEIEST KL T H
BERGSMAGEMEN —_ S _—F—
B—BEZ &M FERREEGER
2RI BB TR RAER KRAEET

BBMBREER MERE
B 1631E5] A BRI E
R
BEBMBHREERFINR - MREE
BRGFERSE 39 5% - Bt

ERVBRESENE 75
ERNBHREENFE AR
&R RS ER
F165R(85T 4

tEsh > AEEER T BB iR S 2R
RERREENEEER _S-—%
NERGZERRAE > EBENAEEES
SRR ER OIS MHEME 2R
Z] e

B _REER

BRTIXFE > AFERAEBHUHRE
ZRREDHRMSER ZRANIERT
REEITEBMBREENLER AL
BRAFERBEFEZMHFRERNR
NR/ BREREMBRERFABZIRE
FEBRERERTE -

=
=
>
2
@
>
-
=
m
v
=]
=
-
ks
#
#
b

-
N
©

ETHEXRITHEA

BEEHFT-——&= |



-
-]
o

1207 140d34 TYNNNY | QILIAIM INIWLISIANI ONIH ONOHD NIl

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2. APPLICATION OF AMENDMENTS TO HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs")
(CONTINUED)

IMPACTS ON APPLICATION OF AMENDMENTS TO
HKFRS 9, HKAS 39, HKFRS 7, HKFRS 4 AND HKFRS
16 INTEREST RATE BENCHMARK REFORM

— PHASE 2

2.1

The Group has applied the amendments for the first time in
the current year. The amendments relate to changes in the
basis for determining the contractual cash flows of financial
assets, financial liabilities and lease liabilities as a result of
interest rate benchmark reform, specific hedge accounting
requirements and the related disclosure requirements
applying HKFRS 7 Financial Instruments: Disclosures (“HKFRS
7").

As at 1 January 2021, the Group has several borrowings, the
interests of which are indexed to benchmark rates that will
or may be subject to interest rate benchmark reform. The
following table shows the total amounts of these
outstanding contracts. The amounts of borrowings are
shown at their carrying amounts.

rE AR

2. FRHEEITEEMBERSERN
(%)

2.1 EREAMBHESENT IR - F
RAEHENRE39M - FTEMBR
SENF7R - FRMBRSEN
FARRERAMBHEENFE 16
SRIESTHFIERBENE — F2HR
34 %
FERREFEEEREAKIE o %IE
AP hBEEHMEE ERMARENEE
BENERRERNEREFREEN
E-BEHPEAERNEEAEREE
MR EERBIREMTA - KEZW
BEXRMEENEIE -

BE_Z_—F5—A—B > s&5BEH
EEM HABERHAIEETHRE
ENEREEF REH o TRINHRT
ARG EER - EMERIZHEREE
HITR o

Hong Kong
Interbank Offered
Rate (“HIBOR")
FRMITRAERS
HK$'000

BT 7T

Financial liabilities — borrowings

TRBE — B8

1,423,000

The amendments have had no impact on the consolidated
financial statements as none of the relevant contracts has
been transitioned to the relevant replacement rates during
the year. The Group will apply the practical expedient in
relation to the changes in contractual cash flows resulting
from the interest rate benchmark reform for borrowings
measured at amortised cost. Additional disclosures as
required by HKFRS 7 are set out in note 37.
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2. APPLICATION OF AMENDMENTS TO HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs")

(CONTINUED)

NEW AND AMENDMENTS TO HKFRSs IN ISSUE BUT NOT

YET EFFECTIVE

The Group has not early applied the following new and

amendments to HKFRSs that have been issued but are not

yet effective:

HKFRS 17

Amendments to HKFRS 3

Amendments to HKFRS 10
and HKAS 28

Amendment to HKFRS 16

Amendments to HKAS 1

Amendments to HKAS 1 and
HKFRS Practice Statement 2

Amendments to HKAS 8

Amendments to HKAS 12

Amendments to HKAS 16

Amendments to HKAS 37

Amendments to HKFRSs

Insurance Contracts and the
related Amendments?

Reference to the Conceptual
Framework?

Sale or Contribution of Assets
between an Investor and its
Associate or Joint Venture®

Covid-19-Related Rent Concessions
beyond 30 June 2021

Classification of Liabilities as Current
or Non-current and related
amendments to Hong Kong
Interpretation 5 (2020)

Disclosure of Accounting Policies®

Definition of Accounting
Estimates®

Deferred Tax related to Assets and
Liabilities arising from a
Single Transaction?

Property, Plant and Equipment —
Proceeds before Intended Use?

Onerous Contracts — Cost of
Fulfilling a Contract?

Annual Improvements to
HKFRSs 2018 — 20202

! Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 April 2021.

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2022.

8 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2023.

4 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after a date to be determined.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2. APPLICATION OF AMENDMENTS TO HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs")
(CONTINUED)

NEW AND AMENDMENTS TO HKFRSs IN ISSUE BUT NOT

YET EFFECTIVE (CONTINUED)

Except for the new and amendments to HKFRSs mentioned

below, the directors of the Company anticipate that the

application of all other new and amendments to HKFRSs
will have no material impact on the consolidated financial
statements in the foreseeable future.

AMENDMENTS TO HKFRS 3 REFERENCE TO THE
CONCEPTUAL FRAMEWORK
The amendments:

e update a reference in HKFRS 3 Business Combinations
so that it refers to the Conceptual Framework for
Financial Reporting 2018 issued in June 2018 (the
"Conceptual Framework") instead of Framework for
the Preparation and Presentation of Financial
Statements (replaced by the Conceptual Framework for
Financial Reporting 2010 issued in October 2010);

e add a requirement that, for transactions and other
events within the scope of HKAS 37 Provisions,
Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets or
HK(IFRIC)-Int 21 Levies, an acquirer applies HKAS 37 or
HK(IFRIC)-Int 21 instead of the Conceptual Framework
to identify the liabilities it has assumed in a business
combination; and

e add an explicit statement that an acquirer does not
recognise contingent assets acquired in a business
combination.

The application of the amendments is not expected to have
significant impact on the financial position and
performance of the Group.
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2. APPLICATION OF AMENDMENTS TO HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs")
(CONTINUED)

AMENDMENTS TO HKAS 1 AND HKFRS PRACTICE

STATEMENT 2 DISCLOSURE OF ACCOUNTING POLICIES
HKAS 1 is amended to replace all instances of the term
“significant accounting policies” with “material accounting
policy information”. Accounting policy information is
material if, when considered together with other
information included in an entity’s financial statements, it
can reasonably be expected to influence decisions that the
primary users of general purpose financial statements make
on the basis of those financial statements.

The amendments also clarify that accounting policy
information may be material because of the nature of the
related transactions, other events or conditions, even if the
amounts are immaterial. However, not all accounting policy
information relating to material transactions, other events
or conditions is itself material. If an entity chooses to
disclose immaterial accounting policy information, such
information must not obscure material accounting policy
information.

HKFRS Practice Statement 2 Making Materiality Judgements
(the "Practice Statement”) is also amended to illustrate how
an entity applies the “four-step materiality process” to
accounting policy disclosures and to judge whether
information about an accounting policy is material to its
financial statements. Guidance and examples are added to
the Practice Statement.

The application of the amendments is not expected to have
significant impact on the financial position or performance
of the Group but may affect the disclosures of the Group’s
significant accounting policies. The impacts of application,
if any, will be disclosed in the Group’s future consolidated
financial statements.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2. APPLICATION OF AMENDMENTS TO HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs")
(CONTINUED)

AMENDMENTS TO HKAS 8 DEFINITION OF ACCOUNTING
ESTIMATES
The amendments define accounting estimates as “monetary
amounts in financial statements that are subject to
measurement uncertainty”. An accounting policy may
require items in financial statements to be measured in a
way that involves measurement uncertainty — that is, the
accounting policy may require such items to be measured at
monetary amounts that cannot be observed directly and
must instead be estimated. In such a case, an entity develops
an accounting estimate to achieve the objective set out by
the accounting policy. Developing accounting estimates
involves the use of judgements or assumptions based on the
latest available, reliable information.

In addition, the concept of changes in accounting estimates
in HKAS 8 is retained with additional clarifications.

The application of the amendments is not expected to have
significant impact on the Group’s consolidated financial
statements.
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3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared
in accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance. For the purpose of

3.1

preparation of the consolidated financial statements,
information is considered material if such information is
reasonably expected to influence decisions made by primary
users. In addition, the consolidated financial statements
include applicable disclosures required by the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities on Stock Exchange.

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared
on the historical cost basis except for certain properties and
financial instruments that are measured at fair values at
the end of each reporting period, as explained in the
accounting policies set out below.

Historical cost is generally based on the fair value of the
consideration given in exchange for goods and services.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset
or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction
between market participants at the measurement date,
regardless of whether that price is directly observable or
estimated using another valuation technique. In estimating
the fair value of an asset or a liability, the Group takes into
account the characteristics of the asset or liability if market
participants would take those characteristics into account
when pricing the asset or liability at the measurement date.
Fair value for measurement and/or disclosure purposes in
these consolidated financial statements is determined on
such a basis, except for share-based payment transactions
that are within the scope of HKFRS 2 Share-based Payment,
leasing transactions that are accounted for in accordance
with HKFRS 16 Leases, and measurements that have some
similarities to fair value but are not fair value, such as net
realisable value in HKAS 2 Inventories or value in use in
HKAS 36 Impairment of Assets.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into

3.1

account a market participant’s ability to generate economic
benefits by using the asset in its highest and best use or by
selling it to another market participant that would use the
asset in its highest and best use.

For financial instruments and investment properties which
are transacted at fair value and a valuation technique that
unobservable inputs is to be used to measure fair value in
subsequent periods, the valuation technique is calibrated so
that at initial recognition the results of the valuation
technique equals the transaction price.

In addition, for financial reporting purposes, fair value
measurements are categorised into Level 1, 2 or 3 based on
the degree to which the inputs to the fair value
measurements are observable and the significance of the
inputs to the fair value measurement in its entirety, which
are described as follows:

o Level 1 inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in active
markets for identical assets or liabilities that the entity
can access at the measurement date;

o Level 2 inputs are inputs, other than quoted prices
included within Level 1, that are observable for the
asset or liability, either directly or indirectly; and

e Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for the asset or
liability.
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3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

3.2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the

financial statements of the Company and entities controlled

by the Company and its subsidiaries. Control is achieved
when the Company:

e  has power over the investee;

e is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its
involvement with the investee; and

e has the ability to use its power to affect its returns.

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an investee
if facts and circumstances indicate that there are changes to
one or more of the three elements of control listed above.

Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when the Group
obtains control over the subsidiary and ceases when the
Group loses control of the subsidiary. Specifically, income
and expenses of a subsidiary acquired or disposed of during
the year are included in the consolidated statement of
profit or loss from the date the Group gains control until
the date when the Group ceases to control the subsidiary.

Profit or loss and each item of other comprehensive income
are attributed to the owners of the Company and to the
non-controlling interests. Total comprehensive income of
subsidiaries is attributed to the owners of the Company and
to the non-controlling interests even if this results in the
non-controlling interests having a deficit balance.

When necessary, adjustments are made to the financial
statements of subsidiaries to bring their accounting policies
into line with the Group’s accounting policies.

All intragroup assets and liabilities, equity, income, expenses
and cash flows relating to transactions between members
of the Group are eliminated in full on consolidation.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

3.2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Basis of consolidation (Continued)

Non-controlling interests in subsidiaries are presented

separately from the Group’s equity therein, which represent

present ownership interests entitling their holders to a

proportionate share of net assets of the relevant

subsidiaries upon liquidation.

Asset acquisitions

Optional concentration test

The Group can elect to apply an optional concentration
test, on a transaction-by-transaction basis, that permits a
simplified assessment of whether an acquired set of
activities and assets is not a business. The concentration test
is met if substantially all of the fair value of the gross assets
acquired is concentrated in a single identifiable asset or
group of similar identifiable assets. The gross assets under
assessment exclude cash and cash equivalents, deferred tax
assets, and goodwill resulting from the effects of deferred
tax liabilities. If the concentration test is met, the set of
activities and assets is determined not to be a business and
no further assessment is needed.

Asset acquisitions

When the Group acquires a group of assets and liabilities
that do not constitute a business, the Group identifies and
recognises the individual identifiable assets acquired and
liabilities assumed by allocating the purchase price first to
financial assets/financial liabilities at the respective fair
values, the remaining balance of the purchase price is then
allocated to the other identifiable assets and liabilities on
the basis of their relative fair values at the date of purchase.
Such a transaction does not give rise to goodwill or bargain
purchase gain.
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3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

3.2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
Interests in joint ventures
A joint venture is a joint arrangement whereby the parties
that have joint control of the arrangement have rights to
the net assets of the joint arrangement. Joint control is the
contractually agreed sharing of control of an arrangement,
which exists only when decisions about the relevant
activities require unanimous consent of the parties sharing
control.

The results and assets and liabilities of joint ventures are
incorporated in these consolidated financial statements
using the equity method of accounting. Under the equity
method, an investment in a joint venture is initially
recognised in the consolidated statement of financial
position at cost and adjusted thereafter to recognise the
Group’s share of the profit or loss and other comprehensive
income of the joint venture. Changes in net assets of the
joint venture other than profit or loss and other
comprehensive income are not accounted for unless such
changes resulted in changes in ownership interest held by
the Group. When the Group’s share of losses of a joint
venture exceeds the Group’s interest in that joint venture
(which includes any long-term interests that, in substance,
form part of the Group’s net investment in the joint
venture), the Group discontinues recognising its share of
further losses. Additional losses are recognised only to the
extent that the Group has incurred legal or constructive
obligations or made payments on behalf of the joint
venture.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

3.2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Interests in joint ventures (Continued)

An investment in a joint venture is accounted for using the

equity method from the date on which the investee

becomes a joint venture. On acquisition of the investment
in a joint venture, any excess of the cost of the investment
over the Group’s share of the net fair value of the
identifiable assets and liabilities of the investee is
recognised as goodwill, which is included within the
carrying amount of the investment. Any excess of the

Group’s share of the net fair value of the identifiable assets

and liabilities over the cost of the investment, after

reassessment, is recognised immediately in profit or loss in
the period in which the investment is acquired.

The Group assesses whether there is an objective evidence
that the interest in a joint venture may be impaired. When
any objective evidence exists, the entire carrying amount of
the investment (including goodwill) is tested for impairment
in accordance with HKAS 36 as a single asset by comparing
its recoverable amount (higher of value in use and fair value
less costs of disposal) with its carrying amount. Any
impairment loss recognised is not allocated to any asset,
including goodwill, that forms part of the carrying amount
of the investment. Any reversal of that impairment loss is
recognised in accordance with HKAS 36 to the extent that
the recoverable amount of the investment subsequently

increases.
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3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

3.2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Interests in joint ventures (Continued)

When the Group ceases to have joint control over a joint

venture, it is accounted for as a disposal of the entire interest

in the investee with a resulting gain or loss being recognised
in profit or loss. When the Group retains an interest in the
former joint venture and the retained interest is a financial
asset within the scope of HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments, the
Group measures the retained interest at fair value at that
date and the fair value is regarded as its fair value on initial
recognition. The difference between the carrying amount of
the joint venture and the fair value of any retained interest
and any proceeds from disposing the relevant interest in the
joint venture is included in the determination of the gain or
loss on disposal of the joint venture. In addition, the Group
accounts for all amounts previously recognised in other
comprehensive income in relation to that joint venture on
the same basis as would be required if that joint venture had
directly disposed of the related assets or liabilities. Therefore,
if a gain or loss previously recognised in other comprehensive
income by that joint venture would be reclassified to profit
or loss on the disposal of the related assets or liabilities, the

Group reclassifies the gain or loss from equity to profit or loss

(as a reclassification adjustment) upon disposal/partial

disposal of the relevant joint venture.

When a group entity transacts with a joint venture of the
Group, profits and losses resulting from the transactions
with the joint venture are recognised in the Group’s
consolidated financial statements only to the extent of
interests in the joint venture that are not related to the
Group.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

3.2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Revenue from contracts with customers

The Group recognises revenue when (or as) a performance

obligation is satisfied, i.e. when "“control” of the goods or

services underlying the particular performance obligation is
transferred to the customer.

A performance obligation represents a good or service (or a
bundle of goods or services) that is distinct or a series of
distinct goods or services that are substantially the same.

Control is transferred over time and revenue is recognised
over time by reference to the progress towards complete
satisfaction of the relevant performance obligation if one
of the following criteria is met:

e the customer simultaneously receives and consumes
the benefits provided by the Group’s performance as
the Group performs;

e the Group’s performance creates or enhances an asset
that the customer controls as the Group performs; or

e the Group’s performance does not create an asset with
an alternative use to the Group and the Group has an
enforceable right to payment for performance
completed to date.

Otherwise, revenue is recognised at a point in time when

the customer obtains control of the distinct good or service.

A contract liability represents the Group’s obligation to
transfer goods or services to a customer for which the
Group has received consideration (or an amount of
consideration is due) from the customer.

A contract liability relating to the same contract are
accounted for and presented on a net basis.
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3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

3.2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Revenue from contracts with customers (Continued)

Contracts with multiple performance obligations (including

allocation of transaction price)

For contracts that contain more than one performance

obligations (sale of properties and interior decoration

services), the Group allocates the transaction price to each
performance obligation on a relative stand-alone selling
price basis.

The stand-alone selling price of the distinct good or service
underlying each performance obligation is determined at
contract inception. It represents the price at which the
Group would sell a promised good or service separately to a
customer. If a stand-alone selling price is not directly
observable, the Group estimates it using appropriate
techniques such that the transaction price ultimately
allocated to any performance obligation reflects the
amount of consideration to which the Group expects to be
entitled in exchange for transferring the promised goods or
services to the customer.

Over time revenue recognition: measurement of progress
towards complete satisfaction of a performance obligation
Output method

The progress towards complete satisfaction of a
performance obligation is measured based on output
method, which is to recognise revenue on the basis of direct
measurements of the value of the goods or services
transferred to the customer to date relative to the
remaining goods or services promised under the contract,
that best depict the Group’s performance in transferring
control of goods or services.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

3.2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Revenue from contracts with customers (Continued)

Over time revenue recognition: measurement of progress

towards complete satisfaction of a performance obligation

(Continued)

Input method

The progress towards complete satisfaction of a

performance obligation is measured based on input

method, which is to recognise revenue on the basis of the

Group's efforts or inputs to the satisfaction of a

performance obligation relative to the total expected inputs

to the satisfaction of that performance obligation, that best
depict the Group’s performance in transferring control of
goods or services.

Contract costs

Incremental costs of obtaining a contract

Incremental costs of obtaining a contract are those costs
that the Group incurs to obtain a contract with a customer
that it would not have incurred if the contract had not been
obtained.

The Group recognises such costs (sales commissions) as an
asset if it expects to recover these costs. The asset so
recognised is subsequently amortised to profit or loss on a
systematic basis that is consistent with the transfer to the
customer of the goods or services to which the assets relate.

The Group applies the practical expedient of expensing all
incremental costs to obtain a contract if these costs would
otherwise have been fully amortised to profit or loss within
one year.
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3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

3.2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Revenue from contracts with customers (Continued)

Contract costs (Continued)

Costs to fulfil a contract

The Group incurs costs to fulfil a contract in its interior

decoration contracts. The Group first assesses whether these

costs qualify for recognition as an asset in terms of other
relevant standards, failing which it recognises an asset for
these costs only if they meet all of the following criteria:

(@) the costs relate directly to a contract or to an
anticipated contract that the Group can specifically
identify;

(b) the costs generate or enhance resources of the Group
that will be used in satisfying (or in continuing to
satisfy) performance obligations in the future; and

(c) the costs are expected to be recovered.

The asset so recognised is subsequently amortised to profit
or loss on a systematic basis that is consistent with the
transfer to the customer of the goods or services to which
the assets relate. The asset is subject to impairment review.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

3.2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Leasing

Definition of a lease

A contract is, or contains, a lease if the contract conveys the

right to control the use of an identified asset for a period of

time in exchange for consideration.

For contracts entered into or modified on or after the date
of initial application of HKFRS 16 or arising from business
combinations, the Group assesses whether a contract is or
contains a lease based on the definition under HKFRS 16 at
inception, modification date or acquisition date, as
appropriate. Such contract will not be reassessed unless the
terms and conditions of the contract are subsequently
changed. As a practical expedient, leases with similar
characteristics are accounted on a portfolio basis when the
Group reasonably expects that the effects on the
consolidated financial statements would not differ
materially from individual leases within the portfolio.

The Group as a lessee

Allocation of consideration to components of a contract

For a contract that contains a lease component and one or
more additional lease or non-lease components, the Group
allocates the consideration in the contract to each lease
component on the basis of the relative stand-alone price of
the lease component and the aggregate stand-alone price
of the non-lease components.

The Group applies practical expedient not to separate non-
lease components from lease component, and instead
account for the lease component and any associated non-
lease components as a single lease component.
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3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

3.2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
Leasing (Continued)
The Group as a lessee (Continued)
Short-term leases
The Group applies the short-term lease recognition
exemption to leases of land and building that have a lease
term of 12 months or less from the commencement date
and do not contain a purchase option. Lease payments on
short-term leases are recognised as expense on a straight-
line basis or another systematic basis over the lease term.

Right-of-use assets
The cost of right-of-use asset includes:

e the amount of the initial measurement of the lease
liability;

e  any lease payments made at or before the commencement
date, less any lease incentives received;

e any initial direct costs incurred by the Group; and

e an estimate of costs to be incurred by the Group in
dismantling and removing the underlying assets, restoring
the site on which it is located or restoring the underlying
asset to the condition required by the terms and conditions
of the lease.

Except for those that are classified as investment properties
and measured under fair value model, right-of-use assets
are measured at cost, less any accumulated depreciation
and impairment losses, and adjusted for any remeasurement
of lease liabilities.

Right-of-use assets in which the Group is reasonably certain
to obtain ownership of the underlying leased assets at the
end of the lease term are depreciated from commencement
date to the end of the useful life. Otherwise, right-of-use
assets are depreciated on a straight-line basis over the
shorter of its estimated useful life and the lease term.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

3.2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Leasing (Continued)

The Group as a lessee (Continued)

Right-of-use assets (Continued)

The Group presents right-of-use assets that do not meet the

definition of investment property or inventory as a separate

line item on the consolidated statement of financial position.

Right-of-use assets that meet the definition of investment

property and inventory are presented within “investment

properties” and “properties under development for sale/
properties held for sale”, respectively.

Refundable rental deposits

Refundable rental deposits paid are accounted under HKFRS
9 and initially measured at fair value. Adjustments to fair
value at initial recognition are considered as additional
lease payments and included in the cost of right-of-use
assets.

Lease liabilities

At the commencement date of a lease, the Group recognises
and measures the lease liability at the present value of lease
payments that are unpaid at that date. In calculating the
present value of lease payments, the Group uses the
incremental borrowing rate at the lease commencement
date if the interest rate implicit in the lease is not readily
determinable.
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3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED 3. BNRAVBEREERTED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT sHELER (48)
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

3.2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED) 3.2 FE®EE (48)
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Leasing (Continued) s (@

The Group as a lessee (Continued) KEFELFAFN (18)
Lease liabilities (Continued) HE&E (&)

The lease payments include: HEMMEE :

e fixed payments (including in-substance fixed payments) o RBEMH(BEEEENEE M)

less any lease incentives receivable; RIEFEWHEEEE ;

e variable lease payments that depend on an index ora o $RFISEEHFERMEN T ESHE
rate, initially measured using the index or rate as at RIERG B FE RIS FIXEET
the commencement date; FYastE

e amounts expected to be payable by the Group under e IREFGREEERFEEAZZSNE
residual value guarantees; X

e the exercise price of a purchase option if the Group is o ZHREBSERERTITEESEIE
reasonably certain to exercise the option; and RERVITEE &

e  payments of penalties for terminating a lease, if the o {HfAEARMAE B TITEEZFRER
lease term reflects the Group exercising an option to LEFEE > AT AR IETRERSIFR o
terminate the lease.

After the commencement date, lease liabilities are adjusted R EIIAEHA%E > HEAGBMEANER
by interest accretion and lease payments. HEMRIELRE -

The Group remeasures lease liabilities (and makes a ZAEERUTERENEHSEE L

corresponding adjustment to the related right-of-use assets) FLERAERESE(FIEERE) !
whenever:

e the lease term has changed or there is a change inthe e« FHEREENEMTEESENTG

assessment of exercise of a purchase option, in which BE > RIBERT > HEAEEAE
case the related lease liability is remeasured by FBERANEHR TG B BN ET
discounting the revised lease payments using a revised BRI KRB E T ERIEMER
discount rate at the date of reassessment. = o

e the lease payments change due to changes in market o FEHBERETHIBHESAEES 1;9
rental rates following a market rent review in which SiESEHMEIREE > FIHBR 3
cases the related lease liability is remeasured by T B EaEE BERYIBR E
discounting the revised lease payments using the initial REYPIREETHEREMENT =
discount rate. o °

The Group presents lease liabilities as a separate line item ZHXEBNRGZEMBERIRTEHEEAR
on the consolidated statement of financial position. EABEB/MNIEEEY o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

3.2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Leasing (Continued)

The Group as a lessee (Continued)

Lease modifications

The Group accounts for a lease modification as a separate

lease if:

e the modification increases the scope of the lease by
adding the right to use one or more underlying assets;
and

e the consideration for the leases increases by an amount
commensurate with the stand-alone price for the
increase in scope and any appropriate adjustments to
that stand-alone price to reflect the circumstances of
the particular contract.

For a lease modification that is not accounted for as a
separate lease, the Group remeasures the lease liability
based on the lease term of the modified lease by
discounting the revised lease payments using a revised
discount rate at the effective date of the modification.

The Group accounts for the remeasurement of lease
liabilities by making corresponding adjustments to the
relevant right-of-use asset. When the modified contract
contains a lease component and one or more additional
lease or non-lease components, the Group allocates the
consideration in the modified contract to each lease
component on the basis of the relative stand-alone price of
the lease component. The associated non-lease components
are included in the respective lease components.
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3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

3.2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
Leasing (Continued)
The Group as a lessor
Classification and measurement of leases
Leases for which the Group is a lessor are classified as
finance or operating leases. Whenever the terms of the
lease transfer substantially all the risks and rewards
incidental to ownership of an underlying asset to the lessee,
the contract is classified as a finance lease. All other leases
are classified as operating leases.

Rental income from operating leases is recognised in profit
or loss on a straight-line basis over the term of the relevant
lease. Initial direct costs incurred in negotiating and
arranging an operating lease are added to the carrying
amount of the leased asset, and such costs are recognised as
an expense on a straight-line basis over the lease term
except for investment properties measured under fair value
model. Variable lease payments for operating leases that
depend on an index or a rate are estimated and included in
the total lease payments to be recognised on a straight-line
basis over the lease term. Variable lease payments that do
not depend on an index or a rate are recognised as income
when they arise.

Interest and rental income which are derived from the
Group’s ordinary course of business are presented as

revenue.

Allocation of consideration to components of a contract
When a contract includes both leases and non-lease
components, the Group applies HKFRS 15 Revenue from
Contracts with Customers to allocate consideration in a
contract to lease and non-lease components. Non-lease
components are separated from lease component on the
basis of their relative stand-alone selling prices.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

3.2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Leasing (Continued)

The Group as a lessor (Continued)

Refundable rental deposits

Refundable rental deposits received are accounted for under

HKFRS 9 and initially measured at fair value. Adjustments to

fair value at initial recognition are considered as additional

lease payments from lessees.

Lease modification

Changes in considerations of lease contracts that were not
part of the original terms and conditions are accounted for
as lease modifications, including lease incentives provided
through forgiveness or reduction of rentals.

The Group accounts for a modification to an operating lease
as a new lease from the effective date of the modification,
considering any prepaid or accrued lease payments relating
to the original lease as part of the lease payments for the
new lease.

Foreign currencies

In preparing the financial statements of each individual
group entity, transactions in currencies other than the
functional currency of that entity (foreign currencies) are
recognised at the rates of exchanges prevailing on the dates
of the transactions. At the end of the reporting period,
monetary items denominated in foreign currencies are
retranslated at the rates prevailing at that date. Non-
monetary items carried at fair value that are denominated
in foreign currencies are retranslated at the rates prevailing
on the date when the fair value was determined. Non-
monetary items that are measured in terms of historical cost
in a foreign currency are not retranslated.
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3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

3.2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
Foreign currencies (Continued)
Exchange differences arising on the settlement of monetary
items, and on the retranslation of monetary items, are
recognised in profit or loss in the period in which they arise,
except for exchange differences on monetary items
receivable from or payable to a foreign operation for which
settlement is neither planned nor likely to occur (therefore
forming part of the net investment in the foreign
operation), which are recognised initially in other
comprehensive income and reclassified from equity to profit
or loss on disposal or partial disposal of the Group’s
interests in joint ventures.

For the purposes of presenting the consolidated financial
statements, the assets and liabilities of the Group’s
operations are translated into the presentation currency of
the Group (i.e. HK$) using exchange rates prevailing at the
end of each reporting period. Income and expenses items
are translated at the average exchange rates for the period,
unless exchange rates fluctuate significantly during that
period, in which case the exchange rates at the date of
transactions are used. Exchange differences arising, if any,
are recognised in other comprehensive income and
accumulated in equity under the heading of exchange
reserve (attributed to non-controlling interests as
appropriate).

On the disposal of a foreign operation (i.e. a disposal of the
Group's entire interest in a foreign operation, or a disposal
involving loss of control over a subsidiary that includes a
foreign operation, or a partial disposal of an interest in a
joint arrangement that includes a foreign operation of
which the retained interest becomes a financial asset), all of
the exchange differences accumulated in equity in respect
of that operation attributable to the owners of the
Company are reclassified to profit or loss.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

3.2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
Borrowing costs
Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of qualifying assets, which are
assets that necessarily take a substantial period of time to
get ready for their intended use or sale, are added to the
cost of those assets until such time as the assets are
substantially ready for their intended use or sale.

Any specific borrowing that remain outstanding after the
related asset is ready for its intended use or sale is included
in the general borrowing pool for calculation of
capitalisation rate on general borrowings. Investment
income earned on the temporary investment of specific
borrowings pending their expenditure on qualifying assets
is deducted from the borrowing costs eligible for
capitalisation.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss in
the period in which they are incurred.

Government grants

Government grants are not recognised until there is
reasonable assurance that the Group will comply with the
conditions attaching to them and that the grants will be
received.

Government grants are recognised in profit or loss on a
systematic basis over the periods in which the Group
recognises as expenses the related costs for which the
grants are intended to compensate.

Government grants related to income that are receivable as
compensation for expenses or losses already incurred or for
the purpose of giving immediate financial support to the
Group with no future related costs are recognised in profit
or loss in the period in which they become receivable. Such
grants are presented under “other income”.
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3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

3.2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Employee benefits

Retirement benefit costs

Payments to defined contribution retirement benefit plans

are recognised as an expense when employees have

rendered service entitling them to the contributions.

Termination benefits

A liability for a termination benefit is recognised at the
earlier of when the Group entity can no longer withdraw
the offer of the termination benefit and when it recognises
any related restructuring costs.

Short-term and other long-term employee benefits
Short-term employee benefits are recognised at the
undiscounted amount of the benefits expected to be paid
as and when employees rendered the services. All short-
term employee benefits are recognised as an expense unless
another HKFRS requires or permits the inclusion of the
benefit in the cost of an asset.

A liability is recognised for benefits accruing to employees
(such as wages and salaries, annual leave and sick leave)
after deducting any amount already paid.

Liabilities recognised in respect of other long-term
employee benefits are measured at the present value of the
estimated future cash outflows expected to be made by the
Group in respect of services provided by employees up to
the reporting date. Any changes in the liabilities’ carrying
amounts resulting from service cost, interest and
remeasurements are recognised in profit or loss except to
the extent that another HKFRS requires or permits their
inclusion in the cost of an asset.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

3.2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Taxation

Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently

payable and deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the
year. Taxable profit differs from profit before tax because
of income or expense that are taxable or deductible in
other years and items that are never taxable or deductible.
The Group’s liability for current tax is calculated using tax
rates that have been enacted or substantively enacted by
the end of the reporting period.

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences
between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the
consolidated financial statements and the corresponding
tax bases used in the computation of taxable profit.
Deferred tax liabilities are generally recognised for all
taxable temporary differences. Deferred tax assets are
generally recognised for all deductible temporary
differences to the extent that it is probable that taxable
profits will be available against which those deductible
temporary differences can be utilised. Such deferred tax
assets and liabilities are not recognised if the temporary
difference arises from the initial recognition (other than in
a business combination) of assets and liabilities in a
transaction that affects neither the taxable profit nor the
accounting profit. In addition, deferred tax liabilities are
not recognised if the temporary difference arises from the
initial recognition of goodwill.
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3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

3.2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
Taxation (Continued)
Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary
differences associated with investments in subsidiaries and
interests in joint ventures, except where the Group is able
to control the reversal of the temporary difference and it is
probable that the temporary difference will not reverse in
the foreseeable future. Deferred tax assets arising from
deductible temporary differences associated with such
investments and interests are only recognised to the extent
that it is probable that there will be sufficient taxable
profits against which to utilise the benefits of the temporary
differences and they are expected to reverse in the
foreseeable future.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at
the end of each reporting period and reduced to the extent
that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits
will be available to allow all or part of the asset to be
recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax
rates that are expected to apply in the period in which the
liability is settled or the asset is realised, based on tax rate
(and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively
enacted by the end of the reporting period.

The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and assets
reflects the tax consequences that would follow from the
manner in which the Group expects, at the end of the
reporting period, to recover or settle the carrying amount
of its assets and liabilities.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

3.2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
Taxation (Continued)
For the purposes of measuring deferred tax liabilities or
deferred tax assets for investment properties that are
measured using the fair value model, the carrying amounts
of such properties are presumed to be recovered entirely
through sale, unless the presumption is rebutted. The
presumption is rebutted when the investment property is
depreciable and is held within a business model whose
objective is to consume substantially all of the economic
benefits embodied in the investment property over time,
rather than through sale.

For the purposes of measuring deferred tax for leasing
transactions in which the Group recognises the right-of-use
assets and the related lease liabilities, the Group first
determines whether the tax deductions are attributable to
the right-of-use assets or the lease liabilities.

For leasing transactions in which the tax deductions are
attributable to the lease liabilities, the Group applies HKAS
12 requirements to right-of-use assets and lease liabilities
separately. Temporary differences on initial recognition of
the relevant right-of-use assets and lease liabilities are not
recognised due to application of the initial recognition
exemption. Temporary differences arising from subsequent
revision to the carrying amounts of right-of-use assets and
lease liabilities, resulting from remeasurement of lease
liabilities and lease modifications, that are not subject to
initial recognition exemption are recognised on the date of
remeasurement or modification.
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3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

3.2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Taxation (Continued)

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a

legally enforceable right to set off current tax assets against

current tax liabilities and when they relate to income taxes
levied to the same taxable entity by the same taxation
authority.

Current and deferred tax are recognised in profit or loss,
except when they relate to items that are recognised in
other comprehensive income or directly in equity, in which
case, the current and deferred tax are also recognised in
other comprehensive income or directly in equity
respectively.

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are tangible assets that are
held for use in the production or supply of goods or
services, or for administrative purposes (other than freehold
land as described below). Property, plant and equipment
are stated in the consolidated statement of financial
position at cost less subsequent accumulated depreciation
and subsequent accumulated impairment losses, if any.

Freehold land is not depreciated and is measured at cost
less subsequent accumulated impairment losses.

When the Group makes payments for ownership interests
of properties which includes both leasehold land and
building elements, the entire consideration is allocated
between the leasehold land and the building elements in
proportion to the relative fair values at initial recognition.
To the extent the allocation of the relevant payments can
be made reliably, interest in leasehold land that is
accounted for as an operating lease is presented as “right-
of-use assets” in the consolidated statement of financial
position. When the consideration cannot be allocated
reliably between non-lease building element and undivided
interest in the underlying leasehold land, the entire
properties are classified as property, plant and equipment.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

3.2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
Property, plant and equipment (Continued)
Depreciation is recognised so as to write off the cost of
assets other than freehold land less their residual values
over their estimated useful lives, using the straight-line
method. The estimated useful lives, residual values and
depreciation method are reviewed at the end of each
reporting period, with the effect of any changes in estimate
accounted for on a prospective basis.

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised
upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are
expected to arise from the continued use of the asset. Any
gain or loss arising on the disposal or retirement of an item
of property, plant and equipment is determined as the
difference between the sales proceeds and the carrying
amount of the asset and is recognised in profit or loss.

Investment properties
Investment properties are properties held to earn rentals
and/or for capital appreciation.

Investment properties also include leased properties which
are being recognised as right-of-use assets and subleased by
the Group under operating leases.

Investment properties are initially measured at cost,
including any directly attributable expenditure. Subsequent
to initial recognition, investment properties are measured
at fair value, adjusted to exclude any prepaid or accrued
operating lease income.

Gains or losses arising from changes in the fair value of
investment properties are included in profit or loss for the
period in which they arise.
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3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

3.2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Investment properties (Continued)

An investment property is derecognised upon disposal or

when the investment property is permanently withdrawn

from use and no future economic benefits are expected

from its disposal. A leased property which is recognised as a

right-of-use asset is derecognised if the Group as

intermediate lessor classifies the sublease as a finance lease.

Any gain or loss arising on derecognition of the property

(calculated as the difference between the net disposal

proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset) is included

in profit or loss in the period in which the property is
derecognised.

Impairment on property, plant and equipment and
right-of-use assets

At the end of the reporting period, the Group reviews the
carrying amounts of its property, plant and equipment and
right-of-use assets to determine whether there is any
indication that these assets have suffered an impairment
loss. If any such indication exists, the recoverable amount of
the relevant asset is estimated in order to determine the
extent of the impairment loss (if any).

The recoverable amount of property, plant and equipment,
and right-of-use assets are estimated individually. When it is
not possible to estimate the recoverable amount
individually, the Group estimates the recoverable amount
of the cash-generating unit to which the asset belongs.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

3.2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
Impairment on property, plant and equipment and
right-of-use assets (Continued)
In testing a cash-generating unit for impairment, corporate
assets are allocated to the relevant cash-generating unit
when a reasonable and consistent basis of allocation can be
established, or otherwise they are allocated to the smallest
group of cash generating units for which a reasonable and
consistent allocation basis can be established. The
recoverable amount is determined for the cash-generating
unit or group of cash-generating units to which the
corporate asset belongs, and is compared with the carrying
amount of the relevant cash-generating unit or group of
cash-generating units.

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs of
disposal and value in use. In assessing value in use, the
estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present
value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current
market assessments of the time value of money and the
risks specific to the asset (or a cash-generating unit) for
which the estimates of future cash flows have not been
adjusted.
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3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

3.2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
Impairment on property, plant and equipment and
right-of-use assets (Continued)
If the recoverable amount of an asset (or a cash-generating
unit) is estimated to be less than its carrying amount, the
carrying amount of the asset (or a cash-generating unit) is
reduced to its recoverable amount. For corporate assets or
portion of corporate assets which cannot be allocated on a
reasonable and consistent basis to a cash-generating unit,
the Group compares the carrying amount of a group of
cash-generating units, including the carrying amounts of
the corporate assets or portion of corporate assets allocated
to that group of cash-generating units, with the recoverable
amount of the group of cash-generating units. In allocating
the impairment loss, the impairment loss is allocated on a
pro-rata basis based on the carrying amount of each asset
in the unit or the group of cash-generating units. The
carrying amount of an asset is not reduced below the
highest of its fair value less costs of disposal (if measurable),
its value in use (if determinable) and zero. The amount of
the impairment loss that would otherwise have been
allocated to the asset is allocated pro rata to the other
assets of the unit or the group of cash-generating units. An
impairment loss is recognised immediately in profit or loss.

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the
carrying amount of the asset (or cash-generating unit or a
group of cash-generating units) is increased to the revised
estimate of its recoverable amount, but so that the
increased carrying amount does not exceed the carrying
amount that would have been determined had no
impairment loss been recognised for the asset (or a cash-
generating unit or a group of cash-generating units) in
prior years. A reversal of an impairment loss is recognised
immediately in profit or loss.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

3.2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable

value. Costs of inventories are determined on a weighted

average method. Net realisable value represents the
estimated selling price for inventories less all estimated
costs of completion and costs necessary to make the sale.

Costs necessary to make the sale include incremental costs

directly attributable to the sale and non-incremental costs

which the Group must incur to make the sale.

Properties under development for sale/properties for
sale

Properties under development for sale which are intended
to be sold upon completion of development and properties
for sale are classified as current assets. Except for the
leasehold land element which is measured at cost model in
accordance with the accounting policies of right-of-use
assets, properties under development for sale/properties for
sale are carried at the lower of cost and net realisable value.
Cost is determined on a specific identification basis
including allocation of the related development
expenditure incurred and where appropriate, borrowing
costs capitalised. Net realisable value represents the
estimated selling price for the properties less estimated cost
to completion and costs necessary to make the sales. Costs
necessary to make the sale include incremental costs directly
attributable to the sale and non-incremental costs which
the Group must incur to make the sale.

Properties under development for sale are transferred to
properties for sale upon completion.

The Group transfers a property from inventories to
investment property when there is a change in use to hold
the property to earn rentals or/and for capital appreciation
rather than for sale in the ordinary course of business,
which is evidenced by the inception of an operating lease to
another party. Any difference between the fair value of the
property at the date of transfer and its previous carrying
amount is recognised in profit or loss.
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3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

3.2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
Financial instruments
Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised when
a group entity becomes a party to the contractual provisions
of the instrument. All regular way purchases or sales of
financial assets are recognised and derecognised on a trade
date basis. Regular way purchases or sales are purchases or
sales of financial assets that require delivery of assets within
the time frame established by regulation or convention in
the market place.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially measured
at fair value except for trade receivables arising from
contracts with customers which are initially measured in
accordance with HKFRS 15. Transaction costs that are
directly attributable to the acquisition or issue of financial
assets and financial liabilities (other than financial assets or
financial liabilities at FVTPL) are added to or deducted from
the fair value of the financial assets or financial liabilities, as
appropriate, on initial recognition. Transaction costs directly
attributable to the acquisition of financial assets or financial
liabilities at FVTPL are recognised immediately in profit or
loss.

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the
amortised cost of a financial asset or financial liability and
of allocating interest income and interest expense over the
relevant period. The effective interest rate is the rate that
exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts and
payments (including all fees and points paid or received
that form an integral part of the effective interest rate,
transaction costs and other premiums or discounts) through
the expected life of the financial asset or financial liability,
or, where appropriate, a shorter period, to the net carrying
amount on initial recognition.

Interest/dividend income which are derived from the
Group’s ordinary course of business are presented as
revenue.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

3.2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets

Classification and subsequent measurement of financial

assets

Financial assets that meet the following conditions are

subsequently measured at amortised cost:

e the financial asset is held within a business model
whose objective is to collect contractual cash flows;
and

e the contractual terms give rise on specified dates to
cash flows that are solely payments of principal and
interest on the principal amount outstanding.

Financial assets that meet the following conditions are
subsequently measured at FVTOCI:

e the financial asset is held within a business model
whose objective is achieved by both selling and
collecting contractual cash flows; and

e the contractual terms give rise on specified dates to
cash flows that are solely payments of principal and
interest on the principal amount outstanding.

All other financial assets are subsequently measured at
FVTPL, except that at initial recognition of a financial asset
the Group may irrevocably elect to present subsequent
changes in fair value of an equity investment in other
comprehensive income if that equity investment is neither
held for trading nor contingent consideration recognised by
an acquirer in a business combination to which HKFRS 3
Business Combinations applies.
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3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

3.2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Classification and subsequent measurement of financial

assets (Continued)

A financial asset is held for trading if:

e it has been acquired principally for the purpose of
selling in the near term; or

e on initial recognition it is a part of a portfolio of
identified financial instruments that the Group
manages together and has a recent actual pattern of
short-term profit-taking; or

e itis a derivative that is not designated and effective as
a hedging instrument.

In addition, the Group may irrevocably designate a financial
asset that are required to be measured at the amortised
cost or FVTOCI as measured at FVTPL if doing so eliminates
or significantly reduces an accounting mismatch.

(i) Amortised cost and interest income

Interest income is recognised using the effective interest
method for financial assets measured subsequently at
amortised cost and receivables subsequently measured at
FVTOCI. Interest income is calculated by applying the
effective interest rate to the gross carrying amount of a
financial asset, except for financial assets that have
subsequently become credit-impaired (see below). For
financial assets that have subsequently become credit-
impaired, interest income is recognised by applying the
effective interest rate to the amortised cost of the financial
asset from the next reporting period. If the credit risk on
the credit-impaired financial instrument improves so that
the financial asset is no longer credit-impaired, interest
income is recognised by applying the effective interest rate
to the gross carrying amount of the financial asset from the
beginning of the reporting period following the
determination that the asset is no longer credit-impaired.

3. BNGOMBERREERIETD
sHELER (£8])

3.2 EEEEHEER (4])
SMIA &)

EHEE (B8)
THEEZTEREERE (&)

HETIER  EHEEDDEAFE

8B

e WEZETHMEEZANEIEREAR
ARREE ; 3

o RUBHEIE > ZTMEEATE
EHEEEZEHNEMTIAES
Z—#5 > TEEARFEEREH
EFEL ; 5

s ZEMEBEEAFEEZMEIAKR
ABEREREHHFIA -

5N » AR E BB A B E 35 E —IRA
REBERANBEATFEESAREMER
Wt ENERMEEANEAFEESA
Bz st 8 > WL RHBRE KRR & 5t
$HAC ©

(i) HERERFEBA

FBWRATLERERRBHKRAERN
THEEREBREATEESAHMSE
W w5t 2 R B R B BRF 205 F
LIFESE - FIBWAT B —HERME ER
HABERBAERMNETLUGE  EHE
HIREERENEREERIMNETX) -
MERHBEERENEHEEMS
BT —HREHE  FERADHE/ME
FE A 55 P 7S FE P B PR R R T LARE ST © 11
SERETHMIANGEERRTE &
THEEFTBLHREERAE REEE
EfBEREEHER  BRSHRS
EFBRANHE/MEEREDBERER
BIRH KT LIRS o

&
2
>
2
a
>
-
F)
m
v
o
=
-
x
#
#
b

N
-
~N

ETHEXRITHEA

BEEHFT-——&= |



-
©

1207 140d34 TYNNNY | QILIAIM INIWLISIANI ONIH ONOHD NIl

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

3.2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Classification and subsequent measurement of financial

assets (Continued)

(ii) Equity instruments designated as at FVTOCI

Investments in equity instruments at FVTOCI are
subsequently measured at fair value with gains and losses
arising from changes in fair value recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated in the investment
revaluation reserve; and are not subject to impairment
assessment. The cumulative gain or loss will not be
reclassified to profit or loss on disposal of the equity
investments, and will be transferred to accumulated profits.

Dividends from these investments in equity instruments are
recognised in profit or loss when the Group’s right to
receive the dividends is established, unless the dividends
clearly represent a recovery of part of the cost of the
investment.

(iii) Financial assets at FVTPL

Financial assets that do not meet the criteria for being
measured at amortised cost or FVTOCI or designated as
FVTOCI are measured at FVTPL.

Financial assets at FVTPL are measured at fair value at the
end of each reporting period, with any fair value gains or
losses recognised in profit or loss. The net gain or loss
recognised in profit or loss excludes any dividend or interest
earned on the financial asset and is included in the ‘other
gains and losses’ line item.
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3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

3.2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)
Impairment of financial assets
The Group performs impairment assessment under expected
credit loss (“ECL"”) model on financial assets (including trade
receivables, lease receivables, deposits paid and other
receivables, loans advanced to joint ventures, fixed bank
deposits with more than three months to maturity when
raised and bank balances) which are subject to impairment
assessment under HKFRS 9. The amount of ECL is updated at
each reporting date to reflect changes in credit risk since
initial recognition.

Lifetime ECL represents the ECL that will result from all
possible default events over the expected life of the
relevant instrument. In contrast, 12-month ECL (“12m ECL")
represents the portion of lifetime ECL that is expected to
result from default events that are possible within 12
months after the reporting date. Assessments are done
based on the Group’s historical credit loss experience,
adjusted for factors that are specific to the debtors, general
economic conditions and an assessment of both the current
conditions at the reporting date as well as the forecast of
future conditions.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

3.2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

The Group always recognises lifetime ECL for trade

receivables and lease receivables.

For all other instruments, the Group measures the loss
allowance equal to 12m ECL, unless when there has been a
significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition, in
which case the Group recognises lifetime ECL. The
assessment of whether lifetime ECL should be recognised is
based on significant increases in the likelihood or risk of a
default occurring since initial recognition.

(i) Significant increase in credit risk

In assessing whether the credit risk has increased
significantly since initial recognition, the Group compares
the risk of a default occurring on the financial instrument as
at the reporting date with the risk of a default occurring on
the financial instrument as at the date of initial recognition.
In making this assessment, the Group considers both
quantitative and qualitative information that is reasonable
and supportable, including historical experience and
forward-looking information that is available without
undue cost or effort.
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3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

3.2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

(i) Significant increase in credit risk (Continued)

In particular, the following information is taken into
account when assessing whether credit risk has increased
significantly:

e an actual or expected significant deterioration in the
financial instrument’s external (if available) or internal
credit rating;

e significant deterioration in external market indicators
of credit risk, e.g. a significant increase in the credit
spread, the credit default swap prices for the debtor;

e existing or forecast adverse changes in business,
financial or economic conditions that are expected to
cause a significant decrease in the debtor’s ability to
meet its debt obligations;

e an actual or expected significant deterioration in the
operating results of the debtor;

e an actual or expected significant adverse change in the
regulatory, economic, or technological environment of
the debtor that results in a significant decrease in the
debtor’s ability to meet its debt obligations.

Irrespective of the outcome of the above assessment, the
Group presumes that the credit risk has increased
significantly since initial recognition when contractual
payments are more than 30 days past due, unless the Group
has reasonable and supportable information that
demonstrates otherwise.

The Group regularly monitors the effectiveness of the
criteria used to identify whether there has been a significant
increase in credit risk and revises them as appropriate to
ensure that the criteria are capable of identifying significant
increase in credit risk before the amount becomes past due.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

3.2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

(ii) Definition of default

For internal credit risk management, the Group considers an
event of default occurs when information developed
internally or obtained from external sources indicates that
the debtor is unlikely to pay its creditors, including the
Group, in full (without taking into account any collaterals
held by the Group).

Irrespective of the above, the Group considers that default
has occurred when a financial asset is more than 90 days
past due unless the Group has reasonable and supportable
information to demonstrate that a more lagging default
criterion is more appropriate.

(iii) Credit-impaired financial assets

A financial asset is credit-impaired when one or more events
that have a detrimental impact on the estimated future
cash flows of that financial asset have occurred. Evidence
that a financial asset is credit-impaired includes observable
data about the following events:

(a) significant financial difficulty of the issuer or the

borrower;

(b) a breach of contract, such as a default or past due

event;

(c) the lender(s) of the borrower, for economic or
contractual reasons relating to the borrower’s financial
difficulty, having granted to the borrower a
concession(s) that the lender(s) would not otherwise
consider; or

(d) it is becoming probable that the borrower will enter
bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation.
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3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

3.2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

(iv) Write-off policy

The Group writes off a financial asset when there is
information indicating that the counterparty is in severe
financial difficulty and there is no realistic prospect of
recovery, for example, when the counterparty has been
placed under liquidation or has entered into bankruptcy
proceedings, or in the case of trade receivables, when the
amounts are over two years past due, whichever occurs
sooner. Financial assets written off may still be subject to
enforcement activities under the Group's recovery
procedures, taking into account legal advice where
appropriate. A write-off constitutes a derecognition event.
Any subsequent recoveries are recognised in profit or loss.

(v) Measurement and recognition of ECL

The measurement of ECL is a function of the probability of
default, loss given default (i.e. the magnitude of the loss if
there is a default) and the exposure at default. The
assessment of the probability of default and loss given
default is based on historical data adjusted by forward-
looking information. Estimation of ECL reflects an unbiased
and probability-weighted amount that is determined with
the respective risks of default occurring as the weights.

Generally, the ECL is the difference between all contractual
cash flows that are due to the Group in accordance with the
contract and the cash flows that the Group expects to
receive, discounted at the effective interest rate determined
at initial recognition.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

3.2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

(v)

Except for debtors with significant outstanding balances or

Measurement and recognition of ECL (Continued)

credit-impaired which are assessed individually, lifetime ECL
for remaining debtors are considered on a collective basis
taking into consideration of grouping of internal credit
rating by reference to past due information and relevant
credit information, and forward-looking macroeconomic
information that is available without undue cost or effort.
The grouping is regularly reviewed by management to
ensure the constituents of each group continue to share
similar credit risk characteristics.

Interest income is calculated based on the gross carrying
amount of the financial asset unless the financial asset is
credit-impaired, in which case interest income is calculated
based on amortised cost of the financial asset.

The Group recognises an impairment gain or loss in profit
or loss for all financial instruments by adjusting their
carrying amount, with the exception of trade receivables
where the corresponding adjustment is recognised through
a loss allowance account.
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3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

3.2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Derecognition of financial assets

The Group derecognises a financial asset only when the

contractual rights to the cash flows from the asset expire, or

when it transfers the financial asset and substantially all the
risks and rewards of ownership of the asset to another
entity.

On derecognition of a financial asset measured at amortised
cost, the difference between the asset’s carrying amount
and the sum of the consideration received and receivable is
recognised in profit or loss.

On derecognition of an investment in equity instrument
which the Group has elected on initial recognition to
measure at FVTOCI, the cumulative gain or loss previously
accumulated in the investment revaluation reserve is not
reclassified to profit or loss, but is transferred to
accumulated profits.

Financial liabilities and equity

Classification as debt or equity

Debt and equity instruments issued by a group entity are
classified as either financial liabilities or as equity in
accordance with the substance of the contractual
arrangements and the definitions of a financial liability and
an equity instrument.

Equity instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a
residual interest in the assets of an entity after deducting all
of its liabilities. Equity instruments issued by the Group are
recognised at the proceeds received, net of direct issue
costs.

Financial liabilities

All financial liabilities are subsequently measured at
amortised cost using the effective interest method or at
FVTPL.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

3.2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial liabilities and equity (Continued)

Financial liabilities at FVTPL

Financial liabilities are classified as at FVTPL when the

financial liability is (i) contingent consideration of an

acquirer in a business combination to which HKFRS 3

applies, (ii) held for trading or (iii) it is designated as at

FVTPL.

A financial liability is held for trading if:

o it has been acquired principally for the purpose of
repurchasing it in the near term; or

e on initial recognition it is part of a portfolio of
identified financial instruments that the Group
manages together and has a recent actual pattern of
short-term profit-taking; or

o it is a derivative, except for a derivative that is a
financial guarantee contract or a designated and
effective hedging instrument.

A financial liability other than a financial liability held for
trading or contingent consideration of an acquirer in a
business combination may be designated as at FVTPL upon
initial recognition if:

e  such designation eliminates or significantly reduces a
measurement or recognition inconsistency that would
otherwise arise; or

e the financial liability forms part of a group of financial
assets or financial liabilities or both, which is managed
and its performance is evaluated on a fair value basis,
in accordance with the Group’s documented risk
management or investment strategy, and information
about the grouping is provided internally on that basis;
or

o it forms part of a contract containing one or more
embedded derivatives, and HKFRS 9 permits the entire
combined contract to be designated as at FVTPL.
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3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

3.2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial liabilities and equity (Continued)
Financial liabilities at FVTPL (Continued)
For financial liabilities that are designated as at FVTPL, the
amount of change in the fair value of the financial liability
that is attributable to changes in the credit risk of that
liability is recognised in other comprehensive income, unless
the recognition of the effects of changes in the liability’s
credit risk in other comprehensive income would create or
enlarge an accounting mismatch in profit or loss.

Financial liabilities at amortised cost
Financial liabilities (including trade and other payables, and
borrowings) are subsequently measured at amortised cost,
using the effective interest method.

Derecognition of financial liabilities

The Group derecognises financial liabilities when, and only
when, the Group’s obligations are discharged, cancelled or
have expired. The difference between the carrying amount
of the financial liability derecognised and the consideration
paid and payable is recognised in profit or loss.

Changes in the basis for determining the contractual cash
flows as a result of interest rate benchmark reform

For changes in the basis for determining the contractual
cash flows of a financial liability to which the amortised cost
measurement applies as a result of interest rate benchmark
reform, the Group applies the practical expedient to
account for these changes by updating the effective interest
rate, such change in effective interest rate normally has no
significant effect on the carrying amount of the relevant
financial liability.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

3.2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial liabilities and equity (Continued)

Changes in the basis for determining the contractual cash

flows as a result of interest rate benchmark reform

(Continued)

A change in the basis for determining the contractual cash

flows is required by interest rate benchmark reform if and

only if, both these conditions are met:

e the change is necessary as a direct consequence of
interest rate benchmark reform; and

e the new basis for determining the contractual cash
flows is economically equivalent to the previous basis
(i.e. the basis immediately preceding the change).

Derivative financial instruments

Derivatives are initially recognised at fair value at the date
when derivative contracts are entered into and are
subsequently remeasured to their fair value at the end of
the reporting period. The resulting gain or loss is recognised
in profit or loss immediately unless the derivative is
designated and effective as a hedging instrument, in which
event the timing of the recognition in profit or loss depends
on the nature of the hedge relationship.

rE AR

3. RNGOMEBERREERIETD
BHECSR (47)

3.2 FEFEHEER (4])

SMIA (&)

EHEERKETA ()
MNERBENFEPRESHRETREN
HRES 21 (8)

EHEEREREUTREE G > F
FEENEREQNERTESNRER=E
ROEHE

s FANRBENENEERGER B
BEERVERN ; M

s BMEANREREBNHERETLHE
L ERMUATVERR Bz
AIRYERE) o

EHMITETR
MTEIARTTEIRGWNEILERUR
FEEVIES > LEERNRSHARE
MEABEHATEE EENRTHE
BIUMEREFER  RIFZTETR
WIEERABRNEHPTE > TEEER
T WEERIE i BY R FE BSUR IS ¥ R AR B9
MHE o



4. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND KEY
SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY

In the application of the Group’s accounting policies, which
are described in note 3, the directors of the Company are
required to make judgements, estimates and assumptions
about the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities that are
not readily apparent from other sources. The estimates and
associated assumptions are based on historical experience
and other factors that are considered to be relevant. Actual
results may differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on
an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are
recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised if
the revision affects only that period, or in the period of the
revision and future periods if the revision affects both
current and future periods.

CRITICAL JUDGEMENTS IN APPLYING ACCOUNTING
POLICIES

The following are the critical judgements, apart from those
involving estimations (see below), that the directors of the
Company have made in the process of applying the Group’s
accounting policies and that have the most significant effect
on the amounts recognised in the consolidated financial
statements.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

4. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND KEY
SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY
(CONTINUED)

CRITICAL JUDGEMENTS IN APPLYING ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Deferred taxation on investment properties

For the purposes of measuring deferred tax liabilities or

deferred tax assets arising from investment properties that

are measured using the fair value model, the directors of
the Company have reviewed the Group’s investment
property portfolios in Hong Kong and the PRC and
concluded that (a) the Group’s investment properties in

Hong Kong are not held under a business model whose

objective is to consume substantially all of the economic

benefits embodied in the investment properties over time,

(b) the Group’s investment properties in the PRC are held

under a business model whose objective is to consume

substantially all of the economic benefits embodied in the
investment properties over time. Therefore, in determining
the Group’s deferred taxation on investment properties in

Hong Kong, the directors of the Company have determined

that the presumption that the carrying amounts of

investment properties measured using the fair value model

are recovered entirely through sale is not rebutted. As a

result, the Group has not recognised any deferred taxes on

changes in fair value of investment properties located in

Hong Kong as the Group is not subject to any income taxes

on disposal of these investment properties. The

presumption that the carrying amounts of the Group’s
investment properties situated in the PRC are recovered
entirely through sale has been rebutted and the deferred
tax on the changes in fair value of those investment
properties is recognised according to the relevant tax rules.
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4. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND KEY
SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY
(CONTINUED)

KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY
The following are the key assumptions concerning the
future, and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at
the end of the reporting period, that may have a significant
risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying
amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial
year.

Fair value of investment properties

Investment properties are carried in the consolidated
statement of financial position at 31 December 2021 at their
fair value, details of which are disclosed in note 14. The fair
value of the investment properties was determined by
reference to valuations conducted on these properties by an
independent qualified professional valuer using property
valuation techniques which involve certain assumptions of
prevailing market conditions. Favourable or unfavourable
changes to these assumptions may result in changes in the
fair value of the Group’s investment properties and
corresponding adjustments to the changes in fair value
reported in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and
the carrying amount of these properties included in the
consolidated statement of financial position. The carrying
amount of the Group’s investment properties at 31
December 2021 is approximately HK$9,525,573,000 (2020:
HK$9,000,490,000).

Income taxes

As at 31 December 2021, a deferred tax asset in relation to
unused tax losses of approximately HK$186,201,000 (2020:
HK$179,001,000) has been recognised in the Group’s
consolidated statement of financial position. No deferred
tax asset has been recognised on the tax losses of
approximately HK$729,511,000 (2020: HK$700,592,000) due
to the unpredictability of future profit streams. The
realisability of the deferred tax asset mainly depends on
whether sufficient future profits or taxable temporary
differences will be available in the future. In cases where
the actual future profits generated are less than expected, a
material reversal of deferred tax assets may arise, which
would be recognised in profit or loss for the period in which
such a reversal takes place.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %

5.
(V)

REVENUE
DISAGGREGATION OF REVENUE FROM CONTRACTS
WITH CUSTOMERS

An analysis of the Group’s revenue and the reconciliation of

the revenue from contracts with customers with the

amounts disclosed in the segment information is as follows:

5. W=

BMBWRMEE

(i) BERFITSFAOWA DR

FEEBANDITRERT RSO
BN EERFTIRE T ERAVERRIT ¢

2021 2020
—8-—& - 73
HK$'000 HK$'000
BETRT BETT
Property development MEER
— Sale of properties —MEHE 238,970 223,156
— Interior decoration services —EREERE - 2,812
Property management MEERE 22,005 21,643
Trading and manufacturing BRREE 102,866 71,251
Hotel operation G 114,061 45,707
Revenue from contracts with customers  BER&KHIKE 477,902 364,569
Property investment (note) YIRS (i) 305,782 320,423
Treasury investment HERE
— Interest income —FEIBA 45,295 51,870
— Dividend income —REBA 6,186 34,760
Total revenue ] 835,165 771,622
note: Operating lease payments mainly includes base rental. Leases are negotiated for M SERAARTELEEARE - BHZHENEBA—EN

term ranging from one to eight years with monthly fixed rental.

FREREERS



5. REVENUE (CONTINUED) 5. Uik (48)
(i) DISAGGREGATION OF REVENUE FROM CONTRACTS (i) BIERZEITSRMNKA DR (48)
WITH CUSTOMERS (CONTINUED)
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 BE_T_—F+-A=+—HILEFE
Property Property Property Treasury Trading and Hotel
investment development management investment  manufacturing operation Total
NERE NEER NEER HiRE BRREE EEEE s
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
bR TR TR TR TR Gt v Gt v
Sale of properties YIEHE - 238,970 - - - - 238,970
Property management MEER - - 22,005 - - - 22,005
Trading and manufacturing ~ BZR&E - - - - 102,866 - 102,866
Hotel operation BELE - - - - - 114,061 114,061
Revenue from contracts HER NN
with customers - 238,970 22,005 - 102,866 114,061 477,902
Property investment e 305,782 - - - - - 305,782
Interest income FIEWA - - - 45,295 - - 45,295
Dividend income REBA - - - 6,186 - - 6,186
Segment revenue vacl G 305,782 238,970 22,005 51,481 102,866 114,061 835,165
Property Property Trading and Hotel
development  management manufacturing operation Total
MELR MEEE BB RNE BEGE st
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BEBTR BEBTR BBTT EBTR BRTR
Geographical markets METE
Hong Kong &8 - 22,005 - 104,482 126,487
PRC HE 238,970 — 102,866 9,154 350,990
Thailand ZE - - - 425 425
Total 4zt 238,970 22,005 102,866 114,061 477,902
Timing of revenue recognition Rk
A point in time F-EEL 238,970 - 102,866 19,627 361,463
Over time BERRE - 22,005 - 94,434 116,439
Total st 238,970 22,005 102,866 114,061 477,902
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 4 & 8 53R R MW 5

5. REVENUE (CONTINUED) 5. Uik (48)
(i) DISAGGREGATION OF REVENUE FROM CONTRACTS (i) BIERZEITSRMNKA DR (48)
WITH CUSTOMERS (CONTINUED)

For the year ended 31 December 2020 HE_Z-_ZF+-_A=1+—HILEE

Property Property Property Treasury Trading and Hotel
investment development management investment manufacturing operation Total
NERE NELR ES] HERE BRRiE pil] 3t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BT BT BT BT BT BT BT
Sale of properties MEHE - 223,156 - - - - 223,156
Interior decoration services LR - 2812 - - - - 2,812
Property management MEER - - 21,643 - - - 21,643
Trading and manufacturing ~ BZR&E - - - - 71,251 - 71,251
Hotel operation BIEEE - - - - - 45,707 45,707
Revenue from contracts HER &N
with customers - 225,968 21,643 - 71,251 45,707 364,569
Property investment MERE 320,423 - - - - - 320,423
Interest income FEWA - - - 51,870 - - 51,870
Dividend income REMA - - - 34,760 - - 34,760
Segment revenue AElE 320,423 225,968 21,643 86,630 71,251 45,707 771,622
Property Property Trading and Hotel
development management  manufacturing operation Total
MELR MEEE BARNE BELE st
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BETR BETT BETT BETR BETT
Geographical markets HEHS
Hong Kong & - 21,643 - 37,709 59,352
PRC e 225,968 - 71,251 7,998 305,217
Total wazt 225,968 21,643 71,251 45,707 364,569
Timing of revenue recognition SR s B
A point in time KRR 223,156 - 71,251 13,360 307,767
Over time BERE 2,812 21,643 - 32,347 56,802
Total gt 225,968 21,643 71,251 45,707 364,569




5. REVENUE (CONTINUED)
(i) PERFORMANCE OBLIGATIONS FOR CONTRACTS
WITH CUSTOMERS
Property development
For contracts entered into with customers on sales of
properties, the relevant properties specified in the contracts
are based on customer’s specifications with no alternative
use. Taking into consideration of the relevant contract
terms, the legal environment and relevant legal precedent,
the Group concluded that the Group does not have an
enforceable right to payment prior to transfer of the
relevant properties to customers. Revenue from sales of
properties is therefore recognised at a point in time when
the completed property is transferred to customers, being
at the point that the customer obtains the control of the
completed property and the Group has present right to
payment and collection of the consideration is probable.

The Group receives deposits from customers pursuant to the
payment terms of the sale and purchase agreement. Such
advance payment results in contract liabilities being
recognised throughout the property construction period.

The Group provides interior decoration services to these
customers. Such services are recognised as a performance
obligation satisfied over time as the Group creates or
enhances an asset that the customer controls as the asset is
created or enhanced. Revenue is recognised for these
construction services based on the stage of completion of
the contract using input method.

The Group's interior decoration contracts include payment
schedules which require stage payments over the
construction period. The Group requires customers to
provide upfront deposits, when the Group receives a
deposit before construction commences, this will give rise to
contract liabilities at the start of a contract, until the
revenue recognised on the specific contract exceeds the
amount of the deposit.

5. Wi (4)
(i) ERSHMNEHEE

MERR
MEEMERERITUNSHAMS > &
WRIERRRERAM R EREREX
wEHMERRR - K BHEBSHOKF
M ARRIERERERLS > A&EH
ey TEEERYETERA > &
I 3t 48 WA EIR A R B9 A SR Y AT AR o
I HEMENRZNR BB TYEREE
FTERHNEMMES  IERESER
T4 5= B 422 ) e T s B [ 8 WU A K
Z BB K ] BE UK ER B RV BF R RS o

FEBRBEEHZNARERRAZT A
WER IS o TR RERNYEER
RSB aNaRE -

FEBRZEFERIRH-ERNEERT -
HREEEREREF > BRARBIRE
EEARNRARE R ERNEER

wmRETREABITHENSE -
ZERRRBHN = RESHTHEER
ERRA AR °

FEBRNERARESHEERANERN
EH R A MBI NREER - sEEE
REFRMEMIE  HAEENRER
FIARTULEI R > AR & KR E
EEANEaE BEERRBESHNREIMN
WamiBiRiE T £ o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

5. REVENUE (CONTINUED)

(i) PERFORMANCE OBLIGATIONS FOR CONTRACTS
WITH CUSTOMERS (CONTINUED)

Property development (Continued)

All the interior decoration services are for periods of one

year or less. As permitted under HKFRS 15, the transaction

price allocated to the unsatisfied contracts is not disclosed.

Property management

Revenue from property management represents charge-out
collections, which consist of payments in respect of the
operation of the properties which are payable by the
tenants, are recognised over time using output method
when the services and facilities are provided. The Group
elected to apply the practical expedient by recognising
revenue in the amount to which the Group has right to
invoice, since the Group is entitled to bill a fixed amount in
advance for each month according to the terms of the
relevant lease. As permitted under HKFRS 15, the aggregate
amount of the transaction price allocated to the unsatisfied
contracts is not disclosed.

Trading and manufacturing

For sales of magnetic products, revenue is recognised when
control of the goods has transferred to customers, being
when the goods have been shipped to the customer’s
specific location (delivery). Following the delivery, the
customer has full discretion over the manner of distribution
and price to sell the goods, has the primary responsibility
when on selling the goods and bears the risks of
obsolescence and loss in relation to the goods. The normal
credit term is 30 to 90 days upon delivery.

Hotel operation

Hotel room revenue from customers is recognised over time
using output method when the service and facilities are
provided. All the hotel operation services are for periods of
one year or less. As permitted under HKFRS 15, the
transaction price allocated to the unsatisfied contracts is not
disclosed.

Revenue from food and beverages is recognised when the
food and beverage are delivered to the customers.

rE AR

5. W (48)
(ii) EREHNEHRE (R)

MERR (8])
FREERRERBAP—FHIUT - R
BEBMBHRSZENE 15RAAHE
EFRETEHONRZERTHRE -

MEER

MEEERF UK ERREHER
BUAEREEZZEMENMR > IR
15 B 75 P 5% It By 166 PR 4% Hi VA 7 — ER S )
RFESE - AN A& E P RFEMEER
REARMBKEETEE > AEEKA
BBEENE MAEEARFARER
MEEmEDN D RSBV BREE
AINAIITHEEES % - REBEBMHBRS
ZRF155FHE > DERFREITEL
MR 5 BHRERR TN EE ©

BRRNE

MHEMEERMS > EERZIEFI®E
EEBETFTRR  IEERBEZXERFR
FEE B AL (3R 1) FFRE SRR & o M3 AT
B BERAUZENBRAESHAXNKE
mEE TREHESR EEER
ERBBERIERZAR - RRXHE F
BH—MA30F90H °

BIEEE

B 5 2 B Wk IS 12 4 AR 755 T =% Tt RS 5 AR
REZEE—REREAES - RAEER
ERBHOHEBA—FREE - REFE
ARSI E R B 15 RFTHtE  DECTFR
BITEHNRZERTHE -

B oM B A TR B A EUR 32 Y
MR R RESD o



6. SEGMENT INFORMATION 6. AEAEHE

Information reported to the executive directors of the ZHRATIMPITES > BIETEBLERFEA »
Company, being the chief operating decision maker FERDEIFZIERIIMERZ D
(“CODM™"), for the purposes of resources allocation or $E&E¥ > LIRS EENFTIRHMHER
assessment of segment performance focuses on types of FRIEEEBDITEE - TELEREA
goods and services delivered or provided. No operating WEEXREBEZ 2RO ER > HEE
segments identified by the CODM have been aggregated in B #BIM{EAZSEDEESHEIE o
arriving at the reportable segment of the Group.
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Specifically, the Group’s operating and reportable segments EEBMFEHREERFE 8RB ESEARE

under HKFRS 8 Operating Segments are as follows: BZzE#BREBAOENT :

1. Property investment — investment and letting of 1. #ERKRE —YEKEKRHEE
properties

2. Property development — development and sale of 2. ¥¥EXE —YEXERIHE
properties

3. Property management — provision of property 3. #¥EBIE —IZ2HEYESER
management services

4. Treasury investment — dealings and investments in 4, BiiEEE — S5 EREMSHTAEN
securities and other financial instruments RAKRKE

5. Trading and manufacturing — manufacture and sale of 5  BEKSliE — Btk ERILIGERIHE
magnetic products

6. Hotel operation — management and operation of 6. FELES — BESERSESNERR
hotels and food & beverage business E-3
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

6. SEGMENT INFORMATION (CONTINUED) 6.

SEGMENT REVENUE AND RESULTS

The following is an analysis of the Group’s revenue and
results by operating and reportable segments.

SFERH (R)
Sl B AR

ES VL

For the year ended 31 December 2021
Segment revenue
Comprising:

— revenue from customers

— inter-segment transactions (note)

Operating expenses
Gain on changes in fair value of investment properties
Loss on changes in fair value of financial assets at FVTPL
Gain on changes in fair value of derivative

financial instruments

HE_E-_—F+-A=+—-HLEE

B

g .

—ER

—EERRS (i)

EiERY

REMELATEEESKE

BATEE A B SREEATEBELYFE
SRTETAZ ATEEESNE

Loss on disposal of property, plant and equipment HENE « BERREZEE

Net exchange (losses) gains ERF (8518) Wz

Segment profit (loss) EET (E518)

Finance costs BT AR

Share of results of joint ventures Pt EhEEE

Profit before tax PRIR A&

note: Inter-segment transactions are charged at prevailing market prices. Mz SERARZERTHERR

rE AR

UTRABERKREBIREZAER =
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Property Property Property Treasury Trading and Hotel Segment
investment development management investment  manufacturing operation total Eliminations Consolidated
MERE MERR MEER MBEE BRRNE EIERE SRt b3l A
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BT ARTR BT BT BRTR ERTR BEBTR BT BRTR
312,826 238,970 36,150 51,481 102,866 114,423 856,716 (21,551) 835,165
305,782 238,970 22,005 51,481 102,866 114,061
7,044 = 14,145 = = 362
(136,639) (167,091) (26,947) (33,405) (96,064) (133,075) (593,221) 21,551 (571,670)
379,142 = = = = = 379,142 = 379,142
- — = (2,978) = = (2,978) = (2,978)
= = = 1,720 = = 1,720 = 1,720
= = = = = (3,654) (3,654) = (3,654)
(1,355) 12,398 (157) 22,968 = (6,729) 27,125 = 27,125
553,974 84,277 9,046 39,786 6,802 (29,035) 664,850 = 664,850
(23,521)
27,374
668,703
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6. SEGMENT INFORMATION (CONTINUED) 6. HEEH(E)

SEGMENT REVENUE AND RESULTS (CONTINUED) DENERES (F)

The following is an analysis of the Group’s revenue and WU TARESRBEFDE I AEFRZE
results by operating and reportable segments. & 4= ad i

For the year ended 31 December 2020
Segment revenue
Comprising:

— revenue from customers

— inter-segment transactions (note)

Operating expenses
Loss on changes in fair value of investment properties
Gain on transfer of property inventories to

investment properties
Gain on changes in fair value of financial assets at FVTPL
Loss on changes in fair value of derivative

financial instruments

BE_E_EE+-A=+-HLEE
nERE
afE

—ERlE

—&BRARS (M)
BERX
RENEATEEZYHE
WEFLBBEERANE NG

BRATEE B SHMEEATEEEZD NS
TRITETRZATEEEDER

Loss on disposal of property, plant and equipment HENE « BERREZEE
Net exchange (losses) gains ERF (5518) i

Segment profit (loss) HEEEF (§518)

Finance costs R

Share of results of joint ventures PRt EEEEE

Profit before tax PRIR AR
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Property Property Property Treasury Trading and Hotel Segment
investment development management investment manufacturing operation total Eliminations Consolidated
MERE eSS MEER MEBRE BERHE i DB Fap =)
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BT BT BT BETT BT BT BRI BT BT
326,380 225,968 33,517 86,630 71,251 46,350 790,096 (18,474) 771,622

320,423 225,968 21,643 86,630 71,251 45,707
5,957 - 11,874 - - 643
(42,897) (234,267) (21,918) (41,382) (67,496) (123,969) (531,929) 18,474 (513,455)
(136,196) - - - - - (136,196) - (136,196)
- 81,350 - - - - 81,350 - 81,350
- - - 2,507 - - 2,507 - 2,507
- - - (5.972) - - (5,972) - (5.972)
(12) - - - - (1,828) (1,840) - (1,840)
(2,790) 1,414 (313) 49,242 - - 47,553 - 47,553
144,485 74,465 11,286 91,025 3,755 (79,447) 245,569 - 245,569
(43,171)
44,218
246,616
note: Inter-segment transactions are charged at prevailing market prices. M EEARZERTHERER

The accounting policies of the operating segments are the ¥FENEZ SstEEREM T3l 2 4AEE
same as the Group’s accounting policies described in note 3. B EstERMERE o 94854 (B518) 151&
Segment profit (loss) represents the profit earned by/loss Kt AFTLEE XX BERUFREZ
incurred from each segment without allocation of share of FER TR OMEFRBIZEN 226
results of joint ventures and finance costs. In addition, the 38 lt4h» AR E D EBEHMER D
Group's administrative costs are allocated to respective  #BS(T PR K 2 1T EURR 45 B 1% 18 Bl 2£ 75
operating segments on the basis of revenue earned by DIEBINZKEEDEERSENLE -
individual operating segment. This is the measure reported ZFEBEULDEAZRATELERE
to the CODM for the purposes of resources allocation and AZ2%R > TAHAEE RS ETIZDER
performance assessment. 8o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 4 & 8 53R R MW 5

6. SEGMENT INFORMATION (CONTINUED) 6. DEEH (&)
SEGMENT ASSETS AND LIABILITIES NEEERAEE
The following is an analysis of the Group’s assets and U TARERVEZAEREERAR

liabilities by reportable segments: DA -
Segment assets FEEE
2021 2020
-l S 33
HK$'000 HK$'000
BETT BETR
Property investment MELE 9,761,820 9,256,391
Property development L 2,648,001 2,379,134
Property management MEERE 6,787 217
Treasury investment MR E 1,264,357 1,486,354
Trading and manufacturing BRREE 114,845 104,029
Hotel operation G 1,940,093 1,355,945
Total segment assets DIEEERE 15,735,903 14,584,024
Interests in joint ventures RELEER 429,555 334,918
Deferred tax assets ELRBESE 18,414 20,608
Consolidated assets REEE 16,183,872 14,939,550
Segment liabilities REEE
2021 2020
ZET-F ZEC%E
HK$'000 HK$'000
BETR BT
Property investment MERE 228,144 193,527
Property development MELRE 260,216 231,162
Property management MEERE 2,829 2,857
Treasury investment BRI E 3,864 2,929
Trading and manufacturing BARE 12,387 11,007
Hotel operation BETE 73,469 64,744
Total segment liabilities HEaREE 580,909 506,226
Taxation payable FEfIIR 186,570 33,370
Borrowings L 1,859,222 1,473,845
Deferred tax liabilities ETRIBEE 322,760 260,726
Consolidated liabilities sLER 2,949,461 2,274,167

N
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For the purposes of monitoring segment performance and AERNERBENDEBPEZRE
allocating resources between segments, all assets are [N EECENERRIEIERIEEED -
allocated to operating segments other than interests in FFEEENDEEXEFFDLE > MRERN
joint ventures and deferred tax assets. All liabilities are MM~ BERKRIELERIBEEIN FAIEE
allocated to operating segments other than taxation f{EIDEEEFDLE -

payable, borrowings and deferred tax liabilities.



6. SEGMENT INFORMATION (CONTINUED) 6. HEEH(H)
OTHER SEGMENT INFORMATION HithaEEE
Property Property Property Treasury Trading and Hotel
investment development management investment  manufacturing operation Consolidated
WERE NEER b HRRE BRRNE HElE 4
HKS'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BRI BT BT BT AETT BRI BRI
Amounts included in the measure of  EIEstEHBLER
segment results and segment NEBEZEE:
assets:
2021 -l
Additions to non-current assets (note) JEREIE EE AN (Hi3E) 66,780 154 93 - 3,018 588,095 658,140
Depreciation e 8,028 893 - - 3,547 62,943 75,411
2020 - k33
Additions to non-current assets (note) JERENE BN (HizE) 78,210 792 12 - 3,450 928 83,392
Depreciation e 9,531 1,007 14 - 3,288 61,891 75,858
note: Non-current assets exclude interests in joint ventures, fixed bank deposits with more ~ Mfi | JERBEETAFEALLERL  FA=BRRIBZEHR

than three months to maturity when raised, investments in securities and deferred
tax assets. Included in additions to non-current assets related to hotel operation is
acquisition of property, plant and equipment of HK$579,868,000 through acquisition

of a subsidiary as disclosed in note 35.

Geographical information

The Group’s operations are located in Hong Kong, other

parts of the PRC and Thailand.

Information about the Group’s revenue from continuing
operations from external customers is presented based on
the location of the operations. Information about the

THER BERENETRELE MRS £BE
TERBNERBEELN  AEERKENREATNKEY
¥\ BERZEAS579,868,0007T °

WERE
FEBEHUNRER  PEHEMME K
2RI o

BRAERFESEIIRERZRTE
BB EEERFRMEE R - A4
SEIFRBDEENEHREEMRTTM

Group’s non-current assets is presented based on the BZE e
geographical location of the assets.
Revenue Non-current assets (note)
Wiz JEREN R ()
2021 2020 2021 2020
- b ZEI%E - b ZEIRE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BT BT BT BT
Hong Kong BA 375,715 327,238 7,517,261 7,408,749
PRC e 459,025 444,384 3,348,286 2,993,252
Thailand RE 425 - 583,789 -
835,165 771,622 11,449,336 10,402,001

note:

tax assets.

Information about major customers

There is no revenue from customers for the years ended 31
December 2021 and 31 December 2020 contributing over

Non-current assets exclude interests in joint ventures, investments in securities, fixed — [f3t
bank deposits with more than three months to maturity when raised and deferred

10% of the total operating revenue of the Group.

FRPEETAEAECE S 2RHIR  FAZEAKE
HZERRTERRELRESE -

FEEFRER
BE_ZT_—F+_A=+—HBkR=-%
“EFE+"RA=+—HLEFE  LEXK
BERZBmMAERBEERDER
10% °
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 4 & 8 53R R MW 5

7. OTHER GAINS AND LOSSES

7. Rty R ESR

2021 2020
“$=-% it
HK$'000 HK$'000
BETR BETr
Gain (loss) on changes in fair value of REMEATEELE N (518
investment properties 379,142 (136,196)
Gain on transfer of property inventories to MEGEBRERENENE
investment properties - 81,350
(Loss) gain on changes in fair value of financial BATEEFABGZERNEE
assets at FVTPL ATEEZE (58 K (2,978) 2,507
Gain (loss) on changes in fair value of derivative SRMTETEZ/ATEBESE N (518
financial instruments 1,720 (5,972)
Loss on disposal of property, plant and equipment ~ HE¥¥ « BERREHE (3,654) (1,840)
Net exchange gains ERZNE 27,125 47,553
401,355 (12,598)
8. FINANCE COSTS 8. MBMZ
2021 2020
8- ZEI%E
HK$'000 HK$'000
BETR BlETr
Interest on borrowings: R
Bank loans SRITEM 21,152 40,127
Other borrowings HitfE 828 1,427
21,980 41,554
Interest on lease liabilities HEEEHNE 177 296
Other interest expense HitfIESH 1,364 1,321
23,521 43,171
9. INCOME TAX EXPENSE 9. FRiFM=H
2021 2020
8- ZEI%E
HK$'000 HK$'000
BETR BETr
The charge comprises: S
Current tax: KEERE:
Hong Kong Profits Tax ERNER 9,165 11,297
PRC Enterprise Income Tax HEI SR 28,246 1,399
37,411 12,696
Dividend withholding tax R BN - 9,657
Overprovision in prior years: BEFEBEERE:
Hong Kong Profits Tax HETIER (50) (81)
PRC Enterprise Income Tax mE SRR (5,281) (56)
(5,331) (137)
PRC Land Appreciation Tax (“LAT") (note c) hE e ER (o) 157,768 40,223
Deferred taxation (note 28) MRS (M5t 28) 58,209 10,667
248,057 73,106




9.

INCOME TAX EXPENSE (CONTINUED)

The tax charge for the year can be reconciled to the profit

before tax per the consolidated statement of profit or loss

9.

FRig# 3z i (48)

REEZRBRRGED R A
HAZ AR

as follows:
2021 2020
ZE--f ZTITH
HK$'000 HK$'000
BETR BETT
Profit before tax eyl 668,703 246,616
Hong Kong Profits Tax at the rate of 16.5% BIRE165% (CE_FE  165%) 5182
(2020: 16.5%) BENG 110,336 40,692
Tax effect of share of results of joint ventures FHaaE e M2 (4,517) (7,296)
Tax effect of expenses not deductible for AR EEZ KBS 2
tax purpose 37,386 42,857
Tax effect of income not taxable for tax purpose BEERRA ZR B2 (49,119) (53,424)
Overprovision in prior years BRAFEERERE (5,331) (137)
Tax effect of tax losses not recognised REIRBEEZ RS2 1,179 9,591
Tax effect of utilisation of tax losses previously EETE S ik i WAk
not recognised (76) (387)
Utilisation of deductible temporary differences ERENAREINTHINEEEER
previously not recognised (29,576) -
Effect of different tax rates of subsidiaries REMFEEELSEZMBATDTRREZ
operating in other jurisdictions ge 31,568 7,616
PRC LAT A 1 s ER 157,768 40,223
Tax effect of PRC LAT HE TG ER 2 R 2 (1,561) (10,056)
Dividend withholding tax RERMR - 9,657
Others Hith - (6,230)
Tax charge for the year KEERELH 248,057 73,106

notes:

(a)

(b)

Hong Kong Profits Tax is calculated at 16.5% of the estimated assessable profit for
both years.

Under the Law of the People’s Republic of China on Enterprise Income Tax (the “EIT
Law") and Implementation Regulation of the EIT Law, the tax rate of the PRC
subsidiaries is 25% (2020: 25%).

The Group has estimated the tax provision for PRC LAT according to the requirements
set forth in the relevant PRC tax laws and regulations. The actual LAT liabilities are
subject to the determination by the tax authorities upon completion of the property
development projects and the tax authorities might disagree with the basis on which
the provision for LAT is calculated.

During the year, the Group commenced the procedures for settlement of LAT for the
Group's completed residential project in Foshan, Guangdong province with the
relevant tax authority. In determining the actual LAT liabilities with the tax
authorities, the basis on which LAT is calculated has to be revised. Based on the
preliminary calculation, an amount of HK$151,525,000 was provided in the profit or
|oss.

M5 -

(a)

(b)

ERFGREMEEEEHERRERN165%5HH o

BoEA\REMECEFRERE (LERERE) REERH
BRAZEAR TEAMBAIREA LY (ZEZFF!
25%) o

RERERERRANERRE  FEHERRPELHEE
i - BETHEERENARRBRENERAERNATE
EfE  REATEFDRAFEES DR ERE RN R
ﬁ o

FR FEARHFEREEREBUTERINEEEER
HEREHEDNEEREEFE - ERARTER 1
EREER YEEHTIEERNAEER - RENSH
& PBEIRRE SHRA 151,525,000
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 4 & 8 53R R MW 5

10. PROFIT FOR THE YEAR

10. FEEEF

2021 2020
—EC-% 515K
HK$'000 HK$'000
BETT BETT
Profit for the year has been arrived at after AEEGRHEINRTIIRE
charging:
Staff costs BIMAE 126,471 128,487
Staff retirement schemes contributions, net of B TRMERMT  NpR R
HK$1,520,000 (2020: HK$589,000) HH1,50000 7T (ZEZFE £ 589,000 7)
forfeited contributions 3,491 4,734
Total staff costs (including directors’ emoluments)  BTFAL: (BEESHS) 129,962 133,221
Auditor's remuneration VEEmRE 2,928 2,810
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment M BERRGITE 71,965 70,845
Depreciation of right-of-use assets FREEEITE 3,446 5,013
Government grants (included in “other income”) Bf#e (BE7E TEfRA L) 1,313 15,700
Selling expenses (included in “administrative and HERT (B TR EERY))
operating expenses”) 3,657 1,039
and after crediting: Wt A .
Gross rental income from investment properties REMEBRSWA 305,782 320,423
Less: direct expenses of investment properties that i : FRELRS WA ZEENEERER
generated rental income during the year (31,264) (21,821)
274,518 298,602

During the current year, the Group recognised government R A&ERE » AEEFE 2019 B HE 5B
grants of approximately HK$1,313,000 (2020: REfEIATMEENAIHE 11,313,000 (&=
HK$15,700,000) in respect of Covid-19-related subsidies, of =4 : ##15700,0007T) » HHE (=
which HK$nil (2020: HK$11,880,000) relates to Employment &= F 4 : ##& 11,880,000 7t) B 5B
Support Scheme provided by the Hong Kong government. FFR st 2L 225k o



11. DIRECTORS’, CHIEF EXECUTIVE’'S AND EMPLOYEES’ 11. EE - fHRAZRESHS
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EMOLUMENTS
The emoluments paid or payable to each of the 9 (2020: 10) EffHEMFIZ(ZZE-ZF:108)
directors were as follows: BEEMEWT -
Other emoluments
HitiE
Performance
related
Salaries incentive Retirement
and other payment scheme Total
Fees benefits (note e)  contributions emoluments
E3 0l
MR L4 BRI
& Hitrig (Hfte) sl s
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BT BETT AETT AETR BETT
2021 Ez-f
Executive Directors (note a) BTES (MizEa)
Liu Lit Chi B8 300 5,592 4,110 559 10,561
Liu Kam Fai, Winston BefE 200 3,914 2,253 391 6,758
Lee Wai Hung FRiE 200 3,757 - 376 4,333
Non-executive Director (note b)  JFH{TEE (iith)
Kho Eng Tjoan, Christopher HER 300 - - - 300
Independent Non-executive BUERTES (Wit
Directors (note c)
Cheng Mo Chi, Moses RE 300 - - - 300
Au Kam Yuen, Authur EiZE 300 - - - 300
Ma Hung Ming, John EER 300 - - - 300
Cheng Yuk Wo B 300 - - - 300
Tong Tsun Sum, Eric EEX 300 - - - 300
Total HEs 2,500 13,263 6,363 1,326 23,452

N
B
~N

ETHEXRITHEA
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

11. DIRECTORS’, CHIEF EXECUTIVE’'S AND EMPLOYEES’

EMOLUMENTS (CONTINUED)

rE AR

M. EFX - THAEZRESHE (B8)

Other emoluments

Hitfe
Performance
related
Salaries incentive Retirement
and other payment scheme Total
Fees benefits (note e) contributions emoluments
LB
HK ®Be BAMER
ik HftizH) (Hizke) SR e
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BETR BT AETR BETR AETR

2020 - 2

Executive Directors (note a) BITEE (W:ta)

Liu Lit Chi BAE 300 9,516 - 559 10,375

Liu Kam Fai, Winston Bt 200 5,933 - 391 6,524

Liu Kwun Shing, Christopher 23 65 2,687 - 129 2,881

Lee Wai Hung i 200 3,756 - 375 4,331

Non-executive Director (note b) JEHTEE (M5t

Kho Eng Tjoan, Christopher HFER 300 - - - 300

Independent Non-executive Directors (note ¢)  BIIEMITES (fitskc)

Cheng Mo Chi, Moses RE 300 - - - 300

Au Kam Yuen, Authur EiZE 300 - _ _ 300

Ma Hung Ming, John EER 300 - - - 300

Cheng Yuk Wo il 300 - - - 300

Tong Tsun Sum, Eric EZ%H 300 - - _ 300

Total ot 2,565 21,892 - 1,454 25,911

notes: WizE

(@)  The executive directors’ emoluments shown above were for their services in  (3) HhaTESEzMe BEER AN T RAEBSH 2 RIFEM
connection with the management of the affairs of the Company and the Group.

(b)  The non-executive directors’ emoluments shown above were for their services as (b LI EZZME HEEARARIBATNES 2R
directors of the Company or its subsidiaries. B o

(0  The independent non-executive directors’ emoluments shown above were for their ()  LHBUATESMERREATATESZREARM o
services as directors of the Company.

(d)  During the year, no emoluments were paid by the Group to any of the directors or (1) &R ZEEHEAIAESHIEREFAL (BEES) X
the five highest paid individuals (including directors) as an inducement to join or EAME  EAMATEEIMAZERR 2 KB HBHE
upon joining the Group or as compensation for loss of office. There was no B-HE_E_—E+-_A=-+-AKR-Z-Z£+_H
arrangement under which a director waived or agreed to waive any remuneration =t—HUEMEFE  IRESHETARRINEREHZ
during the years ended 31 December 2021 and 31 December 2020. Ho

(e)  The performance related incentive payment is determined by reference to the (e BE_ER_-F+"A=+-HKRZZB_ERE+ZR=+-H
individual performance of the directors and approved by the remuneration committee IREFEARRERZRERESNENRAEE  LhE
of the Group for the years ended 31 December 2021 and 31 December 2020. EREHEETHE o

® The Group has been providing accommodation to the directors at no charge. The  (f) FEE-EEENESRMEAE - EMFENGHEEABE

estimated money value of the benefit in kind is HK$4,495,000 (2020: HK$5,595,000).

4,495,0007c (ZE 254  A¥5,505,00078) ©



11. DIRECTORS’, CHIEF EXECUTIVE’'S AND EMPLOYEES’
EMOLUMENTS (CONTINUED)
The five highest paid employees of the Group during the
year included three directors (2020: four directors), details
of whose remuneration are set out as above. Details of the
remuneration for the year ended 31 December 2021 of the
remaining two (2020: one) highest paid employees who are
neither a director nor chief executive of the Company are as

M. EFX - THEZRESHE (B)

FATEERLGESHEEOENZE
E(CTIEF  WBRES) » HEFMME
BEIME - BE-_ZE-_—F+_-H
=S+—HLEFENGTRA(ZEZE
F:—RB)EeHERS (LIESATES
ITEAR L) ROETEMEE BN T -

follows:
2021 2020
-l - S 33
HK$'000 HK$'000
AT BETR
Salaries and other benefits TEMEMBEF 3,785 1,840
Retirement scheme contributions ROEF R 345 184
4,130 2,024

The number of the highest paid employees who are not the
directors of the Company whose remuneration fell within
the following bands is as follows:

FERBEFHN RS HMBE T AEM
T EFMENTEER :

No. of employee

BIAH
2021 2020
k- b3 S 3
HK$1,500,001 to HK$2,000,000 11,500,001 7T E A 2,000,000 7T 1 -
HK$2,000,001 to HK$2,500,000 712,000,001 7T E A 2,500,000 7T 1
12. DIVIDENDS 12. g2
2021 2020
- Sl ZBI%E
HK$'000 HK$'000
BRI BETT
Dividends recognised as distribution during the year: EREIDKZRE :
Interim dividend paid for 2021 — HK$0.18 per share —E-—#EFTHREERAEK018T
(2020: interim dividend paid for 2020 — HK$0.15  (ZE-Z& : Bk_Z_ZEHHKE
per share) FRE®0157T) 68,145 56,788
Final dividend paid for 2020 — HK$0.25 per share ~ —E-SFERKBRESREK05T
(2020: final dividend paid for 2019 — HK$0.38 (ZEZZE  BR-E-NEXPRE
per share) FRER0387) 94,646 143,862
162,791 200,650

Subsequent to the end of the reporting period, a final
dividend in respect of the year ended 31 December 2021 of
HK$0.28 per share (2020: final dividend in respect of the
year ended 31 December 2020 of HK$0.25) per share, in an
aggregate amount of approximately HK$106,003,000 (2020:
HK$94,646,000) has been proposed by the directors and is
subject to approval by the shareholders in the forthcoming
annual general meeting.

ERREHERB BE_S - —F
+ZB=1t—HLEEEZFEREESR
BI0.28TT (ZEEF  HEZEZT
E+_A=+—BHLEEEZXERES
i B #0.257T) » H #4981 106,003,000
T(ZEZFHF : #194,646,0007T) °
KHEEZEZ TEANERREBE
R EESRERHILE -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

13. BASIC EARNINGS PER SHARE

The calculation of the basic earnings per share attributable
to owners of the Company is based on the profit for the year
attributable to owners of the Company of approximately
HK$427,302,000 (2020: HK$162,560,000) and on 378,583,440
(2020: 378,583,440) ordinary shares in issue during the year.

No diluted earnings per share has been presented as there
were no potential ordinary shares in issue during the years
ended 31 December 2021 and 31 December 2020.

14. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

The Group leases out various residential, commercial and
industrial units and retail stores under operating leases with
rentals payable monthly. The leases typically run for an
initial period of one to five years, with unilateral rights to
extend the lease beyond initial period held by lessees only.

The Group is not exposed to foreign currency risk as a result
of the lease arrangements, as all leases are denominated in
the respective functional currencies of group entities. The
lease contracts do not contain residual value guarantee
and/or lessee’s option to purchase the property at the end
of lease term.

rE AR

13. SRETEF
AABTRHRELERERRFTKIE
REERRNFREREML ZEF QB
427,302,00070(ZZEZF 4 | 162,560,000
7o) RAFE B E1TE 1B 378,583,440 %
(ZZT-F4F : 378,583,440 %) 5t & o

BE_ZE-_—F+-"H=+—HKZ-Z
—_TFE+-A=+—HIEFEERYET
MEBEELER  At#BEsRBANFE
Eo

14. REME
AERBRBCEHEHHEZIEEE &
EMTEEMUATERE  SAXME
HE - HERBAP—FIAHFE  HH
EEFAENBHEEREEHRAHEA
FFARIREASL

HRFTAREIUERBRESBNINEE
ERFE > WAEBRAEEBENZH
MmARINERR - HESEFEZRIER
BEEFRNSHAEAZHERREE
EREMENERE -

HK$'000

TR
FAIR VALUE ATEE
At 1 January 2020 RZEZZF—F—H 8,771,446
Currency realignment EXREE 177,502
Transfer from properties held for sale REFHEYEER 114,068
Additions 110 73,670
Loss on changes in fair value NEEEEHEE (136,196)
At 31 December 2020 RZE-EF+-HA=1+—H 9,000,490
Currency realignment ExA% 88,447
Additions =10 57,494
Gain on changes in fair value NEEEEH NG 379,142
At 31 December 2021 RZE-—-&#+-A=+—-H 9,525,573

In estimating the fair value of investment properties, it is
the Group'’s policy to engage an independent qualified
professional valuer to perform the valuations. The
management works closely with the valuer to establish the
appropriate valuation techniques and inputs to the model.

EEFMEAFEER > AEENEER
TERBILGERERAEMETMHE -
EEEAGEMEYGHFE  BIBERN
fEERMAM A EER AR -



14. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (CONTINUED)

As at 31 December 2021 and 31 December 2020, independent
valuations were undertaken by Vigers Appraisal & Consulting
Ltd. (“Vigers"), an independent qualified professional valuer
not connected to the Group which has appropriate
professional qualifications and recent experience in the
valuations of similar properties in the relevant locations.

The valuations have been arrived at using direct comparison
method by reference to market evidence of transaction
prices for similar properties in the same locations and
conditions or, where appropriate, by capitalising the market
rentals of all lettable units of the properties by reference to
the rentals achieved in the lettable units as well as other
lettings of similar properties in the neighbourhood. The
capitalisation rate adopted is made by reference to the yield
rates observed by the valuer for the similar properties in the
locality and adjusted based on the valuer’s knowledge of
the factors specific to the respective properties.

In estimating the fair value of the properties, the highest
and best use of the properties is their current use.

The following table gives information about how the fair
values of these investment properties are determined (in
particular, the valuation techniques and inputs used), as
well as the fair value hierarchy into which the fair value
measurements are categorised (Levels 1 to 3) based on the
degree to which the inputs to the fair value measurements
is observable.

14. IREME (@)

A _E_—F+ZA=+—HRZZEZ
ZF+"RA=+—H > BUEERHE
BB ETGERBERAT (TR
EIT ST AHEAEE T RAEZE
UEEREEMERN  HE AR
LEETHEREEENEEXRENERK
T HAARES o

HENEZEBUAD 2 ZEREME KRR
BRNEUMENTRERNSEZTHAE
BAIEREENRMBEEUMENT
BERUE Y ZEFrE FI B IRY
mIHHE (RERE) SH - EFMAN
BERCLERDESEEEMMZMER
BUMESRRAENRTE > BERE
HEMAMAAN EYEERNEER
RIAERERA -

EEFAMEATFEER  MENERSK
RIEBRAHBABR -

TRILERKREVENAFEENM
EENER (EREREFRANMGER
MREAEH) » URBRATEEFET
NBASHAURRNEE  RAFE
Bt EDEEATEERBEPHRG (5B
—EF=MRA) o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 4 & 8 53R R MW 5

14. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (CONTINUED) 14. BEME (8)

Investment properties

held by the Group in the Relationship

consolidated statement Valuation technique(s) Significant of unobservable
of financial position and key input(s) unobservable input(s) inputs to fair value
KEEBHNRENES ERGREEEY EATTHRRHNEY FAREFHNEY
REERBRLE BRTRENRR
Investment properties in Hong Kong  Direct comparison method

with an aggregate carrying amount of EIZLLEA

HK$1,590,670,000 (2020:

HK$646,820,000) The key input is
(note) TEEYA

EERNRENELREERE
1,590,670,0007c (ZE-BE Bl (1)
646,820,0007T) (1)
(MzE)

An increase in the unit sale rate
used would result in an increase
in the fair value measurement of
the investment properties by the
same percentage increase, and
vice versa.
FIANEHERR—B L 8eRE
MENATEBHERFAENEDLE
> RZ7FA

Unit sale rate, taking into account the
time, location, and individual factors,
such as frontage and size, between the
comparable and the property, ranging
from HK$97 to HK$28,726 (2020:
HK$123 to HK$31,300) per square feet
for properties and ranging from
HK$1,390,000 to HK$2,300,000 (2020:
HK$930,000 to HK$1,500,000) per unit
for car park spaces.

£ BRIRE AR HRYEENZ ARG 2B
fEREE > WP ERER AR » MENEARE
BREASTHREERITTEEMK2 7267 (Z
SZBE B3 TERE31,3007) 0 FEI5
Epoy 8IS EA%1,390,0007T 752,300,000
T(ZEZFE  B15930,00073 2% 1,500,000
) e

Unit sale rate

EfsiEERS

Investment properties in Hong Kong  Income capitalisation method

with an aggregate carrying amount of WHBZA(L

HK$4,633,900,000 (2020:

HK$4,513,600,000) The key inputs are

RN ENEEREERY FEEYA

4,633,900,0007% (ZB-FfF : B

4,513,600,0007T) (1) Reversion yield Reversion yield, taking into account of A slight increase in the reversion

(1) TRHENERE the capitalisation of rental income
potential, nature of the property and
prevailing market condition, ranging
from 2.5% to 3.5% (2020: 3.3% to
4.8%).

ZRIBERSMABNE  MENERRRS
o RENEREEA25% E35% (228
£133%F48%) ¢

yield used would result in a
significant decrease in the fair
value measurement of the
investment properties, and vice
versa.

FrAREBENEREEREM LA &
SREVMENATEEEREATH]
Rz e

2

(4]
N
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Monthly market rent
gAmSHEE

Monthly market rents, taking into

account of time, location and individual

factors such as frontage and size,
between the comparable and the
property, ranging from HK$30 to

HK$195 (2020: HK$39 to HK$170) per

square feet per month.

A slight increase in the monthly
market rent used would result in
a significant increase in the fair
value measurement of the
investment properties, and vice
versa.

FENEATRHEEEREN LA €9

ZREIRE  HAERERNEANZASZEN RENENATEEHBREALA R
BREER > MARRkAE  BATSREEIAS 2HA.

FAREER0TERB 1S T(CE_EF B

¥ 39 TEBH1707T) °
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14. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (CONTINUED) 14. BEME (8) =
=
=
Investment properties m
held by the Group in the Relationship =]
consolidated statement Valuation technique(s) Significant of unobservable 3
of financial position and key input(s) unobservable input(s) inputs to fair value =
SEERERNRENET) EERTREZLY BEAFIREELNEY FURRBHNEY *
REERMBRAR ARTRENRG #
B

Investment properties in Hong Kong  Residual method
with an aggregate carrying amount of g%

HK$nil (2020: HK$827,000,000)

(note) The key input is
EEANRENELEAE . & FTEEHUA
(C2Z4 1 E1827,000,0007)

(F¥sE) (1) Grossdevelopment  Gross development value on completion An increase in the gross
value basis, mainly taking into account the development value would result
(1) AREEE time, location, design, frontage, layout in an increase in the fair value
and size between the comparable and  measurement of the investment
the properties, which ranged from properties by the similar
HK$21,175 to HK$38,500 per square percentage increase, and vice
foot. versa.
ZRTIEHE HRRARYEENZAS 22BN AANEEREE-ELA §9REY

ERIRZ  MPEEERAY  REIBEHN ZNATEEFERBONEDLEN
BERBETASTAREER 215 ERE RZFA-

38,5007 °
(2)  Estimated project Estimated total construction cost to An increase in the estimated
development cost complete amounted to HK$55,400,000.  project development cost would

Q) FEEEERREMA e AR R A A 55,400,0007T ©  result in a slight decrease in the
fair value measurement of the
investment properties and vice
versa.
FENEEE R RNA—B L 8%
REMENATEEHEREN TR K

ZT54R
Investment properties in the PRC with  Direct comparison method
an aggregate carrying amount of EfEE
HK$370,475,000 (2020:
HK$360,860,000) The key input is
EHENRE R ERAERE TELHA
370,475,0007T (ZB =5 | Bk
360,860,000 7T) (1) Unitsale rate Unit sale rate, taking into account the  An increase in the unit sale rate
(1) EB{HEER time, location, and individual factors, used would result in an increase

such as frontage and size, between the in the fair value measurement of
comparable and the property, ranging  the investment properties by the
from RMB4,650 to RMB22,500 (2020:  same percentage increase, and

RMBA4,650 to RMB23,600) per square vice versa. 2;3
meter for properties. FENEHEER—BLA ESRE =
ZETIEHE HRRARYEENZAS BN NENATBEAERFLNESLE 5
ERRER  WFERERAR  BUHFEERE M RZHA- ﬁ
ABTARAARKA650TEARE 25007 S
(235 ARM4650TEARE23,600 u

T) °

BEHELE-——&= |
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

rE AR

14. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (CONTINUED) 14. BEME (8)

Investment properties

held by the Group in the

consolidated statement Valuation technique(s) Significant

of financial position and key input(s) unobservable input(s)
SEABHNRENES EERTREZELY EAFIREELNEY
REEHMBRAR

Relationship

of unobservable
inputs to fair value
FAREFHNEY
BRTREENRR

Investment properties in the PRC with  Income capitalisation method

an aggregate carrying amount of KEERIE

HK$2,930,528,000 (2020:

HK$2,652,210,000) The key inputs are

EPENREN R ERAERE TELHA

2,930,528,000 7T (ZEZTF | K

2,652,210,0007T) (1) Reversion yield Reversion yield, taking into account of

(1) TRERBAYmEERE the capitalisation of rental income

potential, nature of the property and
prevailing market condition, ranging
from 5.0% to0 6.0% (2020: 6.0% to
6.5%).
ZRIETHESWAERNE  MERERRRS
R REAENEREEEA5.0%E6.0% (ZFZ
B 16.0%E6.5%) °

(2 Monthly marketrent ~ Monthly market rents, taking into

@ =AmEEE account of time, location and individual
factors such as frontage and size,
between the comparable and the
property, ranging from RMB320 to
RMB800 (2020: RMB95 to RMB1,278)
per square meter per month.
ZBEIRE AR ERMRENF ARG 2B
ERRER > WrmRkRE  8RHHHEETAR
THAERSETAREARE0TEARE
8007 (CE-FF : A\RM S TEARR,278

A slight increase in the reversion
yield used would result in a
significant decrease in the fair
value measurement of the
investment properties, and vice
versa.

FREMERENERREREN L &
SREMENATEEAEREATH]
R27A

A slight increase in the monthly
market rent used would result in
a significant increase in the fair
value measurement of the
investment properties, and vice
versa.
FANSATAEEEREMN L &
REMENATEEHEREA LS Ji
2Tk

7o) °
note: As at 31 December 2021, following by completion of re-development for investment ~ fiii: RZE-Z—-F+ZB=+—-H>  BERAEBEAAEE
properties in Hong Kong with carrying amount of approximately HK$914,900,000 914,900,000 7t (Z S 224 | A%827,0000007) WEBRE
(2020: HK$827,000,000), the respective valuation techniques have been changed MENERTH > ARGERN RN iENARELERE
from residual method to direct comparison in deriving a more representative of fair HBEEERARENATLEE -
value.

The fair values of all investment properties at 31 December —“Z-—HF+”"H=+—HKZZEZT
2021 and 31 December 2020 were measured using valuation £+ _-B=+—HFIEREWENLQTF
techniques with significant unobservable inputs and hence EEGFBAEARUTHRNERGAEE
were classified as Level 3 of the fair value hierarchy. ZEERN > MR EARTEERES

=#RA o

There were no transfers into or out of Level 3 during the SFRREEEARNEBHE=4R7 o

year.



15. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

15. W% - BERERE

Furniture,

Other fixtures,
Hotel leasehold motor vehicles
land and land and Plantand and computer
buildings buildings machinery equipment Total
EELH HtfEE fRffh KB
RigF RigF BERKE ERRERE aE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BETT BETT BETT BETT BETT
COST K&
At 1 January 2020 RZE-EF—F—H 1,117,575 106,288 45,725 328,859 1,598,447
Currency realignment ER:pE - 74 2,683 1,631 4,388
Additions by - - 3,450 6,272 9,722
Disposals HE - (1,226) (1,051) (10,174) (12,451)
At 31 December 2020 RZE_EE+-_A=1—H 1,117,575 105,136 50,807 326,588 1,600,106
Currency realignment BRER - - 1,372 760 2,132
Additions 110 - - 3,018 14,706 17,724
Acquisition of a subsidiary BRI A E (2t 35)

(note 35) 471,507 - - 108,361 579,868
Disposals HE - - - (6,121) (6,121)
At 31 December 2021 RZE-—%+-F=+—-H 1,589,082 105,136 55,197 444,294 2,193,709
DEPRECIATION AND REREE

AMORTISATION
At 1 January 2020 RZZZF&5—F—H 2,739 20,020 26,147 92,221 141,127
Currency realignment EXHE - 17 1,561 1,535 3,113
Charge for the year FEEZH 32,870 2,625 3,288 32,062 70,845
Eliminated on disposals R &R - (490) (946) (9,175) (10,611)
At 31 December 2020 RZE-EF+-HA=1+—H 35,609 22,172 30,050 116,643 204,474
Currency realignment B - - 826 777 1,603
Charge for the year TEETH 33,253 2,370 3,547 32,795 71,965
Eliminated on disposals R ER - - - (2,467) (2,467)
At 31 December 2021 WZE-—%+-F=1+—H 68,862 24,542 34,423 147,746 275,575
CARRYING VALUE IRE(E
At 31 December 2021 RZE-—%+-HF=1+—-H 1,520,220 80,594 20,774 296,548 1,918,134
At 31 December 2020 RIZEZFE+°R=1—H 1,081,966 82,964 20,757 209,945 1,395,632
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

15.

notes:

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (CONTINUED)

The above items of property, plant and equipment are depreciated on a straight-line
basis at the following rates per annum:

Over the shorter of the term of lease or 2% to 3%
Over the shorter of the term of the lease or 2% to 3%
10%

10-20%

Hotel land and buildings

Other leasehold land and buildings

Plant and machinery

Furniture, fixtures, motor vehicles
and computer equipment

No depreciation is provided on freehold land.

The management of the Group concluded there was indication for impairment and
conducted impairment assessment on recoverable amounts of certain property, plant
and equipment relating to hotel operation in Hong Kong with aggregate carrying
amount of approximately HK$1,216,584,000 (31 December 2020:
HK$1,273,480,000). The management of the Group estimated the recoverable
amount of the cash-generating unit (“CGU") to which the assets belong based on
fair value less costs of disposal. The relevant property was measured at fair value
based on Level 3 hierarchy using residual approach on a redevelopment basis. In
determining the fair value of the relevant property, the Group engaged an
independent qualified professional valuer to perform the valuation. The key
unobservable inputs used in valuing the relevant property included the gross
development value on completion status and estimated project redevelopment cost.

Based on the result of the assessment, management of the Group determined that
the recoverable amount of the CGU based on the fair value less cost of disposal was
higher than its carrying amount. No impairment is recognised for the years ended 31
December 2021 and 2020.

15.

izt .
(a)

(b)

rE AR

M - BE R (8])

LiE  BERRBERENEEREENTHERNE :

EELHRIET BB RNERR2%E%
HtfEE L RIET BB HOERS N E3%
R et 28 10%

fiffl B  BHREMRE  10-20%

ARG RITE o

FEAEBBAEHGHAENS THRAEABE
1,216,584,00070 (Z B =55 B11,273,480,00070) WAERE
BEEEEZNE BERRBETT HENM: - AEEEE
EREATEERRERAGHEERBNRSEEEUNE
REE  BRMENATEERRE=RINFGRARERE
BitE RERERMEZ ATEER  FEERERILA?
RELGEEFETEE BREERENENIERTRE
BABOEETRENERREEN G ERERME o

REMEGR FEREERRE  BATEEAELEERE
NENAAHE TRENEEENHREEE HE"F
—-ER-ECEFTAST-ALEFESREDAE



16. RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS 16. EAERE
Leased
properties
HENE
HKS$'000
BT
As at 31 December 2021 RZEZ—#+-R=1+—-H
Carrying amount fRAEME 5,629
As at 31 December 2020 RZE-FE+-A=1+—-H
Carrying amount fRAEME 5,879
For the year ended 31 December 2021 BECE--E+-A=t+—-HLEE
Depreciation charge iF 3,446
For the year ended 31 December 2020 HECEZ-ZEL-AStH-ALEE
Depreciation charge & 5,013
2021 2020
g% ZEIEE
HK$'000 HKS'000
BETR BlETR
Expenses relating to short-term leases B EERNER 3,952 4,085
Total cash outflow for leases REREM AL 7,614 9,308
Additions to right-of-use assets EREEELEM 3,054 -

The Group leases various offices, director and staff quarters
for its operations. Lease contracts are entered into for fixed
term of one to fifteen years. Lease terms are negotiated on
an individual basis and contain a wide range of different
terms and conditions. In determining the lease term and
assessing the length of the non-cancellable period, the
Group applies the definition of a contract and determines
the period for which the contract is enforceable.

The Group regularly entered into short-term leases for
various offices, director and staff quarters. As at
31 December 2021 and 2020, the expenses relating to short-
term leases is disclosed above.

In addition, lease liabilities of HK$3,054,000 are recognised
with related right-of-use assets of HK$3,054,000 as at 31
December 2021. The lease agreements do not impose any
covenants other than the security interests in the leased
assets that are held by the lessor. Leased assets may not be
used as security for borrowing purposes.

FEFAREEXEFHEIMAE - ESR
MEIES HEARNEEEHA—
FE+LF - HERRZREENER
WEEERN > EREIZERRBIER
MAEM - A& B iR EHARM TG
RIS EAIRES - SR SENE R L
i E & R A S8 K ITRIRARR -

FEEEHAZIMEE EFZKEIHE
SRMEMAEERE - R2F - —F K
—_E_EF+"A=+—8 > "RHEE
X HBELEIRE ©

sy RZEZ—F+ZH=+—8">
HE 8RB 3,054,000 7o L 1ERFF 2 A #
BEAK3,054,000TE FHER o BRT H
HMARBENHEEERNEFREDI
HEBEFEINMERNEMAOE - HEW
BENMSRAEEENIERR -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

17. PROPERTIES UNDER DEVELOPMENT FOR SALE/
PROPERTIES HELD FOR SALE

As at 31 December 2021, the carrying value of properties

under development for sale of approximately

HK$1,313,819,000 (2020: HK$1,014,408,000) is expected to

be realised after twelve months from the end of the

reporting period.

As at 31 December 2021, the carrying values of properties
held for sale of approximately HK$459,620,000 (2020:
HK$572,363,000) and HK$11,714,000 (2020: HK$11,714,000)
are located in the PRC and Hong Kong, respectively.

The carrying amount of leasehold lands is measured at cost
less any accumulated depreciation and any impairment losses.
The residual values are determined as the estimated disposal
value of the leasehold land component. No depreciation
charge is made on the leasehold lands taking into account the
estimated residual values as at 31 December 2021.

The cost of properties held for sale recognised as an
expense during the year amounted to approximately
HK$152,697,000 (2020: HK$151,911,000).

18. INTERESTS IN JOINT VENTURES

rE AR

17. GHESRPME FHEME

ZE—F+ZA=t+—H FHE&
ERAYMERBENS BIE
1,313,819,000c( B F . B
1,014,408,0007T) FEHATE SRS HIR+ =
AR EBEIR -

AR —F+ZHA=1+—H > FHE
YIHEEREEL A A1 459,620,0007T (=
T T HF : AMK572,363,00070) RREIA
BEE11,714000c (ZE 22 F . BE
11,714,000 70) DRI HEI R E#E o

HE LRI EEURAREEMR
stTEEMEAIRERKF 2 - FEREE
EEAEBEL BN HEEE-
ERE-_ZF_—F+-_RB=+—HKN
stRIGREE > WAHEE LRI E
=

FR > ERIAAMAEZZHFHEMERS
7 A4 HE18152,697,000 T (ZE-FF .
#1 151,911,000 7T) ©

18. AEREEN

2020

5% E°%F

HK$'000 HK$'000

AT BETR

Cost of investments in joint ventures — unlisted RERAEREZRA— LT 90,660 -

Loans advanced to joint ventures (note d) ERFRBELE (:td) 187,089 192,326
Share of post-acquisition results and other Pt R EEREME AR

comprehensive income, net of dividends received NBEKRERE 151,806 142,592

429,555 334,918




m
H
z
18. INTERESTS IN JOINT VENTURES (CONTINUED) 18. BE ¥R (48) >
2
Particulars of the Group’s principal joint ventures at 31 T3 AXEBER T Z—F+ZH
v
December 2021 and 31 December 2020 are as follows: =t+—HR-E_FEF+"_H=+—H ':°v|
BEXESSRE g
Place of Proportion Proportion ﬁ
incorporation/ Class of of ownership of voting
Name of company Notes operations shares held interest power held Principal activities
RECEER Mz R EEH FRisERIAER EHREERLA BHERERZILH TEEE
2021 2020 2021 2020
- Z2°%F g% ZEI%E
Value Investing Group (a)  Hong Kong/Japan Ordinary 50% 50% 50% 50%  Property investment
Company Limited &E/A%K gk WERE
("Value Investing”)
EEREERERART
Clear Miles Hong Kong Limited (b) HongKong/Australia ~ Ordinary 50% 50% 50% 50%  Property investment
("Clear Miles") &5/ 2N Lk MERE
AM 310 Ann Street Investor (0 Australia Ordinary 15% - 15% - Property investment
Unit Trust )| LiEk MELE

("Ann Street Unit Trust")

The Group and the other joint venturers are contractually ZRNEEEAEHMESEERSYNTEDZE
agreed sharing of control and have rights to the net assets of 4|, T EZEEHIELEEEMN ETEENRE
these entities. The decisions about the relevant activities of %l o GRiE L BN EFEINREE
these entities required unanimous consent of the Group and ZEXR&EEMEMSESN—HEE
the other joint venturers. Accordingly, these investments are |It » 3B EAS S P AR o
accounted for as joint ventures.

Notes: Bzt

(@) In November 2017, the Group entered into the sale and purchase agreement with () RoE—+t&+—F rEEREBERARAT ((EE))
Value Partners Group Limited ("Value Partners”) to acquire 50% of the issued share SUBENE BABEREERERAFN%NERITR
capital in Value Investing which in turn through a wholly-owned subsidiary holds & TEBE2ERBAR  FAE100%EZNAENE R
100% of the trust beneficial interests in the properties located in Japan, held under BRSRALEBNAL
operating leases to earn rentals.
Upon completion, the Group exercises joint control over Value Investing and the REERE ) AERHEELEERER AT EHLRELN
financial results and financial positions of Value Investing is incorporated in the B MEELEERERAT NN HELENMERT » Bl

Group's consolidated financial statements using the equity method of accounting. B AREANSAHBRRED o

259
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 4 & 8 53R R MW 5

18. INTERESTS IN JOINT VENTURES (CONTINUED)
Notes: (Continued)

(b)

In September 2018, the Group entered into the sale and purchase agreement with
Value Partners to acquire 50% of the issued share capital in Clear Miles which in
turn through a wholly-owned subsidiary holds 100% of the beneficial interests in the
properties located in Australia, held under operating leases to earn rentals.

Upon completion, the Group exercises joint control over Clear Miles and the financial
results and financial positions of Clear Miles is incorporated in the Group's
consolidated financial statements using the equity method of accounting.

On 21 December 2021, the Group and Value Partners have agreed with Clear Miles
under a contribution agreement (“Contribution Agreement”) that each of the
shareholders will inject by way of interest-free and unsecured shareholder loan with
no fixed repayment date of AUD55,000,000 (equivalent to approximately
HK$307,340,000) pro rata to their respective equity interest in Clear Miles.

Such contribution is to enable Clear Miles to acquire 25% attributable interest in a
property situated at Kent Street, Sydney (“Property”) (with each of the Group and
Value Partners acquiring 12.5% attributable interest in the Property) through the
subscription of an aggregate of 110,000,000 units in the AM Kent Street Investor
Trust at an issue price of AUD1 per unit at a total consideration of AUD110,000,000
(equivalent to approximately HK$614,680,000). 11,000,000 units are to be
subscribed on or before 21 December 2021 while the remaining 99,000,000 units are
to be subscribed on 31 March 2022. Advances of the shareholders loan under the
Contribution Agreement are to be made by the Group and Value Partners in tranches
as required by Clear Miles to meet its subscription payment obligations. During the
year, the Group made an advance of shareholder loan to Clear Miles amounting to
AUD5,500,000 (approximately HK$30,734,000) under the Contribution Agreement.

In February 2021, the Group entered into a unit holder deed with Valuer Partners
and AM 310 Ann Street Equity Pty Ltd to establish Ann Street Unit Trust which holds
100% of the trust beneficial interests in the land and buildings located at 310 Ann
Street, Brisbane in Queensland, held under operating leases to earn rentals, at a
consideration of approximately AUD15,000,000 (approximately HK$90,660,000).

Upon establishment of Ann Street, the Group exercises joint control over Ann Street
Unit Trust and the financial results and financial positions of Ann Street Unit Trust is
incorporated in the Group's consolidated financial statements using the equity
method of accounting.

Loans advanced to joint ventures are unsecured, interest-free and have no fixed
repayment terms. In the opinion of the directors of the Company, the loans are
considered as part of the Group’s net investment in the joint ventures.

The consolidated financial information of Value Investing,

which is prepared in accordance with International Financial

Reporting Standards, is set out below:

18. SERFMD ()
B : ()

(b)

RZZ-\ENR  FEEARETURERZ  BA Uear
Miles 50% F9B & {TheA > L@BELEMBAR > FHH100%
RENENNE  RECERALERDES -

RBRHE  REBH Cear Miles B LR EHNES T
Clear Miles H81 S 2 R BB » BOER At ARERN
B BRERA o

RZEZ-F+ZAZ+—R ~EEREEEH Uear Miles
ER-BHERS((HERZ)  SURRFRAZEHE
Clear Miles FYRRELLHI > MR B « BIEH R EEEIED BHH
3R & R 55,000,000 7T (#1497 307,340,000 75) M9 75
HHE o

ZEHBETHE ear Miles BB BIRE BRI THEIT
BRBAETLA 110,000,000 BE MM H T WE—EANE
JE Kent Street BO¥2 (T M2 1) B 25% FEML R (AEBME
ERBRBEZMENSNEGES) BRBARE
110,000,000 7% (48 7 47 #614,680,0007%) © 11,000,000/8 &
MER-E-_—E+-B-+—BozAIE; kT
99,000,000 BEMBNR-E-_—E=B=1+—R:]% - HEH
SETREERNDNE RAEERERRE Cear Miles NE
RAMIEL  UBTEHIRAREL  AER  AEAREH
B 175 5 0 Clear Miles 2 {3 % 5 & 708 15,500,000 77 (49 B 1
30,734,000 ) ©

RIEZ-FZRH REEEEEHAM 310 Ann Street Equity
Pty Ltd BT B {58 A 240 » BRI Ann Street Unit Trust » & {5 5%
BEMRETEMAEHIHI310 Ann Street 8 £ AR ENH
100% EREEmER  RESERANURRAL  ABOAR
15,000,000 7 (#7784 90,660,000 7T) ©

XA % » AEEH Ann Street Unit Trust B 5 £ 32569
72 i Ann Street Unit Trust MR T £ ER MR IRR > B
R AREERNGSHBRES

AEELERANERARER RS AEERENAR - £
ANEEDAZENREARELEREN-H -

FoAEERSERSRARDREER
SRS R Z AR ER |

2021 2020

—EC-F EC%E

HK$'000 HK$'000

BBTT BT

Current assets THEE 808 812

Non-current assets ERBBE 606,976 647,197

Current liabilities piEil=U 304,742 383,841

Cash and cash equivalents ReRREZEIER 808 812
Current financial liabilities (excluding other payables & EE (FEEEMER KD HE)

and provisions) 304,605 383,627
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18. INTERESTS IN JOINT VENTURES (CONTINUED) 18. A8 XD (B) §

2021 2020 A

k- Sl k3 P}

HK$'000 HK$'000 £

BBTR BlTr -

Profit for the year KERER 38,664 67,034 B

Other comprehensive income (expense) for the year  AEEEMEEIE () 210 (70) -
Total comprehensive income for the year FEERAERGAE 38,874 66,964

Reconciliation of the above summarised consolidated HUUEEEEESEEGIRAG ZEis
financial information of Value Investing to the carrying &HBEERBHELESHEIR KR PE
amount of the interest in a joint venture recognised in the &S PERELS .

consolidated financial statements:

2021 2020

3 -2

HK$'000 HK$'000

BB BB

Net assets BESE 303,042 264,168

Proportion of the Group's ownership interest in KERFMLBEREERERATZ

Value Investing FiEkEGE S 50% 50%

151,521 132,084

Deemed investments BEARERE 156,355 176,453

Pre-acquisition profits IREE AR (5,080) (5,080)
Carrying amount of the Group's interest in rERRBEREERERAD ZEGRRE

Value Investing 302,796 303,457

The summarised financial information below represents the L F#ik 7 B 755 ¥ #5 2 £ B 7@ Bl JE
information of the Group’s joint venture that is not BBAZAEPEZHELFLE%E .
individually material:

2021 2020
3 - S
HK$'000 HK$'000
BB BB
The Group's share of profit for the year FEEREEFEET 8,042 10,701
The Group's share of other comprehensive income — AEEREEFEEM2EEE
for the year - 2,839
The Group's share of total comprehensive income  AEEREEFE2ZERS
for the year 8,042 13,540
Aggregate carrying amount of the Group's FEERZAECE R IREELE
interests in these joint ventures 126,759 31,461
261
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4= AN
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19. INVESTMENTS IN SECURITIES 19. iEHRE
Financial Equity
assets instruments
notes at FVTPL at FvTOCI Total
BATEETA
WATEERA Hit2 @i
liE:: BHzEMEE HHIR o]
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BETR BETT BETR
2021 ZEC-f
Listed equity securities FhlkAEE (a) 17,620 357 17,977
Unlisted equity securities FEHRAES (b) - 256,212 256,212
Perpetual capital securities BRBELRES (0) - 48,070 48,070
17,620 304,639 322,259
Analysed as: DA
Listed in Hong Kong REELT 17,620 48,427 66,047
Unlisted EI ] - 256,212 256,212
17,620 304,639 322,259
Analysed for reporting purpose as: DUERE BOEA .
Non-current assets EREEE 304,639
Current assets TEEE 17,620
322,259
Financial Equity
assets instruments
notes at FVTPL at FV1OCI Total
BAFRENA
BATEEGA Hit2EREZ
(i3 Bz eREE BHTA &
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BT BETT BETT
2020 - k33
Listed equity securities LA (a) 20,598 161,548 182,146
Unlisted equity securities FEHRAES (b) - 259,482 259,482
Perpetual capital securities EIREAE A () - 47,517 47,517
20,598 468,547 489,145
Analysed as: A
Listed in Hong Kong REBLM 20,598 209,065 229,663
Unlisted L - 259,482 259,482
20,598 468,547 489,145
Analysed for reporting purpose as: MRz AR EA .
Non-current assets FREEE 468,547
Current assets TRHEE 20,598
489,145




19.

INVESTMENTS IN SECURITIES (CONTINUED)

The Group's investments in securities that are denominated

in currencies other than the functional currency of the

relevant group entity are set out below:

19. BHRE (8)
AEBUEMERERINEGRE UG
BZRFRENT

Denominated

in US$
MNETHIE
HK$'000
BETT
As at 31 December 2021 RZE-_—F+-A=1+—H 74,095
As at 31 December 2020 RZZEZFE+-B=1—H 74,112
notes: LER
(@)  Asat31 December 2021, listed equity securities classified as financial instruments at (a) RZBZ-F+_A=+-0 2REFAFANRSHANL

FVTOCI held by the Group amounting to approximately HK$357,000 (2020:
HK$161,548,000) are carried at fair value at the end of the reporting period.

During the year, the Company disposed one of the Group's listed equity securities
following the privatisation of that listed issuer for a cash consideration of
HK$357,468,000, with a gain of HK$43,664,000 transferred from investment
revaluation reserve to accumulated profits upon disposal.

As at 31 December 2021, unlisted equity securities classified as financial instruments
at FVTOCI held by the Group amounting to approximately HK$256,212,000 (2020:
HK$259,482,000) are carried at fair value at the end of the reporting period.

As at 31 December 2021, the Group held perpetual capital securities amounting to
approximately HK$48,070,000 (2020: HK$47,517,000) which are carried at fair value
at the end of the reporting period. Such investments are issued in August 2020 and
July 2019 with a fixed distribution rate of 5.5% and 5.7% per annum payable semi-
annually for the first five years and reset to the prevailing 5-year U.S. Treasury plus
the initial margin every five years thereafter.

(b)

()

W@ﬁg ] ﬁ%ﬁ%ﬁ’&ﬁ“ﬁ%]\ﬁfmimﬁmziﬁmlﬁ
METRAESNABENI00T(ZE_SE: Bl
161,548,0007¢) ©

FER ZARNEZLTETARECEURERBAEY
357,468,000 T ERERMEF—E LHRAES » HERE
Ias A 43,664,000 TR E B HBEEARER o

RIBZ—5+ZA=+—H ' 2EEFRFEURSHRNA
TEEHE YEARATEEIAEMRAREZERTA
M3 LR RA BN ABE56212,0007T (ZE-FE : Bl
259,482,000 7) ©

RIZZ-F+ZA=+-0  AEEMFEUNRESHERNL
TEEGE PEABERBERTSNAEE,070,0007
(ZEZTE: BB 517,0007) c ZESR_E-TENR
RZ%— nﬁtﬁﬁﬁ’&ﬁﬁﬁméﬁﬁw%&w% ]
REBYERE—N  HEABXERENEREREREEM
%M§Wﬁiiﬁo
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20. INVENTORIES 20. 78
2021 2020
3T-f -t 3
HK$'000 HK$'000
BB BETr
The Group's inventories comprise: rEEEFEEE!
Raw materials EME 2,396 1,940
Work in progress ES g 12,411 7,575
Finished goods i m 18,542 14,132
Other inventories HizE 2,212 2,106
35,561 25,753
The cost of inventories recognised as an expense during the RAFEBRASZHZEERENEE

year amounted to approximately HK$79,573,000 (2020:

#79,573,000c( ZE T F: B

HK$55,137,000). 55,137,000 7T) °©
21. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES 21. BB REEURERR
2021 2020
g% k- -3
HK$'000 HK$'000
BB BETT
Trade receivables B AR 37,562 29,358
Lease receivables BRI 11,697 10,891
49,259 40,249
Deposits paid BfiREe 10,396 8,481
Other receivables and prepayments EEWR R AR 75,871 32,194
135,526 80,924
notes: Mizk:

(@)  Considerations in respect of sold properties are payable by the purchasers pursuant (@) ~ EXREESARAEHHENEZAE  LANENRER
to the terms of the sale and purchase agreements. There is no credit period given on BEEH -HEERIAH - BREFUMAART30-90
billing for rental of properties. Monthly rent are payable in advance by the tenants. AZEERER - RAREHE ﬁ@;‘EEHﬁH)\m%FgWE
Trade customers or tenants settle their accounts with an average credit period of 30 HRAEEKIRRAEEL25900 (ZSZFF: B
to 90 days. The aged analysis of trade receivables and lease receivables of 40,249,000 75) ZEREC AN
approximately HK$49,259,000 (2020: HK$40,249,000) presented based on the
invoice date at the end of the reporting period is as follows:

2021 2020
8- S
HK$'000 HK$'000
BETR BETr
Within 30 days 30HRA 15,816 13,57
Between 31 days to 90 days 31ENH 21,180 14,148
Over 90 days iR 12,263 12,530
49,259 40,249
(b)  As at 31 December 2021, included in the trade receivable and lease receivables () ~ RZE_—-F+-A=+—-H A AFEERWEREEES

balance are debtors with aggregate carrying amount of HK$14,227,000 (2020:
HK$16,845,000) which are past due as at the reporting date. Out of the past due
balances, debtors with carrying amount of HK$7,335,000 (2020: HK$4,451,000)
were past due and aged over 90 days at the end of reporting period but the Group
has not provided for impairment loss. Debtors that were past due but not impaired
related to a number of customers that have a good track record of credit with the
Group. Based on past credit history, the management believes that no impairment
allowance is necessary in respect of these balances as there has not been a
significant change in credit quality and the balances are still considered to be fully
recoverable. The Group does not hold any collateral over these balances.

F”EU&EETAMEEFEWETAZ ERIREAEAEE14227,0007T
(ZE-EF A15168450007) » RBEABEL - B
B REEAERT35,000ThEKED (CS-55 &
14,451,00070) > HRERBERRERHERNE  £5H
Imﬁmﬁﬁﬁz;ﬁiﬁﬁﬁﬁhﬁéﬁ ARAERERBAN

ERRERRT ) KREABANRYEERIERER - RER
Eﬁﬁ“ﬁuaﬁ BEEIALERINEEEZREEAN
2> BRBENKEAATR2KRE ALEERZSERRAE
BB AERUERZSERFEIMIERY -



21. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (CONTINUED)

notes: (Continued)

(0 All of the Group's trade receivables and lease receivables are denominated in the
functional currency of the individual entities within the Group.

(d) Details of impairment assessment of trade and other receivables are set out in note
37h.

22. FIXED BANK DEPOSITS WITH MORE THAN THREE
MONTHS TO MATURITY WHEN RAISED/BANK
BALANCES AND CASH

Bank balances carry interest at market rates which range

from 0.01% to 0.35% (2020: 0.01% to 0.25%) per annum.

The fixed deposits carry fixed interest rates ranging from

0.11% to 4.30% (2020: 0.11% to 2.5%) per annum.

The Group's bank balances and fixed bank deposits that are
denominated in currencies other than the functional

ﬂ (HE&E@EI&E% (¥8)

(0  FEEREEZERRNESRIERAFEBRENEE
ZYREEHTIE

()  BREZREMEWRRAORETE  FEHRIEID o

22. GAZEBE&NBZEMRITE
MORTERRE®
ﬁEﬁﬁ%’xBﬁﬁLﬁﬁ%ﬂ%%%EﬁuU )
NFEE001%E035% (ZE_F
0.01% £ 0.25%) ° Eﬁﬂ?’?mﬁﬁﬁlﬁlmﬂ
B NIEEF011%EL30% (BT
FI0.11%E25%) °

AEBLOFEMERBERNINEG B
ENRITERREHRITER > B

currency of the relevant group entity are set out below: T
Denominated Denominated Denominated
in HK$ in RMB in US$
MABTIE WARESIE METHIE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BETR BETR BlETR
As at 31 December 2021 RZE-—-F+-A=+—-H 1,382 728,940 79,555
As at 31 December 2020 RZE-FE+-F=1—H 9,130 691,884 197,813

Details of pledge and impairment assessment are set out in
notes 31 and 37b.

23. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES

IR R R (BT IR J L FEE31 5237b ©

23. B REMEMSRR

2021 2020
ZEC-f ZZITH
HK$'000 HK$'000
BETT BETT
Trade payables BRI 8,264 6,283
Construction costs and retention payables EfEERARBELRES 192,666 168,933
Deposits received in respect of rental of RENERSZElEE
investment properties 134,764 118,390
Rentals receipt in advance FEisE 13,662 7,974
Deposits received (note) ElkiRS (i) 167,639 170,523
Advance lease payments Bt 2,944 4,330
Other payables HRERERR 45,361 21,017
565,300 497,450
Less: Amount due for settlement within 12 months 3§ : R+ =B RN AE&E
shown under current liabilities (458,154) (399,334)
Amount due for settlement after 12 months shown  R+Z{ER%HMZIEREAR
under non-current liabilities 107,146 98,116
note: The amounts represent refundable deposits received from subcontractors for the  [iti: SERXAIEEREUBNTRERS  UBRFEREEHR

purpose of securing their performance in respect of construction contracts in favour
of the Group.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 4 & 8 53R R MW 5

23. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES (CONTINUED) 23. HE RHEMMESERER (&)
The following is an aged analysis of trade payables based E 5 E{TERFAVERESAZEZ HER DTN
on the invoice date. T
2021 2020
k- Sl ot 1:-
HK$'000 HK$/000
AETRT BETR
Within 30 days 30A/ 8,264 6,283

The average credit period on purchases of goods is 30 days. EEEY > FI9=SEEA30H - A&£E

The Group has financial risk management policies in place B4IFEHERAMSERSE  URERSE
to ensure that all payables are settled within the credit pE{(JEESHNRESHHARNZ( o
timeframe.

24. LEASE LIABILITIES 24. HE&HB
2021 2020
ZEC-F “E°EE
HK$'000 HK$'000
AT BB
Lease liabilities payable: EAHESRE.
Within one year —ER 3,253 2,710
Within a period of more than one year but not more —F#EBERBBEME
than two years 2,663 1,678
Within a period of more than two years but not more MEREFBBRLE
than five years - 1,809
5,916 6,197
Less: Amount due for settlement within 12 months & : R+ _{BE REIEEEHEE
shown under current liabilities (3,253) (2,710)
Amount due for settlement after 12 months shown ~ R+_{BEAZIBMzErEHaE
under non-current liabilities 2,663 3,487
25. CONTRACT LIABILITIES 25. &\
2021 2020
ZET-F “ECZE
Note HK$'000 HK$'000
i3 AR BT
Sales of properties MEHE (a) 9,693 771

The following table shows how much of the revenue TRETAKAEERIDIHNKEZFTEZ /D
recognised in the current year relates to carried-forward #ZESHNEERRM o
contract liabilities.

Construction contracts (note b) Sales of properties
BHEAH (M3kb) |
2021 2020 2021 2020
- Sl 3 —8-%f ZE--f ZEZCZE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BETT BETT BETT BETT

Revenue recognised that was included RE{BABSHEEREE
in the contract liabilities balance at  EREEHHME
the beginning of the year - - 771 46,965




m
2
2
25. CONTRACT LIABILITIES (CONTINUED) 25. SRR (&) S
2
As at 1 January 2020, contract liabilities amounted to RZ-ZE_TF—H—H'' a8 EEHE
v
HK$46,965,000. %781 46,965,000 7T © 2
notes: Mt §
(@) Sales of properties ()  YMEHE ﬁ
The Group receives deposits from customers pursuant to the terms of the sale and FEAREEEGENRIEBERNES - REERAHE
purchase agreement. The deposits result in contract liabilities being recognised until R EERFRRE T IMERNZEHHE o
the customer obtains control of the completed property.
(b)  Construction contracts (b) BEAN
When the Group receives a deposit before the construction activity commences, this SRERERTIHELAKIIRS SRS BESHERE
will give rise to contract liabilities at the start of a contract, until the revenue EXENEE BEXERANRINKGRECKNREEE o

recognised on the relevant contract exceeds the amount of the deposit received.

(0  Contract liabilities as at the end of each reporting period are expected to be (¢ SEREHRNEHERRIRET—ERDANE o
recognised as revenue in subsequent year.

26. BORROWINGS 26. (B
2021 2020
- S 3
NOTES HK$'000 HK$'000
Wiz BETT BETT
Secured bank borrowings HiEmETES 1,369,864 1,029,059
Unsecured bank borrowings BIERBITED 479,000 432,000
Amounts due to non-controlling shareholders  FEftIEI=RRAZ R A (a) 10,358 12,786
1,859,222 1,473,845
The carrying amounts of bank borrowings that _FiftfE/BEEIEEE :
are repayable: (b)
Within one year —ERN 74,487 35,683
Within a period of more than one year but —FREFBERE
not exceeding two years 64,094 -
Within a period of more than two years but ~ HEABRBRRE
not exceeding five years 989,806 993,376
More than five years HBBLE 241,477 -
1,369,864 1,029,059
The carrying amounts of bank borrowings that $R{TERMRABESSEER
contain a repayable on demand clause BIEER (BERTTS
(shown under current liabilities) but BET) o BEEER:
repayable:
Within one year —ER 479,000 432,000
The carrying amounts of other borrowings that EtEHNREBESSEREBERER
contain a repayable on demand clause 10,358 12,786
1,859,222 1,473,845 267
Less: Amounts due within one year shown i : EREEET—ER =
under current liabilities HSNEH (563,845) (480,469) =
1,295,377 993,376 ;{
]
ol
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

26.

notes:

BORROWINGS (CONTINUED)

(@)  These borrowings are unsecured and repayable on demand. An amount of
approximately HK$263,000 (2020: HK$2,808,000) bears variable interest at an
effective interest rate of 1.41% (2020: 1.44%) per annum, while the remaining
amounts are non-interest bearing.

(b) The amounts due are based on scheduled repayment dates set out in the loan
agreements.

(0 As at 31 December 2021, HK$ denominated secured bank borrowings of
approximately HK$993,400,000 (2020: HK$991,000,000) and unsecured borrowings
of approximately HK$479,000,000 (2020: HK$432,000,000), Renminbi (“RMB")
denominated secured bank borrowings of approximately HK24,487,000 (2020:
HK$35,682,000) and Thai Bahts (“THB") denominated secured bank loans of
approximately HK$349,531,000 are variable-rate bank borrowings which carry
interest at HIBOR plus a margin of 0.8% to 1.25% (2020: 0.90% to 1.25%) per
annum, 100% (2020: 100%) of the People’s Bank of China (“PBOC") prescribed
interest rate per annum and Minimum Loan Rate announced by the Bank of Thailand
("MLR") minus 1.5%, respectively.

As at 31 December 2021, RMB denominated bank loans of approximately
HK$2,446,000 (2020: HK$2,377,000) are fixed-rate bank borrowings which carry
interest at 4.75% per annum.

The effective interest rates ranged from 0.96% to 4.82% (2020: 1.25% to 4.75%)
per annum. Details of assets pledged are set out in note 31.

27. DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

rE AR

26. & (&)

iGN

(@) EENAERBRAREREENBE6300T(ZE2F
E B12,808,00070) ZHEEERIHFXRHE » BRAE
ABE1M% (CE2DE  1.04%) o BEAARS o

b)  BRRRBRERGHAHREER BRI

0 RIFZI-E+ZR=+-0 UAKSIEZEERRTER
003, 40000075(_7_# #1991,000,0007T) K &I
FEHAR479,000,0007T (2T ZFE © #1432,000,0007T) °
DARBHEZ BTERALUL8700T(ZEEE: #
135,682,0007) MU S HIEZERBRTERBY
349,531,000t A A B UEBRTREREFESMSUE
125% (ZEZBE 09%E1.25%) FERENIBER R
B100% (Z2ZFF 2 100%) ZPEARBIREHENTE
ERREARTAGNREERFIEH1.5% o

RIBZ—5+ZA=+—H AREHENRITESZNAS
12,406,000 (CB B E © H%2,377,0007T) BEEFEE
o EREAL75% o

EEHNENTFEEE0INEANN(ZE S E1.5%E
4.75%) o BIEHEE BRI

27. EMTEIR

Liabilities
aff
2021 2020
5= kS
HK$'000 HK$'000
BETR BETr
Derivatives not under hedge accounting: e ZIETA

Cross currency swap contract BRNETXEBREH = 1,808

CROSS CURRENCY SWAP CONTRACT 7374 -1 "“‘**l]:.’z:iéﬁﬂ‘**'g

The Group entered into a cross currency swap contract to
manage its exposure to currency exchange fluctuation on its
operations in Japan with principal amount of
JPY305,000,000 at fixed currency exchange rate of Japanese
Yen (“JPY”) to HK$ at 0.07 and due in 2021. Under this
swap contract, the Group would receive interest monthly at
a floating rate of HIBOR plus 1.44% per annum based on
the principal amount of approximately HK$21,320,000 and
pay interest monthly at fixed rate at 1.19% per annum
based on the principal amount of JPY305,000,000. The swap
contract was matured in July 2021.

Details of the fair value measurements of cross currency
swap contract are set out in note 37c.

FEREBRERXXEEIXRIFHEL > K
EEHTHAEBNINERREAR » &
¥87#5305,000,000 HEl » R#EcEE E
EA0.07° MR T -—FFH - R
EEEHAGH > AEERZAWERE
L4 121,320,000 T U EHEITH
ZIREM1.44% EFERABENFE > &
FEZ{F1RIEARE 305,000,000 HELLE
EFZFE1.19% FFXAENFIE o =57
BHRZZEZ—FtREIH-

HBEAMRXEBHXREHENZAF
EEFESHNMIEE37c -



28. DEFERRED TAXATION

For the purpose of presentation in the consolidated
statement of financial position, certain deferred tax assets
and liabilities have been offset. The following is the analysis
of the deferred tax balances for financial reporting

8. IREMIA
MEIFREGHBRRARMS > STIEL
MEBEEREBEEEE - U TAMPFH
FA¥R B B Z IRAEFR TRAS BR 04T

purposes:
2021 2020
E--f ZEI%E
HK$'000 HK$'000
AT BETR
Deferred tax assets EERIESE 18,414 20,608
Deferred tax liabilities IEEIEaE (322,760) (260,726)
(304,346) (240,118)

The following are the major deferred tax liabilities (assets)
recognised by the Group and movements thereon during

UTFAREEREEERUEEEDR
R ETBRERES S (EE) UR L

the current and prior years. o
Difference Revaluation
of accounting  of investment Dividend
and tax properties withholding
depreciation in the PRC tax Tax losses Total
BHARE EfthE
hEZER ZRENE REFENR e &t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BETT BETT BETT BETT BETT
At 1 January 2020 RZE_ZF—HA—H 38,517 213,609 10,205 (32,928) 229,403
Charge (credit) to profit or loss RESEERIR GIA) 5,984 11,664 (10,563) 3,582 10,667
Currency realignment XA - (310) 358 - 48
At 31 December 2020 AZERFE+-B=1+—H 44,501 224,963 - (29,346) 240,118
Charge (credit) to profit or loss REEERIR GIA) 5,561 49,936 3,900 (1,188) 58,209
Currency realignment ExHR = 6,019 = = 6,019
At 31 December 2021 RIBZ-F+ZRA=t-H 50,062 280,918 3,900 (30,534) 304,346

At the end of the reporting period, the Group had unused
tax losses of approximately HK$892,794,000 (2020:
HK$879,593,000) available for offset against future profits.
A deferred tax asset has been recognised in respect of
approximately HK$186,201,000 (2020: HK$179,001,000) of
such losses. No deferred tax asset has been recognised in
respect of the remaining tax loss of approximately
HK$706,593,000 (2020: HK$700,592,000) due to the
unpredictability of future profit streams. Included in
unrecognised tax losses at 31 December 2021 are tax losses
of approximately HK$3,195,000 (2020: HK$3,832,000) that
will expire within 5 years from the year of originating.
Other tax losses may be carried forward indefinitely.

REREBFR *EBHBOBE
892,794,000c( Z E Z T F . B
879,593,0007T) Z K ENFARIERIE AT A
EFIHBEREKRGFN BPR LY B
186,201,000 c( Z T Z T F: B K&
179,001,0007T) E#R A IRLERIESE ©
AR EETRRARFATRIE > HEr4E
#706,593,000;c(Z T T F . B
700,592,000 7T) 2 1 TEE5 48 il 5K 52 24

BEEREEE - R_TZ—F+AH
=+—H > XEINEHEFEEESE
FERBEEANIANRNEBIBOBIE
3,195000c( = & = T &F: B &
3,832,0007T) - HMIREHEEIIRERIR
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

28. DEFERRED TAXATION (CONTINUED)

Under the EIT Law of PRC, withholding tax is imposed on
dividends declared in respect of profits earned by PRC
subsidiaries from 1 January 2008 onwards. Deferred
taxation has not been provided for in the consolidated
financial statements in respect of the temporary differences
attributable to accumulated profits of the PRC subsidiaries
amounting to approximately HK$18,536,000 (2020:
HK$11,983,000) as the Group is able to control the timing of
the reversal of these temporary differences and it is
probable that the temporary differences will not reverse in
the foreseeable future.

rE AR

28. IBIEMIE (48)
RIBEFPRETEMSREZ BZSZN\E
—B—Bi#E » FEHE QS ERBUEF M
BEkZREBEBMTAINR AR EAER
BELIERIBEIERER ZRRE > AR
BREETRERAGR A RiGHRERE > &
HMARGEMBRRMPEHRBATR
iz R A= 2 B 18,536,000 7t (=
T_ZL  AH11,983,000 7T) {EHIEIE
AR o

29. SHARE CAPITAL 29. gz
Number
of shares HK$'000
RHHE BETT
Issued and fully paid: ERTRAERE
At 1 January 2020, 31 December 2020 and RZE_EE—-F—H >
31 December 2021 ZE-ZE+"B=+-HRK
“E¥-£+ZR=t-H
Ordinary shares of no par BEBZEER 378,583,440 381,535

30. SHARE OPTION SCHEMES

The Company’s share option scheme (the “2002 Scheme")
was adopted pursuant to a resolution passed on 25 April
2002, for the primary purpose of providing incentives to
directors and eligible employees, and expired on 24 April
2012. Under the 2002 Scheme, the Company could grant
options to eligible employees, including executive directors
of the Company and its subsidiaries, to subscribe for shares
in the Company at HK$10 per option. Additionally, the
Company could, from time to time, grant share options to
outside eligible third parties at the discretion of the Board
of Directors.

Without prior approval from the Company’s shareholders,
the total number of shares in respect of which options could
be granted under the 2002 Scheme was not permitted to
exceed 10% of the shares of the Company in issue at any
point in time. The number of shares in respect of which
options could be granted to any individual was not
permitted to exceed 1% of the shares of the Company in
issue at any point in time.

30. IRIEARESTEY

RARREBR _ZEE"FMAZ+5HH
BRZRARZRMRGOIAESS (T2
ZFFE)) > TEENEAHREBSE
EREERES  ZtEERZE—Z
FOAZ+HMBE® - RIE_TZTF
e KRBT AEERES (BEEAA
B REMBARZHMITES) LA -
UESMREEBB10TRBEATRY °
LS » AT AR EMAEE > HESEE
HEREFEERINAE=FRERKRM
HATE o

ERESEARBRRSBILHMAET > REB
TETTFEAREEAE 2 RN ES
A EBHAABRREMARREEZTRY
210% > MEMERMER A L% L
ROBERESBHARXTIREAEREE
BITRNZ1%



30. SHARE OPTION SCHEMES (CONTINUED)

Options could be exercised at any time from the date of
grant of the share option to the 5th anniversary of the date
of grant. The exercise price was to be determined by the
directors of the Company, and would not be less than the
higher of the nominal value of the Company’s share on the
date of grant, the average closing price of the shares for
the five business days immediately preceding the date of
grant, or the closing price of the shares on the date of
grant.

No options were granted under the 2002 Scheme since it
was adopted. The 2002 Scheme expired on 24 April 2012.

A new share option scheme was approved and adopted by
the Company pursuant to an ordinary resolution passed on
9 May 2012 (the “2012 Scheme"”). The terms of the 2012
Scheme and the 2002 Scheme are broadly similar. The 2012
Scheme is effective for a period of 10 years.

No share option has been granted under the 2012 Scheme
since its adoption.

31. PLEDGE OF ASSETS

At the end of the reporting period, the assets shown as
below were pledged to banks to secure general banking
facilities made available to the Group.

30. Bein HAHE ST B (48)

IR EARERTIIR H B EAE St R ME
FE{TE  THEEREFABDEFERE
ERABREABRROIRIFELEBRZEE
REZFRH B AER S B Z KRS F
MRHERREE R ZRHDBTHEZR
S

T T F SRR LR R IR
LA - — 2T _FHEN_FT—_F
MB =+ HEH °

BRER_E-—_FRANBBAEZER
REBFR > —EFROBAEAB(TZZ
—:E#i' D ERREHERRM - —

——FFEZFERE BT " F5E
Zﬂmmkxﬂﬁlﬂ o TT—"FFEIAN

HAA 104

- FEEIERMLURT EE I
HiHAHE o

31. EEIKM

REIREHKR > THEECRBFIRIT
B EEER T —ARIRITRIE ©

2021

- Sl it S

HK$'000 HK$'000

BB BB

Freehold land under hotel land and buildings BE TR TR AL 238,531 -
Leasehold land and buildings HELMRIEF 67,076 68,982
Investment properties RENE 5,259,103 4,882,210

In addition, fixed bank deposits with more than three
months to maturity when raised amounting to
HK$50,024,000 (2020: HK$48,598,000) were pledged to
banks to secure the bank guarantee issued for the main
contractors in relation to property development project in
PRC.

LS EA=ZER BRI Z EHHIRITE
A AB150,024,000c (ZEZEF . B
& 48,598,000 7o) EEIF FIRIT > MUIHER
MAEEMEMEEERNTFEREHE
AR TIETR ©
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32. CAPITAL COMMITMENTS 32. BAKIE
2021 2020
- 3 it
HK$'000 HK$'000
BB BB
Capital expenditure contracted for but not provided in BEXABRNEAHBRE LBEZ
the consolidated financial statements in respect of:  BE#&RY :
— Property, plant and equipment/ —N¥ BEREE/
investment properties RENE 8,565 61,409
— Commitment to provide shareholder loantoa  —&EASECERERRER
joint venture 280,512 -
— Others — Ht 20,317 20,479
33. OPERATING LEASE COMMITMENTS 33. BEHLKIE
THE GROUP AS LESSOR EEEALHBA

All of the properties held have committed tenants for the
next one to eight years.

The Group as lessor had contracted with tenants for the
following future minimum lease payments:

FrEMERERZEAA—F/\EMHE0 -

FEEFEAHBEASRUATRRRMER
X HERETA -

2021 2020

ZEC-F “EC%E

HK$'000 HK$'000

BETT BT

Within one year —ER 287,213 280,204
In the second to fifth year inclusive RE_ELER (BEEERE) 310,161 389,184
Over five years 1&% - 10,454
597,374 679,842

34. RETIREMENT BENEFITS SCHEMES

For its eligible employees in Hong Kong, the Group operates
a defined contribution schemes registered under the MPF
Scheme.

Contributions payable by the Group to the MPF Scheme are
determined based on the rules underlying the respective
schemes and are charged to consolidated statement of
profit or loss. The assets of the MPF Scheme are held
separately from those of the Group, in funds under the
control of trustees. Under the MPF Scheme, the employees
contribute 5% of the relevant payroll to the MPF Scheme
while the Group contributes 5% of the relevant payroll to
the MPF Scheme.

34. BikEFIHE
FEBABTBZAGEREERT —ER
EMETE > WAERRE S8 T -

AEERBEBREFE 2 BRARAEE
BERMZMHER > FEFESEmRINE -
BRTFAEHEEARAAURTRIE
W BAEBEESRER - RIER
BEstd  ETRZREAMARSHRS%
REREE A > MAEETFRZER
BT ABB5% MRS 5T BIHR o



34. RETIREMENT BENEFITS SCHEMES (CONTINUED)

In addition, certain employees of the Group's subsidiaries
established in the PRC are members of state-managed
retirement benefits schemes. The subsidiaries are required
to contribute a certain percentage of their payroll costs to
the retirement benefits schemes to fund the benefits. The
only obligation of the Group with respect to these
retirement benefits schemes is to make the specified
contributions.

35. ACQUISITION OF A SUBSIDIARY

On 1 June 2021, Great Essential Holdings Limited, Premium
Access International Limited and Real Epic Holdings Limited,
indirect wholly-owned subsidiaries of the Company
(collectively referred to as the “Purchasers”), had entered
into a share purchase agreement with independent third
parties, namely NYE Estate Co., Ltd, SBPS Mauritius Ltd. and
two individuals (collectively referred to as the “Sellers”).
Pursuant to the share purchase agreement, the Sellers
agreed to sell, and the Purchasers agreed to purchase, the
entire issued share capital of Choengmon Real Estate
Company Limited (“Choengmon Real Estate”), a company
with plans to construct a holiday resort on a freehold land
at the Northeastern Koh Samui District in Thailand, for an
adjusted purchase price of approximately THB2,147,621,000
(approximately HK$501,469,000). On 13 December 2021,
completion of the acquisition had taken place following by
the completion of hotel construction work and confirmation
of hotel opening date. Upon completion, the Company,
through those abovementioned indirect wholly-owned
subsidiaries, hold 100% equity interest in Choengmon Real
Estate.

The Group elected to apply the optional concentration test
in accordance with HKFRS 3 and concluded that property,
plant and equipment is considered as a single identifiable
asset. Consequently, the Group determined that
substantially all of the fair value of the gross assets
(excluding cash and cash equivalents) acquired is
concentrated in a single identifiable asset and concluded
that the acquired set of activities and assets is not a
business.

34. BFEHE (B)

LSt s AEBERABERIZBBATZ
ETEREABRREBERREFE 2K
B -ZEMBARARENESETES
EEmBAEF T EIMFH R LB NEE
BEr - AEEHRZFRABHFEZ
ME—BETEHIEE HR -

35. WIBMIE AR
TEZ—FXRA—HAxRFZEES
& K B & 5 Great Essential Holdings
Limited ~Premium Access
International Limited 5z Real Epic
Holdings Limited (%8 TfEE /51) B &
BAUB=FIIRMNEERZ > BEINYE
Estate Co., Ltd. ~ SBPS Mauritius Ltd.#1
MEEA (B TES)) - RERGOES
W& BEFRRLE MEAREEE
Choengmon Real Estate Company
Limited (TChoengmon Real Estatel) B9
2HWERITRAE > ZAFFEETREER
SR KAE#ZE LM FRIE—E
ERki BERENBEEERNA
2,147,621,000 % &k (49 7# ¥ 501,469,000
7o) c ZEZ—F+Z"H+=H > WER
B IS 22 5% T2 5T Ak Re B I B 3 B B R 52
BEM - EE > ARQERIB EMEE
2 & 7K E A 845 B Choengmon Real
Estate 100% HIRZAE o

FERERRIBEEBMTHREERE 3R
FERAEEMEEDRIE > LRAME - K
B R R EHRAR A — TR B E - Rt
FEFRERENREE (FEEREM
REFEER) WEFFRAEATEERE
PE—HAHREETR > LT HERRD
7 WRREBNEERR—BER
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

35. ACQUISITION OF A SUBSIDIARY (CONTINUED)
ASSETS AND LIABILITIES RECOGNISED AT THE DATE OF
ACQUISITION

rE AR

35. kMR 2F (&)
EMEREEZENEENAR

HK$'000
BT
Property, plant and equipment % BERRE 579,868
Other receivables HitifEwEr 2,296
Bank balances and cash RTRGERRE 42,463
Trade and other payables B 5 REMEM RS (7.342)
Bank borrowings RITfER (347,448)
Shareholder’s loan REREH (115,816)
154,021
Consideration was satisfied by: KEZFU
Consideration paid in cash REZANAE 154,021
Assignment of bank borrowings (note) RITER () 347,448
501,469
Net cash outflows arising on acquisition of J18& Choengmon Real Estate 24 9
Choengmon Real Estate: BEHH3E
Consideration paid in cash WREY AHNRE 154,021
Less: bank balances and cash acquired R TRAREENRE (42,463)
111,558
note: Upon completion, the bank borrowings of approximately THB1,488,000,000 Wiz . SRR 0 491,488,000,000 Fk (40751 347,448,000 7T) BOERIT (L
(approximately HK$347,448,000) had been assigned to the Group. HREETAER o
36. CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT 36. S EEEIE

The Group manages its capital to ensure that entities in the
Group will be able to continue as a going concern while
maximising the return to shareholders through the
optimisation of the debt and equity balances. The Group’s
overall strategy remains unchanged from prior year.

The capital structure of the Group consists of net cash,
which includes borrowings, net of bank deposits and cash,
and equity attributable to owners of the Company,
comprising issued share capital and various reserves.

The directors of the Company review the capital structure
periodically. As part of this review, the directors consider
the cost of capital and the risks associated with each class of
capital. Based on recommendations of the directors, the
Group will balance its overall capital structure through the
payment of dividends, new share issues as well as the issue
of new debt or the redemption of existing debt.

FEEHEBAETEER  UEREE
EETSERIEBRGSESEAELR
g ARRNERHBRAREZEERT
> HRRTEREKOH > FEEZE
FETRBR AR F I EEE o
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37. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
37A. CATEGORIES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

37. #fTH
37A. &M T ARE

ZE--f ZTITH
HK$'000 HK$'000
BETR BT
Financial assets SHEE
Financial assets at FVTPL BATEESAEGZERNEE 17,620 20,598
Equity instruments at FVTOCI RATEEF AN ARG ERTE 304,639 468,547
Financial assets at amortised cost MEBSERAARNESHEE 2,303,688 2,253,179
Financial liabilities SREE
Amortised cost BHEmA 2,396,321 1,958,098
Derivative financial instruments SRTETA - 1,808

37B.FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND
POLICIES

Details of the Group’s major financial instruments are
disclosed in respective notes. The risks associated with these
financial instruments include market risk (currency risk,
interest rate risk and price risk), liquidity risk, and credit risk
and impairment assessment. The policies on how to mitigate
these risks are set out below. The management manages
and monitors these exposures to ensure appropriate
measures are implemented on a timely and effective
manner.

Market risk

(i)  Currency risk

The Group undertakes certain transactions denominated in
foreign currencies and, hence exposures to exchange rate
fluctuations arise.

The carrying amounts of the Group’s monetary assets and
monetary liabilities, including intra-group balances at the
end of the reporting period that are denominated in
currencies other than the functional currency of the
relevant entities are as follows:

378. MBEAGEEBIERESER

ZETMIAEZFRNERMMERR
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

37. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)

37B.FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Market risk (Continued)

(i)  Currency risk (Continued)

rE AR

37. EMTIA (&)
378. M4 #5 b B2 BT RS (47)

iR A (48)
(i) EEELE (&)

Assets Liabilities
HE aff
2021 2020 2021 2020
ZEC-f 3 . 3
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
AETR BT TR BETT
Group £0
HK$ against RMB BERARE 1,382 9,130 - -
United States dollars (“US$”) against ExREE
HK$ 153,650 271,925 - -
RMB against HK$ ARER A 728,940 691,884 - -
Intra-group balances ERARERELR
HK$ against RMB BEIARE 113,393 110,159 1,260,517 1,245,069
THB against HK$ RHDBLE 123,504 - - -

The Group currently does not have a foreign exchange
hedging policy. However, the management of the Group
monitors foreign exchange exposure and will consider
hedging significant foreign exchange exposure should the
need arises.

Sensitivity analysis

The following table details the Group's sensitivity to a 1%
(2020: 1%) increase and decrease in HK$ against US$ and
10% (2020: 10%) increase and decrease in HK$ against RMB
and THB. The respective percentages are the sensitivity rates
used when reporting foreign currency risk internally to key
management personnel and represent management’s
assessment of the reasonably possible change in foreign
exchange rates. The sensitivity analysis includes outstanding
foreign currency denominated monetary items and also
intra-group balances denominated in foreign currencies and
adjusts their translation at the year end for the respective
percentages change in the exchange rates.

A positive number below indicates an increase in post-tax
profit or equity where HK$ weaken 1% (2020: 1%) against
US$ and HK$ weaken 10% (2020: 10%) against RMB and
THB. For a 1% (2020: 1%) strengthening of the HK$ against
US$ and HK$ strengthening 10% (2020: 10%) against RMB
and THB, there would be an equal and opposite impact on
the profit or equity, and the balances below would be
negative.

Z< 5 [ B A 3 5% S BE ¥R ELER o AT
EEBEERMENINERR > 7EE
BERERZERPEEINER RIS o

BREDH

TREFSIEEHBERETER EFH
BTE1% (ZTE2E2FF 1 1%) UKRBE
TARERRHER EHAKRTE10% (Z
TTFFE 10%) NBRE - STEEDLE
HMEERPRAETESIEASERBFFEA
NBRELEER  ARTEEBHERE
SIETREMNEHE AN EERT(MHE c RE
S EEMIIMNE S ENRBEHMEKIER
BRUINEGERNEB AT RERR I
MEXZEHNE D LENEEERBE -

TRAEHRTABRIETEEI1% (Z
TTEF 11%) REARERE10% (Z
TTRF 110%) Rafsemigm o 8
BERETHEI% (CETE  1%)
EREAREBEAHEID(ZE _ZTF:
10%) B > HiafEmEEREEHER
FENFE > MTNGEGREEas -



37. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)
37B.FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

37. &R T A (&)
378. B EKREREBIRREE (8)

Market risk (Continued) hiEEE (47)
(i) Currency risk (Continued) (i) EEmRE(E
Sensitivity analysis (Continued) BRED (8)
2021 2020
ot b3 ZZI%E
HK$'000 HK$'000
BB BT
Profit or loss B
HK$ against RMB BEAARE (115) (9,961)
US$ against HK$ EnREE 664 1,652
RMB against HK$ ARBRER 60,866 57,772
Other comprehensive income HE 2wk
HK$ against RMB AR ARE 114,712 113,491
US$ against HK$ EnRBE 741 741
THB against HK$ Rk (12,350) -

In management’s opinion, the sensitivity analysis is
unrepresentative of the inherent foreign exchange risk as
the year end exposure does not reflect the exposure during
the year.

(ii) Interest rate risk

Cash flow interest rate risk is the risk that the future cash
flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of
changes in market interest rates. The Group currently does
not have an interest rate hedging policy. However, the
management monitors interest rate exposure and will
consider hedging significant interest rate exposure should
the need arise.

The Group is exposed to fair value interest rate risk in
relation to fixed-rate fixed bank deposits, lease liabilities
and borrowings (see notes 22, 24 and 26 for details). The
Group is also exposed to cash flow interest rate risk in
relation to its variable-rate bank balances and borrowings
(see notes 22 and 26 for details). The Group’s cash flow
interest rate risk is mainly attributable to fluctuation of
HIBOR and prevailing interest rates offered by the PBOC
and MLR. It is the Group’s policy to keep its borrowings at
floating rates of interest so as to minimise the fair value
interest rate risk. The Group’s exposures to interest rates on
financial liabilities are detailed in the liquidity risk
management section of this note.

REEEENER  SRESHTHEAR
BYSNEE B R I8 A B A RME » B2 FR&K
ZHY R BRI T 7 R AR Z YRR ©

(i)  FIEEFE
ReERENEAKRASMTAZ REKR
ERERETSNEEEMEEZ AR o
7 55 B B Al AU SR E RS © AR
EREECERMEMNAERER  TEE
EREREERHATEFNXRARIR

NEEMESECHRTER HEAER
REREZAFEMNERR GHERMF
22~ 24%226) - ZEE M EZ EIRIT
ERRERAZHRETENERR ° (5%
BRMIFE22526) c FEBMRERE
MEREFEFENSBIRTRZERS
HPEARBITRENRITERRREH
RIEERFENES - FEENEEA
RFERFEZSH UBRERLVAFE
BFXERE AEEREMEEMEARZ
MR EEE > RN EFRNREE
TRMEEE & -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

37. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)
37B.FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND
POLICIES (CONTINUED)
Market risk (Continued)
(ii) Interest rate risk (Continued)
A fundamental reform of major interest rate benchmarks is
being undertaken globally, including the replacement of
some interbank offered rates (“IBORs"”) with alternative
nearly risk-free rates. Details of the impacts on the Group’s
risk management strategy arising from the interest rate
benchmark reform and the progress towards
implementation of alternative benchmark interest rates are
set out under “interest rate benchmark reform” in this
note.

Sensitivity analysis

The sensitivity analyses below have been determined based
on the exposure to interest rates for the Group’s derivative
and non-derivative instruments at the end of the reporting
period. The analysis is prepared assuming the financial
instruments outstanding at the end of the reporting period
were outstanding for the whole year. A 50 basis points
(2020: 50 basis points) fluctuation is used when reporting
interest rate risk internally to key management personnel
and represents management’s assessment of the reasonably
possible change in interest rates.

rE AR

37. EMTIA (&)
378. B4 #5 L b% E 12 IR R SR (47)

s E b (48)

(i) FIFEE (&)
PREAERFIENREEBTRAMDN
B QA4 TERBNERFNEER
—LERITEERERER o FIXBEENE
HEAEERAKREERBNEERERE
EFERNEIEREE R AN E TFIREE
B EN

BREDH

TXHBRED TR BEEAEBRTE
RIETETAERSHRERZNFIER
GEE c RUEUSMRBEIRNBEHREK
BN EMTAEEFEAMEKIE - A
HHTEEEASERMNERGRR L
SO FEMEMNIEH(ZTZETZFE (508
F) > KREEEBHANXESIERSENE
EREEaIsTE o

2020

k- b3 “ECTE

Change in basis points Change in basis points
+50 -50 +50 =50
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BETT BETT BT BETR
Profit or loss (net of tax) arEEE (BIRE) 119 (119) 1,734 (1,734)

[=] [—] N=
Numbers in bracket mean decrease. RSP T AR o

In management’s opinion, the sensitivity analysis is
unrepresentative of the inherent interest rate risk as the
year end exposure does not reflect the exposure during the
year.

REEEENER  SIREDNHESR
BRI R E R dE R B AR 0 B F &K
ZHYE BRI A PR AR Z YRR ©



37. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)
37B.FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND
POLICIES (CONTINUED)
Market risk (Continued)
(iii) Price risk
The Group is exposed to equity price risk through its
investments in listed equity securities measured at FVTPL
and FVTOCI, and perpetual capital securities measured at
FVTOCI. For equity securities measured at FVTPL quoted in
the Stock Exchange, the management manages this
exposure by maintaining a portfolio of investments with
different risks. In addition, the Group also invested in
certain listed equity securities and unquoted equity
securities for long term strategic purposes which had been
designated as FVTOCI. The management will closely monitor
the price movement of the securities and regularly review
the performance and asset allocation of the portfolio.

Sensitivity analysis
The sensitivity analyses below have been determined based
on the exposure to equity price risks at the reporting date.

If the prices of the respective listed equity instruments and
perpetual capital securities had been 10% (2020: 10%)
higher/lower:

e the Group’s post-tax profit for the year ended 31
December 2021 would increase by approximately
HK$1,471,000 (2020: HK$1,720,000) or decrease by
approximately HK$1,471,000 (2020: HK$1,720,000),
respectively, as a result of the changes in fair value of
listed equity securities classified as financial assets at
FVTPL; and

e the Group’s investment revaluation reserve would
increase by approximately HK$4,843,000 (2020:
HK$20,907,000) or decrease by approximately
HK$4,843,000 (2020: HK$20,907,000), respectively, as a
result of changes in fair value of listed equity securities
and perpetual capital securities measured at FVTOCI.

37. M IA (&)
378. BAF5 IR EIE B IR R B 5R (4R)

s E b (48)

(iii) 1B EBE

REFEFBEUATEES ABRERZ
ATEESARMEZERESEZ LT
RAEFBSMBZAFEEFAEMMEZEK
Mt EZERPBEARBS 2 RERKER
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STABRAENRAESMS > EEE
BRAEFEETRRARHNKREHEEGERE
BIEER o o AEBENRKRERET
RSB MNIIE L HRAES » Hig
EABRAFEEAAHEMZEKE B
BEREYSERZERS 2 EBRES
TERREMAEGS ZRRREEDE °

BRE D
TXHHERESRLRERS BRHEAR
HREREERE

ERBEBLFTRATEMNERESE, TR
10% (ZE-FF . 10%) > 81 :

e AXNERHEE_ZE_—F+_AH
=t+—HIEFENREB SN ONE
N4 A% 1,471,000 T (B2
£ #B151,720,000 7T) TR A9
#1,471,000 T (ZE_TF : B
1,720,0007T) ° REZR A EAUR
FEEFABENEMEEN LS
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

37. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)

37B.FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Liquidity risk

In the management of the liquidity risk, the Group monitors

and maintains a level of cash and cash equivalents deemed

adequate by the management to finance its operations and

mitigate the effects of fluctuations in cash flows. The

management monitors the utilisation of bank borrowings

and ensures compliance with loan covenants.

The Group relies on bank borrowings as a significant source
of liquidity. As at 31 December 2021, the Group had
available unutilised bank loan facilities of approximately
HK$542,745,000 (2020: HK$278,000,000). Details of the
amounts utilised at the end of the reporting period are set
out in note 26.

The following tables detail the Group’s remaining
contractual maturity for its non-derivative financial
liabilities and lease liabilities. The tables below have been
drawn up based on the contractual maturities of the
undiscounted financial liabilities and lease liabilities
including interest that will accrue, with reference to their
respective contractual interest rate, and for those variable-
rate instruments, by using the appropriate prevailing
market rates at the end of the reporting period as stated in
their contracts.

rE AR

37. M T A (48)
37B. M EEEIEBIEREE (45)

REVE & B

TEERSEERRE > sEEEER
REEEEXABHNEERRESE
HEKT BEHEBEEREES IR
RIS RERINTE - EEEEIZER
TERZ AR R RET B2

NEBKBRITEREARDESZE
BRRE e R_E_—F+"_H=+—H">
AEEEIBHAME RN ZIBITER
RAAHHBNE 542,745,000 T (ZCE_Z4F ¢
7515 278,000,0007T) - WEIREHIMGEE
HEB RS E 2 B MIzE26 ©

FEBRITEZREBEREERRER
BREIIEFFIIR TR - TREREBRR
ReMafNEAEaRGaERBENEN
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HAR ERAYTISFIRME o



37. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED) 37. EMI A (&)
37B.FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND 37B. R EEEEREE (8)
POLICIES (CONTINUED)
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Liquidity risk (Continued) RENE £ AR (58)
Within More than Total
Weighted 1 year or 1 year but undiscounted
average repayable less than More than financial Carrying
interest rate on demand 5 years 5 years liabilities amounts
RS —EBE R
il Rk —EREE LERRE LERRE SHARNE BRI
% HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
AETT AETT BETT BETT AETT
2021 Ez-f
Non-derivative financial i &G
liabilities and lease liabilities  RiAB&(E
Trade and other payables B A REMEMIRE - 431,510 105,589 - 537,099 537,099
Lease liabilities HEAR 2.54 3,367 2,701 - 6,068 5,916
Bank borrowings (note) SRITMER (D) 2.00 566,436 1,096,714 297,702 1,960,852 1,848,864
Amounts due to FEfIEERRER
non-controlling shareholders
— Interest bearing —:E 1.41 263 - - 263 263
— Non-interest bearing — &8 - 10,095 - - 10,095 10,095
Total ek 1,011,671 1,205,004 297,702 2,514,377 2,402,237
2020 ZEC%F
Non-derivative financial FirESRaE
liabilities and lease liabilities  RiAB&(E
Trade and other payables B S REMEMRE - 389,840 94,413 - 484,253 484,253
Lease liabilities HEAR 333 2,866 3,610 - 6,476 6,197
Bank borrowings (note) T () 1.54 526,955 979,991 - 1,506,946 1,461,059
Amounts due to FEfEERRER
non-controlling shareholders
— Interest bearing —ite 144 2,808 - - 2,808 2,808
— Non-interest bearing — &8 - 9,978 - - 9,978 9,978
Total fags 932,447 1,078,014 - 2,010,461 1,964,295

note: The amounts included above for variable interest rate instruments are subject to [tz : st ATEERAGEIESIEZEE BV ZEfIEzE
change if changes in variable interest rates differ from those estimates of interest RN REEREE AR BN R LD EREELES o
rates determined at the end of the reporting period.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

37. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)
37B.FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND
POLICIES (CONTINUED)
Liquidity risk (Continued)
Bank loans with a repayment on demand clause are
included in the “within 1 year or repayable” time band in
the above maturity analysis. As at 31 December 2021, the
aggregate carrying amounts of these bank loans amounted
to HK$479,000,000 (2020: HK$432,000,000). Taking into
account the Group’s financial position, the directors do not
believe that it is probable that the banks will exercise their
discretionary rights to demand immediate repayment. The
directors of the Company believe that such bank loans will
be repaid within one year after the end of the reporting
period in accordance with the scheduled repayment dates
set out in the loan agreements, and the total undiscounted
cash outflows amounted to HK$484,371,000 (2020:
HK$438,161,000).

Interest rate benchmark reform

As listed in note 26, several of the Group’s HIBOR bank
borrowings may be subject to the interest rate benchmark
reform. The Group is closely monitoring the market and
managing the transition to new benchmark interest rates,
including announcements made by the relevant IBOR
regulators.

HIBOR

While the Hong Kong Dollar Overnight Index Average
("HONIA") has been identified as an alternative to HIBOR,
there is no plan to discontinue HIBOR. The multi-rate
approach has been adopted in Hong Kong, whereby HIBOR
and HONIA will co-exist.

(i) Risks arising from the interest rate benchmark reform

The following are the key risks for the Group arising from
the transition:

rE AR

37. EMTIA (&)
378. M4 #5 b B2 BT RS (47)

e E & AP (48)

ERREIBONF > HEERBERERN
IRITERBIE EERK—FAEIE]
R RIEZ—F+ZHA=+—8H"
ZERTERNKRBDREABEK
479,000,0007c( — & — T &£: B K
432,000,0007T) ° & & E & B 8 f ik
T BEMRARITAKAUITHEERN
BRHEERIEEER AATRESERE
ZERITERRBNBREHRE—FAR
BERGEEZEEEREIEE
FMBENREAEBIESL BIE
484,371000c( Z T Z T F: B &
438,161,000 JT) ©
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37. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)

37B.FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Interest rate benchmark reform (Continued)

HIBOR (Continued)

(i) Risks arising from the interest rate benchmark reform
(Continued)

Interest rate related risks

For contracts which have not been transitioned to the
relevant alternative benchmark rates and without detailed
fallback clauses, if the bilateral negotiations with the
Group’'s counterparties are not successfully concluded
before the cessation, there are significant uncertainties with
regard to the interest rate that would apply. This gives rise
to additional interest rate risk that was not anticipated
when the contracts were entered into.

There are fundamental differences between IBORs and the
various alternative benchmark rates. IBORs are forward
looking term rates published for a period (e.g. 3 months) at
the beginning of that period and include an inter-bank
credit spread, whereas alternative benchmark rates are
typically risk-free overnight rates published at the end of
the overnight period with no embedded credit spread.
These differences will result in additional uncertainty
regarding floating rate interest payments.

Liquidity risk

The additional uncertainty on various alternative rates
which are typically published on overnight basis will require
additional liquidity management. The Group’s liquidity risk
management policy has been updated to ensure sufficient
liguid resources to accommodate unexpected increases in
overnight rates.

Litigation risk

If no agreement is reached to implement the interest rate
benchmark reform on contracts which have not been
transitioned to the relevant alternative benchmark rates
(e.g. arising from differing interpretation of existing
fallback terms), there is a risk of prolonged disputes with
counterparties which could give rise to additional legal and
other costs. The Group is working closely with all
counterparties to avoid this from occurring.

37. &R T A (&)
378. B EKREREBIRREE (8)

FIEBENE ()
BBIRITAIZENE (&
() FREERFHRORER (8)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

37. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)

37B.FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Interest rate benchmark reform (Continued)

HIBOR (Continued)

(ii) Progress towards implementation of alternative
benchmark interest rates

As part of the Group’s risk management for transition, new

contracts entered into by the Group are linked to the

relevant alternative benchmark rates or interest rates which

are not subject to reform to the extent feasible.

For the floating rate bank borrowings that are linked to
HIBOR (the “Contracts”), the management expects the
Contracts will continue to maturity and the Group does not
intend to transition the Contracts to HONIA.

Credit risk and impairment assessment

Credit risk refers to the risk that the Group’s counterparties
default on their contractual obligations resulting in
financial losses to the Group. The Group’s credit risk
exposures are primarily attributable to trade receivables,
lease receivables, deposits paid and other receivables, loans
advanced to joint ventures and bank deposits. The Group
does not hold any collateral or other credit enhancements
to cover its credit risks associated with its financial assets.

Trade receivables and lease receivables

The Group has concentration of credit risk as 29% (2020:
36%) and 73% (2020: 73%) of the total trade receivables
was due from the Group’s largest customer and the five
largest customers respectively within the trading and
manufacturing business segment.

In order to minimise the credit risk, the management of the
Group has delegated a team responsible for determination
of credit limits and credit approvals and other monitoring
procedures to ensure that follow-up action is taken to
recover overdue debts. The Group also has policies in place
to ensure the new customers/tenants are with sound credit
quality.

rE AR
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378. M4 #5 b B2 BT RS (47)
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37. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)
37B.FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND
POLICIES (CONTINUED)
Credit risk and impairment assessment (Continued)
Trade receivables and lease receivables (Continued)
In addition, the Group performs ECL assessment on debtors
with significant outstanding balances or credit-impaired
individually. The remaining debtors are considered on a
collective basis taking into consideration of grouping of
internal credit rating by reference to past due information
and relevant credit information, and forward-looking
macroeconomic information that is available without undue
cost or effort. The grouping is regularly reviewed by
management to ensure the constituents of each group
continue to share similar credit risk characteristics.

Deposits paid and other receivables

The management of the Group regularly review and assess
the credit quality of the counterparties. The Group uses
12m ECL to assess the loss allowance of deposits paid and
other receivables since these amounts are neither past due
nor with fixed repayment terms, and there has not been a
significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition. In
this regard, the directors of the Company consider that the
Group's credit risk is not significant.

Loans advanced to joint ventures

The Group regularly monitors the business performance of
joint ventures. The Group's credit risks in these balances are
mitigated through the value of the assets held by these
entities and the power to jointly control the relevant
activities of these entities. The management believes that
there are no significant increase in credit risk of these
amounts since initial recognition. For the years ended 31
December 2021 and 2020, the Group assessed the ECL for
loans advanced to joint ventures are insignificant and thus
no loss allowance is recognised.

37. EMIA (&)
378. BAF5 IR EIE B IR R 5R (4])

(S SRR B (ER T (48)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

37. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)
37B.FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND
POLICIES (CONTINUED)
Credit risk and impairment assessment (Continued)
Bank balances (including fixed bank deposits)
Credit risk on bank balances is limited because the
counterparties are reputable banks with high credit ratings
assigned by international credit agencies. The Group
assessed 12m ECL for bank balances by reference to
information relating to probability of default and loss given
default of the respective credit rating grades published by
external credit rating agencies.

Other than concentration of credit risk on liquid funds
which are deposited with several banks with high credit
ratings, the Group does not have any other significant
concentration of credit risk.

The Group’s internal credit risk grading assessment
comprises the following categories:

Internal credit rating Description

rE AR

37. M T A (48)
37B. M EEEIEBIEREE (45)

(S SR R A E T (48)

IR1T7FL (BIFIRITERI k)

HNHF 5 AEERE ST REBER
BIEETRIIRTT MBS RITHE
MNEERREER - ~EEZ2Z EINE
15 AT AR IR 1B S M BIE S BT AR F 4R
MENBRNMBRGENBRAMNE
B R 12ERRREEERHNIRTE
BRIELETY o

BREERBRETREABEEIRNE
FIRITHRBERS > FEFLEER
EREMEXGEERR -

FEBNASEERRTREEUATS
8.

Other financial

Trade receivables assets/other items

R EETR il BRI HthemEE AR

Low risk The counterparty has a low risk of default and does not have any past-due amounts ~ Lifetime ECL— 12m ECL
not credit-impaired

BRkR HELHENERE > BEEEMAENE EHEBEERE — BB EHEERE
BEESHE

Watch list Debtor usually settle after due date Lifetime ECL — 12m ECL
not credit-impaired

EZRE BEEARERANEES EHEBEERE — BB EHEERE
BEESHE

Doubtful There have been significant increases in credit risk since initial recognition through ~ Lifetime ECL— Lifetime ECL-

information developed internally or external resources not credit-impaired not credit-impaired

2 EERRAEBAIESMIERRNERGREDEAEEM EHEBEERE — EHEBEERE
BEESHE BEEERE

Loss There is evidence indicating the asset is credit-impaired Lifetime ECL — Lifetime ECL-
credit-impaired credit-impaired

B ETBESREEAENSE EHEBEERE — EHEBEERE
EEHE {EEHE

Write-off There is evidence indicating that the debtor is in severe financial difficulty and the ~ Amount s written off Amount is written off

Group has no realistic prospect of recovery
s BErEBARRBERBRENER  ArEETEERKE SHERMH SHERMH

ByRIAE



37. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED) 37. EMIA (&)

37B.FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND  37B. i EIS EIEHIEREE (48)
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Credit risk and impairment assessment (Continued) S EHE ISR EF ()

Bank balances (including fixed bank deposits) (Continued) IRITTE=R (B1EIR1TE B 7 7%) (8B)

The tables below detail the credit risk exposures of the TRFIALEFSHEEDENEER

Group’s financial assets, which are subject to ECL [% > ‘B TEEREEEENHE -

assessment:

=
2
>
2
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>
-
F)
m
v
o
=
-
x
#
#
b

2021 2020
External - S 1%
Notes credit rating Internal rating  12m or lifetime ECL Gross carrying amount Gross carrying amount
M SMEREEA R 12{ER2HREMBEESR BIEEE BREE

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
ERTR ARTR ARTT ARTT

Financial assets at amortised cost

NEHEREARNEREE
Trade receivables N NA (note 2) (Pit5E2)  Lifetime ECL (collective assessment) 10,780 10,884
and lease TER 2HBHEERE BT
receivables N/A Lowrisk{E B} Lifetime ECL (individual assessment) 21,183 22,254
BARKRTREE TEH 2HBHEERE (ER)
FEUSERER Watch list Lifetime ECL (individual assessment) 10,696 49,259 71 40,209
BRgE 2HBHEERE (ERE)
Deposits paid and 21 NA (note 1) 12m ECL 59,259 32,888
other receivables NGl (FitzE1) 1ERBHEERE
EfffrsEil
HtREIRERT
Loan advanced to 18 NA (note 1) 12m ECL 187,089 192,326
joint ventures @R (Pt 1) 1{EREMEESSE
BYFRELE
Bank balances 2 AdltoAa3 N/A 12m ECL 702,517 110,492
RITAEER Aal EAa3 TER 1EREHEERE
AltoA3 N/A 12m ECL 263,149 570,015
MEM iR NERFMEESE
Baal to Baa3 N/A 12m ECL 1,041,911 2,007,577 1,306,712 1,987,219
Baal & Baa3 TEm 1EREHEERE
notes: izt
1. For the purposes of internal credit risk management, the Group uses past due 1. RASEERREENS  ARBERGRERFEEERR 287
information to assess whether credit risk has increased significantly since initial REBNERIE—BAELA =
recognition. z
Not past due/No fixed repayment terms r?i
BH/ BERETER ﬁ
2021 2020 =
o Sl - I
HK$'000 HK$'000
BB BETR
Deposits paid and other receivables EfifRE S MM AERERR 59,259 32,888
Loans advanced to joint ventures BRFRELE 187,089 192,326
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 4 & 8 53R R MW 5

37. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)

37B.FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Credit risk and impairment assessment (Continued)

Bank balances (including fixed bank deposits) (Continued)

notes: (Continued)

2. For trade receivables, the Group has applied the simplified approach in accordance
with HKFRS 9 to measure the loss allowance at lifetime ECL. Except for debtors with
significant outstanding balances or credit-impaired, the Group determines the
expected credit losses on those balances by using collective assessment, grouped by
internal credit rating.

As part of the Group's credit risk management, the Group applies internal credit
rating for its customers. The following table provides information about the exposure
to credit risk for trade receivables and lease receivables which are assessed based on
collective assessment within lifetime ECL (not credit-impaired). As at 31 December
2021, debtors with significant outstanding balances with gross carrying amount of
HK$38,479,000 (2020: HK$29,365,000) was assessed individually.

Gross carrying amount

37. M IA (&)
378. MAF5E IR EIEEH R REE ()

(SR B R EFE (4R)

ﬁiﬁ(g# (B1ZIR1TEHF7%) ()

2.

RERRUIRRTS  RESBMNHRSENZ R &0
ERMELHA B2 RRREEHRNGERER  REARE
ARSAEERENREAN  FEARBAGTEREEUR
HEEFRIENZSEHNBREERR

fEAREENEEAREEZ - FEEARRARRAR
BEETE - TREEEHEZRKEREERRNER %
EEBRENRR R RS ERERNARTE (L
EEHE) EE - RCB—E+-A=+-HEBEX
REEERRAREBABE84900T(ZE-SE: B
129,365,00070) MEBANEERTE o

HIRE(E

Trade receivables

B A RKIRR

2021 2020
“E--f 3
HK$000 HK$'000
BRI BETIR

Internal credit rating P EETAR
Low risk ERR 6,603 5,051
Watch list BryE 2,062 3,780
Doubtful 2 2,115 2,053
10,780 10,884

The estimated loss rates are estimated based on historical observed default rates
over the expected life of the debtors and are adjusted for forward-looking
information that is available without undue cost or effort. The grouping is regularly
reviewed by management to ensure relevant information about specific debtors is
updated.

37C.FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS OF FINANCIAL
INSTRUMENTS

Some of the Group’s financial assets and financial liabilities

are measured at fair value at the end of each reporting

period. The following table gives information about how

the fair values of these financial assets are determined (in

particular, the valuation technique(s) and inputs used).

et BREDERREARERE RN REMGNENE
fhst WRBRTEERSHARZ NI RGHAREERA
BonENHERERAEY  URREREEREANER
ERHGUER -

37C. EMTAAFEEHE

FEERIEMEERETHBEUEZTR
FHRNAFEESE - TRIEHAR
EMEEZATEEEAXNER (AR
Mms > BEESERRANEAZE) -



37. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED) 37. ST A (&)
37C.FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS OF FINANCIAL 37C. ERMTAAFEENE (B)
INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)
2021
EC-F
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
F—1RR F4RA BRI k]
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

AETRT AETRT il ARt
Financial assets at FVTPL BATEEABEZEMER
Listed equity securities Ll 17,620 - - 17,620
Equity instruments at FVTOCI BATEEARMRENS

ba; an=!
Listed equity securities Ll 357 - - 357
Unlisted equity securities ELhRRES - - 256,212 256,212
Perpetual capital securities ERBERES - 48,070 - 48,070
Total ia%m 17,977 48,070 256,212 322,259
2020
“ECEE
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
F—1RA) FEZIRG =R iam
HK$'000 HK$"000 HK$"000 HK$'000

AT BT BT AT
Financial assets at FVTPL BATEEIAEEZEHERE
Listed equity securities LhigAES 20,598 - - 20,598
Equity instruments at FVTOCI BATEEARM2ENS

ZHERTE

Listed equity securities LhigAES 161,548 - - 161,548
Unlisted equity securities FEhRAHES - - 259,482 259,482
Perpetual capital securities EIREAE A% - 47,517 - 47,517
Total 182,146 47,517 259,482 489,145
Financial liabilities at FVTPL BATEE A BEZEREE
Derivative financial instruments SRTETR - 1,808 - 1,808

There were no transfers between Levels 1, 2 and 3 during

the year.

The fair values of listed equity securities are determined
with reference to quoted market bid prices from relevant

stock exchanges.

BEFEMEE o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

37. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)
37C.FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS OF FINANCIAL
INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)
The fair values of perpetual capital securities are
determined based on indicative prices provided by the
dealers and brokers. In addition, the Group makes
comparison of the indicative prices with the prices obtained
from pricing services providers to substantiate the indicative
prices of these securities. The key inputs used in the
valuation models are the interest rate data, which are
observable at the end of the reporting period. The objective
of valuation models is to arrive at a fair value estimation
that reflects the price of the financial instrument at the
reporting date, which would have been determined by
market participants acting at arm’s length.

The fair values of unlisted equity securities are determined
with reference to market values of underlying assets, which
mainly comprise investment properties located in Hong
Kong held by the investees and take into account the
discount for lack of marketability. The valuation of the
properties was principally arrived at using the comparison
method, in which property is valued on the assumption that
the property can be sold with the benefit of vacant
possession. Comparison based on prices realised on actual
sales of comparable properties is made for similar properties
in the similar location.

The fair value of cross currency swap contract is measured
by the present value of future cash flows estimated and
discounted based on the applicable yield curves derived
from quoted interest rates and foreign exchange rates
between JPY and HK$, which were observable at the end of
the reporting period.

The directors of the Company consider that the carrying
amounts of the Group’s other financial assets and financial
liabilities recorded at amortised costs in the consolidated
financial statements approximate their fair values.

rE AR

37. EMTIA (&)
37C. EMIAAFEENE (&
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37. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)

37C.FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS OF FINANCIAL
INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)

Reconciliation of Level 3 fair value measurements of

financial assets

37. M T A (48)
37C. EMIAAFEEE ()

AR ER =R QAT EEHERRE

Equity instruments

at FVTOCI

BRATEERA

Hfth2EWa

ZERTR

HK$'000

BT

Balance at 1 January 2020 RZB_ZTE—B—-RAiH 291,681
Total net losses recognised in other comprehensive income REMZEREARESZ 358 (32,199)
Balance at 31 December 2020 RIBZEF+-A=+—H&H 259,482
Total net losses recognised in other comprehensive income REMZEREAESZFER (3,270)
Balance at 31 December 2021 RIEZ—F+ZR=1+—R&H 256,212

Included in other comprehensive income is loss of
approximately HK$3,270,000 (2020: HK$32,199,000) related
to unlisted equity instruments at FVTOCI held at the end of
the reporting period.

The majority of the Group’s investments are valued based
on quoted market information or observable market data.
A small percentage, 1.6% (2020: 1.7%), of total assets of the
Group, is based on estimates and recorded as financial
assets with Level 3 fair value measurements. Whilst such
valuations are sensitive to estimates, it is believed that
changing one or more of the assumptions to reasonably
possible alternative assumptions would not have a big
impact on the Group’s financial positions.

Efﬂ%ﬁuﬁzfﬁwa%ﬁ’%m:s 270,000 7T
HNEBIE(ZST 2T F 1 132,199,000
7o) > MR EHREEBRAENRAT
BEAEMEEAKEZFELH#EST
BB -

HAEEBEENR/NER > 1.6% (=
TRF 11.7%) 0 DIRBAERE =R
IR BERERAR o ILEER G RR
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 4 & 8 53R R MW 5

37. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)

37C.FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS OF FINANCIAL
INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)

Fair value measurements and valuation processes

The management performs regular reviews to determine

the appropriate valuation techniques and inputs for fair

value measurement.

In estimating the fair value of an asset or a liability, the
Group uses market-observable data to the extent it is
available. Where Level 1 inputs are not available, the Group
engages independent qualified professional valuers or
other service providers to perform the valuations. The
management works closely with the valuers to establish the
appropriate valuation techniques and inputs to the model.
The respective management team reports the findings to
the Board of Directors of the Company regularly to explain
the cause of fluctuations in the fair value of the assets and
liabilities.

Information about the valuation techniques and inputs used
in determining the fair value of various financial assets and
liabilities is disclosed above.

37. EMTIA (&)
37C. EMIAAFEENE ()
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38. RECONCILIATION OF LIABILITIES ARISING FROM
FINANCING ACTIVITIES
The table below details changes in the Group’s liabilities

arising from financing activities, including both cash and

non-cash changes. Liabilities arising from financing activities

are those for which cash flows were, or future cash flows

will be, classified in the Group’s consolidated statement of

cash flows as cash flows from financing activities.

38. MREHEENRBZHIR

TREFMTHAEBRRETHEENGR
216> SERSMIIFRSEE - BMEE
HEENEREMPERERE > KK
NHEERE > REDELEEBNRS
RERBRNMEITHHRTAE

(]

Amount due
to former
shareholder of Lease Dividend Interest
Borrowings a subsidiary liabilities payable payable Total
EHEAE
fE AIRRZAE ek ERRE ERFS L]
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BETR BlETR BETR BT BT BETR
At 1 January 2020 RZEZEF—F—H 1,509,734 - 10,988 - 330 1,521,052
Financing cash flows HERER (42,406) - (5203) (214,050) (41,150) (302,829)
Finance costs BB - - 2% - 41,554 41,850
Leases terminated HERIE - - (263) - - (263)
Dividends recognised as distribution BEIADRZIRE - - - 214,050 - 214,050
Currency realignment ExHR 6,517 - 399 - 11 6,927
At31 December 2020 RIZZBE+ZA=+-H 14713845 - 6,197 - 745 1,480,787
Financing cash flows HMERER 34,744 (115,816) (3,662) (162,790) (20,997) (268,521)
Finance costs FEHA - - 177 - 21,980 22,157
Dividends recognised as distribution ~ BHEEADKZIRE - - - 162,790 - 162,790
Acquisition of a subsidiary (note 35)  WxEEHIB A E (FizE 35) 347,448 115,816 - - - 463,264
New leases entered EHEEE - - 3,054 - - 3,054
Currency realignment ExAE 3,185 - 150 - - 3,335
At 31 December 2021 R-E-—F+-A=1+—-H 1,859,222 - 5916 - 1,728 1,866,366
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 4 & 8 53R R MW 5

39. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION AND 39. EATIMBRRARRHEB

N
©
kY

RESERVES OF THE COMPANY

2021 2020
ZET-F CEC%E
HKS$'000 HK$'000
BETR BT
Non-current assets ERBEE
Investment properties RENE 2,328,800 2,230,000
Property, plant and equipment M BER&E 520,841 532,672
Right-of-use assets EREEE 2,320 1,058
Investments in subsidiaries MBARZEE 598,052 550,575
Investments in securities EHRE 76,560 76,577
Amounts due from subsidiaries BB ARRR 5,269,341 4,955,334
Deferred tax assets ELEREBEE 18,414 20,608
8,814,328 8,366,824
Current assets HHEE
Properties held for sale FHEE 2,808 2,808
Trade and other receivables B 5 REMEKEIR 3,979 3,355
Investments in securities EHRE 17,620 20,598
Fixed bank deposits with more than three months to  ZA={EAAIIHZ EHETES
maturity when raised 67,870 -
Bank balances and cash FIERREE 858,462 995,054
950,739 1,021,815
Current liabilities TEaE
Trade and other payables B2 R EMAE IR 9,212 8,437
Lease liabilities HEafR 1,526 1,091
Derivative financial instruments ERTETR - 1,808
Borrowings — due within one year fEm — R—FR5H 529,000 432,000
539,738 443,336
Net current assets THEERE 411,001 578,479
Total assets less current liabilities BEERTBEE 9,225,329 8,945,303
Non-current liabilities EREaE
Other payables HthFEfTERR 52,267 52,668
Lease liabilities HEsR 800 -
Borrowings — due after one year fEm — R—F %50 943,400 991,000
Non-interest bearing advances from subsidiaries HBARZ R EER 339,369 119,887
1,335,836 1,163,555
7,889,493 7,781,748
Capital and reserves BEREE
Share capital (R 381,535 381,535
Reserves =14 7,507,958 7,400,213
7,889,493 7,781,748
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The financial statements were approved and authorised for

MERREN_S-__F=B+HEE

issue by the Board of Directors on 10 March 2022 and are FEE#MERZ#EZRIT > THTFIALHK

signed on its behalf by: REE
MR. LIU LIT CHI MR. CHENG YUK WO
EAg%E EpERAIE
CHAIRMAN, MANAGING DIRECTOR CHAIRMAN OF AUDIT COMMITTEE
AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER BZEZEETE

T EFREERITHAEH
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39. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION AND 39. ZAFMBIRRERREHE (&) 5
2
RESERVES OF THE COMPANY (CONTINUED) E
MOVEMENT IN THE COMPANY'’S RESERVES TAFIEZES %
Property Investment g
revaluation revaluation Accumulated #
reserve reserve profits Total ]
MEE (G REEHHE 4l @5t H
HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS$’000 HK$'000
BB BT BETR BETR
At 1 January 2020 RZE-EE—-H—H 448 (35,595) 7,497,105 7,461,958
Profit for the year EEEHR - - 143,205 143,205
Fair value losses on investments in BATBEAEM2ERZZ
equity instruments at FVTOC BRI ATEESSE = (4,300) = (4,300)
Total comprehensive (expense) income ZEE2H (L) Wiz
for the year - (4,300) 143,205 138,905
Dividends recognised as distribution ~ ERZANKZIRE - - (200,650) (200,650)
At 31 December 2020 RIEZEE+-A=+—H 448 (39,895) 7,439,660 7,400,213
Profit for the year REERR = - 270,715 270,715
Fair value losses on investments in BABEFAREMZERE 2
equity instruments at FVTOCI ERTEZ ATEESR = (179) = (179)
Total comprehensive (expense) income ZEEZE (L) WL
for the year - (179) 270,715 270,536
Dividends recognised as distribution ~ BREZADRZKE - - (162,791) (162,791)
At 31 December 2021 RZE-—-F+-A=1+—-H 448 (40,074) 7,547,584 7,507,958
40. RELATED PARTY DISCLOSURES 40. B A LTHESEIE
(A) RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (A) RABALTRS

The Group had no material significant transactions with ~ ZR&EE I EEARTH;E A LTI EARS ©
related parties.

(B) COMPENSATION OF KEY MANAGEMENT (B) XEERBASHS

PERSONNEL
The emoluments of key management personnel of the FA > NEFFESEASZEHMNT :
Group during the year were as follows:

2021 2020
-l 3
HK$'000 HK$'000
BT BlTr
Short-term benefits TaHRER 49,299 45,623
Post-employment benefits EERKEH 3,260 3,370
52,559 48,993
L . . 295
The emoluments of directors and key executives are EERFBITHABZHMIIBEHRMNZ =
determined by the remuneration committee having regard BEREARRERTZESZERE 2
to the performance of individuals and market trends. :
=
I
L]

B EEE—
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

41. PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES
Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries as at 31

December 2021 and 31 December 2020 are as follows:

4= AN
N7 N

41. TEME AR
—F+ZA=t—HBkKkRZZFZ
TEF+"ZA=+—H> xREAZEEM

A — o —
=

BATERT :

MR M5

Place of Issued
incorporation or ordinary
establishment/ share capital/ Proportion of nominal value of issued capital/
Name of subsidiary notes  operations registered capital registered capital held by the Company Principal activities
BaAE] BETEERE/ SARFAERTREEE
WEBARRHE W R/ EEh &S AmESZLEH TEER
Directly Indirectly
Ef# it
2021 2020 2021 2020
—®--§ C“ECEf 8- CECER
% % % %
Abaleen Enterprises Limited Hong Kong HK$100,000 100 100 = - Property investment
5 71 100,00075 NERE
Alain Limited Hong Kong HK$9,500 100 100 = - Investment holding
BEARAR ) 59,5007 REER
Bonsun Enterprises Limited Hong Kong HK$2,000,000 100 100 = - Property investment
BREXARAT ) 712,000,0007T NERE
Bright Ocean Limited Hong Kong HK$10,000 = - 100 100  Food and beverage
&E 710,007 B
Chong Yip Finance Limited Hong Kong HK$1,000,000 100 100 = - Money lending
BIEMBARAR ) 711,000,00075 ANER
Chong Yip (Nominees) Limited Hong Kong HK$1 100 100 - - Provision of nominees
services
8% (RE) BIRAT s AT R AR
Devon Realty Limited Hong Kong HK$200 100 100 = - Property investment
EEMEBRAT o 2007 UESIE
Donington Company Limited Hong Kong HK$200 100 100 = - Property investment
&E 2007 NERE
Fancy Wealth Limited Hong Kong HK$10,000 = - 100 100 Retail sales
& 10,0007 SEHE
Golden Harbour Interational Limited Hong Kong HK$1 - - 100 100  Property investment
BERRERAT 0 BT mERE
Harvest Gate Investments Limited Hong Kong HK$1 100 100 = - Property investment
SEREBRAT B BT mERE
Heng Kin Investment Limited Hong Kong HKS2 100 100 = - Property investment
EREEBRAT By BT MERE
Honour Speed Development Limited Hong Kong HKS2 100 100 - - Investment holding
BEERBRAT i BT REER



=
2
2
s}
41. PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES (CONTINUED) 41. X EMBAF (&) E
Place of Issued a
incorporation or ordinary 3
establishment/ share capital/ Proportion of nominal value of issued capital/ 2
Name of subsidiary notes  operations registered capital registered capital held by the Company Principal activities
L] BH{TRERS, KAARHESTRETEE :
WEARRHE Wisk  RRIIs A E &R EEZLEH TEEH =
Directly Indirectly o
B g
2021 2020 2021 2020
¥ “ZCTF RO CF0EZ%
% % % %
Hugh Glory Limited Hong Kong HK$100 - - 90 90 Investment holding
EERRAF &t #1007 REER
Hugh Wealth International Limited Hong Kong HK$100 100 100 - - Investment holding
BRERERAR &t #1007 REER
Jacot Limited Hong Kong HKS2 100 100 - - Investment holding
ERBRAF & BT REER
Joyce King Limited Hong Kong HK$1 100 100 - - Investment holding
FHERAH &E BT REER
Ko Yew Company Limited Hong Kong HK$200 100 100 = - Property investment
BEERAR B B 2007T NERE
Liu Chong Hing Estate Company, Hong Kong HK$10,000,000 100 100 - - Investment holding
Limited &8 710,000,000 75 RERR
BRIEELERAT
Liu Chong Hing Godown Company, Hong Kong HK$72,000,000 100 100 - - Property investment
Limited &# 172,000,000 78 UESE]
BRIEXERARAR
Liu Chong Hing Property Hong Kong HK$1,000,000 100 100 - - Property management
Management and Agency Limited &5 11,000,007 MEERE

BRIENFEERAEARAR

Luxpolar Limited Hong Kong HKS2 - - 100 100  Property investment
B BT UES T
One-Eight-One Hospitality Hong Kong HK$1 - - 100 100 Hotel operation and
Management Limited EB BT management
BEEERER
One-Eight-One Lobby Café Limited Hong Kong HK$10,000 100 100 - - Food and heverage 297
& A 100007 a5 .
)i
Queen Profit International Hong Kong HK$61,540 83.75 83.75 - - Investment holding o
Investment Limited &# BI61,540 7T REER =
B ERRERRAR >
Richview Property Management Hong Kong HK$10,000 = - 100 100  Property management Lﬁ'
Company Limited |||
ERNEEEERAT && 10,0007 MEEIRE g
#
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

41. PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES (CONTINUED)

41. T EMB2E (48)

4= AN
N7 N

MR M5

Place of Issued
incorporation or ordinary
establishment/ share capital/ Proportion of nominal value of issued capital/
Name of subsidiary notes  operations registered capital registered capital held by the Company Principal activities
sEAIIE BRTLERS BARFAERTRAEE
WEARRHE Wik RRIIsAEE &R A& ZLEH TERH
Directly Indirectly
B g
2021 2020 2021 2020
¥ “Z°TF RO CF°EZ%
% % % %
Royal Best Investments Limited Hong Kong HK$1 100 100 - - Investment holding
EEREBRAT s AT REZR
Sino Pink Development Limited Hong Kong HKS$2 100 100 - - Hotel operation
BILERBRAT ) BT BEEE
Speed World Investment Limited Hong Kong HK$100 - - 60 60  Investment holding
ERRERRAR Bt 1007 REER
Strong Zone International Limited Hong Kong HK$1 100 100 - - Investment holding
BHERERAR ) BT REZR
Supreme Stone Investments Limited Hong Kong HK$1 - - 100 100 Investment holding
EEREBRAT ) L AP REZR
Top New Investment Limited Hong Kong HK$100 - - 90 90 Investment holding
MEFREBRAT ) 100 7T REZR
Top Team Limited Hong Kong HK$200 100 100 - - Investment holding
&t B 2007T REZR
Trade Castle Limited Hong Kong HK$1 - - 100 100 Investment holding
BRERAT s BT REZR
Trend Able Investments Limited Hong Kong HK$1 - - 100 100 Investment holding
ERREBRAT ) A1 REZR
Truegrow Investments Limited Hong Kong HKS!1 - - 100 100  Investment holding
R EBRAT Y A1 REZR
Wealth Good Investment Limited Hong Kong HKS2 100 100 - - Investment holding
BHRERRAR &A A2 REZR
Yue Tung Ching Kee Company Limited Hong Kong HK$2,000,000 100 100 = - Property investment
ARECBRAF BE 712,000,000 78 NERE
Foshan Nanhai Hugh Glory Property (i) PRC HK$500,000,000 - - 90 90  Property development
Development Company Limited e #1%500,000,000 7 L
HUREEEEENELR
BIRAT
Foshan Top New Property (i) PRC HK$612,500,000 - - 90 90  Property development
Development Company Limited HE 71 612,500,000 7 MEER

BUTHFERHERZERAR
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41. PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES (CONTINUED) 41. X EMEB AT (8]) E
Place of Issued a
incorporation or ordinary 3
establishment/ share capital/ Proportion of nominal value of issued capital/ =]
Name of subsidiary notes  operations registered capital registered capital held by the Company Principal activities
SRS BERERS FARSAESTRAER :
MEAREHE W Rt/ EEh HMES &R TREH &
Directly Indirectly o
B [}
2021 2020 2021 2020
—$--§ C"T_®§ CZ¥°-F CECER
% % % %
Guangzhou Trade Castle Property (i PRC HK$8,500,000 - - 100 100  Property investment
Consultany Limited I 18,500,007 WERE
BT EREEHS AR RA
Guangzhou Wealth Smart Property (i) PRC HK$1,000,000 - - 100 100  Property management
Management Company Limited HE 11,000,007 WEER

BN ERNXERERAT

Maanshan Gaoke Magnetic Material (i)~ PRC RMB65,370,000 - - 51.54 51.54  Manufacturing of
Company Limited HE AEE magnetic materials
BEUSHEEEARAT 65,370,000 7 SUEHT A
Shanghai Huang Pu Liu Chong Hing (i) PRC US$34,600,000 - - 100 100 Property investment
Property Development HE 34,600,000 7T MERE
Company Limited
LEERBREEMEREER
A
Choengmon Real Estate Thailand THBA400,100,000 100 - - - Hotel operation
Company Limited %E 400,100,000 BEEE
Blossom Success Investments Limited British Virgin Islands/ Uss$1 100 100 - - Investment holding
IR EERAT Hong Kong (ES REER
BBRYEE/EE
China Link Technologies Limited British Virgin Islands/ US$100 100 100 - - Investment holding
Hong Kong 100%7T REER
BBRYEE/EE
Determined Resources Limited British Virgin Islands/ US$1,000 100 100 - - Share investment
Hong Kong 1,000%7¢ Rin%E
BBRIEE/EE

The above table lists the subsidiaries of the Group which, in EERA > HEAEEEENEEFEKX
the opinion of the directors, principally affected the results 22 AEBHBATZEBRFIIN L

299
or assets of the Group. To give details of other subsidiaries % ° EEA > SRMUHHMKBATDE -

)]
would, in the opinion of the directors, result in particulars #} > BJBIEBBRTE ° I
of excessive length. “;f
None of the subsidiaries had issued any debt securities at EEMBAREEAEERTERES
the end of the year. o

BEHELE-——&= |
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 4 & 8 53R R MW 5

41.

PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES (CONTINUED)

At the end of the reporting period, the Company has other

subsidiaries that are not material to the Group. The majority

of these subsidiaries operate in Hong Kong. The principal

activities of these subsidiaries are summarised as follows:

41. TEMBAR (&)
RAMER > ARFEEHME A E
EMErBEANKBAT - ZEH B
AFH AR EREBEE - ILEHE
NENFEFEXEFFIRMIUT -

Number of subsidiaries

WEARHE
Principal activities Principal place of business 2021 2020
IBEH TEERNE “E-% “F2%E
Hotel operation and management PRC 1 1
BELERER FRE
Investment holding British Virgin Islands/Hong Kong 12 "
RERR ABRRHE B
Property investment Hong Kong 2 2
NERE &2
Inactive Hong Kong/PRC 7 13
LEEH &8/ hE
notes: it
(i) The companies are wholly foreign owned enterprises established in the PRC. (i S NG R RRERI 2 EBE R Y
(i) The company is non-wholly owned sino-foreign enterprise established in the PRC. (il SENERBERIZ IS BEEAT o
(i) At the end of the reporting period, the Group does not have non-wholly owned (i)  RABLHF  AEETEREEAFERBRERNIERE

subsidiaries that have material non-controlling interests. HBAF o
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